UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM S-4 **REGISTRATION STATEMENT**

UNDER

THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

3851 (Primary Standard Industrial **Classification Code Number**)

94-2657368 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

6140 Stoneridge Mall Road, Suite 590 Pleasanton, CA 94588 (925) 460-3600

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant's principal executive offices)

Carol R. Kaufman

Vice President of Legal Affairs, Secretary and Chief Administrative Officer The Cooper Companies, Inc.

6140 Stoneridge Mall Road, Suite 590

Pleasanton, CA 94588 (925) 460-3600

(Name, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

Copies to:

Erica H. Steinberger, Esg. Samuel A. Fishman, Esq. Latham & Watkins LLP 885 Third Avenue, Suite 1000 New York, NY 10022 (212) 906-1200

John M. Newell, Esq. Latham & Watkins LLP 505 Montgomery St., Suite 1900 San Francisco, CA 94111 (415) 391-0600

Barry J. Kramer, Esq. Fenwick & West LLP 801 California Street Mountain View, CA 94041 (650) 988-8500

David K. Michaels, Esg. William L. Hughes, Esq. Fenwick & West LLP 275 Battery St., 16th Floor San Francisco, CA 94111 (415) 875-2300

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: As soon as practicable after the effectiveness of this registration statement and the satisfaction or waiver of all other conditions merger agreement described herein under th

If the securities being registered on this form are to be offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General Instruction G, check the following box. If this form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. $\hfill\square$

If this form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. \Box

Calculation of registration fee

Title of Each Class of Securities to be Registered	Amount to be Registered	Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per Unit	Proposed Maximum Aggregate Offering Price(1)	Amount of Registration Fee
Common Stock, \$0.10 par value per share, and the associated preferred share purchase right (2)	(3)	N/A	\$645,749,994	\$81,817

(1)Estimated solely for purposes of calculation of the registration fee in accordance with Rules 457 (c) and (f) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, based upon (i) the product of: (A) the average of the high (\$43.64) and low (\$43.11) sales prices of the common stock of Ocular Sciences, Inc. ("Ocular") of \$43.375, as reported on the Nasdaq National Market on August 16, 2004, multiplied by (B) 28,555,850, representing the number of shares of Ocular common stock outstanding on August 16, 2004 (including 3,303,742 shares of Ocular common stock issuable upon exercise of in-the-mone options outstanding as of August 16, 2004); less (ii) the amount of cash to be paid by the registrant in exchange for shares of Ocular common stock and upon cancellation of in-the-money options for Ocular common stock, or approximately \$592,860,000 as of August 16, 2004.

Attached to and trading with each share of common stock is one-half of a preferred share purchase right. Each right entitles the holder, under the circumstances set forth in the Rights Agreement dated as of (2)October 29, 1997 between the registrant and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as amended, to purchase 1/200th of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock. Value attributable to such preferred share purchase rights, if any, is reflected in the market price of the common stock. The preferred share purchase rights will be issued for no additional consideration. Accordingly, no additional registration fee is required

In accordance with Rule 457(0) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the number of shares is not set forth herein. Pursuant to Rule 457(o), the registration fee has been computed on the basis of (3)the maximum aggregate offering price of shares of registrant's common stock expected to be issued upon consummation of the merger of Ocular with and into TCC Acquisition Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the registrant.

The registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the registrant shall file a further amendment that specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, or until the registration statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

The information in the accompanying joint proxy statement/prospectus is not complete and may be changed. Cooper may not sell its securities pursuant to the proposed transactions until the Registration Statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. The accompanying joint proxy statement/prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED AUGUST 20, 2004





JOINT PROXY STATEMENT / PROSPECTUS MERGER PROPOSED—YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT

The Cooper Companies, Inc. and Ocular Sciences, Inc. have agreed to the acquisition of Ocular by Cooper under the terms of a merger agreement. We are proposing the merger because we believe it will provide substantial strategic and financial benefits to the stockholders of both companies, and that the combination will create a stronger and more competitive specialty healthcare company that is capable of creating more stockholder value than either Cooper or Ocular could on its own. Ocular believes that the merger provides its stockholders with both liquidity and an opportunity to participate in the potential growth and value of the combined company at an attractive valuation for their Ocular shares.

If the merger is completed, Ocular stockholders will be entitled to receive 0.3879 of a share of Cooper common stock and \$22.00 in cash, without interest, for each share of Ocular common stock that they own. We estimate that Cooper would pay approximately \$600 million in cash and issue approximately 10.5 million shares of common stock in the merger, and that immediately after the merger Ocular stockholders and certain Ocular optionholders will hold approximately 24% of the then-outstanding shares of Cooper common stock, based on the number of shares of Cooper and Ocular common stock outstanding on a fully diluted basis as of , 2004, the record date for the special meetings. Cooper common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol "COO." On , 2004, Cooper common stock closed at \$ per share as reported on the New York Stock Exchange. Cooper stockholders will continue to own their existing shares, which will not be affected by the merger.

The merger cannot be completed unless Cooper stockholders approve the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger and Ocular stockholders approve and adopt the merger agreement and approve the merger. The obligations of Cooper and Ocular to complete the merger are also subject to the satisfaction or waiver of other conditions, including receiving clearance from regulatory agencies.

After careful consideration, the board of directors of Cooper has unanimously determined that the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger is advisable and in the best of interests of Cooper stockholders, and recommends that Cooper stockholders vote "FOR" the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger. After careful consideration, the board of directors of Ocular has unanimously determined that adoption of the merger agreement by the Ocular stockholders is advisable and that the merger is fair and in the best interests of Ocular stockholders, and recommends that Ocular stockholders vote "FOR" approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger.

Before voting, you should carefully review all the information in the attached joint proxy statement/prospectus. In particular, you should carefully consider the matters discussed under "*RISK FACTORS*" beginning on page 19.

The proposals are being presented to the respective stockholders of each company at special meetings to be held on , 2004.

Your vote is very important. Whether or not you plan to attend your company's special meeting, please take the time to vote by completing and mailing to us the enclosed proxy card, if you are the record holder of your shares, or by instructing your broker, bank or other nominee how to vote your shares, if your shares are held in "street name." If you need information about the methods of voting available to you, please contact your broker.

Sincerely,

ms hulu

A. Thomas Bender Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer The Cooper Companies, Inc.

Atpl. Hanning

Stephen J. Fanning President and Chief Executive Officer Ocular Sciences, Inc.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of the securities to be issued under this joint proxy statement/prospectus or determined if this joint proxy statement/prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This joint proxy statement/prospectus is dated 2004.

, 2004, and is first being mailed to Cooper and Ocular stockholders on or about

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

TO BE HELD ON , 2004

To the Stockholders of The Cooper Companies, Inc.:

The Cooper Companies, Inc. will hold a special meeting of stockholders at The Benjamin Hotel, 152 East 50th Street, New York, New York, on , 2004, at 10:00 a.m. local time, for the following purpose:

to consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the issuance of Cooper common stock, par value \$0.10 per share, pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 28, 2004, by and among Cooper, TCC Acquisition Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cooper, and Ocular Sciences, Inc.

Cooper may also transact such other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournments or postponements thereof.

This item of business is described in the attached joint proxy statement/prospectus. Only Cooper stockholders of record at the close of business on , 2004, the record date for the special meeting, are entitled to notice of and to vote at the special meeting and any adjournments or postponements of the special meeting.

After careful consideration, the board of directors of Cooper has unanimously determined that the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger is advisable and in the best of interests of Cooper stockholders, and recommends that Cooper stockholders vote "FOR" the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger.

It is important that your shares be represented and voted whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting in person. If you are the record holder of your shares, you may vote by completing and mailing the enclosed proxy card. If your shares are held in "street name," which means shares held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee, you must instruct your broker, bank or other nominee how to vote your shares. Please review the instructions in the section of this joint proxy statement/prospectus entitled "*The Cooper Special Meeting*—*Voting; Proxies; Revocation*—*Voting by Proxy*" and the proxy card or the information forwarded by your bank, broker or other nominee regarding your options for voting.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Carol R. Kaufman Secretary

, 2004

OCULAR SCIENCES, INC.

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

TO BE HELD ON , 2004

To the Stockholders of Ocular Sciences, Inc.:

Ocular Sciences, Inc. will hold a special meeting of stockholders at the Hilton Concord, 1970 Diamond Boulevard, Concord, California, on 2004, at 10:00 a.m. local time, for the following purpose:

to consider and vote upon a proposal to approve and adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 28, 2004, by and among The Cooper Companies, Inc., TCC Acquisition Corp., which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cooper, and Ocular, and to approve the merger contemplated by the merger agreement.

Ocular may also transact such other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournments or postponements thereof.

This item of business is described in the attached joint proxy statement/prospectus. Only Ocular stockholders of record at the close of business on

, 2004, the record date for the special meeting, are entitled to notice of and to vote at the special meeting and any adjournments or postponements of the special meeting. In addition, attendance at the special meeting will be limited to these stockholders of record, their authorized representatives and guests of Ocular.

After careful consideration, the board of directors of Ocular has unanimously determined that adoption of the merger agreement by Ocular stockholders is advisable and that the merger is fair and in the best interests of Ocular stockholders, and recommends that Ocular stockholders vote "FOR" approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger.

It is important that your shares be represented and voted whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting in person. If you are the record holder of your shares, you may vote by completing and mailing the enclosed proxy card. If your shares are held in "street name," which means shares held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee, you must instruct your broker, bank or other nominee how to vote your shares. Please review the instructions in the section of this joint proxy statement/prospectus entitled "*The Ocular Special Meeting—Voting; Proxies; Revocation—Voting by Proxy*" and the proxy card or the information forwarded by your bank, broker or other nominee regarding your options for voting.

Please do not send any certificates representing your Ocular common stock at this time.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

In M. Mil

Steven M. Neil Secretary

, 2004

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This joint proxy statement/prospectus incorporates important business and financial information about Cooper and Ocular from other documents that are not included in or delivered with this joint proxy statement/prospectus. For a listing of the documents incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus, please see the section entitled "*Where You Can Find More Information*" on page 118.

Cooper will provide you with copies of this information relating to Cooper, without charge, upon written or oral request to: Corporate Secretary, The Cooper Companies, Inc., 6140 Stoneridge Mall Road, Suite 590, Pleasanton, California 94588, (telephone number (925) 460-3600). In addition, you may obtain copies of the information relating to Cooper, without charge, by sending an e-mail to ir@coopercos.com. Furthermore, you may obtain copies of some of this information by making a request through the Cooper website, www.coopercos.com.

Ocular will provide you with copies of this information relating to Ocular, without charge, upon written or oral request to: Corporate Secretary, Ocular Sciences, Inc., 1855 Gateway Boulevard, Suite 700, Concord, CA 94520, (telephone number (925) 969-7000). In addition, you may obtain copies of the information relating to Ocular, without charge, by sending an e-mail to ocularir@evcgroup.com.

In order for you to receive timely delivery of the documents in advance of the Cooper and Ocular special meetings, Cooper or Ocular, as the case may be, should receive your request no later than , 2004.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER	1
SUMMARY	5
The Companies	5
The Merger	5
Recommendations of the Cooper and Ocular Boards of Directors	6
Stockholders Entitled to Vote; Vote Required	6
Voting Agreement	7
Opinions of Financial Advisors	7
Share Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers of Cooper and Ocular	8
Interests of Directors and Executive Officers of Ocular in the Merger	8
Listing of Cooper Common Stock and Delisting of Ocular Common Stock	8
<u>Appraisal Rights</u>	9
Conditions to Completion of the Merger	9
No Solicitation by Ocular or Cooper	10
Termination of the Merger Agreement	10
Expenses and Termination Fee	12
Ocular Stock Options	12
Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger	12
Accounting Treatment	12 12
<u>Regulatory Approvals</u> <u>Summary Selected Historical Financial Data</u>	12
<u>Summary Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Data</u>	15
<u>Comparative Per Share Information</u>	15
<u>Comparative Per Share Market Price Data</u>	10
RISK FACTORS	19
Risks Related to the Merger	19
Risks Related to the Business and Operations of the Combined Company Following the Merger	23
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	35
THE MERGER	37
General	37
Background of the Merger	37
Reasons for the Merger—Cooper	43
Reasons for the Merger—Ocular	46
<u>Opinion of Financial Advisor—Cooper</u>	50
<u>Opinion of Financial Advisor—Ocular</u>	56
Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger	64
Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences	65
Accounting Treatment	68
Listing of Cooper Common Stock	69
Delisting and Deregistration of Ocular Common Stock	69
Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Cooper Common Stock Received in the Merger	69
Interests of Directors, Executive Officers and Stockholders of Ocular in the Merger	69

i

	Page
THE MERGER AGREEMENT	74
Structure of the Merger	74
<u>Completion and Effectiveness of the Merger</u>	74
Merger Consideration	74
Fractional Shares	75
Exchange of Ocular Stock Certificates for Cooper Stock Certificates	75
Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares	76
Transfers of Ownership and Lost Stock Certificates	76
Alternative Structure	76
Conditions to Completion of the Merger	77
Representations and Warranties	78
Non-Solicitation of Other Offers	80
Conduct of Business Before Completion of the Merger	82
Additional Restrictions on Ocular's Operations	83
Additional Restrictions on Cooper's Operations	85
<u>Regulatory Filings; Antitrust Matters; Obtaining Regulatory Approvals</u>	85
<u>Tax Treatment</u>	86
<u>Employee Benefit Matters</u>	86
Indemnification and Insurance	87
Termination of the Merger Agreement and Abandonment of the Merger	87
Termination Fee	89
Expenses	90
Amendments, Extensions and Waivers	91
VOTING AGREEMENT	92
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	93
DESCRIPTION OF COOPER CAPITAL STOCK	99
<u>General</u>	99
Preferred Stock	99
Common Stock	99
<u>Transfer Agent</u>	99
COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS	100
APPRAISAL RIGHTS	106
THE COOPER SPECIAL MEETING	110
Date, Time, Place and Purpose of the Cooper Special Meeting	110
Recommendation of the Cooper Board of Directors	110
Record Date; Outstanding Shares; Shares Entitled to Vote	110
Quorum and Vote Required	110
Voting; Proxies; Revocation	110
Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes	112
Proxy Solicitation	112
Other Business; Adjournments	112
Assistance	113
THE OCULAR SPECIAL MEETING	114
Date, Time, Place and Purpose of the Ocular Special Meeting	114
Recommendation of the Ocular Board of Directors	114

	Page
Record Date; Outstanding Shares; Shares Entitled to Vote	114
Quorum and Vote Required	114
Voting; Proxies; Revocation	115
Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes	116
Proxy Solicitation	116
Other Business; Adjournments	116 116
Assistance	110
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	117
LEGAL MATTERS	117
EXPERTS	117
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS	117
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	118
ANNEX A AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER	A-1
ANNEX B VOTING AGREEMENT	B-1
ANNEX C OPINION OF J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES INC.	C-1
ANNEX D OPINION OF MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INCORPORATED	D-1
ANNEX E SECTION 262 OF THE GENERAL CORPORATION LAW OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE	E-1

iii

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MERGER

Q: Why am I receiving this joint proxy statement/prospectus?

A: Cooper and Ocular have agreed to the acquisition of Ocular by Cooper under the terms of a merger agreement that is described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. A copy of the merger agreement is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex A. In order to complete the merger, Cooper stockholders must vote to approve the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger, and Ocular stockholders must vote to approve and adopt the merger agreement and to approve the merger contemplated by the merger agreement. Cooper and Ocular will hold separate special meetings of their respective stockholders to obtain these approvals. This joint proxy statement/prospectus contains important information about the merger and the special meetings, and you should read it carefully. The enclosed voting materials allow you to vote your shares without attending your company's special meeting. Your vote is important. Cooper and Ocular encourage you to vote as soon as possible. See *"How do I cast my vote?"* on page 2.

Q: Why are Cooper and Ocular proposing to merge?

A: Cooper and Ocular believe that the merger will provide substantial strategic and financial benefits to the stockholders of both companies, and that the combination will create a stronger and more competitive specialty healthcare company that is capable of creating more stockholder value than either Cooper or Ocular could on its own. Cooper believes that the merger will enhance Cooper's position as a major manufacturer and supplier of soft contact lenses, with additional manufacturing facilities and technology, an expanded global distribution network, increased breadth of product line and an expanded customer base. Ocular believes that the merger provides its stockholders with both liquidity and an opportunity to participate in the potential growth and value of the combined company at an attractive valuation for their Ocular shares. See *"The Merger—Reasons for the Merger—Cooper"* on page 43 and *"The Merger—Reasons for the Merger—Ocular"* on page 46.

Q: What will happen in the merger?

A: Ocular will merge with and into TCC Acquisition, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cooper. In the merger, Ocular stockholders will be entitled to receive 0.3879 of a share of Cooper common stock and \$22.00 in cash, without interest, for each share of Ocular common stock they own. All outstanding options for Ocular common stock will become fully vested and exercisable immediately prior to completion of the merger. Holders of options with an exercise price less than the merger consideration value, referred to as "in-the-money" options, will receive a combination of Cooper common stock and cash in an amount equal to the spread value of their options, less applicable withholding taxes, in exchange for cancellation of their in-the-money options. Based on the number of shares of Cooper and Ocular common stock outstanding on a fully diluted basis on , 2004, the record date for the special meetings, Cooper estimates that it will issue approximately 10.5 million shares of its common stock in the merger to the stockholders and holders of in-the-money options and that immediately after the merger the former Ocular stockholders and optionholders, in the aggregate, will own approximately 24% of the then-outstanding shares of Cooper common stock.

Example: If you currently own 100 shares of Ocular common stock, then as a result of the merger you will receive 38 shares of Cooper common stock and \$2,200 in cash, plus cash representing the value of the fractional share.

Q: When do you expect the merger to be completed?

A: Cooper and Ocular are working to complete the merger as quickly as practicable and currently expect that the merger could be completed as early as , 2004. However, Cooper and Ocular cannot predict the exact timing of completion of the merger because the merger is subject to regulatory approvals and other conditions. There may be a substantial period of time between the approval of the respective merger proposals by stockholders at the special meetings and the effectiveness of the merger.

Where and when are the special meetings? 0:

The Cooper special meeting will take place at The Benjamin Hotel, 152 East 50th Street, New York, New York, on A: , 2004, at 10:00 a.m. local time. The Ocular special meeting will take place at the Hilton Concord, 1970 Diamond Boulevard, Concord, California, on a.m. local time.

Q: What vote of Cooper stockholders is required to approve the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger?

Approval of the issuance of Cooper common stock pursuant to the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of shares of A: Cooper common stock cast on such proposal, in person or by proxy, provided that the total vote cast on the proposal represents a majority of the outstanding shares of Cooper common stock entitled to vote on the proposal.

, 2004, at 10:00

What vote of Ocular stockholders is required to approve and adopt the merger agreement and approve the merger? **Q**:

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock entitled to vote at the special meeting is required to A: approve and adopt the merger agreement and approve the merger.

Q: How does my company's board of directors recommend that I vote?

The Cooper board of directors unanimously recommends that Cooper stockholders vote "FOR" the proposal to approve the issuance of Cooper common A: stock in the merger. See "The Merger—Reasons for the Merger—Cooper" on page 43.

The Ocular board of directors unanimously recommends that Ocular stockholders vote "FOR" the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and approve the merger. See "The Merger—Reasons for the Merger—Ocular" on page 46.

Q: What risks should I consider in deciding whether to vote for the merger?

A: You should carefully review the section of this joint proxy statement/prospectus entitled "Risk Factors" on page 19.

Q: Are any stockholders already committed to voting in favor of the merger?

A: Yes. Ocular's Chairman of the Board, John D. Fruth, who owns approximately 19% of the shares of Ocular common stock outstanding on 2004, the record date for the Ocular special meeting, has agreed to vote his shares of Ocular common stock in favor of the proposal to adopt and approve the merger agreement and approve the merger. See "Voting Agreement" on page 92.

How do I cast my vote? Q:

If you are a holder of record, you may vote in person at your special meeting or by submitting a proxy for your special meeting. You can submit your proxy A: by completing, signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card in the accompanying pre-addressed postage paid envelope.

If you hold your shares in "street name," which means your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or nominee, you must provide the record holder of your shares with instructions on how to vote your shares.

Q: Can I change my vote after I have delivered my proxy?

A: Yes. If you are a holder of record, you can change your vote at any time before your proxy is voted at your company's special meeting by (i) delivering to the Secretary of Cooper or Ocular, as appropriate, a signed notice of revocation; (ii) granting a new, later-dated proxy, signed and delivered to the Secretary of Cooper or Ocular, as appropriate; or (iii) attending your special meeting and voting in person; however, your attendance alone will not revoke your proxy.

If you hold your shares in "street name", you must contact your broker, bank or other nominee to change your vote.

Q: What happens if I do not return a proxy or voting instruction card or otherwise vote?

A: Cooper and Ocular urge you to vote at your company's special meeting. If you do not vote, it could affect the proposals, since the success of each of the Cooper and Ocular proposals require that a majority of the outstanding shares of Cooper and Ocular, as the case may be, cast votes on the respective proposal. If you are a Cooper stockholder and you abstain on the proposal, or fail to give voting instructions to your nominee, your votes will not count towards the total votes cast on the proposal or fail to give voting instructions to your nominee, share has voted on the proposal. If you are a Ocular stockholder and abstain on the proposal or fail to give voting instructions to your nominee, it will have the same effect as voting "AGAINST" the proposal. See *"The Cooper Special Meeting—Voting; Proxies; Revocation"* on page 110 and *"The Ocular Special Meeting—Voting; Proxies; Revocation"* on page 115.

Q: What should I do if I receive more than one set of voting materials?

A: You may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and multiple proxy cards or voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your shares in more than one brokerage account, you will receive a separate voting instruction card for each brokerage account in which you hold shares. If you are a holder of record and your shares are registered in more than one name, you will receive more than one proxy card. In addition, if you are a stockholder of Cooper and a stockholder of Ocular, you will receive one or more separate proxy cards or voting instruction cards for each company. Please complete, sign, date and return each proxy card and voting instruction card that you receive.

Q: Should I send in my Ocular stock certificates now?

A: No. After the merger is completed, you will receive written instructions from the exchange agent on how to exchange your Ocular stock certificates for the merger consideration. Please do not send in your Ocular stock certificates with your proxy.

Q: What rights do I have to seek a valuation of my shares?

A: Under Delaware law, holders of Cooper common stock are not entitled to appraisal rights in connection with the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger.

Under Delaware law, holders of Ocular common stock who do not vote in favor of approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger will have the right, if the merger is completed, to seek appraisal of the fair value of their shares as determined by the Delaware Court of Chancery, but only if they submit a written demand for an appraisal prior to the vote at the Ocular Special Meeting and they comply with the procedures explained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See "*Appraisal Rights*" on page 106.

Q: Will Ocular stockholders and holders of in-the-money options be able to trade the Cooper common stock received in connection with the merger?

A: The shares of Cooper common stock issued to Ocular stockholders and holders of in-the-money options in connection with the proposed merger will be freely tradeable, unless you are an "affiliate" of Ocular as defined in the Securities Act. If you are an affiliate of Ocular, you will be required to comply with applicable restrictions of Rule 145 of the Securities Act in order to resell shares of Cooper common stock you receive in the merger.

Q: Who can answer my questions?

A: If you have any questions about the merger or how to submit your proxy, or if you need additional copies of this joint proxy statement/prospectus or the enclosed proxy card or voting instructions, you should contact:

4

if you are a Cooper stockholder:

D.F. King & Co., Inc. 48 Wall Street New York, NY 10005 (800) 549-6697

or

Investor Relations The Cooper Companies, Inc. 21062 Bake Parkway, Ste 200 Lake Forest, CA 92630 Tel: (949) 597-4700 Fax: (949) 768-3688 Email: ir@coopercos.com

if you are an Ocular stockholder:

Strategic Stock Surveillance, LLC 331 Madison Avenue New York, NY 10017 (866) 657-8728 (toll free)

or

EVC Group, Inc. 90 Montgomery Street Suite 1001 San Francisco, CA 94165 Tel: (415) 896-6820 Email: ocularir@evcgroup.com

SUMMARY

The following is a summary of information contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. This summary may not contain all of the information about the merger that is important to you. For a more complete description of the merger, Cooper and Ocular encourage you to read carefully this entire joint proxy statement/prospectus, including the attached annexes. In addition, you are encouraged to read the information incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus, which includes important business and financial information about Cooper and Ocular which have been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC. You may obtain the information incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus without charge through Cooper or Ocular, as the case may be, or from the SEC through its website at http://www.sec.gov.

The Companies

The Cooper Companies, Inc. 6140 Stoneridge Mall Road, Suite 590 Pleasanton, CA 94588 (925) 460-3600

The Cooper Companies, Inc., a Delaware corporation that was organized in 1980, manufactures and markets specialty healthcare products through its CooperVision and CooperSurgical units. CooperVision develops, manufactures and markets a broad range of soft contact lenses for the worldwide vision care market. It specializes in toric lenses that correct astigmatism, cosmetic lenses that change the appearance of the color of the eye, and other lenses, primarily in high growth, specialty and value-added market segments around the world. Its leading products are disposable and planned replacement toric and spherical lenses. CooperSurgical develops, manufactures and markets medical devices, diagnostic products and surgical instruments and accessories used primarily by gynecologists and obstetricians.

TCC Acquisition Corp. is a newly-formed, wholly-owned subsidiary of Cooper that was formed solely for the purpose of effecting the merger. TCC Acquisition has not conducted and will not conduct any business prior to completion of the merger.

Ocular Sciences, Inc. 1855 Gateway Boulevard, Suite 700 Concord, CA 94520

Ocular Sciences, Inc., a corporation founded in 1985 and reincorporated in Delaware in 1997, is a global manufacturer and marketer of soft contact lenses, marketed for disposable monthly, bi-weekly and daily replacement regimens and reusable annual and quarterly replacement regimens.

The Merger (see page 37)

Cooper and Ocular have agreed to the acquisition of Ocular by Cooper under the terms of the merger agreement that is described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus and attached as Annex A to this joint proxy statement/prospectus. You are encouraged to read the merger agreement in its entirety.

Under the terms of the merger agreement, Ocular will merge with and into TCC Acquisition, with TCC Acquisition surviving the merger. If you are an Ocular stockholder, upon completion of the merger each share of Ocular common stock you own will be converted into the right to receive 0.3879 of a share of Cooper common stock and \$22.00 in cash, without interest, plus cash for any fractional shares. This joint proxy statement/prospectus refers to the share and cash consideration to be paid by Cooper to Ocular stockholders and holders of in-the-money options as the merger consideration. Cooper stockholders will continue to own their existing shares of Cooper common stock, which will not be affected by the merger.

Based on the number of shares of Cooper and Ocular common stock outstanding and in-the-money options outstanding on , 2004, the record date for the special meetings, Cooper expects to issue approximately 10.5 million shares of Cooper common stock in the merger to Ocular stockholders and holders of in-the-money options. After completion of the merger, these former Ocular stockholders and optionholders are expected to own approximately 24% of the then-outstanding shares of Cooper common stock.

Recommendations of the Cooper and Ocular Boards of Directors (see pages 43 and 46)

Cooper

After careful consideration, the board of directors of Cooper unanimously approved the merger and determined that the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger is advisable and in the best of interests of Cooper stockholders, and recommends that Cooper stockholders vote "FOR" the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger.

Ocular

After careful consideration, the board of directors of Ocular unanimously approved the merger and determined that the approval and adoption of the merger agreement by Ocular stockholders is advisable and that the merger is fair and in the best interests of Ocular stockholders, and recommends that Ocular stockholders vote "FOR" approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger.

Stockholders Entitled to Vote; Vote Required

Cooper Stockholders

You can vote at the Cooper special meeting if you owned Cooper common stock at the close of business on , 2004, the record date for the Cooper special meeting. On that date, there were shares of Cooper common stock outstanding and entitled to vote. You can cast one vote for each share of Cooper common stock that you owned on that date. Stockholder approval of the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger is required under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange, which requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of shares of Cooper common stock cast on such proposal, in person or by proxy, provided that the total votes cast on the proposal represent a majority of the outstanding shares of Cooper common stock entitled to vote on the proposal.

Abstentions and "broker non-votes" will be counted in determining whether a quorum is present at the Cooper special meeting for purposes of the vote of Cooper stockholders on the proposal to approve the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger. Abstentions, which occur when a stockholder attends a meeting, either in person or by proxy, but abstains from voting, and "broker non-votes," which occur when a nominee holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the nominee does not have discretionary authority with respect to the proposal, will not count as votes either for or against the proposal or towards the total votes cast on the proposal for purposes of determining if the necessary majority of outstanding shares has voted on the proposal.

Ocular Stockholders

You can vote at the Ocular special meeting if you owned Ocular common stock at the close of business on , 2004, the record date for the Ocular special meeting. On that date, there were shares of Ocular common stock outstanding and entitled to vote. You can cast one vote for each share of Ocular common stock that you owned on that date. Approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock entitled to vote at the Ocular special meeting.

Abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted in determining whether a quorum is present at the Ocular special meeting for purposes of the vote of Ocular stockholders on the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and to approve the merger. Abstentions and broker non-votes will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the proposal.

Voting Agreement (see page 92)

Cooper has entered into a voting agreement with John D. Fruth, Chairman of the Board of Directors of Ocular, pursuant to which Mr. Fruth agreed, among other things, to vote all of his shares of Ocular common stock in favor of the approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger. As of the record date, he beneficially owned shares of Ocular common stock, representing approximately 19% of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock.

Opinions of Financial Advisors (see pages 50 and 56)

Cooper

In connection with the merger, Cooper retained J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc., referred to as JPMorgan, as its lead financial advisor. In deciding to approve the merger, the Cooper board of directors considered the oral opinion of JPMorgan provided to the Cooper board of directors on July 28, 2004, subsequently confirmed in writing, that, as of the date of the opinion and based upon and subject to the considerations described in the written opinion, the merger consideration to be paid in the proposed merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to Cooper.

The full text of the written opinion of JPMorgan, dated July 28, 2004, is attached to this document as Annex C and incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. You are encouraged to read this opinion carefully in its entirety for a description of the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken by JPMorgan in connection with the opinion. JPMorgan provided its opinion for the information and assistance of the Cooper board of directors in connection with its consideration of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, and the opinion does not constitute a recommendation to any stockholder as to any matters relating to the merger.

Ocular

On July 28, 2004, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, referred to as Morgan Stanley, financial advisor to Ocular, delivered to the Ocular board of directors its oral opinion, which was subsequently confirmed by delivery of a written opinion dated July 28, 2004, that, as of that date, and based upon and subject to the factors and assumptions set forth in the opinion, the merger agreement consideration to be received by the holders of the shares of Ocular common stock pursuant to the merger agreement was fair to these holders, from a financial point of view. The full text of Morgan Stanley's written opinion is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex D and incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. You are encouraged to read this opinion carefully in its entirety for a description of the procedures followed, assumptions made, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken. Morgan Stanley's opinion is directed to the Ocular board of directors in connection with its consideration of the merger and does not constitute a recommendation to any stockholder as to any matters relating to the merger.

Share Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers of Cooper and Ocular

At the close of business on the record date for the Cooper special meeting, directors and executive officers of Cooper and their affiliates beneficially owned and were entitled to vote approximately shares of Cooper common stock, collectively representing approximately % of the shares of Cooper common stock outstanding on that date.



At the close of business on the record date for the Ocular special meeting, directors and executive officers of Ocular and their affiliates, excluding John D. Fruth, beneficially owned and were entitled to vote approximately shares of Ocular common stock, collectively representing approximately % of the shares of Ocular common stock outstanding on that date. As of the record date for the Ocular special meeting, John D. Fruth, Chairman of the Board of Directors of Ocular, beneficially owned a total of shares of Ocular common stock, or approximately 19% of the then-outstanding shares of Ocular common stock.

Interests of Directors and Executive Officers of Ocular in the Merger (see page 69)

When considering the Ocular board of directors' recommendation that Ocular stockholders vote in favor of approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger, Ocular stockholders should be aware that some directors and executive officers of Ocular have interests in the merger that may be different from, or in addition to, the interests of other Ocular stockholders. These interests relate to or arise from, among other things:

- the continued indemnification of and provision of directors' and officers' insurance to current directors and officers of Ocular following the merger;
- the appointment of John D. Fruth and Edgar J. Cummins, currently directors of Ocular, as directors of Cooper upon completion of the merger;
- the potential receipt of severance payments by executive officers;
- the accelerated vesting of, and payments of cash and Cooper common stock for, the officers' and directors' outstanding in-the-money Ocular stock options in the merger; and
- the accelerated vesting of, and payments of cash and Cooper common stock for, the directors' 2004 annual grant of Ocular stock options, granted on August 2, 2004, subsequent to the execution of the merger agreement, which in the aggregate provide for the purchase of 70,000 shares of Ocular common stock at an exercise price of \$44.79 per share.

The Ocular board of directors knew about these additional interests, and considered them, among other matters, when it approved the merger agreement and the merger.

Listing of Cooper Common Stock and Delisting of Ocular Common Stock (see page 69)

Application will be made to have the shares of Cooper common stock issued in the merger approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange, where Cooper common stock is traded under the symbol "COO." Upon completion of the merger, Ocular common stock will be delisted from the Nasdaq National Market and will be deregistered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and Ocular will no longer file periodic reports with the SEC.

Appraisal Rights (see page 106)

Cooper Stockholders

Under applicable Delaware law, holders of Cooper common stock are not entitled to appraisal rights in connection with the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger.

Ocular Stockholders

Under Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, referred to as the DGCL, holders of Ocular common stock who do not wish to accept the 0.3879 of a share of Cooper common stock and \$22.00 cash consideration payable per share of Ocular common stock pursuant to the merger may seek judicial appraisal of the fair value of their shares by the Delaware Court of Chancery. This value could be more than, less than or

equal to the value of the merger consideration. This right to appraisal is subject to a number of restrictions and technical requirements. Generally, in order to properly demand appraisal, among other things:

- you must not vote in favor of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and approve the merger;
- you must make a written demand on Ocular for appraisal in compliance with the DGCL before the vote on the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and approve the merger occurs at the Ocular special meeting; and
- you must hold your shares of record continuously from the time of making a written demand for appraisal through completion of the merger. A
 stockholder who is the record holder of shares of common stock of Ocular on the date the written demand for appraisal is made, but who thereafter
 transfers those shares prior to completion of the merger, will lose any right to appraisal for those shares.

If you hold shares in the name of a broker, bank or other nominee, you must instruct your nominee to take the steps necessary to enable you to demand appraisal for your shares.

Merely voting against or abstaining from voting on the proposal will not preserve your right to appraisal under Delaware law. Also, because a submitted proxy not marked "AGAINST" or "ABSTAIN" will be voted "FOR" the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and the merger, the submission of a proxy not marked "AGAINST" or "ABSTAIN" will result in the waiver of appraisal rights. If you or your nominee fails to follow all of the steps required by Section 262 of the DGCL, you will lose your right of appraisal. See "*Appraisal Rights*" on page 106 for a description of the procedures that you must follow in order to exercise your appraisal rights.

Annex E to this joint proxy statement/prospectus contains the full text Section 262 of the DGCL, which relates to your right to appraisal. You are encouraged to read these provisions carefully and in their entirety.

Conditions to Completion of the Merger (see page 77)

Completion of the merger depends on a number of conditions being met, including:

- the receipt of the required approvals from Cooper and Ocular stockholders;
- the absence of any actual or threatened legal prohibition having the effect of preventing or otherwise prohibiting completion of the merger or limiting Cooper's activity in connection with the ownership or operation of Ocular;
- the expiration or termination of the waiting periods under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended; or the antitrust or competition laws of any other applicable jurisdiction;
- the approval for listing on the New York Stock Exchange of the shares of Cooper common stock to be issued in the merger;
- the absence of breaches of the representations and warranties in the merger agreement which result in any material adverse effect with respect to the representing party;
- the performance of each party's obligations under the merger agreement in all material respects;
- the receipt of opinions by Cooper and Ocular from their respective tax counsel that the merger will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;
- the absence of any material adverse effect with respect to Cooper or Ocular;

- · the cancellation of all unexpired and unexercised Ocular options upon completion of the merger; and
- the appointment of John D. Fruth and Edgar J. Cummins, currently directors of Ocular, as directors of Cooper upon completion of the merger.

Where legally permissible, a party may elect to waive a condition to its obligation to complete the merger even though that condition has not been satisfied.

No Solicitation by Ocular or Cooper (see page 80)

The merger agreement contains restrictions on the ability of Ocular to solicit or engage in discussions or negotiations with a third party with respect to a proposal to acquire a significant interest in Ocular. Similarly, the merger agreement contains restrictions on the ability of Cooper to solicit or engage in discussions or negotiations with a third party with respect to a proposal to acquire a significant interest in Cooper.

Notwithstanding these restrictions, the merger agreement provides that, under specified circumstances, if Ocular receives an unsolicited acquisition proposal, and its board of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with its outside counsel, that its failure to take any action on such offer would be reasonably likely to result in a breach of the board's fiduciary duties, and that the acquisition proposal is reasonably likely to lead to a proposal superior to the merger, the board may, after promptly notifying Cooper, furnish information to the third party and engage in negotiations regarding an acquisition proposal with that third party.

In addition, notwithstanding the restrictions above, if Cooper receives an unsolicited acquisition proposal, and its board of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with its outside counsel, that its failure to take any action on such offer would reasonably be likely to result in a breach of the board's fiduciary duties, the board may, after promptly notifying Ocular, furnish information to the third party and engage in negotiations regarding an acquisition proposal with the third party.

Termination of the Merger Agreement (see page 87)

Ocular and Cooper, by action of their respective boards of directors, may terminate the merger agreement and abandon the merger at any time prior to completion of the merger, whether before or after Ocular stockholders have approved and adopted the merger agreement and approved the merger and Cooper stockholders have approved the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger:

- by mutual written consent of Cooper and Ocular;
- if the merger is not completed prior to the outside date of January 31, 2005 (which date may be extended to April 30, 2005 under some circumstances);
- if any governmental entity or any other person permanently prohibits completion of the merger;
- if Ocular stockholders do not adopt and approve the merger agreement and approve the merger at Ocular's special meeting; or
- if Cooper stockholders do not approve the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger at Cooper's special meeting.

In addition, Cooper could decide to terminate the merger agreement in the following situations:

the Ocular board of directors withdraws, modifies, qualifies, or fails, within 5 business days of Cooper's request, to reconfirm, its recommendation that
its stockholders vote to approve and adopt the merger agreement and approve the merger in this joint proxy statement/prospectus;

- a tender offer or exchange offer is commenced that, if successful, would result in any person or group becoming a beneficial owner of 35% or more of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock, and Ocular's board of directors fails to recommend that Ocular stockholders not tender their shares in such tender or exchange offer;
- any person or group becomes the beneficial owner of 35% or more of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock;
- Ocular fails to call or hold its stockholders meeting by January 26, 2005 or, if the outside date of the merger is extended, by the fifth day prior to the new outside date;
- after July 28, 2004, there is any material adverse effect with respect to Ocular which is not cured within 20 days after Cooper provides written notice to Ocular;
- (i) Ocular is in breach of any of its covenants or agreements, or (ii) any of Ocular's representations or warranties in the merger agreement becomes
 untrue or incorrect, and such breach or misrepresentation is not cured within 20 days after written notice and would cause certain closing conditions of
 Cooper pertaining to the covenants, agreements, representations and warranties of Ocular not to be satisfied; or
- prior to its stockholders' approval of the issuance of shares of Cooper common stock in the merger, Cooper receives a conflicting proposal and Cooper's board of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with outside legal counsel, to enter into an agreement to effect the conflicting proposal, provided that Cooper has complied with the non-solicitation provisions of the merger agreement and 5 business days have elapsed from delivery of written notice to Ocular of the conflicting proposal and Ocular has not submitted a binding offer which the Cooper board of directors has determined in its good faith judgment to be at least as favorable to Cooper stockholders as the conflicting proposal.

Lastly, Ocular could decide to terminate the merger agreement in the following situations:

- the Cooper board of directors withdraws, modifies, qualifies, or fails, within 5 business days of Ocular's request, to reconfirm, its recommendation of the issuance of shares of Cooper common stock in the merger in this joint proxy statement/prospectus;
- Cooper fails to call or hold its stockholders meeting by January 26, 2005 or, if the outside date of the merger is extended, the fifth day prior to the new outside date;
- after July 28, 2004, there is any material adverse effect with respect to Cooper which is not cured within 20 days after Ocular provides written notice to Cooper;
- (i) either Cooper or TCC Acquisition is in breach of any of its covenants or agreements, or (ii) any of either Cooper's or TCC Acquisition's representations or warranties in the merger agreement becomes untrue or incorrect, and such breach or misrepresentation is not cured within 20 days after written notice and would cause certain closing conditions of Ocular pertaining to the covenants, agreements, representations and warranties of Cooper and TCC Acquisition not to be satisfied; or
- prior to its stockholders' approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger, Ocular receives a superior proposal and Ocular's board of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with outside legal counsel, to enter into an agreement to effect the superior proposal, provided that, Ocular has complied with the non-solicitation provisions of the merger agreement and 5 business days have elapsed from delivery of written notice to Cooper of the superior proposal and Cooper has not submitted a binding offer which the Ocular board of directors has determined in its good faith judgment to be at least as favorable to Ocular stockholders as the superior proposal.

Expenses and Termination Fee (see pages 89 and 90)

If the merger agreement is terminated, either Cooper or Ocular, in specified circumstances, may be required to, in the case of Ocular, reimburse up to \$6 million of Cooper's expenses or, in the case of Cooper, reimburse up to \$4.5 million of Ocular's expenses. In certain circumstances where reimbursement of expenses is required, Cooper or Ocular may also be required to pay a termination fee of \$35 million to the other party.

Ocular Stock Options (see page 74)

All outstanding options for Ocular common stock will become fully vested and exercisable immediately prior to completion of the merger. Options for Ocular common stock with an exercise price equal to or greater than the merger consideration value, referred to as "out-of-the-money," will be canceled upon completion of the merger. Options for shares of Ocular common stock with an exercise price less than the merger consideration value, referred to as "in-the-money," will be canceled in exchange for a combination of cash and Cooper common stock in an amount equal to the spread value of their options, less applicable withholding taxes.

Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger (see page 65)

Cooper and Ocular expect that the merger will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, referred to as the Code, and it is a condition to closing that each of Cooper and Ocular receive opinions from their respective legal counsel to the effect that the merger will so qualify. If the merger qualifies as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, then, in general, no gain or loss will be recognized for federal income tax purposes by Cooper, Cooper stockholders or Ocular. Ocular stockholders will recognize gain, but not loss, equal to the lesser of:

- the amount of cash they receive in the merger; or
- the amount equal to the excess, if any, of (i) the sum of the amount of cash and the fair market value of Cooper common stock they receive in the merger, over (ii) the adjusted tax basis of their Ocular common stock exchanged.

Under certain circumstances, in order to preserve the above tax treatment to Cooper and its stockholders and Ocular and its stockholders, the merger agreement permits Cooper and Ocular to revise the merger structure (see page 76). If the merger structure is revised, Cooper and Ocular will be required to resolicit stockholder approval.

Tax matters are very complicated, and the tax consequences of the merger to you will depend on the facts of your own situation. Cooper and Ocular encourage you to consult your tax advisor for a full understanding of the tax consequences of the merger to you.

Accounting Treatment (see page 68)

Cooper will account for the merger under the purchase method of accounting for business combinations under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, referred to as "GAAP".

Regulatory Approvals (see page 64)

Under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, Cooper and Ocular cannot complete the merger until they have filed the necessary notifications with the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice and the U.S. Federal Trade Commission of the merger and until required waiting period has ended. Cooper and Ocular submitted the required filings on August 6, 2004.

Summary Selected Historical Financial Data

Cooper and Ocular are providing you with the following information to aid you in your analysis of the financial aspects of the merger. They derived this information from the audited financial statements of Cooper for its fiscal years ended October 31, 1999 through 2003 and Ocular for its fiscal years ended December 31, 1999 through 2003 and the unaudited financial statements of Cooper for the six months ended April 30, 2004 and Ocular for the six months ended June 30, 2004. This information is only a summary, and you should read it together with Cooper's and Ocular's historical financial statements and related notes contained in the annual reports and other information that have been filed with the SEC and incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See "Where You Can Find More Information" on page 118.

The Cooper Companies, Inc.

Summary Selected Historical Consolidated Condensed Financial Data

(In thousands)

	Six Months Ended	Years Ended October 31,							
Consolidated Statement of Income Data:	April 30, 2004	2003	2002	2001	2000	1999			
Net sales	\$ 230,286	\$ 411,790	\$ 315,306	\$ 234,572	\$201,217	\$ 168,155			
Gross profit	\$ 148,341	\$ 265,202	\$ 199,493	\$ 153,368	\$ 133,117	\$ 109,146			
Income from continuing operations before income taxes	\$ 51,355	\$ 90,487	\$ 65,169	\$ 52,128	\$ 42,127	\$ 32,712			
Provision for income taxes	11,301	21,717	16,294	14,992	12,727	10,711			
		·	·						
Income before items below	40,054	68,770	48,875	37,136	29,400	22,001			
Discontinued operations	_		_			3,099			
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle	—				(432)				
		<u> </u>							
Net income	\$ 40,054	\$ 68,770	\$ 48,875	\$ 37,136	\$ 28,968	\$ 25,100			

				At October 31,		
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:	At April 30, 2004	2003	2002	2001	2000	1999
Current assets	\$ 254,251	\$ 264,224	\$ 198,910	\$ 155,205	\$ 112,685	\$ 100,461
Property, plant and equipment, net	138,776	116,277	87,944	61,028	47,933	40,319
Goodwill	308,448	282,634	238,966	131,732	96,905	65,443
Other intangible assets, net	26,417	15,888	14,651	13,890	13,949	15,075
Other assets	16,861	26,541	30,644	34,994	51,093	64,575
				<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
	\$ 744,753	\$ 705,564	\$ 571,115	\$ 396,849	\$ 322,565	\$ 285,873
Short-term debt	\$ 23,877	\$ 20,658	\$ 36,333	\$ 8,249	\$ 8,094	\$ 4,888
Other current liabilities	89,591	97,656	90,348	59,724	57,181	37,008
Long-term debt	154,872	165,203	127,318	60,553	40,257	57,067
Other liabilities			5,674	12,039	18,595	22,767
Total liabilities	268,340	283,517	259,673	140,565	124,127	121,730
Stockholders' equity	476,413	422,047	311,442	256,284	198,438	164,143
	\$ 744,753	\$ 705,564	\$ 571,115	\$ 396,849	\$ 322,565	\$ 285,873



Ocular Sciences, Inc. Summary Selected Historical Consolidated Condensed Financial Data (In thousands)

	Six Months			Years Ended December 31,							
Consolidated Statement of Income Data:	Ended June 30, 200	4	2003		2002		2001		2000		1999
Net sales	\$ 163,89	3 \$	310,563	\$	267,121	\$	224,974	\$	156,552	\$	156,590
Gross profit	\$ 94,58	2 \$	167,172	\$	146,784	\$	127,162	\$	83,620	\$	93,214
Income before income taxes	\$ 20,82	0 \$	36,374	\$	12,903	\$	11,763	\$	56,092	\$	47,781
Provision for income taxes	5,20	7	9,820		5,690		5,240		17,151		11,348
								-			
Net income	\$ 15,61	3\$	26,554	\$	7,213	\$	6,523	\$	38,941	\$	36,433
				-				-		-	

				At December 31,		
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:	At June 30, 2004	2003	2002	2001	2000	1999
Current assets	\$ 201,838	\$ 199,543	\$ 170,917	\$ 125,978	\$ 135,525	\$ 104,311
Property, plant and equipment, net	143,014	134,903	119,941	128,157	118,645	102,591
Intangible assets, net	57,289	60,330	55,815	45,765	7,819	7,617
Other assets	4,468	4,532	5,416	4,437	3,242	7,796
	\$ 406,609	\$ 399,308	\$ 352,089	\$ 304,337	\$ 265,231	\$ 222,315
Other current liabilities	\$ 69,004	\$ 78,120	\$ 65,847	\$ 48,629	\$ 31,965	\$ 29,744
Current portion of long-term debt	398	411	420	12,660	1,246	1,214
Long-term debt, less current portion	2,190	16,877	30,730	3,388	4,482	2,228
Other liabilities	862	2,055	5,142	9,769	5,824	5,520
Total liabilities	72,454	97,463	102,139	74,446	43,517	38,706
Stockholders' equity	334,155	301,845	249,950	229,891	221,714	183,609
	\$ 406,609	\$ 399,308	\$ 352,089	\$ 304,337	\$ 265,231	\$ 222,315

Summary Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Data

The following selected unaudited pro forma statement of income data gives effect to the merger as if it had been completed on November 1, 2002, and the following selected unaudited pro forma balance sheet data gives effect to the merger as if it had been completed on April 30, 2004. The selected unaudited pro forma financial data is based upon the estimates and assumptions of management and is presented for illustrative purposes only. The selected unaudited pro forma financial data does not purport to be indicative of results of operations of the combined company for future periods or the consolidated financial position or results that actually would have been realized for the periods presented had Cooper and Ocular been a single entity during these periods. The selected unaudited pro forma financial data (i) has been derived from and should be read in conjunction with the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus as described under *"Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements*" on page 93 and (ii) should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of Cooper and Ocular and other information that has been filed with the SEC and incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See *"Where You Can Find More Information"* on page 118.

	0	Year Ended October 31, 2003 (In thousands, except per share data)		x Months Ended April 30, 2004
				thousands, except per share data)
Pro Forma Statement of Income Data:				
Net sales	\$	722,353	\$	394,179
Net income		62,466		44,478
Earnings per share:				
Basic	\$	1.50	\$	1.04
Diluted	\$	1.46	\$	1.01
Shares used in calculation of earnings per share:				
Basic		41,678		42,811
Diluted		42,726		44,194
				April 30, 2004 (In thousands)
Pro Forma Balance Sheet Data:				(In thousands)
Total assets				\$ 2,061,179
Long-term debt and other noncurrent liabilities				759,110
Stockholders' equity				1,069,199

Comparative Per Share Information

The following tables set forth historical per share information of Cooper and Ocular and unaudited pro forma per share information after giving effect to the merger under the purchase method of accounting. The historical per share information is derived from the audited financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2003 for Cooper and December 31, 2003 for Ocular. The unaudited pro forma per share information after giving effect to the merger combines the per share information included in the audited financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2003 for Cooper and December 31, 2003 for Ocular. The unaudited pro forma per share information included in the audited financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2003 for Cooper and December 31, 2003 for Ocular. The unaudited pro forma per share information does not purport to be indicative of results of operations of the combined company for future periods or the consolidated financial position or results that actually would have been realized for the periods presented had Cooper and Ocular been a single entity during these periods. The unaudited pro forma per share information (i) has been derived from and should be read in conjunction with the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus as described under "*Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements*" on page 93 and (ii) should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of Cooper and Ocular and other information that has been filed with the SEC and incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. See "*Where You Can Find More Information*" on page 118.

	Year Ended October 31, 2003		onths Ended l 30, 2004
Historical—Cooper:			
Earnings per share:			
Basic	\$ 2.20	\$	1.24
Diluted	2.13		1.19
Book value per common share (1)	13.52		14.72
Cash dividends declared per common share	0.06		0.03
	Year Ended December 31, 2003		onths Ended 2 30, 2004
Historical—Ocular:			
Earnings per share:			
Basic	\$ 1.11	\$	0.63
Diluted	1.09		0.61
Book value per common share (1)	12.61		13.54
Cash dividends declared per common share	_		
	Year Ended October 31, 2003		onths Ended l 30, 2004
Pro forma—Cooper and Ocular:			
Earnings per share:			
Basic	\$ 1.50(2)	\$	1.04(3)
Diluted	1.46(2)		1.01(3)
Book value per common share (4)	N/A		24.97
Equivalent pro forma—Ocular: (5)			
Earnings per share:			
Basic	\$ 0.58	\$	0.40
Diluted	0.57		0.39
Book value per common share	N/A		9.69

- (1) Calculated by dividing stockholders' equity by the number of shares outstanding as of October 31, 2003, for Cooper and as of December 31, 2003, for Ocular.
- (2) Assumes the merger had been completed on November 1, 2002.
- (3) Assumes the merger had been completed on November 1, 2003.
- (4) Calculated by dividing pro forma stockholders' equity by the pro forma number of Cooper shares that would have been outstanding as of April 30, 2004, assuming the merger had been completed on April 30, 2004.
- (5) Calculated by multiplying the pro forma per share amounts by the exchange ratio of 0.3879 of a share of Cooper common stock for each share of Ocular common stock.

Comparative Per Share Market Price Data

Cooper common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "COO." Ocular common stock trades on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "OCLR." The table below sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low per share sales prices for Cooper common stock, as adjusted to reflect the 2-for-1 split of Cooper common stock on November 22, 2002, and Ocular common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange or the Nasdaq National Market, respectively.

Cooper paid regular semi-annual dividends on its common stock of \$0.025 per share on a split-adjusted basis in the year preceding the 2-for-1 stock split on November 22, 2002, and \$0.03 per share in the years subsequent to the stock split.

		Cooper Common Stock		ılar n Stock
	High	Low	High	Low
Calendar Year 2002				
Quarter ended March 31, 2002	\$ 25.23	\$21.19	\$29.95	\$22.35
Quarter ended June 30, 2002	27.55	22.50	30.25	24.21
Quarter ended September 30, 2002	27.63	19.18	27.42	21.31
Quarter ended December 31, 2002	31.47	23.95	23.45	14.33
Calendar Year 2003				
Quarter ended March 31, 2003	\$ 30.24	\$23.10	\$16.22	\$11.69
Quarter ended June 30, 2003	36.10	26.38	20.14	13.78
Quarter ended September 30, 2003	44.75	32.03	23.80	18.73
Quarter ended December 31, 2003	48.15	39.51	29.73	21.71
Calendar Year 2004				
Quarter ended March 31, 2004	\$ 55.61	\$45.75	\$32.68	\$26.67
Quarter ended June 30, 2004	63.34	52.22	38.00	27.99
Quarter ended September 30, 2004 (through , 2004)				

The above table shows only historical comparisons. Because the market prices of Cooper common stock and Ocular common stock will fluctuate prior to the merger, these comparisons may not provide meaningful information to Cooper stockholders in determining whether to approve the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger or to Ocular stockholders in determining whether to approve and adopt the merger agreement and approve the merger. Cooper and Ocular stockholders are encouraged to obtain current market quotations for Cooper and Ocular common stock and to review carefully the other information contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus or incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus in considering whether to approve their respective proposal. See "Where You Can Find More Information" on page 118.

The table below sets forth for July 28, 2004, the last trading day before Cooper and Ocular announced the merger, and , 2004, the last trading day before the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, the closing prices for Cooper common stock and Ocular common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange and the Nasdaq National Market, respectively, as well as the pro forma equivalent per share value of Ocular common stock based on the merger consideration (0.3879 of a share of Cooper common stock plus \$22.00 for each outstanding share of Ocular common stock).

	Cooper Common Stock		Ocular Common Stock		Pro Forma Equivalent of Ocular Common Stock		
July 28, 2004	\$	56.53	\$	36.00	\$	43.93	
, 2004							

RISK FACTORS

Cooper stockholders and Ocular stockholders should carefully consider the following factors in evaluating how to vote their shares at their company's special meeting. These factors should be considered in conjunction with the other information included in or incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus, including the risks discussed in Ocular's most recent Form 10-K. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to Cooper or Ocular, or that are not currently believed to be important to you, may also adversely affect the merger and Cooper following the merger.

Risks Related to the Merger

The value of the Cooper common stock to be received in the merger will fluctuate, because the exchange ratio is fixed and Cooper's share prices have historically been volatile.

Cooper's and Ocular's share prices have been volatile in the past and may continue to be volatile in the future. Upon completion of the merger, Ocular stockholders will be entitled to receive 0.3879 of a share of Cooper common stock and \$22.00 in cash, without interest, for each share of Ocular common stock that they own.

The 0.3879 exchange ratio will not change, even if the market price of either or both the Ocular common stock and Cooper common stock fluctuates. Because Ocular stockholders will receive a portion of the merger consideration in shares of Cooper common stock, the value of the merger consideration to be received by Ocular stockholders will depend on the market price of Cooper common stock at the time the merger is completed. Accordingly, if the market value of Cooper common stock declines prior to the time the merger is completed, the value of the merger consideration to be received by Ocular stockholders will of Cooper common stock increases prior to the time the merger is completed, the value of the merger consideration to be received by Ocular stockholders will increase. In addition, because the date that the merger is completed will occur after the stockholder meetings, Cooper and Ocular stockholders may not know the exact value of the Cooper common stock that will be issued in the merger at the time they vote on the merger proposals.

Variations in the market price of Cooper common stock may be caused by a number of factors, including changes in the businesses, operations or prospects of Cooper or Ocular, the timing of the merger, regulatory considerations and general market and economic conditions. Cooper and Ocular encourage you to obtain current market quotations for Cooper and Ocular shares before you vote your shares.

The issuance of shares of Cooper common stock to Ocular stockholders and optionholders in the merger will substantially reduce the percentage interests of Cooper stockholders.

If the merger is completed, we expect that approximately 10.5 million shares of Cooper common stock will be issued to Ocular stockholders and optionholders, and former Ocular stockholders and optionholders will own, in the aggregate, approximately 24% of the combined company immediately following completion of the merger (based on the number of shares of Cooper and Ocular common stock outstanding on a fully diluted basis on , 2004, the record date for the special meetings). The issuance of approximately 10.5 million shares of Cooper common stock to Ocular stockholders and optionholders will cause a significant reduction in the relative percentage interest of current Cooper stockholders in earnings, voting, liquidation value and book and market value.

Cooper will have more indebtedness after the merger, which could adversely affect its cash flows and business.

In order to complete the merger, Cooper anticipates arranging for a credit facility that provides for at least \$750 million of new financing capacity, a substantial portion of which will be used to fund the cash portion of the consideration to Ocular stockholders. Cooper's debt outstanding as of April 30, 2004 was approximately

\$175.5 million. After giving effect to the merger, Cooper's pro forma total debt outstanding as of April 30, 2004 would have been approximately \$780.3 million. Since the interest rates under this new facility will not be established until closing, they will be adversely affected by any increases in current interest rates. As a result of this increase in debt, demands on Cooper's cash resources will increase after the consummation of the merger. Any additional indebtedness incurred by Cooper may adversely affect its ability to finance operations or borrow additional funds, could limit its ability to pursue desirable business opportunities, and could create competitive disadvantages compared to other companies with lower debt levels.

As a result of the merger, Cooper will be a larger and broader organization. If Cooper's management is unable to adequately manage the combined company, its operating results will suffer.

As a result of the merger, Cooper will have a substantially greater number of employees than prior to the merger. The combination will also result in Cooper directly operating in several new geographic markets in which it previously had a minimal presence, including Japan and Germany. The combined company will face challenges inherent in efficiently managing an increased number of employees and addressing new geographic markets, including the need to implement appropriate systems, policies, benefits and compliance programs.

Difficulties or delays in successfully managing the substantially larger and broader organization could have a material adverse effect on the combined company after the merger and, as a result, on the market price of Cooper common stock.

Cooper may experience difficulties in integrating Ocular's business with its existing business and may not be able to realize the expected benefits of the merger as planned.

Although Cooper has had experience in integrating a number of acquired businesses, none was of the size or complexity of Ocular. Combining the operations, technologies and personnel of the two companies, coordinating and integrating their sales organizations and distribution channels, and implementing uniform standards, internal controls, processes, procedures, policies and information systems will be time consuming and expensive. Disruption of, or loss of momentum in, the activities of one or more of the combined company's businesses or loss of key personnel caused by the integration process, diversion of management's attention from the daily operations of the combined company and any delays or difficulties encountered in connection with the merger and integration of the two companies' businesses could have an adverse effect on the business, results of operations or financial condition of the combined company. In addition, during the integration process it is possible that some Cooper assets may be disposed of and a reduction in Cooper's workforce may occur, thereby resulting in restructuring charges that could adversely affect Cooper's financial results.

Achieving the benefits expected by Cooper from the merger will depend in large part on successful integration of the companies' operations. In addition, Cooper's ability to obtain the benefits of the expanded global distribution network resulting from the merger, particularly in Japan, may be delayed or limited by the need to obtain regulatory approvals and to restructure relationships with its existing distributors. Moreover, Cooper's ability to reduce manufacturing costs for its high volume lenses in the future by utilizing Ocular's Generation II[™] manufacturing process will depend upon a number of factors, including process compatibility and the timing of implementation. Failure to realize these operating efficiencies and cost reductions could have an adverse effect on the business, results of operations or financial condition of the combined company.

Cooper may be required to recognize impairment charges on goodwill following the merger, which would reduce Cooper's consolidated net worth and stockholders' equity.

Cooper currently estimates that as a result of the merger, Cooper's goodwill, representing the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, net of appropriate deferred taxes, will increase from \$308 million to approximately \$1.2 billion. Pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles, Cooper and Ocular are, and the combined company will be, required to perform impairment tests on their goodwill balances annually or at any time when events occur, which could impact the value of their

business segments. Cooper's and Ocular's determinations of whether an impairment has occurred are based on a comparison of each of their reporting units' fair market values with their respective carrying values. Significant and unanticipated changes could require a provision for impairment in a future period that could substantially affect Cooper's reported earnings in a period of such change. In addition, such charges would reduce Cooper's consolidated net worth and its stockholders' equity and increase its debt to total capitalization ratio, which may result in a default under its credit facilities.

Charges to operations resulting from the application of the purchase method of accounting may adversely affect the combined company's financial results and the market value of Cooper common stock following the merger.

In accordance with GAAP, the combined company will account for the merger using the purchase method of accounting. Cooper will allocate the total estimated purchase price to Ocular's net tangible assets, identifiable intangible assets and in-process research and development, based on their fair values as of the date of completion of the merger, and record the excess of the purchase price over those fair values as goodwill. Cooper will incur additional amortization expense over the estimated useful lives of certain of the intangible assets acquired in connection with the merger, which, subject to the results of an appraisal, has been assumed to be \$2 million on an annual basis. To the extent that the results of the appraisal or other application of purchase accounting principles lead to significant changes to the assumptions made in the pro forma financial statements or adjustments to amortization, cost of goods sold or other items, such changes could materially adversely impact the financial results of the combined company. To the extent that the value of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite lives becomes impaired, Cooper may be required to incur material charges relating to the impairment of those assets. The additional charges could adversely affect Cooper's financial results, including earnings per common share, which could cause the market price of Cooper common stock to decline. In addition, the combined company will temporarily have a lower gross margin due to the sell-through of Ocular inventories for which the carrying value is increased to fair value.

Some of Ocular's officers and directors have interests in the merger that may influence them to support or approve the merger.

When considering the recommendations of the board of directors of Ocular that Ocular stockholders vote in favor of the approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger, Ocular stockholders should be aware that some of the directors and executive officers of Ocular have interests in the merger that may be different from, or in addition to, the interests of Ocular stockholders. These interests include:

- the continued indemnification of, and provision of, directors' and officers' insurance to, current directors and officers of Ocular following the merger;
- the appointment of John D. Fruth and Edgar J. Cummins, currently directors of Ocular, as directors of Cooper upon completion of the merger;
- the potential receipt of severance payments by executive officers;
- the accelerated vesting of, and the payments of cash and Cooper common stock for, the officers' and directors' outstanding in-the-money Ocular stock options in the merger; and
- the accelerated vesting of, and payments of cash and Cooper common stock for, the directors' 2004 annual grant of Ocular stock options, issued on August 2, 2004, subsequent to the execution of the merger agreement, which in the aggregate provide for the purchase of 70,000 shares of Ocular common stock at an exercise price of \$44.79 per share.

The receipt of compensation or other benefits in the merger may have influenced these directors in making their recommendation that you vote in favor of the transactions called for by the merger agreement, and these officers in making recommendations to their board of directors relating to the merger. See "*The Merger—Interests of Directors, Executive Officers and Stockholders of Ocular in the Merger*" on page 69.

Provisions of the merger agreement may deter alternative business combinations and could negatively impact the stock prices of Cooper and Ocular if the merger agreement is terminated in certain circumstances.

Restrictions in the merger agreement on solicitation generally prohibit Cooper and Ocular from soliciting any acquisition proposal or offer for a merger or business combination with any other party, including a proposal that might be advantageous to the stockholders of Cooper or Ocular when compared to the terms and conditions of the merger described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. In addition, under certain circumstances Cooper or Ocular may be obligated to pay a \$35 million termination fee, plus expenses, to the other upon termination of the agreement. These provisions may deter third parties from proposing or pursuing alternative business combinations that might result in greater value to Cooper or Ocular stockholders than the merger. In the event the merger is terminated by Cooper or Ocular in circumstances that obligate either party to pay the \$35 million termination fee, plus expenses, to the other party to pay the \$35 million termination fee, plus expenses, to the other party to pay the \$35 million termination fee, plus expenses, to the other party to pay the \$35 million termination fee, plus expenses, to cooper or Ocular stockholders than the merger. In the event the merger is terminated by Cooper or Ocular in circumstances that obligate either party to pay the \$35 million termination fee, plus expenses, to the other party, including where either party terminates the merger agreement because the other party's board of directors withdraws its support of the merger, Cooper's and/or Ocular's stock prices may decline. See *"The Merger Agreement—Termination Fee"* on page 89 and *"The Merger Agreement—Expenses"* on page 90.

Cooper and Ocular may be required to comply with material restrictions or conditions in order to obtain the regulatory approvals required to complete the merger.

The merger is subject to review by the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice and the U.S. Federal Trade Commission under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended. Under this statute, Cooper and Ocular are required to make pre-merger notification filings and to await the expiration or early termination of the statutory waiting period prior to completing the merger. The governmental entities from whom approvals are required may attempt to condition their approval of the merger, or of the transfer to Cooper of licenses and other entitlements, on the satisfaction of certain regulatory conditions. Any such condition may have the effect of imposing additional costs on Cooper or otherwise substantially reducing the benefits to the combined company if the merger is completed, provided that, Cooper determines to accept such conditions (which it is not obligated to do under the merger agreement—see *"The Merger Agreement—Regulatory Filings; Antitrust Matters; Obtaining Regulatory Approvals"* on page 85) or would cause a condition to the merger to fail if Cooper determines not to accept such condition.

If Cooper or Ocular determines that there is a reasonable likelihood that the merger will fail to qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, Cooper and Ocular will likely revise the merger structure, which will delay completion of the merger, or Cooper and Ocular may choose to abandon the merger.

Cooper and Ocular intend for the merger to qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. However, the merger agreement provides that if either Cooper or Ocular, after consulting with outside tax counsel, reasonably determines at any time that there is a reasonable likelihood that the merger will not qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, such party will have the right to revise the merger structure to qualify as a transaction described in Section 351 of the Code. In general, failure to qualify as a reorganization would occur if, as a result of a decline in the trading price of Cooper stock or the exercise of appraisal rights by a greater than expected number of Ocular stockholders, the relative amount of cash (as a percentage of the sum of the aggregate value of all merger consideration plus the cash paid to dissenters) paid to Ocular stockholders upon completion of the merger is too great to permit the merger to qualify as a reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Code. In general, the approximate trading price of Cooper stock at which it is possible that the parties may deem it prudent to revise the merger structure is \$43.00, equal to a % decline from the closing price of \$ on,

2004, the record date for the special meetings.

Revisions to the merger structure would require Cooper and Ocular to amend the merger agreement and to resolicit stockholder approval of the resulting mergers, the amended merger agreement and related transactions, both of which are likely to delay completion of the mergers. Moreover, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Cooper common stock entitled to vote on the mergers would be required to

approve and adopt the amended merger agreement and approve the mergers under the alternative merger structure. This represents a higher voting threshold for approval than required under the current merger structure. In addition, the parties may choose to abandon the merger rather than revise the merger structure.

For a full description of the tax consequences of the merger for Ocular's stockholders, see "*The Merger—Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences*" on page 65. For a full description of the alternative merger structure, see "*The Merger Agreement—Alternative Structure*" on page 76.

Risks Related to the Business and Operations of the Combined Company Following the Merger

The following are risks that currently affect the business, financial condition or results of operations of Cooper and Ocular individually and will affect the combined company following completion of the merger.

Cooper and Ocular operate in the highly competitive healthcare industry and there can be no assurance that the combined company will be able to compete successfully.

Both Cooper and Ocular operate within a highly competitive environment. Numerous companies develop, manufacture and market soft contact lenses. Cooper's and Ocular's products compete with similar products offered by a number of companies, including Johnson & Johnson, Ciba Vision and Bausch & Lomb. More recently, 1-800-Contacts, a distributor of contact lenses via mail order and the internet, has acquired manufacturing capabilities and has begun selling its own products outside the United States. Many of Cooper's and Ocular's competitors have substantially greater financial, manufacturing, selling and marketing, research and development, and technical resources, greater market penetration and larger manufacturing volumes than the combined company will have.

Many competitors in CooperVision's specialty lens business have substantially greater financial resources and larger research and development and sales forces than CooperVision. Furthermore, many of these competitors offer a greater range of contact lenses, plus a variety of other eyecare products, including lens care products and ophthalmic pharmaceuticals, which may give them a competitive advantage in marketing their lenses to high volume contract accounts. We cannot assure you that the combined company will not encounter increased competition in the future or that additional successful product entries into CooperVision's higher-margin specialty lens segments by a larger competitor would not have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, financial condition or results of operations.

The market for many of Ocular's non-specialty, commodity soft contact lenses, which are lenses widely used to correct the most common types of visual disorders, is intensely competitive and is characterized by declining prices for many products. Price reductions by competitors could make the combined company's commodity products less competitive, and there can be no assurance that the combined company would be able to either match the competitor's pricing plan or reduce prices in response. The combined company's ability to respond to competitive pressures by decreasing prices without adversely affecting gross margins and operating results will depend on its ability to decrease its costs per lens. Any significant decrease in the combined company's costs per lens will depend, in part, on its ability to increase sales volume and production capacity. Cooper and Ocular cannot assure you that the combined company will be able to continue to increase its sales volume or reduce its per unit production costs. The combined company's failure to respond to competitive pressures, particularly price competition, in a timely manner could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Weak economic conditions may cause a decline in the number of people fitted for contact lenses, cause consumers to increase the length of time between doctor visits and replace their contact lenses less frequently, slow the migration of consumers to contact lenses from other types of vision correction and slow the migration of consumers to disposable replacement regimens.

In the women's healthcare segment, competitive factors include technological and scientific advances, product quality, price and effective communication of product information to physicians and hospitals. CooperSurgical competes with a number of manufacturers in each of its niche markets, some of which have substantially greater financial and personnel resources and sell a much broader range of products.

Product innovations are important in the industry in which Cooper and Ocular operate, and the combined company faces the risk of product obsolescence.

Product innovations are important in the niche areas of the healthcare industry in which the combined company will compete. Although Cooper's focus has been on products that will be marketable immediately or in the short term, the combined company's focus on the soft contact lens business will expand to longer-term, higher risk research and development projects. The cost of obtaining necessary regulatory approval and other costs related to product innovations may be meaningful. There can be no assurance that the combined company's new soft contact lens products will be successful in the marketplace and, as a result, justify the expense involved in their development and approval. In addition, we cannot assure you that new products or technologies will not be developed that could lead to the obsolescence of one or more of Cooper's or Ocular's existing products, which could have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, financial condition, or results of operations.

If the combined company's new products are not accepted by the market, it will not be able to sustain or expand its business.

Certain of Cooper's and Ocular's proposed products have not yet been clinically tested or commercially introduced and there can be no assurance that any of them will achieve market acceptance or generate operating profits. Cooper and Ocular have not commercially marketed many of their new or any of their planned products, such as Cooper's Proclear aspheric and multifocal, daily disposable or extended wear contact lenses and Ocular's aspheric lens internationally, multifocal lens domestically, and its bi-weekly and extended wear silicone hydro-gel lenses globally. The market acceptance and customer demand for these products are uncertain and may be impacted by many factors, some of which will be outside of the control of the combined company, including the cost competitiveness of such products, consumer reluctance to try a new product, regulatory requirements, and the emergence of newer and more competitive products.

Alternative forms of vision correction, and new medical and technological developments, may reduce the need for the combined company's optical products.

The combined company also will compete with manufacturers of eyeglasses and other forms of vision correction. We cannot assure you that the combined company will not encounter increased competition in the future, or that such competition would not have an adverse effect on the combined company's business, financial condition or results of operations.

As corneal refractive surgical procedures such as LASIK surgery become increasingly accepted as an effective and safe technique for permanent vision correction, they could substantially reduce the demand for contact lenses by enabling patients to avoid the ongoing cost and inconvenience of contact lenses. Other technological developments in the eyecare industry, such as new surgical procedures or medical devices, and the development of new pharmaceutical products may cause a substantial decline in the number of contact lens wearers and thus adversely affect demand for the combined company's products.

Changes in effective tax rates or adverse outcomes resulting from examination of Ocular's income tax returns could adversely affect the results of the combined company.

The combined company's future effective tax rates could be adversely affected by earnings being higher than anticipated in countries where the combined company has higher statutory rates or lower than anticipated in countries where it has lower statutory rates, by changes in valuation of its deferred tax assets and liabilities, or by changes in tax laws or interpretations thereof. Ocular's income tax returns are currently being audited by the

Internal Revenue Service, and the combined company will be subject to the continuous examination of its income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities, and we cannot assure you that the outcomes from these examinations will not have a material adverse effect on the combined company's operating results and financial condition.

Cooper's and Ocular's substantial and expanding international operations are subject to uncertainties that could affect the operating results of the combined company.

The growth strategy of the combined company involves, and is believed to be dependent upon, expanding its sales and operations in numerous foreign jurisdictions. A significant portion of both Cooper's and Ocular's current operations are conducted and located outside the United States. The combined company will have manufacturing sites in North America and Europe and primary distribution sites in North America, Europe and Japan. Approximately 40% of Cooper's net sales for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2003, and approximately 42% of Cooper's net sales for the six months ended April 30, 2004, were derived from the sale of products outside the United States. Approximately 57% of Ocular's net sales for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, were derived from the sale of products outside the United States. On a pro forma basis, approximately 47% of the combined company's net sales for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2003, were derived from the sale of products outside the United States. The expansion of international sales and operations by the combined company will involve operations in markets with which Cooper and Ocular are not as experienced, and the combined company may not be successful in capturing a significant portion of these markets for soft contact lenses.

International operations and business expansion plans are subject to numerous risks, including the following: foreign customers may have longer payment cycles than customers in the U.S.; tax rates in some foreign countries may exceed those of the U.S., and foreign earnings may be subject to repatriation taxes, withholding requirements or the imposition of tariffs, exchange controls or other restrictions; general economic and political conditions in the countries where the combined company operates may have an adverse effect on its operations in those countries or not be favorable to its growth strategy; managing a large organization spread throughout various countries may be more difficult; foreign governments may adopt regulations or take other actions that would have a direct or indirect adverse impact on the combined company's business and market opportunities; enforcing agreements and collecting receivables through some foreign legal systems may be more difficult; fluctuations in currency exchange rates may adversely affect financial results; and enforcing intellectual property rights in some foreign countries may be more difficult.

As Cooper continues to expand the combined company's business globally, its success will depend, in large part, on its ability to anticipate and effectively manage these and other risks associated with its international operations, including in Japan, the world's second largest contact lens market. However, any of these factors could adversely affect the combined company's international operations and, consequently, its operating results.

Exchange rate fluctuations could adversely affect the combined company's financial results.

As a result of the combined company's worldwide operations, currency exchange rate fluctuations will tend to affect the combined company's results of operations and financial position. The combined company expects to generate an increasing portion of its revenue and incur a significant portion of its expenses in currencies other than U.S. dollars. Although Cooper may enter into foreign exchange agreements with financial institutions to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency values relative to the combined company's debt or receivables obligations, these economic hedging transactions, if entered into, will not eliminate that risk entirely. In addition, to the extent Cooper is unable to match revenue received in foreign currencies with costs paid in the same currency, exchange rate fluctuations could have a negative impact on the combined company generates sales or earnings in other currencies the translation of those results into dollars can result in a significant increase or decrease in the amount of those sales or earnings.

Cooper is, and the combined company will be, vulnerable to interest rate risk with respect to its debt.

Cooper is subject to interest rate risk in connection with the issuance of variable and fixed-rate debt. In order to maintain its desired mix of fixed-rate and variable-rate debt, Cooper may use interest rate swap agreements and exchange fixed and variable-rate interest payment obligations over the life of the arrangements, without exchange of the underlying principal amounts. Cooper cannot assure you that it will be successful in structuring such swap agreements to effectively manage the combined company's risks. If Cooper is unable to do so, the combined company's business, earnings and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Cooper's stock price has been volatile historically and may continue to be volatile after the merger is completed.

The market price for Cooper common stock has been and may continue to be volatile, which may make it difficult for holders to resell shares of Cooper common stock at attractive prices. For example, during the 52-week period ended July 31, 2004, the last reported prices of Cooper common stock on the New York Stock Exchange ranged from a high of \$63.17 to a low of \$32.85. Cooper expects its stock price to be subject to fluctuations as a result of a variety of factors, including factors beyond its control.

Because of this volatility, Cooper may fail to meet the expectations of its stockholders or of securities analysts at some time in the future, and the trading prices of its securities could decline as a result. In addition, the stock market has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have affected the trading prices of equity securities. These fluctuations have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of issuing companies. In addition, any negative change in the public's perception of vision care or women's healthcare related companies or medical device companies could depress Cooper's stock price regardless of its operating results.

Cooper and Ocular manufacture a significant portion of their products, and an interruption of manufacturing operations could adversely affect the combined company.

CooperVision and CooperSurgical manufacture a significant portion of the products Cooper sells and Ocular manufactures substantially all of the products it sells. As a result, any prolonged disruption in the operations of the combined company's manufacturing facilities, whether due to technical or labor difficulties, destruction of or damage to any facility or other reasons, could have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Cooper and Ocular rely on several key suppliers for raw materials and equipment, and the combined company could experience inventory shortages if it were required to use an alternative supplier on short notice.

Cooper and Ocular rely on independent suppliers for raw materials, which primarily consist of various chemicals and packaging materials, and for manufacturing and packaging equipment. Raw materials and equipment used by Cooper and Ocular are generally available from multiple qualified suppliers, but Cooper and Ocular depend on several key suppliers for some of their product components. If the supply of materials and equipment from a key supplier were interrupted, replacement or alternative sources might not be readily obtainable due to the regulatory requirements applicable to Cooper and Ocular's manufacturing operations. Because some products require specialized manufacturing procedures, the combined company could experience inventory shortages if it were required to use an alternative manufacturer on short notice. The supply disruptions could materially adversely affect the combined company's business, financial condition, results of operations and future growth prospects.

If Cooper does not retain key personnel and attract and retain other highly skilled employees, its business could suffer.

The success of Cooper's and Ocular's businesses is, and the success of the combined company's business will be, heavily dependent on the leadership of its key management personnel. The loss of any of its senior

management or other key research, clinical, regulatory, or sales and marketing personnel, particularly to competitors, could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations. Cooper's success as the combined company will also depend on its ability to recruit, retain and motivate highly skilled sales, marketing and engineering personnel. Competition for these persons in its industry is intense and it may not be able to successfully recruit, train or retain qualified personnel. If Cooper fails to retain the necessary personnel of Cooper and Ocular, the combined company's business and its ability to obtain new customers, develop new products and provide acceptable levels of customer service could suffer.

If the combined company experiences a disruption of its information technology systems, or if the combined company fails to successfully manage and integrate its information technology and reporting systems, it could harm the business of the combined company.

Information technology systems, or IT systems, are an integral part of the business of Cooper and Ocular. Cooper and Ocular depend on IT systems to process orders and manage inventory and accounts receivable collections. IT systems also allow Cooper and Ocular to efficiently purchase products from their suppliers and ship products to their customers on a timely basis, maintain cost-effective operations and provide customer service. A serious disruption of their IT systems could have a material adverse effect on the business and results of operations of the combined company.

Cooper and Ocular are both in the process of upgrading certain of their management information systems and there can be no assurance that such upgrades will not result in a disruption of the combined company's business, extensive commitment of time and other costs related to upgrading such management information systems. Cooper and Ocular expect that they will need to continue to improve and further integrate their IT systems, reporting systems and procedures and train and educate their employees with respect to these improvements and integrations on an ongoing basis in order to effectively run their businesses. If the combined company fails to successfully manage and integrate the IT and reporting systems of Cooper and Ocular, it could adversely affect the combined company's business or operating results. Additionally, if the combined company determines that it would most effectively operate under one system, the abandonment of the other system could result in a charge against earnings, which could adversely affect the combined company's financial results.

Future acquisitions by Cooper may involve numerous risks.

Cooper and Ocular have a history of making acquisitions which have significantly contributed to each company's growth in recent years. As part of the combined company's growth strategy, particularly at CooperSurgical, Cooper intends to continue to consider acquiring complementary technologies, products and businesses. Future acquisitions could result in potentially dilutive issuances of equity securities, the incurrence of debt and contingent liabilities and an increase in amortization and/or write-offs of goodwill and other intangible assets, which could have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Risks the combined company could face with respect to acquisitions include difficulties in the integration of the operations, technologies, products and personnel of the acquired company, risks of entering markets in which the combined company has no or limited prior experience, potential loss of employees, an inability to identify and consummate future acquisitions on favorable terms or at all, diversion of management's attention away from other business concerns, expenses of any undisclosed or potential liabilities of the acquired company, and expense, including restructuring expenses, to shut-down locations and/or terminate employees. The risks associated with acquisitions could have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, financial condition and results of operations. Cooper and Ocular cannot assure you that the combined company will be successful in consummating future acquisitions on favorable terms or at all.

If the combined company fails to adequately protect its intellectual property, its business could suffer.

Cooper and Ocular consider their intellectual property rights, including patents, trademarks and licensing agreements, to be an integral component of their businesses and of the business of the combined company in the

future. Cooper and Ocular attempt, and the combined company will continue to attempt, to protect their intellectual property rights through a combination of patent, trademark, copyright, trade secret laws and competent legal opinions, as well as licensing agreements and third-party nondisclosure and assignment agreements. The failure to obtain or maintain adequate protection of intellectual property rights for any reason could have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, results of operations and financial condition.

Cooper and Ocular believe that their trademarks are valuable assets and have numerous trademark registrations in the United States, Europe and foreign countries in other parts of the world. While Cooper and Ocular believe that there are currently no pending challenges to the use or registration of any of their material trademarks, we cannot assure you that their trademarks do not or will not violate the proprietary rights of others, that they would be upheld if challenged or that Cooper, after the merger is completed, would, in such an event, not be prevented from using one or more of Cooper's and Ocular's trademarks, any of which could have an adverse effect on the combined company and its business.

The patents Cooper and Ocular own, and that Cooper will own as the combined company, could be challenged, invalidated or circumvented by others and may not be of sufficient scope or strength to provide the combined company with any meaningful protection or commercial advantage. Further, Cooper cannot assure you that it will have adequate resources to enforce the combined company's patents. Cooper cannot be certain that it will be the first creator of inventions covered by any patent application it makes or the first to file patent applications on such inventions. Although Cooper and Ocular have also applied for patent protection in the U.S. relating to certain existing and proposed processes and products, Cooper and Ocular cannot assure you that any of their patent applications will be approved.

Cooper and Ocular also rely on unpatented proprietary technology. It is possible that others will independently develop the same or similar technology or otherwise obtain access to Cooper's and Ocular's unpatented technology. To protect their trade secrets and other proprietary information, Cooper and Ocular require employees, consultants, advisors and collaborators to enter into confidentiality agreements. There can be no assurance that these agreements will provide meaningful protection for the combined company's trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information in the event of any unauthorized use, misappropriation or disclosure of such trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information. If Cooper is unable to maintain the proprietary nature of the combined company's technologies, it could be materially adversely affected.

The protection of intellectual property in certain foreign countries is particularly uncertain. Adverse determinations in a judicial or administrative proceeding or failure to obtain necessary licenses could prevent the combined company from manufacturing and selling its products, and such events would have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, financial condition and results of operations.

The combined company's intellectual property could be subject to claims of infringement.

Significant litigation regarding intellectual property rights exists in the contact lens industry. On November 6, 2002, CIBA Vision Corporation and its subsidiary, Wesley Jessen Corporation, filed a lawsuit against Ocular in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California alleging that its color contact lenses infringe patents owned by Wesley Jessen. The complaint seeks an award of damages, including unspecified punitive damages, attorney's fees and costs and an injunction preventing the alleged infringement. We cannot assure you that this litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the combined company's operating results or that the combined company will not be subject to other intellectual property lawsuits in the future.

Cooper's and Ocular's competitors in both the U.S. and foreign countries, some of which have substantially greater resources and have made substantial investments in competing technologies, may have applied for or obtained, or may in the future apply for and obtain, patents that will prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the combined company's ability to make and sell its products. Cooper and Ocular have not conducted an independent

review of patents issued to third parties. Claims that the combined company's products infringe the proprietary rights of others are more likely to be asserted after commencement of commercial sales incorporating such technology.

It is possible that third parties will make claims of infringement against the combined company or other manufacturers in connection with their use of the combined company's technology. Any claims, even those without merit, could be expensive and time consuming to defend, cause the combined company to cease making, licensing or using products that incorporate the challenged intellectual property, require the combined company to redesign or reengineer its products, if feasible, divert management's attention and resources, or require the combined company to enter into royalty or licensing agreements in order to obtain the right to use a necessary product, component or process. Any royalty or licensing agreements, if required, may not be available to the combined company on acceptable terms or at all. A successful claim of infringement against the combined company or its contract manufacturers in connection with the use of its technology could adversely affect the combined company's business.

Cooper and Ocular are, and the combined company will be, vulnerable to the inherent risk of exposure to product liability claims.

Cooper and Ocular each face, and the combined company will face, an inherent risk of exposure to product liability claims in the event that the use of its products results in personal injury. It also faces the risk that defects in the design or manufacture of its products might necessitate a product recall. From time to time, Ocular has received, and the combined company may continue to receive, complaints of significant patient discomfort, including corneal scarring and complications, while using Cooper's or Ocular's contact lenses. In certain cases, the reasons for the problems have never been established. Although Cooper and Ocular have not experienced material losses to date due to product liability claims or product recalls, Cooper cannot assure you that it will not experience such losses as the combined company in the future.

Cooper addresses, and the combined company will address, some risk with a combination of self-insurance and third-party carrier policies, which policies are subject to deductibles and limitations. One of CooperSurgical's products is the subject of product liability claims which arose prior to its acquisition of the manufacturer. Although Cooper is entitled to indemnification from the seller and the product is covered by third party carrier insurance, Cooper cannot assure you that such indemnification and insurance will be adequate. In addition, although Cooper believes it currently maintains sufficient product liability insurance coverage, if it is unable to obtain or maintain sufficient insurance coverage on reasonable terms or to otherwise protect against potential product liability claims, it may be unable to market one or more of the combined company's products.

Cooper's earnings will be adversely affected if it is required to change its accounting policies with respect to the expensing of stock options.

Cooper does not currently deduct the expense of stock option grants from its income based on the fair value method. The Financial Accounting Standards Board is considering, and the International Accounting Standards Board has adopted, effective February 2005, proposals requiring companies to change their accounting policies to record the fair value of stock options issued to employees and directors as an expense. Many companies have voluntarily changed, or are in the process of changing, their accounting policies to expense the fair value of stock options. Stock options are an important component of Cooper's employee compensation package and will continue to be an important component of Cooper after the merger. If Cooper changes its accounting policy with respect to the treatment of stock option grants, its earnings will be adversely affected, which in turn could have negative impact on the price of Cooper common stock.

Development and marketing of the combined company's products will be subject to strict governmental regulation by the Food and Drug Administration.

Cooper's and Ocular's products and operations are subject to extensive and rigorous regulation by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, or FFDCA, and its implementing regulations, guidances, and standards. The FDA regulates the research, testing, manufacturing, safety, labeling, storage, recordkeeping, promotion, distribution and production of medical devices in the United States to ensure that medical products distributed domestically are safe and effective for their intended uses. The FDA also regulates the export of medical devices manufactured in the United States to international markets. Cooper's or Ocular's failure to comply with these laws and regulations could lead the FDA to issue injunctions, refuse to grant applications for marketing clearance or approval, suspend or revoke regulatory clearances or approvals, issue product recalls, terminate product distribution, seize products, or impose other civil or criminal penalties. The imposition of any one or more of these penalties could result in a material adverse effect on the combined company's business.

The process of obtaining and maintaining FDA regulatory clearances or approvals to market a medical device in the U.S. can be costly and time consuming, and there can be no assurance that such clearances or approvals will be granted on a timely basis, or at all. In particular, unless exempted pursuant to specific FDA regulations, the FDA permits commercial distribution of a new medical device only after an applicant has received marketing clearance for the device under Section 510(k) of the FFDCA or has obtained approval of a Premarket Approval, or PMA, application for the device. The PMA process is more costly, lengthy and uncertain than the 510(k) clearance process and must be supported by extensive data, including data from preclinical studies and human clinical trials. Cooper and Ocular cannot assure you that any new products they develop will be subject to the shorter 510(k) clearance process, and significant delays in obtaining regulatory clearances or approvals for those products may occur. In addition, any modification or enhancement to a 510(k)-cleared device that could significantly affect its safety or effectiveness, or that would constitute a major change in its intended use, design or manufacture, requires a new 510(k) clearance or, possibly, approval of a PMA. Cooper and Ocular cannot confirm, however, that the FDA will agree with any of their determinations not to submit new 510(k) notifications or PMA applications for these modifications. Any FDA requirement that the combined company seek additional approvals or clearances for a product modification or enhancement could result in the recall of the modified device, delays, fines, costs associated with the modification of a product, loss of revenue and potential operating restrictions imposed by the FDA.

After the FDA permits a device to enter commercial distribution, numerous regulatory requirements apply. These include: the Quality System Regulation, which sets forth the requirements for good manufacturing practices of medical devices and includes, among other things, requirements governing design, testing, labeling, production processes, controls, documentation and other quality assurance procedures; labeling regulations; the FDA's general prohibition against promoting products for unapproved or "off-label" uses; and the Medical Device Reporting regulation, which requires that manufacturers report to the FDA if their device may have caused or contributed to a death or serious injury or malfunctioned in a way that would likely cause or contribute to a death or serious injury if it were to reoccur. The combined company's failure to comply with the FDA's regulations could result in, among other things, warning letters, fines, injunctions, consent decrees, civil penalties, repairs, replacements, refunds, recalls or seizures of products (which could result in the cessation or reduction of the combined company's production volume), total or partial suspension of production, the FDA's refusal to grant future premarket clearances or approvals, withdrawals or suspensions of current product applications and criminal prosecution. If any of these events were to occur, they could have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Changes in government regulation of the health care industry could materially adversely affect the combined company.

In recent years, an increasing number of legislative initiatives have been introduced or proposed in Congress and in state legislatures that could result in major changes to the regulation of the healthcare industry, either nationally or at the state level. Among the proposals under consideration are price controls on hospitals, insurance market reforms to increase the availability of group health insurance to small businesses, requirements that all businesses offer health insurance coverage to their employees and the creation of a government health insurance plan or plans that would cover all citizens. There continue to be efforts at the federal level to introduce various insurance market reforms, expand fraud and abuse and anti-referral legislation, and further reduce coverage and reimbursement under Medicare and Medicaid. A broad range of both similar and more comprehensive healthcare reform initiatives is likely to be considered at the state level. It is uncertain which, if any, of these or other proposals will be adopted. Cooper and Ocular cannot predict the effect such reforms or the prospect of their enactment may have on the business of the combined company.

Changes in government regulation of the retail optical industry could materially adversely affect the combined company.

The combined company's success will depend to a significant extent upon the success of its customers in the retail optical industry. These customers are subject to a variety of federal, state and local laws, regulations and ordinances. The state and local legal requirements vary widely among jurisdictions and are subject to frequent change. Furthermore, numerous healthcare-related legislative proposals have been made in recent years in Congress and in various state legislatures. The potential impact of these proposals with respect to the business of the combined company's customers is uncertain, and Cooper and Ocular cannot assure you that the proposals, if adopted, would not have a material adverse impact on the combined company's revenues, business, financial condition and results of operations.

Legislation affecting the contact lens industry could affect certain of the combined company's marketing strategies and could materially adversely affect the combined company.

There is substantial United States federal and state governmental regulation related to the prescribing of contact lenses. These regulations relate to who is permitted to prescribe and fit contact lenses, the prescriber's obligation to provide prescriptions to its patients, the length of time a prescription is valid, the ability or obligation of prescribers to prescribe lenses by brand rather than by generic equivalent or specification, and other matters.

Congress has recently enacted legislation affecting the prescription of contact lenses. In general, this legislation, which became effective on February 4, 2004, provides as follows:

- practitioners are required to provide each patient a copy of the prescription for his or her contact lens, and to verify the prescription information when
 asked. The prescription information is required to include, among other things, in the case of private label contact lenses, the name of the manufacturer
 of the lenses, the trade name of the private label brand, and, if applicable, the equivalent brand name;
- sellers of contact lenses are required to verify prescriptions. A prescription is deemed verified if the practitioner who wrote the prescription fails to
 respond to a verification request within 8 business hours. The substitution of the same lenses manufactured by the same company, but sold under
 different brand names, is permitted; and
- the Federal Trade Commission is required to undertake a study examining the strength of competition in the sale of prescription contact lenses, including the use of exclusive relationships, the differences between on-line and off-line sellers of contact lenses and the use of prescriptions that specify a brand name or custom labeled lens, and submit such report to Congress in February 2005.

This legislation may facilitate the sale of contact lenses by alternate distribution channels, such as internet sellers, at the expense of sales by eye care practitioners and reduce the value of private label brands. Such results could affect the combined company's marketing strategies that focus on sales to eye care practitioners and promote the use of private label brands. Additionally, it is unknown what, if any, conclusions the FTC might reach in the mandated market study, or whether Congress will take any further actions based on this study. Actions that promote alternative distribution channels or reduce the value of private label brands could adversely affect the success of certain of the combined company's marketing strategies.

In addition, adverse regulatory or other decisions affecting eyecare practitioners, or material changes in the selling and prescribing practices for contact lenses, could have a material adverse affect on the combined company's business, operating results and financial condition. Finally, although cost controls or other requirements imposed by third party healthcare payors such as insurers and health maintenance organizations have not historically had a significant effect on contact lens prices or distribution practices, this could change in the future, and could adversely affect the combined company's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Future trade practice litigation proceedings may materially adversely affect the combined company.

The contact lens industry has been the subject of a number of class action and government lawsuits and government investigations over the past ten years, alleging, among other things, violation of antitrust laws and fraudulent and deceptive practices in the manufacture and sale of contact lenses by certain companies in the industry. Although Cooper and Ocular have not been named in any of the foregoing lawsuits, Cooper and Ocular from time to time receive claims or threats similar to those brought against their competitors. There can be no assurance that the combined company will not face similar actions relating to its marketing and pricing practices or other claims or lawsuits in the future. The defense of any such action, lawsuit or claim could result in substantial expense and significant diversion of attention and effort by the combined company's management personnel. There can be no assurance that any such lawsuit or claim could have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Development and marketing of the combined company's products will be subject to strict governmental regulation by foreign regulatory agencies.

In many of the foreign countries in which Cooper and Ocular market their products, they are subject to regulations affecting, among other things, product standards, packaging requirements, labeling requirements, import restrictions, tariff regulations, duties and tax requirements. These laws and regulations range from simple product registration requirements in some countries to complex clearance and production controls in others. Some countries have historically permitted human studies earlier in the product development cycle than regulations in the United States permit, while many of the regulations applicable to Cooper's and Ocular's devices and products in such countries are similar to those of the FDA. This disparity in the regulation of medical devices may result in more rapid product clearance in certain countries than in the United States, while approvals in certain other countries may require longer periods than in the United States. These differences may also affect the efficiency and timeliness of international market introduction of the combined company's products, and there can be no assurance that the combined company will be able to obtain regulatory approvals or clearances for its products to be qualified before they can be marketed with the benefit of reimbursement eligibility. Although to date, Cooper and Ocular have not experienced difficulty in complying with these regulations, the combined company's failure to receive, or delays in the receipt of, relevant foreign qualifications in the future could have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, financial condition and results of operations.

The costs of complying with the requirements of federal laws pertaining to the privacy and security of health information and the potential liability associated with failure to do so could materially adversely affect the combined company.

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, affects the manner in which Cooper and Ocular use and disclose health information, and may affect the manner in which the combined company uses and discloses such information. Pursuant to HIPAA, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, or HHS, has promulgated rules mandating new standards relating to the privacy and security of individually identifiable health information as well as uniform standards relating to certain administrative and financial healthcare transactions. While Cooper and Ocular do not believe they are directly regulated as a "covered entity" under HIPAA, many of their customers are "covered entities" subject to HIPAA. Under HIPAA, such customers may be required to enter into business associates agreements with the combined company. These agreements will contractually obligate the combined company to adhere to the standards adopted by HHS with respect to health information it creates or obtains in the course of servicing these customers. The costs associated with these contractual obligations and potential liability associated with these obligations could have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business and financial condition and results of operation.

Changes in federal and state laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse could materially adversely affect the combined company.

Cooper and Ocular may be subject to various federal and state laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse, including anti-kickback laws. Violations of these laws are punishable by criminal and civil sanctions, including, in some instances, exclusion from participation in federal and state healthcare programs, including Medicare, Medicaid, Veterans Administration health programs and TRICARE. While Cooper and Ocular believe that their operations are in material compliance with such laws, because of the complex and far-reaching nature of these laws, there can be no assurance that they would not be required to alter one or more of their practices to be in compliance with these laws. Any violations of these laws or regulations could result in a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, financial condition and results of operations. Moreover, if there is a change in law, regulation, administrative or judicial interpretation, the combined company may have to change its business practices or its existing business practices could be challenged as unlawful, which could have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, financial condition and results of operations.

The combined company's operations may be subject to federal and state anti-kickback laws. Certain provisions of the Social Security Act, which are commonly known collectively as the Medicare Fraud and Abuse Statute, prohibit persons from knowingly and willfully soliciting, receiving, offering or providing remuneration directly or indirectly to induce either the referral of an individual, or the furnishing, recommending, or arranging for a good or service, for which payment may be made under a federal healthcare program such as Medicare and Medicaid. The definition of "remuneration" under this statute has been broadly interpreted to include anything of value, including such items as gifts, discounts, waivers of payment and providing anything at less than its fair market value. Many states have adopted prohibitions similar to the Medicare Fraud and Abuse Statute, some of which apply to the referral of patients for healthcare services reimbursed by any source, not only by the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

HIPAA created two new federal crimes: healthcare fraud and false statements relating to healthcare matters. The healthcare fraud statute prohibits knowingly and willfully executing or attempting to execute a scheme or artifice to defraud any healthcare benefit program, including private payers. The false statements statute prohibits knowingly and willfully falsifying, concealing or covering up a material fact or making any materially false, fictitious or fraudulent statement or representation in connection with the delivery of or payment for healthcare benefits, items or services. This statute applies to any health benefit plan, not just Medicare and Medicaid.

Cooper and Ocular are, and the combined company will be, vulnerable to risks related to environmental matters.

Cooper's and Ocular's facilities are subject to a broad range of federal, state, local and foreign environmental laws and requirements, including those governing discharges to the air and water, the handling or disposal of solid and hazardous substances and wastes and remediation of contamination associated with the release of hazardous substances at facilities and offsite disposal locations. Cooper and Ocular have made, and the combined company will continue to make, expenditures to comply with such laws and requirements. Future events, such as changes in existing laws and regulations or the discovery of contamination at the combined company's facilities, may give rise to additional compliance or remediation costs that could have a material adverse effect on the combined company's business, results of operations or financial condition. Moreover, as manufacturers of various products, Cooper and Ocular are exposed to some risk of claims with respect to environmental matters, and there can be no assurance that the combined company will not incur material costs or liabilities in connection with any such claims.

Cooper is involved in a voluntary clean-up at one of its sites in the state of New York, and although the workplan submitted to the state was accepted and the clean-up is proceeding in accordance with the workplan and its expectations, there can be no assurance that the clean-up will be completed within the timeframe and cost projected, that the expected results will be achieved, or that Cooper will not identify alternate sources of contamination in connection with their remediation. As such, there can be no assurance that material costs or liabilities will not be incurred in connection with any such remediation.

Compliance with changing regulation of corporate governance, public disclosure and accounting matters may result in additional expenses.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and new rules subsequently implemented by the SEC and New York Stock Exchange, as well as new accounting pronouncements, are creating uncertainty and additional complexities for companies such as Cooper. To maintain high standards of corporate governance and public disclosure, Cooper intends to invest all reasonable necessary resources to comply with evolving standards. This investment may result in increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from strategic, revenue-generating and cost management activities.

Cooper's certificate of incorporation, provisions of Delaware law and Cooper's rights plan may have anti-takeover effects.

Certain provisions of Cooper's Restated Certificate of Incorporation and amended and restated by-laws may inhibit changes in control of the Company not approved by its board of directors. These provisions include: (i) advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals and nominations and (ii) the authority of Cooper's board to issue without stockholder approval preferred stock with such terms as Cooper's board may determine. Cooper will also be afforded the protections of Section 203 of the DGCL, which could have similar effects. Cooper's board of directors adopted a preferred stock purchase rights plan, commonly known as a "poison pill," pursuant to a rights agreement dated as of October 29, 1997. The rights agreement is intended to prevent abusive hostile takeover attempts by requiring a potential acquiror to negotiate the terms of an acquisition with Cooper's board of directors. However, it could have the effect of deterring or preventing an acquisition of the combined company, even if a majority of the combined company's stockholders would be in favor of such acquisition, and could also have the effect of making it more difficult for a person or group to gain control of the combined company or to change existing management.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This joint proxy statement/prospectus contains "forward-looking statements" as defined by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These include certain statements about the merger, capital resources, performance and results of operations. In addition, all statements regarding anticipated growth in Ocular's, Cooper's or the combined company's revenue, anticipated market conditions, planned product launches and results of operations are forward-looking statements. To identify these statements look for words like "believes," "expects," "may," "will," "should," "seeks," "intends," "plans," "estimates" or "anticipates" and similar words or phrases. Discussions of strategy, plans or intentions often contain forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements necessarily depend on assumptions, data or methods that may be incorrect or imprecise and are subject to risks and uncertainties. These include:

- risks related to the inability to obtain, or meet conditions imposed for governmental and other approvals of the proposed merger, including approval by stockholders of both companies;
- the risk that the Cooper and Ocular businesses will not be integrated successfully;
- risks related to any uncertainty surrounding the merger, and the costs related to the merger;
- the risk that the combined company may not continue to realize anticipated benefits from its cost-cutting measures; and
- the ultimate validity and enforceability of the companies' patent applications and patents and the possible infringement of the intellectual property of others.

Events, among others, that could cause actual results and future actions to differ materially from those described in forward-looking statements include:

- major changes in business conditions;
- a major disruption in the operations of Cooper's or Ocular's manufacturing or distribution facilities;
- new competitors or technologies;
- significant delays in new product introductions;
- the impact of an undetected virus on Cooper's or Ocular's computer systems;
- acquisition integration delays or costs (including delays or costs related to the merger of Cooper and Ocular);
- increases in interest rates;
- foreign currency exchange exposure;
- investments in research and development and other start-up projects;
- dilution to earnings per share from acquisitions or issuing stock;
- worldwide regulatory issues, including product recalls and the effect of healthcare reform legislation;
- cost of complying with new corporate governance requirements;
- changes in tax laws or their interpretation;
- changes in geographic profit mix affecting tax rates;
- significant environmental cleanup costs above those already accrued;
- litigation costs, including any related settlements or judgments;
- cost of business divestitures;

- the requirement to provide for a significant liability or to write off a significant asset, including impaired goodwill;
- changes in accounting principles or estimates, including the potential cost of expensing stock options; and
- other events described in Cooper's and Ocular's Securities and Exchange Commission filings, including the "Business" section in Cooper's and Ocular's Annual Reports on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q.

You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, or in the case of documents incorporated by reference, as of the date of those documents. Neither Cooper nor Ocular undertakes any obligation to publicly update or release any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by law.

THE MERGER

The following is a description of the material aspects of the merger. While Cooper and Ocular believe that the following description covers the material terms of the merger, the description may not contain all of the information that is important to you. Cooper and Ocular encourage you to read carefully this entire joint proxy statement/prospectus, including the merger agreement attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex A, for a more complete understanding of the merger.

General

Each of the Cooper board of directors and the Ocular board of directors has unanimously approved the merger agreement. In the merger, Ocular will be merged with and into TCC Acquisition, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cooper. Ocular stockholders will be entitled to receive 0.3879 of a share of Cooper common stock and \$22.00 in cash, without interest, plus cash for any fractional shares, for each share of Ocular common stock they own. Shares of Cooper common stock will be issued with associated preferred share purchase rights. The cash portion of the merger consideration is expected to be paid out of Cooper's existing funds, cash provided by operating activities, additional borrowings or a combination of these sources.

Background of the Merger

From time to time since Ocular's initial public offering in 1997, Thomas Bender, Chief Executive Officer, and Robert Weiss, Chief Financial Officer, of Cooper have contacted or been contacted by John Fruth, currently Ocular's Chairman of the Board, and other senior executives of Ocular with respect to a combination of Cooper and Ocular, none of which resulted in any substantive discussions. In early Spring 2004, in the course of its review of available alternatives for Cooper's long-term growth, Cooper management noted Ocular's success in geographic expansion, particularly in Japan and Germany, its successful investment in manufacturing efficiencies, the strength of its daily disposable soft contact lens business and the potential for its extended wear products in development. The timing also seemed right for a combination of Ocular with Cooper, given the market values of the two companies and Ocular's success in reducing its costs through its manufacturing initiative. As a result, in mid-April 2004, Mr. Bender contacted Mr. Fruth and suggested a meeting to discuss a possible business combination between Cooper and Ocular.

Over the past several years, Ocular's board of directors has periodically met to review and assess Ocular's long-term plans and strategies. In early 2004, in preparation for such a meeting to be held in May 2004, Ocular's management began an analysis of Ocular's strategic alternatives, including possible strategic transactions as well as measures that it could take to continue to grow and increase its profitability as an independent company. As part of that process, Ocular management and Morgan Stanley had an introductory meeting on April 19, 2004, and a follow-up meeting on May 4, 2004, to discuss the ophthalmic industry and Ocular's strategic alternatives.

On May 11, 2004, Mr. Fruth and Edgar Cummins, a director of Ocular, met with Mr. Bender and Mr. Weiss to discuss the possibility and potential benefits of a business combination. As a result of that meeting, Cooper and Ocular entered into mutual confidentiality agreements on May 14, 2004, providing for confidential discussions and exchanges of information in order to determine the advisability of a business combination from the standpoint of their respective companies and stockholders.

Members of Cooper's senior management, including Messrs. Bender and Weiss, then met with representatives of JPMorgan on May 21, 2004, to discuss a possible transaction with Ocular and JPMorgan's retention as financial advisor to Cooper in connection with a possible transaction.

From May 21, 2004, through May 23, 2004, Ocular's board held its scheduled meeting to discuss Ocular's long-term plans and strategies. At this meeting, the board reviewed Ocular's historical and current business operations and financial performance, and senior management presented Ocular's long-term plan as an

independent company, including the key factors that were expected to contribute to future growth and the potential effect of various risks on the plan. Senior management also presented an overview of the competitive landscape and reviewed the potential benefits and risks associated with a possible business combination transaction with Cooper or another industry participant, as well as the potential benefits and risks of remaining independent and the risks of potential structural changes in the industry not involving Ocular that might be detrimental to the company. As part of the accompanying discussion, the directors were updated regarding the discussions Messrs. Fruth and Cummins had had with Cooper's management. Following this discussion, the board authorized Ocular to retain Morgan Stanley as Ocular's financial adviser with respect to a possible business combination transaction.

On May 25, 2004, the Cooper board of directors held a special telephonic meeting at which Mr. Bender informed the board of the initial discussions with Ocular and the potential advantages and opportunities in pursuing a business combination with Ocular. Cooper management and its outside counsel, Latham & Watkins LLP, outlined the possible structure and timing for a transaction, and representatives of Latham & Watkins advised the board of its fiduciary duties in considering a transaction. The board discussed the strategic benefits of the combination, the key areas of diligence preparatory to making an offer for Ocular, management's preliminary thoughts, based in part on input from JPMorgan, as to an acquisition price in the range of \$36.00 to \$38.00 per Ocular share, 50% in Cooper common stock and 50% in cash, and the financing alternatives for the cash portion. The Board then authorized management to continue discussions, commence due diligence and engage investment bankers to assist in the process. Cooper thereupon selected JPMorgan as its financial advisor for the transaction.

On May 27, 2004, certain members of Ocular's board and senior management met with representatives of Morgan Stanley to discuss current industry dynamics and strategic alternatives available to Ocular, including a possible business combination involving Cooper.

Representatives of JPMorgan met with Mr. Weiss on May 27, 2004, to discuss a possible transaction and, on May 28th, contacted representatives of Morgan Stanley and indicated that Cooper believed consideration of \$37.00 per Ocular share, 50% in cash and 50% in Cooper common stock, would be appropriate for such a transaction.

On June 1, 2004, Ocular's board of directors held a special meeting to discuss the approach to be taken in the discussions with Cooper. As part of the meeting, management and members of Ocular's board reported on their recent meeting with Morgan Stanley and the board discussed Cooper's proposed \$37.00 per Ocular share valuation.

On June 2, 2004, representatives of Morgan Stanley informed representatives of JPMorgan that Ocular's board believed that \$37.00 per Ocular share did not reflect the long term value of Ocular and provided JPMorgan with financial information in support of this position for its review. During the following week, representatives of Morgan Stanley further discussed the proposed valuation and the terms of the business combination with certain members of Ocular's board of directors.

On June 10, 2004, representatives of Morgan Stanley met with representatives of JPMorgan to discuss Ocular's financial prospects, the possibility of a combination with Cooper and the potential synergies that could result from that combination. At the meeting, representatives of Morgan Stanley explained that, in light of such prospects and synergies, the Ocular board believed that \$37.00 per Ocular share did not reflect Ocular's long-term value. Also on June 10th, Cooper management sent Ocular a request for specific information deemed necessary in order to move towards a more definitive proposal for a business combination with Ocular.

On June 18, 2004, representatives from Morgan Stanley and JPMorgan, as well as senior management from Ocular and Cooper, met to further discuss Ocular's financial prospects, a potential combination with Cooper and the potential synergies that could result from a combination. In addition, Ocular provided information in response to Cooper's June 10th request.

On June 21 and 22, 2004, Cooper management discussed with representatives of JPMorgan a revised valuation of Ocular resulting from consideration of the information provided by Ocular. On June 22nd, representatives of JPMorgan indicated to representatives of Morgan Stanley that Cooper would be interested in pursuing a business combination at \$40.00 per Ocular share in cash and stock. Morgan Stanley requested that Cooper confirm such interest in writing, and on June 24, 2004, representatives of JPMorgan provided representatives of Morgan Stanley with a letter from the Chairman of Cooper. The letter stated that Cooper would be prepared to discuss further a business combination with Ocular pursuant to a merger in which Ocular stockholders would receive \$40.00 per Ocular share, 50% in cash and 50% in shares of Cooper common stock, with a fixed exchange ratio for the exchange of shares being set prior to entering into the definitive merger agreement, subject to satisfactory completion of legal, business, financial and accounting due diligence and the negotiation of definitive documentation and its approval by Cooper's board of directors. The letter noted that it was subject to the confidentiality agreements between the parties.

On June 28, 2004, Ocular's board of directors met to consider this proposal, together with representatives of Morgan Stanley and Ocular's outside legal counsel, Fenwick & West LLP. Representatives of Fenwick & West advised the members of Ocular's board of their fiduciary duties to Ocular's stockholders in considering and responding to the Cooper proposal. Morgan Stanley then provided an overview of Cooper's proposal to the board, and discussed certain financial and strategic aspects of the proposal with the board. The board then discussed with its financial and legal advisors various aspects of the proposed transaction with Cooper, including the terms of the proposal, Ocular's strategic alternatives, the possibility of further changes in the structure of the industry not involving Ocular, Ocular's prospects as an independent company and the challenges and opportunities that Ocular would face if it remained independent. The board also held an extensive discussion, together with its financial and legal advisors, with respect to the process that it should follow to maximize the value that would be received by its stockholders in a transaction, and considered potential benefits and risks of various alternatives in this regard. As part of this discussion, the board considered the possibility of a transaction with a third party, the risk of engaging in a process that did not result in a transaction for Ocular and the risk of announcing a transaction that was not subsequently consummated. The board also discussed the potential synergies that could result from a combination with Cooper and those that could result from combinations with cretain other contact lens manufacturers. The independent members of the Ocular board of directors instructed Morgan Stanley to continue discussions with JPMorgan regarding other terms of a potential transaction with Cooper. In addition, the board requested Morgan Stanley to review further possibel alternative business combinations. Following the board meeting, at the request of the boar

On June 29, 2004, the Cooper board of directors held a regular meeting, at which Cooper's management and representatives from JPMorgan and Latham & Watkins participated in discussions with respect to the proposed Ocular transaction. Mr. Bender updated the board on the status of negotiations, including Ocular's suggested valuation of \$46.00 per Ocular share, and the potential benefits of the transaction to Cooper, including the results of Cooper's due diligence to date. Mr. Weiss reviewed the financial impact on Cooper of a transaction with Ocular, reviewed the potential cost of a transaction with Ocular and provided the Board with additional information concerning the possible financing structures to cover such cost. The board authorized Cooper management and JPMorgan to continue discussions and to continue to evaluate an appropriate acquisition price, but to advise Ocular and Morgan Stanley that the proposed \$46.00 per Ocular share valuation was not acceptable. Following the formal board meeting, Cooper's independent directors met in private session for further discussion of the potential transaction.

On July 2, 2004, representatives of JPMorgan continued discussions with representatives of Morgan Stanley regarding the terms of a potential transaction between Cooper and Ocular, at which representatives of JPMorgan provided Cooper's views on certain financial aspects of, and potential synergies resulting from, a business combination of Cooper and Ocular.

On July 7, 2004, Ocular's board of directors met with management and representatives of Morgan Stanley and Fenwick & West to consider Cooper's response to Ocular's indication of a \$46.00 per Ocular share value for Ocular. Morgan Stanley reviewed with the board and senior management its discussions with JPMorgan regarding the terms of a potential business combination and also reviewed other potential alternatives that Ocular might pursue. The board discussed this information extensively. The Ocular board of directors then determined that it was in the best interests of Ocular's stockholders to continue discussions with Cooper and authorized Mr. Fruth to contact Mr. Bender to continue the discussions.

On July 9, 2004, Mr. Fruth met with Mr. Bender to continue their discussions regarding a possible combination and to discuss Ocular's valuation. After discussion, Mr. Bender stated that, subject to the satisfactory completion of due diligence and negotiation of definitive documentation, he was prepared to recommend to Cooper's board a business combination with Ocular in which Ocular shareholders would receive \$44.00 per Ocular share, 50% in stock and 50% in cash. Mr. Fruth indicated that he believed that Ocular's board would support such a transaction, subject to satisfactory completion of due diligence of Cooper by Ocular and negotiation of definitive documentation.

On July 12, 2004, the Cooper board of directors held a special telephonic meeting at which Cooper management, together with representatives of JPMorgan and Latham & Watkins, reviewed with the board the status of negotiations and the proposed increase in the consideration to Ocular stockholders in the transaction. The board authorized Cooper management to continue discussions with Ocular and related due diligence, after which the independent directors held a separate session of the meeting without Cooper management to discuss the proposed transaction.

During the week of July 12th, as part of Cooper's due diligence process, members of Cooper management conducted site visits of Ocular's manufacturing facilities in Puerto Rico and the United Kingdom.

On July 13, 2004, the Ocular board of directors held a meeting with senior management and representatives of Morgan Stanley and Fenwick & West to consider a proposal valuing Ocular at \$44.00 per Ocular share. Representatives of Morgan Stanley reviewed certain aspects of the proposed transaction, including the proposed consideration to be received by Ocular stockholders, the possible structure of the transaction and the strategic alternatives available to Ocular. The Ocular board then discussed the proposal extensively, including its valuation of Ocular and the premium it represented with respect to Ocular's stock price and the increase in Ocular's stock price over the past months. Additionally, the board discussed the potential effects of the transaction on Cooper and the value of its stock after the merger, given that the proposal contemplated that Ocular shareholders would receive 50% of their consideration in Cooper stock. The board also discussed alternatives potentially available to Ocular and concluded that a combination with Cooper was likely to provide the greatest synergies with Ocular and value to Ocular stockholders with a relatively high probability of being successfully consummated. As part of this discussion, representatives of Fenwick & West reviewed the fiduciary duties of the Ocular board of directors to the Ocular stockholders in connection with these matters. After a thorough discussion, the Ocular board of directors determined that it was in the best interests of Ocular and its stockholders for Ocular's management and advisors to continue discussions with Cooper.

Cooper and its outside legal counsel, accountants and financial advisors continued to conduct due diligence to evaluate Ocular's business prospects and operations. Representatives of Cooper and Ocular discussed various matters, including product development and strategy, manufacturing, sales and marketing, third party distributors, FDA matters, tax matters and other issues. Ocular made senior personnel available to respond to Cooper's inquiries and set up a data room containing the documents that Cooper had requested. Similarly, Ocular and its outside legal counsel, accountants and financial advisors conducted due diligence to evaluate Cooper's business prospects and operations, and Cooper made senior personnel available to respond to Ocular's inquiries and set up a data room containing the documents that Ocular had requested. As part of this process, members of Ocular's management conducted site visits of Cooper's manufacturing facilities. The diligence process continued for both parties through the morning of July 28, 2004; it included a meeting of members of Cooper's

management team and representatives of JPMorgan with members of Ocular's management team and representatives of Morgan Stanley on July 22nd to discuss Cooper's business prospects and operations, its expectations for transaction synergies and its financing for the transaction.

On July 16, 2004, the Cooper board of directors held a special telephonic meeting at which it was briefed on the status of discussions between Cooper and Ocular. Representatives of JPMorgan reviewed with the board the terms of the proposed transaction with Ocular currently being discussed and Cooper management's views of the synergies it believed could be expected from the transaction. Management reviewed the status of certain due diligence findings and discussed with the board the consideration proposed to be paid to Ocular stockholders and the strategic reasons for the transaction. Representatives of Latham & Watkins reviewed various provisions proposed to be included in the definitive merger agreement, including, with respect to the acceleration of vesting of all outstanding employee options, restrictions on Ocular's solicitation of alternative acquisition proposals, conditions to closing and termination rights and related fees, and a proposed agreement with Mr. Fruth obligating him to vote in favor of the transaction. Counsel also discussed the requirement under New York Stock Exchange rules that Cooper stockholders approve the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger. At the conclusion of the meeting, the Board authorized Cooper management to continue discussions with Ocular regarding a possible transaction, and to deliver a draft of the merger agreement, after which the independent directors met in private session for further discussion.

Following the board meeting on July 16, 2004, Cooper's legal advisors delivered to Ocular and its legal advisors the first draft of a merger agreement between Cooper and Ocular. In delivering the draft, Cooper's legal advisors noted that Cooper would also expect Mr. Fruth to agree to vote his Ocular shares in favor of the merger.

On July 19 and 20, 2004, Ocular's board of directors held a regularly scheduled meeting. Representatives of Morgan Stanley and Fenwick & West discussed the draft agreements and reviewed the status of negotiations and, with members of senior management, discussed their due diligence with respect to Cooper. Ocular's board engaged in extensive discussions about the terms set forth in the draft agreement provided by Cooper. The Ocular board then discussed the desirability of a retention program for employees and the possible structure and terms of such a program. The board also discussed the provision in the draft merger agreement for the acceleration of vesting of all outstanding options at the effective time of the merger. The board then formed a separate committee, comprised entirely of independent directors, to review these compensation-related matters and to develop a retention plan for the benefit of certain non-executive employees. Finally, senior management made a presentation to the board regarding Ocular's financial outlook as an independent company, and the board and senior management discussed the current status of Ocular's business, its product development activities and its financial results and expectations.

On July 19, 2004, legal advisors of Cooper and Ocular engaged in a telephonic negotiation of certain key provisions of the draft merger agreement. Subsequently, Ocular's counsel provided a mark-up of the initial draft to Cooper and its counsel.

On July 22, 2004, the Cooper board of directors held a special telephonic meeting at which Mr. Bender and representatives of Latham & Watkins updated the board on certain due diligence findings. Legal counsel also discussed the status of negotiations on the merger agreement, with reference to certain key areas of disagreement, and JPMorgan updated the board on the status of its negotiations with Morgan Stanley. Mr. Weiss updated the board on Cooper's financial analysis of Ocular.

On July 22, 2004, legal advisors of Cooper and Ocular engaged in another telephonic negotiation with respect to the merger agreement and Ocular's proposed revisions.

On July 23, 2004, the Cooper board of directors held a special telephonic meeting at which Cooper management and representatives of Latham & Watkins and JPMorgan informed the board of issues raised by

Ocular in the merger negotiations, the status of certain due diligence findings and the proposed merger consideration. Management also discussed with the board the proposed voting agreement with Mr. Fruth and the proposed imposition of restrictions on Mr. Fruth's sale of Cooper shares received in the merger. The independent members of the board held a separate session without Cooper management to discuss the proposed transaction. At the conclusion of that session, the board authorized Cooper management to continue discussions with Ocular regarding a possible transaction.

On July 23, 2004, Mr. Weiss, with Carol Kaufman, Vice President of Legal Affairs, Secretary and Chief Administrative Officer of Cooper, and representatives of JPMorgan and Latham & Watkins, met Mr. Fruth and representatives of Morgan Stanley and Fenwick & West, to discuss certain due diligence findings and the significant issues raised by the initial draft and subsequent mark-up of the merger agreement.

On July 24 and 25, 2004, Cooper's and Ocular's legal advisors discussed and agreed upon proposed revisions to the draft of the merger agreement to address various significant issues discussed between the parties and their advisors. Cooper's legal advisors then delivered a revised draft of the merger agreement to Mr. Fruth, Ocular and its legal advisors, together with a proposed form of a voting agreement between Cooper and Mr. Fruth.

The legal advisors to Cooper and Ocular then met to continue negotiations on the merger agreement, which negotiations continued, both in person and by telephone, and involved at various times senior management of both companies, through the afternoon of July 28, 2004. On July 26, 2004, Cooper's legal advisors distributed to the parties and their advisors revised drafts of the merger and voting agreements, reflecting the current state of negotiations, which drafts were also sent to Cooper's and Ocular's directors.

On July 26, 2004, Ocular's board of directors met to consider the proposed merger agreement between Ocular and Cooper and the status of negotiations. Representatives of Ocular's senior management team and representatives of Ocular's legal and financial advisors discussed the merger agreement, the proposed transaction and their due diligence with respect to Cooper with the Ocular board. Representatives of Fenwick & West extensively reviewed with the board the terms of the proposed merger agreement and the fiduciary duties of the board in connection with the proposed transaction. The board then discussed the terms of the draft merger agreement and related matters and also expressed its views on those terms that remained open. Morgan Stanley then discussed its preliminary financial analysis of the proposed transaction with the board.

On July 26, 2004, members of management and representatives of Latham & Watkins had telephonic discussions with various Cooper directors to address their questions and comments on the draft merger agreement.

On July 27, 2004, Ocular's board of directors met with its financial and legal advisors to further discuss the proposed merger agreement between Ocular and Cooper, and the proposed voting agreement between Mr. Fruth and Cooper and the current status of negotiations. The board discussed the provision of the merger agreement, which had been agreed between the parties, for two current Ocular directors to be elected to the Cooper board of directors upon completion of the merger. The board determined to nominate Mr. Fruth and Mr. Cummins to serve in that capacity. Representatives of Ocular's legal and financial advisors made presentations to the board concerning the open issues in the merger agreement. Members of the separate committee formed to address retention and other employee compensation issues then presented a proposed employee retention plan, developed by the separate committee working with certain members of Ocular's management. The board then discussed the plan and the provision in the draft merger agreement for the acceleration of vesting of all outstanding options at the effective time of the merger.

On July 27, 2004, the nominating committee of the Cooper board of directors, having reviewed information with respect to the backgrounds and professional experience of Messrs. Fruth and Cummins, met and resolved to recommend to the Cooper board the appointment of Messrs. Fruth and Cummins to Cooper's board of directors,

subject to execution of the definitive merger agreement by the parties and completion of the merger in accordance with the agreement.

On July 28, 2004, Ocular's board of directors held a meeting to discuss the proposed terms of the merger agreement with its financial and legal advisors. Representatives of Morgan Stanley reviewed financial analyses regarding the proposed merger and responded to questions from the Ocular directors. The board discussed finalization of the exchange ratio and other matters that remained open. The meeting was temporarily adjourned, and representatives of Fenwick & West discussed and resolved these matters with representatives of Latham & Watkins. The meeting was then reconvened, and representatives of Morgan Stanley provided an updated review of their financial analysis, and delivered to the Ocular board its oral opinion (subsequently confirmed in writing) that, as of July 28, 2004, and subject to the assumptions and considerations in its opinion, the merger consideration pursuant to the merger agreement was fair from a financial point of view to Ocular's stockholders. Representatives of Fenwick & West then reviewed the terms of the draft merger agreement and voting agreement, each of which had been previously circulated to the board, and advised the board as to its fiduciary duties. The Ocular board considered and discussed the risks and benefits of the proposed transaction, taking into account the terms of the merger agreement. Following this discussion, Ocular's board of directors unanimously determined that the merger and the merger agreement were advisable, fair to and in the best interests of Ocular and its stockholders, and unanimously approved the merger agreement. The board also unanimously recommended that Ocular's stockholders approve the merger and approve and adopt the merger agreement. The Ocular board also discussed, and adopted, the employee retention plan.

On July 28, 2004, the Cooper board of directors held a special meeting to consider approval of the merger agreement and the voting agreement with Mr. Fruth and the transactions contemplated by these agreements. Prior to the meeting, the Cooper board was provided with substantially final drafts of the documents as well as a summary of the merger agreement. At the meeting, Cooper's senior management and representatives of Latham & Watkins updated the Cooper board of directors on the final results of Cooper's due diligence review. Representatives of Latham & Watkins then advised the Cooper directors of their fiduciary obligations in considering the transaction and described in detail the structure of the merger and the provisions of the merger agreement, with particular reference to significant revisions to the merger agreement from the draft provided prior to the meeting. Representatives of JPMorgan presented their financial analyses of the transaction to the board and delivered JPMorgan's oral opinion (subsequently confirmed in writing) that, as of that date and based upon and subject to the considerations to be described in its written opinion, the merger consideration to be paid in the proposed merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to Cooper. Following a lengthy discussion, the Cooper board unanimously determined that the merger was in the best interests of Cooper and its stockholders, approved the merger agreement, the voting agreement, the proposed merger and the issuance of shares of Cooper common stock and payment of cash in the merger, and resolved to recommend that the Cooper stockholders vote to approve the issuance of shares of Cooper common stock in the merger.

On July 28, 2004, following the closing of trading on the NASDAQ National Market and the New York Stock Exchange, the parties executed the merger agreement, and Mr. Fruth entered into the voting agreement with Cooper. Cooper and Ocular then issued a joint press release announcing the signing of the merger agreement.

Reasons for the Merger—Cooper

The Cooper board of directors believes that the combination with Ocular will enhance Cooper's position as a major manufacturer and supplier of soft contact lenses with additional manufacturing facilities and technology, an expanded global distribution network, increased breadth of product line and an expanded customer base. The Cooper board of directors has unanimously approved the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement and recommends that Cooper stockholders vote "FOR" approval of the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger.

In reaching its decision to approve the merger agreement, the Cooper board of directors consulted with senior members of Cooper's management team regarding the strategic and operational aspects of the merger and the results of the due diligence efforts undertaken by management and Cooper's legal advisors. In addition, the Cooper board of directors held discussions with representatives of JPMorgan, its financial advisor, regarding the past and current business operations, financial condition and future prospects of Ocular. The Cooper board of directors utilized the experience and expertise of JPMorgan for quantitative analysis of the financial terms of the merger and consulted with JPMorgan as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, to Cooper of the merger consideration to be paid by Cooper. The Cooper board of directors also consulted with representatives of Latham & Watkins regarding due diligence, terms of the merger agreement and voting agreement and other matters and with specialized outside legal counsel with respect to certain due diligence matters. In reaching its decision to approve the merger agreement, the Cooper board of directors reviewed a significant amount of information and considered many factors, including the following material information and factors:

- *Strengthened Strategic Position.* The Cooper board of directors considered that the merger would strengthen Cooper's ability to compete with the other major manufacturers of soft contact lenses through the benefits of increased size and economies of scale, expanded breadth of product line, distribution and geographic reach and customer base and enhanced manufacturing capability. Among other things, the Cooper board of directors considered that:
 - Ocular's disposable spherical lenses, daily wear lenses and silicone hydrogel extended wear lenses currently in development would complement Cooper's line of specialty lenses and enable the combined company to offer products in all major contact lens product categories. The combined company's breadth of product line would also make it easier and more efficient for customers to buy product by consolidating orders for multiple products from one source;
 - the transaction would provide potential opportunities to develop new products, including a superior daily disposable lens through the combination of Cooper's Proclear material with Ocular's daily disposable manufacturing capability, and to develop a new generation of products combining Proclear technology with certain products currently in development at Ocular;
 - Ocular's strong presence in Japan and the Asia Pacific region, where Cooper is still developing its distribution capability, and Ocular's European operations, particularly in Germany, would complement Cooper's strong British, French, Italian and Spanish businesses and would result in a combined company with a strong presence in every significant geographic market for soft contact lenses;
 - in North America, Ocular's strength in large retail optometric chain customers would complement Cooper's concentration on independent professional optometric customers, creating a broader customer base for the combined company; and
 - Ocular's new Generation II[™] manufacturing process would support CooperVision's CooperSync[™] programs to reduce manufacturing costs and would be expected to reduce production costs over time, which would allow more competitive pricing with improved gross margins.
- Synergies. The Cooper board of directors reviewed the potential strategic and other benefits of the merger, including the complementary nature of the businesses of Ocular and Cooper, with particular reference to the items listed above and the opportunities for other significant operational synergies and cost savings identified by Cooper management. The Cooper board noted, however, that Cooper's ability to achieve the anticipated synergies and cost savings is subject to various factors, a number of which will be beyond its control, including economic conditions and unanticipated changes in business conditions. See "*Risk Factors*" on page 19 and "*Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements*" on page 35.
- *Positioning for Long-Term Growth.* The Cooper board of directors considered the fact that the transaction is expected to nearly double Cooper's revenue base, and the company's strengthened strategic position and opportunities for operating synergies and new product development would likely accelerate Cooper's future revenue and earnings growth, which would, over time, add stockholder value.

- Strategic Alternatives. The Cooper board of directors compared the benefits expected from the transaction with other growth strategies considered by
 Cooper, including strategies to expand its geographic distribution, particularly in Japan, and range of products, including daily disposable lenses, and
 determined that a business combination with Ocular was the most attractive means of achieving Cooper's objectives. In addition, the board considered
 that a combination of Cooper and Ocular represented a unique strategic fit and opportunity to enhance and expand Cooper's business, product line and
 position for future growth beyond the realization of those specific objectives.
- *Integration of Ocular*. The Cooper board of directors considered the fact that, although Cooper had experience in integrating a number of acquired businesses, none was of the size or complexity of Ocular, and, therefore, the combination of the businesses of Cooper and Ocular would be challenging. However, after consultation with Cooper management, the Cooper board of directors determined that the operations of Ocular could be integrated with those of Cooper in an efficient manner.
- *Terms of the Merger Agreement.* The Cooper board of directors, with the assistance of counsel, considered the general terms of the merger agreement, including:
 - the fact that the fixed exchange ratio for the stock portion of the merger consideration provides certainty as to the number of shares of Cooper common stock to be issued to Ocular shareholders and the percentage of the total shares of Cooper common stock that current Ocular shareholders will own after the merger. The Cooper board of directors also considered the premium that the merger consideration implied;
 - the provisions of the merger agreement that permit Ocular to change its recommendation in favor of the merger and to terminate the merger agreement for a superior proposal and that permit Cooper to change its recommendation in favor of the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger and to terminate the merger agreement for a conflicting proposal, in light of the provisions relating to each party's ability to engage in discussions or supply information to third parties. The Cooper board of directors also considered the provisions that require the payment of a \$35 million termination fee by Cooper or Ocular if the merger agreement is terminated due to specified reasons. The Cooper board of directors believed that these provisions were reasonable under the circumstances; and
 - the conditions to consummation of the merger, in particular the likelihood of obtaining the necessary regulatory and stockholder approvals and the likelihood that the merger would be completed. While the Cooper board of directors believes that these approvals will be obtained in a timely fashion, the Cooper board of directors also noted that Cooper is not required to agree to any conditions or divestitures or other actions that would adversely affect its ability to own and operate Ocular or any portion of its or Ocular's assets or that would have a material adverse effect on Ocular or Cooper.
- Opinion of Financial Advisor. The Cooper board of directors considered the opinion of JPMorgan that, as of the date of its opinion and based upon and subject to the considerations described in its written opinion, the merger consideration to be paid in the proposed merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to Cooper. See "Opinion of Financial Advisor—Cooper" on page 50.
- Tax Treatment. The Cooper board of directors considered the expected qualification of the merger as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, such that no gain or loss will be recognized by Cooper or Ocular for federal income tax purposes, and a portion of the gain, if any, realized by Ocular stockholders in the merger may be deferred for federal income tax purposes. The Cooper board of directors also considered the ability of each party to restructure the merger as a transaction described in Section 351 of the Internal Revenue Code to preserve such tax treatment.
- Voting Agreement. The Cooper board of directors discussed the terms of the voting agreement between Cooper and Mr. Fruth requiring Mr. Fruth to continue to own his shares of Ocular common stock (constituting approximately 19% of the shares of Ocular common stock outstanding as of July 26, 2004, not including his ownership of options to purchase the common stock) and to vote such shares for approval of the merger agreement and merger and against alternative transactions and other matters than

could impede or prevent the merger. The board considered the fact that this voting agreement would terminate upon termination of the merger agreement, including a termination by Ocular for a superior proposal. The board also considered the terms and conditions of restrictions on Mr. Fruth's sale of Cooper common stock received by him in the merger.

In addition, the Cooper board of directors also identified and considered a variety of potentially negative factors in its deliberations concerning the merger, including:

- the potential effect of public announcement of the merger on Cooper's stock price;
- the risk that the potential benefits sought in the merger, including the expected synergies, might be delayed or not be fully realized;
- the possibility that the merger might not be completed, or that completion might be unduly delayed;
- the projected dilution of Cooper's earnings per share as a result of the issuance of the shares in the merger, and the risk that the time period for the
 merger to be accretive to Cooper's earnings per share might be longer than currently expected;
- the risk that management's efforts to integrate Ocular will disrupt the operations of the combined company;
- the substantial charges to be incurred in connection with the merger, including costs of integrating the businesses of Cooper and Ocular and transaction expenses arising from the merger;
- the risk that despite the efforts of the combined company, key management, sales and research and development personnel might not remain employed by Cooper; and
- various other risks associated with the merger and the businesses of Cooper, Ocular and the combined company described in "*Risks Factors*" on page 19 and in the documents incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

The Cooper board of directors concluded, however, that these negative factors could be managed or mitigated by Cooper or were unlikely to have a material impact on the merger or Cooper and that, overall, the potentially negative factors associated with the merger were outweighed by the potential benefits of the merger.

The above discussion of the factors considered by the Cooper board of directors is not intended to be exhaustive but does set forth the material factors considered by the directors in reaching their collective, unanimous conclusion to approve the merger agreement and to recommend that its stockholders vote to approve the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger. In view of the wide variety of factors considered by the Cooper board of directors in connection with its evaluation of the merger and the complexity of these matters, the Cooper board of directors did not consider it practical, and did not attempt, to quantify, rank or otherwise assign relative weights to the specific factors it considered in reaching its decision. Rather, the directors made their respective determinations based on the totality of information presented to and the investigation conducted by them, and in considering the factors discussed above, individual directors may have given different weights to different factors.

The Cooper board of directors unanimously recommends that Cooper stockholders vote "FOR" approval of the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger.

Reasons for the Merger—Ocular

The Ocular board of directors believes that the merger is advisable, fair and in the best interest of, Ocular's stockholders. At a special meeting of the Ocular board of directors held on July 28, 2004, at which the merger agreement and the related transactions were considered and voted upon, the Ocular directors unanimously approved the merger agreement and the merger. The Ocular board unanimously determined that the adoption of

the merger agreement by Ocular's stockholders is advisable, and that the merger is fair and in the best interests of Ocular's stockholders, and unanimously recommends that Ocular's stockholders adopt and approve the merger agreement and approve the merger contemplated thereby.

In reaching its decision to approve the merger agreement, the Ocular board of directors consulted with senior members of Ocular's management team regarding the strategic and operational aspects of the merger and the results of the due diligence efforts undertaken by management and Ocular's advisors. In addition, the Ocular board of directors held discussions with representatives of Morgan Stanley, its financial advisor, regarding the past and current business operations, financial condition and future prospects of Cooper and regarding other financial matters. The Ocular board of directors utilized the experience and expertise of Morgan Stanley for quantitative analysis of the financial terms of the merger and consulted with Morgan Stanley as to the fairness, from a financial point of view to the holders of Ocular common stock of the merger consideration to be received by them in the merger. The Ocular board of directors consulted with representatives of Fenwick & West LLP regarding legal matters and the terms of the merger agreement and related agreements. In reaching its decision to approve the merger agreement, the Ocular board of directors reviewed a significant amount of information and considered many factors including the following material information and factors in making its decision:

- Merger Consideration. The Ocular board of directors' view of the consideration to be paid by Cooper, including:
 - That based on the merger consideration and the closing prices of the common stock of Ocular and Cooper on July 27, 2004, the day before Ocular's board of directors met to approve the merger, the merger consideration per share had an aggregate value of approximately \$44.07 per share, representing approximately an 18% premium to the closing price of Ocular common stock on July 27, 2004, approximately a 19% premium to the average closing price of Ocular's common stock for the 30 trading days prior to July 27, 2004, approximately a 26% premium to the average closing price of Ocular's common stock for the 60 trading days prior to July 27, 2004 and approximately a 35% premium to the average closing price of Ocular's common stock for the 90 trading days prior to July 27, 2004;
 - The fact that Ocular stockholders would be receiving half of their consideration in stock, thereby providing Ocular stockholders with an opportunity to participate in any increase in value in Cooper stock as a result of announcement of the merger and to share in the potential growth and value of the combined company following the merger as stockholders of Cooper; and
 - The fact that Ocular stockholders will be receiving half of their consideration in cash, which provides them with a measure of certainty of value despite stock market or industry volatility compared to a transaction in which they would receive all stock or other non-cash consideration.
- *Complementary Capabilities.* The board of directors' judgment that the two companies had significant complementary capabilities and the expectation that significant synergies would result from the combination, including the following:
 - The combination of the companies' product lines, especially Cooper's specialty lenses with Ocular's daily and weekly disposable spherical lenses and its silicone hydrogel lenses presently in development, would enable the combined company to offer a fuller set of products;
 - The combination of the companies' sales and distribution forces, especially in Japan and Germany where Ocular was relatively stronger and Italy, Spain and the United Kingdom where Cooper was relatively stronger, would allow the combined company to have a stronger global presence;
 - The combination of the companies' customer base, especially Ocular's strength in retail optometric chains and Cooper's strength in independent professional optometric customers, would provide the combined company a broader set of customers;
 - The ability to apply Ocular's cost-effective, high volume manufacturing capabilities to certain of Cooper's products would enable the combined company to lower costs of manufacturing lenses;



- The combined resources of the two companies would likely enhance the combined company's ability to respond more quickly and effectively to increased competition and to product development demands; and
- The combined company could be run more efficiently than either company on its own with the elimination of redundant resources and achieve economies of scale.
- *Terms of Merger Agreement*. The Ocular board of directors considered the terms of the merger agreement and voting agreement by themselves, and in comparison to the terms of agreements in other similar transactions, including:
 - The fact that the fixed exchange ratio for the stock portion of the merger consideration provides certainty as to the number of shares of Cooper common stock to be issued to Ocular stockholders and the percentage of the total shares of Cooper common stock that current Ocular stockholders will own after the merger;
 - The right of Ocular under the merger agreement to consider unsolicited acquisition proposals and to terminate the merger agreement and/or change its recommendation to Ocular stockholders should the company receive an unsolicited superior proposal, which Ocular's board believed allows a potential bidder to pursue such a transaction with Ocular;
 - The fact that the transaction was structured such that Ocular stockholders would not be immediately taxed on the stock portion of the merger consideration and the ability of each party to restructure the merger pursuant to Section 351 of the Internal Revenue Code to preserve such tax treatment;
 - The limitations on the right of Cooper to pursue alternative transactions that could conflict with the merger;
 - That two of the Ocular board of directors' members would become directors of the combined company, as described under "*The Merger* Interests of Directors, Executive Officers and Stockholders of Ocular in the Merger" on page 69; and
 - The conditions to consummation of the merger, in particular the likelihood of obtaining the necessary regulatory and stockholder approvals, and the likelihood that the merger would be completed.
- Opinion of Financial Advisor. The analysis and presentation of Morgan Stanley and its opinion to Ocular's board of directors, as of July 28, 2004, as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, to the holders of Ocular Common Stock of the merger consideration to be received by them in the merger, subject to the assumptions, qualifications and limitations set forth in the opinion.
- *Strategic Financial and Operational Assessment.* The Ocular board of directors' assessment of a number of strategic financial and operational considerations, including:
 - The past and current operations, financial results, competitive position and future prospects of Cooper and Ocular as stand-alone companies and on a combined basis;
 - The prospects for Ocular's growth and profitability as an independent company, and the risks of such growth and profitability;
 - The other strategic options potentially available to Ocular, such as the possibility of seeking to acquire one or more other companies, seeking to engage in one or more joint ventures or seeking to engage in a combination with a company other than Cooper, and Ocular's assessment after consultation with its advisors that none of these options was more likely to create value for Ocular stockholders that was expected to be equal to or greater than the benefits created by the proposed combination;

- Ocular board of directors' knowledge of, and beliefs about, the competitive environment in which Ocular operates and the risks and potential rewards associated with continuing to execute Ocular's strategic plan as an independent entity, as an alternative to the merger; and
- The possibility that if Ocular did not combine with Cooper, Cooper might combine with another contact lens manufacturer in the future, or that there might otherwise be further consolidation in the contact lens industry in which Ocular was unable to participate, and the effect such consolidation could have on Ocular's ability to compete.

Ocular's board of directors also identified and considered a number of potentially negative factors in its deliberations concerning the proposed merger, including the following:

- The risk that the transaction might not be consummated due to the potential failure to satisfy one or more of the closing conditions, and in the event that the transaction is not consummated, the possible negative effects on Ocular's relationship with customers and suppliers, employee morale and the potential loss of key employees and the possible impact on Ocular sales, operating results and stock price.
- Various terms of the merger agreement and voting agreement, including the following:
 - The right of Cooper under the merger agreement to consider unsolicited acquisition proposals, and to change its recommendation to its stockholders and to terminate the merger agreement should it receive a conflicting acquisition proposal that is inconsistent with the merger with Ocular;
 - The requirement that Cooper stockholders approve the merger, the lack of any voting agreement from any Cooper stockholder, and the possibility that Cooper stockholders would not ultimately approve the merger;
 - The restrictions that the merger agreement imposes on actively soliciting competing bids or communicating with or furnishing information to
 potential bidders, and the fact that Ocular would be obligated to pay a termination fee of \$35 million in certain circumstances, which could
 discourage potential bidders;
 - The limitations that the merger agreement imposes on Ocular's ability to operate its business until the transaction closes or the merger agreement is terminated; and
 - The terms of John Fruth's voting agreement that require him to vote to adopt and approve the merger agreement and approve the merger and to vote against any alternative transaction.
- The possibility of an unsolicited proposal for the acquisition of Cooper following announcement of the merger and the effect that such a successful acquisition proposal for Cooper which did not include Ocular might have on Ocular.
- The volatility of the trading price of Cooper common stock, including the fact that the exchange ratio for the share consideration to be received by Ocular stockholders is fixed and will not increase in the event of a decline in the trading price of Cooper common stock or an improvement in Ocular's business.
- The fact that, to the extent that Ocular stockholders are receiving cash for their shares of Ocular common stock, they will not participate in any potential future growth of Ocular or Cooper.
- The fact that the cash portion of the consideration to be paid in the merger will be taxable to Ocular stockholders.
- The risk of diverting management focus and resources from other strategic opportunities and from operational matters while working to negotiate and close the merger with Cooper.
- The possibility that Ocular could be substantially more profitable than expected or that a third party would be willing to pay a higher price for Ocular in the future.

- The risk of integrating the business of Ocular and Cooper and the potential management, customer, supplier, partner and employee disruption that may be associated with the merger.
- The fact that following the merger the combined company would be smaller than certain competitors.
- The risk that the potential benefits of the merger may not be realized.
- That there would be an expected reduction of work force affecting Ocular employees.
- The interests of some directors and officers of Ocular that are different from, or in addition to, the interests of Ocular stockholders generally. See "The Merger—Interests of Directors, Executive Officers and Stockholders of Ocular in the Merger" on page 69.
- Various other risks associated with the combined company in the merger, including those described in "Risk Factors" on page 19.

The Ocular board of directors concluded, however, that many of these risks or potentially negative factors could be managed or mitigated by Ocular or by the combined company or were unlikely to have a material impact on the offer, the merger or the combined company, and that, overall, the risks, uncertainties, restrictions and potentially negative factors associated with the merger were outweighed by the potential benefits of the merger.

The foregoing discussion of factors considered by the Ocular board of directors is not meant to be exhaustive but includes the material factors considered by the board in declaring that the merger is fair and in the best interests of Ocular's stockholders, approving the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, deeming the adoption of the merger agreement by Ocular's stockholders advisable and recommending that Ocular's stockholders adopt and approve the merger agreement and approve the merger contemplated thereby. In view of the wide variety of factors considered by the Ocular board of directors in connection with the evaluation of the merger and the complexity of these matters, the Ocular board of directors did not find it practicable to, and did not, quantify or otherwise assign relative weights to the specific factors considered in reaching its determination. Rather, the directors made their respective determination based on the totality of the information presented to them, and the judgments of individual members of the board of directors may have been influenced to a greater or lesser degree by different factors.

The Ocular board of directors unanimously recommends that Ocular stockholders vote "FOR" approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger.

Opinion of Financial Advisor—Cooper

Pursuant to an engagement letter dated June 21, 2004, Cooper retained JPMorgan as its financial advisor in connection with the proposed transaction and to render an opinion to the Cooper board of directors as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, to Cooper of the consideration to be paid in the proposed merger. JPMorgan was selected by Cooper's board of directors based on JPMorgan's qualifications, reputation and substantial experience in transactions similar to the merger, as well as JPMorgan's familiarity with Cooper. JPMorgan rendered its oral opinion to Cooper's board of directors on July 28, 2004 (as subsequently confirmed in writing on July 28, 2004) that, as of that date and based upon and subject to the considerations described in its opinion, the merger consideration to be paid in the proposed merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to Cooper.

The full text of the opinion delivered by JPMorgan to the Cooper board of directors dated July 28, 2004, which sets forth the assumptions made, general procedures followed, matters considered, and limitations on the scope of the review undertaken by JPMorgan in rendering its opinion, is attached as Annex C to this document and is incorporated herein by reference.

JPMorgan's opinion is directed to the Cooper board of directors and addresses only the fairness, from a financial point of view, to Cooper of the consideration to be paid by it in the proposed merger. JPMorgan's opinion does not address any other aspect of the merger and does not constitute an opinion as to the underlying decision by Cooper to engage in the merger. JPMorgan's opinion is not a recommendation as to how any Cooper stockholder should vote with respect to the transaction and should not be relied upon as such. Moreover, JPMorgan has expressed no opinion as to the price at which Cooper common stock or Ocular common stock will trade at any future time. The following summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of such opinion.

In arriving at its opinion, JPMorgan:

- reviewed the final form of the merger agreement;
- reviewed publicly available business and financial information concerning Cooper and Ocular and the industries in which they operate;
- compared the proposed financial terms of the merger with the publicly available financial terms of transactions involving companies JPMorgan deemed relevant and the consideration received for such companies;
- compared the financial and operating performance of Cooper and Ocular with publicly available information concerning other companies JPMorgan
 deemed relevant and reviewed the current and historical market prices of Cooper common stock and Ocular common stock and publicly traded
 securities of the other companies;
- reviewed internal financial analyses and forecasts prepared by the managements of Cooper and Ocular relating to their respective businesses, as well as the estimated amount and timing of the cost savings and related expenses and synergies to result from the merger, which are referred to in this section as the "synergies"; and
- performed such other financial studies and analyses and considered such other information as JPMorgan deemed appropriate for the purpose of the JPMorgan opinion.

JPMorgan also held discussions with members of the managements of Cooper and Ocular with respect to aspects of the merger, the past and current business operations of Cooper and Ocular, the financial condition and future prospects and operations of Cooper and Ocular, the effects of the merger on the financial condition and future prospects of Cooper and other matters JPMorgan believed necessary or appropriate to its inquiry.

In giving its opinion, JPMorgan relied upon and assumed, without independent verification, the accuracy and completeness of all information that was publicly available or was furnished to or discussed with JPMorgan by Cooper and Ocular or was otherwise reviewed by JPMorgan, and JPMorgan did not assume any responsibility or liability therefor. JPMorgan did not conduct any valuation or appraisal of any assets or liabilities, nor were any such valuations or appraisals provided to JPMorgan. In relying on financial analyses and forecasts provided to JPMorgan by Cooper and Ocular, including the synergies, JPMorgan assumed that they were reasonably prepared based on assumptions reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments by management as to the expected future results of operations and financial condition of Cooper and Ocular to which the analyses or forecasts relate. JPMorgan also assumed that the merger would qualify as a tax-free reorganization for United States federal income tax purposes, and that the merger would be consummated as described in the merger agreement. JPMorgan relied as to all legal matters relevant to rendering its opinion upon the advice of its counsel. JPMorgan further assumed that all material governmental, regulatory or other consents and approvals necessary for the consummation of the merger would be obtained without any adverse effect on Cooper or Ocular or on the contemplated benefits of the merger.

JPMorgan's opinion is necessarily based on economic, market and other conditions as in effect on, and the information made available to JPMorgan as of, July 28, 2004. Subsequent developments may affect the JPMorgan opinion, and JPMorgan does not have any obligation to update, revise, or reaffirm its opinion.

The following is a brief summary of the material financial analyses performed by JPMorgan in connection with providing its opinion to the Cooper board of directors on July 28, 2004, as subsequently confirmed in writing on July 28, 2004. Some of the summaries of the financial analyses include information presented in tabular format. To fully understand the financial analyses, the tables should be read together with the text of each summary. Considering the data set forth in the table without considering the narrative description of the financial analyses, including the methodologies and assumption underlying the analyses, could create a misleading or incomplete view of the financial analyses.

Historical Stock Price Analyses. JPMorgan reviewed the historical daily high and low trading prices of Ocular common stock for the 52 weeks ending July 27, 2004. The high and low trading prices of Ocular common stock for the 52 weeks ending July 27, 2004 were \$18.73 and \$38.60, respectively. The closing price of Ocular common stock as of July 27, 2004 was \$37.38, which was 96.8% of the 52-week high.

Selected Publicly Traded Companies Multiples Analysis. Using selected published Wall Street equity research estimates, Institutional Brokers Estimate System, or I/B/E/S, estimates, estimates from Cooper's management and SEC filings, JPMorgan compared financial information, ratios and public market multiples for Ocular and Cooper to corresponding measures for thirteen publicly traded companies. I/B/E/S is a database owned and operated by Thompson Financial, which contains estimated and actual earnings, cash flow and other data for U.S. and foreign companies. The companies reviewed in connection with this analysis were:

	Contact Lens and Vision Care	Other Corrective Lenses		Large-cap Healthcare with Contact Lens Businesses		Selected Medical Technology / Women's Health
•	Bausch & Lomb Incorporated	 Hoya Corporation Essilor International Sola International Inc. 	•	Johnson & Johnson Novartis AG Alcon, Inc.	• • •	Cytyc Corporation Inamed Corporation American Medical Systems Holdings, Inc. Digene Corporation

Although only Bausch & Lomb was considered to be directly comparable to Ocular and Cooper, the other companies included were chosen because they are publicly traded companies with operations that were considered similar to certain operations of Ocular and/or Cooper. The multiples and ratios of Ocular, Cooper and the selected companies were calculated using the closing prices for shares of their respective common stock on July 27, 2004

JPMorgan calculated:

 the equity market capitalization, using the treasury stock method, plus debt and less cash, or "firm value," of Cooper, Ocular and the selected companies as multiples of the estimated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or "EBITDA," for the calendar year ending December 31, 2005 for Cooper, Ocular and the selected companies for which such estimates were available; and

Hologic, Inc. Conceptus, Inc.

the price per share of common stock of Cooper, Ocular and the selected companies as multiples of the estimated earnings per share, or "EPS," for the calendar year ending December 31, 2005 for Cooper, Ocular and the selected companies for which such estimates were available.

The following table presents the results of this analysis:

	Firm Value / CY2005E EBITDA	Price per Share / CY2005E EPS
Ocular	8.6x	16.1x
Cooper	13.2	17.9
Contact Lens and Vision Care	8.2	19.0
Other Corrective Lenses		
Mean	8.6	18.2
Median	9.8	21.2
Large-cap Healthcare with Contact Lens Businesses		
Mean	14.4	21.9
Median	13.5	17.5
Selected Medical Technology / Women's Health		
Mean	14.8	24.8
Median	14.8	21.8

Based on this analysis, JPMorgan selected a range of multiples of estimated 2005 EBITDA of 8.0x to 10.0x for Ocular, which implied a range of equity value per share of Ocular common stock of \$43.75 to \$43.25, based on Cooper management's estimate of calendar year 2005 EBITDA for Ocular of \$109.9 million and fully diluted shares of Ocular common stock of 26.3 million, using the treasury stock method. Also based on this analysis, JPMorgan selected a range of multiples of estimated 2005 EPS of 18.0x to 21.0x for Ocular, which implied a range of equity value per share of Ocular common stock of \$42.00 to \$48.75, based on Cooper management's estimate of calendar year 2005 EPS of 18.0x to 21.0x for Ocular, which implied a range of equity value per share of Ocular common stock of \$42.00 to \$48.75, based on Cooper management's estimate of calendar year 2005 EPS for Ocular of \$2.33 and fully diluted shares of Ocular common stock of 26.3 million, using the treasury stock method. These ranges of implied equity value per share were compared to the closing price of Ocular common stock on July 27, 2004, of \$37.38 per share.

JPMorgan then compared the implied ranges of equity values per share of Ocular as determined using the multiples of estimated calendar year 2005 EBITDA described above and the average trading price of Cooper common stock for the 10-day period ending July 27, 2004, which implied a relative valuation of a share of Ocular common stock to a share of Cooper common stock of 0.613x to 0.763x. JPMorgan also compared the implied ranges of equity values per share of Ocular as determined using the multiples of estimated calendar year 2005 EPS described above and the average trading price of Cooper common stock for the 10-day period ending July 27, 2004, which implied a relative valuation of a share of Ocular common stock to a share of Cooper common stock of 0.736x to 0.859x. These implied ratios were compared to 0.7757x, which would have been the exchange ratio in the transaction assuming 100% of the merger consideration was Cooper common stock.

Selected Historical Transactions Multiples Analysis. JPMorgan examined the following selected transactions since January 2000:

Announcement Date	Target	Acquiror
Contact Lens		
March 2000	Wesley Jessen VisionCare, Inc.	Ciba Vision Corporation
March 2000	Wesley Jessen VisionCare, Inc.	Bausch & Lomb Incorporated
Other Vision Care		
April 2004	Pfizer Inc. (ophthalmic surgery division)	Advanced Medical Optics, Inc.
March 2004	Aearo Corporation	Bear Stearns
January 2004	Hörnell International	3M Company
December 2003	International Vision Direct Corp.	drugstore.com, inc.
March 2002	Seiko Epson Corp. (contact lens division)	Ocular
January 2002	Biocompatibles International plc (contact lens division)	Cooper
May 2001	Bacou SA	Christian Dalloz
December 2000	Essilor International (contact lens division)	Ocular
March 2000	Ocular	Wesley Jessen VisionCare, Inc.

Using SEC filings and other publicly available information, JPMorgan calculated the firm values of the target companies implied by the selected transactions as multiples of the latest twelve months EBITDA for the target companies in the selected transactions. JPMorgan noted that the latest twelve months EBITDA was not publicly available for the target companies in certain of the selected vision care transactions. The following table presents the summary results of this analysis:

	Firm Value / LTM EBITDA ————————————————————————————————————
Contact Lens Transactions	
Median	10.9x
Mean	10.9
Other Vision Care Transactions	
Median	7.3
Mean	7.4

Based on this analysis, JPMorgan selected a range of multiples of estimated latest twelve months EBITDA of 10.0x to 12.0x for Ocular, which implied a range of equity value per share of Ocular common stock of \$33.75 to \$40.25, based on Ocular latest twelve months EBITDA of \$84.9 million as of June 30, 2004 and fully diluted shares of Ocular common stock of 26.3 million, using the treasury stock method. This range of implied equity value per share was compared to the closing price of Ocular common stock on July 27, 2004, of \$37.38 per share.

None of the companies or the selected transactions used in the above analysis is identical to Ocular or the merger. Accordingly, an analysis of the results of the foregoing necessarily involves complex considerations and judgments concerning differences in financial and operating characteristics of the companies and the selected transactions and other factors that may have affected the selected transactions and/or affect the merger.

Discounted Cash Flow Analyses Without Synergies. JPMorgan used discounted cash flow analyses for Ocular to determine a range of equity values for Ocular assuming it continued to operate as a stand-alone entity, without giving effect to synergies from the merger estimated by Cooper's management. These analyses were based on the sum of (i) the present value of projected, after-tax, unlevered free cash flows of Ocular for calendar years 2004 through 2008, as estimated by Cooper's management, and (ii) the projected terminal value of Ocular at the end of calendar year 2008 based on a range of EBITDA multiples applied to projected EBITDA of Ocular

in 2008. JPMorgan utilized discount rates from 8.00% to 10.00% and terminal period EBITDA multiples from 8.0x to 9.0x.

Based on the foregoing calculations, JPMorgan derived a range of values as of July 27, 2004, of \$38.69 to \$45.65 per share of Ocular common stock based on fully diluted shares of 26.3 million, using the treasury stock method. This range of implied equity value per share was compared to the closing price of Ocular common stock on July 27, 2004, of \$37.38 per share

JPMorgan then compared the implied ranges of equity values per share of Ocular common stock as determined using the discounted cash flow analyses without synergies described above, and the average trading price of Cooper common stock for the 10-day period ending July 27, 2004, which implied a relative valuation of a share of Ocular common stock to a share of Cooper common stock of 0.683x to 0.807x. These implied ratios were compared to 0.7757x, which would have been the exchange ratio in the transaction assuming 100% of the merger consideration was Cooper common stock.

Discounted Cash Flow Analyses With Synergies. JPMorgan also used discounted cash flow analyses for Ocular to determine a range of equity values for Ocular that reflected the synergies from the merger estimated by Cooper's management. In performing its calculations, JPMorgan used the same methodology and assumptions as described in "Discounted Cash Flow Analyses Without Synergies" above, as well as Cooper management's estimates for revenue and cost synergies from the merger during fiscal years 2005 through 2008.

Based on the forgoing calculations, JPMorgan derived a range of values, as of July 27, 2004, of \$63.86 to \$75.34 per share of Ocular common stock based on Cooper management's estimates of synergies and fully diluted shares of 26.3 million, using the treasury stock method. This range of implied equity value per share was compared to the closing price of Ocular common stock on July 27, 2004, of \$37.38 per share

JPMorgan then compared the implied ranges of equity values per share of Ocular common stock as determined using the discounted cash flow analyses with synergies described above and the average trading price of Cooper common stock for the 10-day period ending July 27, 2004, which implied a relative valuation of a share of Ocular common stock to a share of Cooper common stock of 1.124x to 1.327x. These implied ratios were compared to 0.7757x, which would have been the exchange ratio in the transaction assuming 100% of the merger consideration was Cooper common stock.

Contribution Analysis. JPMorgan compared the pro forma equity ownership of the combined company's firm value and equity value that Ocular's stockholders would hold after the merger based upon the implied consideration to be paid by Cooper in the merger assuming 100% of the consideration were Cooper common stock to the expected relative contributions of Cooper and Ocular to the pro forma combined company in terms of fiscal year 2005 and 2006 revenue, EBITDA and net income, each as estimated by Cooper's management, and the combined company's firm value and equity value, each as based on the fully diluted market capitalization as of July 27, 2004, using the treasury stock method.

The results of this analysis are set forth below:

	Illustrative Pro Forma Ownership by Cooper Stockholders	Illustrative Pro Forma Ownership by Ocular Stockholders
Firm value @ \$44.00	65.1%	34.9%
Equity value @ \$44.00	62.6	37.4
	Contribution by Cooper	Contribution by Ocular
FY2005E Revenue	59.7%	40.3%
FY2006E Revenue	60.0	40.0
FY2005E EBITDA	60.8	39.2
FY2006E EBITDA	60.6	39.4
FY2005E Net income	75.9	24.1
FY2006E Net income	73.9	26.1
Firm value @ 7/27/04	69.1	30.9
Equity value @ 7/27/04	66.6	33.4

The foregoing summary of certain material financial analyses does not purport to be a complete description of the analyses or data presented by JPMorgan. The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex process and is not necessarily susceptible to partial analysis or summary description. JPMorgan believes that the foregoing summary and its analyses must be considered as a whole and that selecting portions of the foregoing summary and these analyses, without considering all of its analyses as a whole, could create an incomplete view of the processes underlying the analyses and its opinion. No single factor or analysis was determinative of JPMorgan's fairness determination. Rather, JPMorgan considered the totality of the factors and analyses performed in determining its opinion. JPMorgan based its analyses on assumptions that it deemed reasonable, including those concerning general business and economic conditions and industry-specific factors. The other principal assumptions upon which JPMorgan based its analysis have been described under the description of each analysis in the foregoing summary. Analyses based upon forecasts of future results are inherently uncertain, as they are subject to numerous factors or events beyond the control of the parties and their advisors. Accordingly, forecasts and analyses used or made by JPMorgan are not necessarily indicative of actual future results, which may be significantly more or less favorable than suggested by those analyses. Moreover, JPMorgan analyses are not and do not purport to be appraisals or otherwise reflective of the prices at which businesses actually could be bought or sold.

Pursuant to an engagement letter dated June 21, 2004 between Cooper and JPMorgan, JPMorgan has acted as financial advisor to Cooper with respect to the proposed merger and will receive a fee of \$4 million from Cooper for its services, a portion of which fee was paid at the time JPMorgan's opinion was delivered to Cooper and the remainder of which fee will become payable upon completion of the merger. In conjunction with the merger, JPMorgan is also acting as a co-lead arranger with respect to debt to be incurred by Cooper to finance the cash consideration, for which JPMorgan will receive a fee. In the ordinary course of JPMorgan's businesses, JPMorgan and its affiliates may actively trade the debt and equity securities of Cooper or Ocular for JPMorgan's own account or for the accounts of customers and, accordingly, JPMorgan may at any time hold long or short positions in such securities.

Opinion of Financial Advisor—Ocular

Ocular retained Morgan Stanley to provide it with certain financial advisory services in connection with the merger. Morgan Stanley was selected by Ocular based on Morgan Stanley's qualifications, expertise, reputation and its knowledge of the business and affairs of Ocular. At the special meeting of the Ocular board of directors on July 28, 2004, Morgan Stanley rendered its oral opinion, subsequently confirmed in writing, that as of July 28, 2004, and based upon and subject to the assumptions and considerations set forth in its opinion, the merger

consideration to be received by holders of shares of Ocular common stock pursuant to the merger agreement was fair from a financial point of view to such holders.

THE FULL TEXT OF MORGAN STANLEY'S OPINION, DATED AS OF JULY 28, 2004, IS ATTACHED AS ANNEX D HERETO. THE OPINION SETS FORTH, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE ASSUMPTIONS MADE, PROCEDURES FOLLOWED, MATTERS CONSIDERED AND LIMITATIONS ON THE SCOPE OF THE REVIEW UNDERTAKEN BY MORGAN STANLEY IN RENDERING ITS OPINION. WE URGE YOU TO READ THE ENTIRE OPINION CAREFULLY. MORGAN STANLEY'S OPINION IS DIRECTED TO OCULAR'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ADDRESSES ONLY THE FAIRNESS FROM A FINANCIAL POINT OF VIEW OF THE MERGER CONSIDERATION TO BE RECEIVED BY HOLDERS OF SHARES OF OCULAR PURSUANT TO THE MERGER AGREEMENT AS OF THE DATE OF THE OPINION. THE OPINION DOES NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER ASPECTS OF THE TRANSACTION AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A RECOMMENDATION TO ANY HOLDER OF OCULAR COMMON STOCK AS TO HOW THE STOCKHOLDERS OF OCULAR SHOULD VOTE AT THE STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING TO BE HELD IN CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTION. THE SUMMARY OF THE OPINION OF MORGAN STANLEY SET FORTH IN THIS DOCUMENT IS QUALIFIED IN ITS ENTIRETY BY REFERENCE TO THE FULL TEXT OF THE OPINION.

In connection with rendering its opinion, Morgan Stanley, among other things:

- reviewed certain publicly available financial statements and other business and financial information of Cooper and Ocular, respectively;
- reviewed certain internal financial statements and other financial and operating data concerning Cooper and Ocular, prepared by the managements of Cooper and Ocular, respectively;
- discussed the past and current operations and financial condition and the prospects of Cooper and Ocular with senior executives of Cooper and Ocular, respectively;
- discussed certain strategic, financial and operational benefits anticipated from the merger with the managements of Ocular and Cooper;
- reviewed the pro forma impact of the merger on the combined company's financial performance, including earnings per share;
- reviewed the financial terms of the proposed credit facility commitments to be entered into in connection with the merger and their impact on the combined company's cash flows;
- reviewed the reported prices and trading activity for Cooper common stock and Ocular common stock;
- compared the financial performance of Cooper and Ocular and the prices and trading activity of Cooper common stock and Ocular common stock with that of certain other comparable publicly-traded companies and their securities;
- discussed the strategic rationale for the merger with the managements of Cooper and Ocular and certain alternatives to the merger with the management of Ocular;
- reviewed the financial terms, to the extent publicly available, of certain comparable acquisition transactions;
- participated in discussions and negotiations among representatives of Cooper and Ocular and their financial and legal advisors;
- reviewed the merger agreement and certain related documents; and
- performed such other analyses and considered other such factors as Morgan Stanley deemed appropriate.

In arriving at its opinion, Morgan Stanley assumed and relied without independent verification upon the accuracy and completeness of the information reviewed by it for the purposes of its opinion. With respect to the internal financial statements, including certain estimates relating to the strategic, financial and operational benefits anticipated from the merger and assessments regarding the prospects of Cooper and Ocular, Morgan Stanley assumed that they were reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of the future financial performance of Cooper and Ocular, respectively. In addition, Morgan Stanley assumed that the merger would be consummated in accordance with the terms set forth in the merger agreement, including, among other things, that the merger would be treated as a tax-free reorganization pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Morgan Stanley also assumed that in connection with the receipt of all the necessary regulatory approvals for the proposed merger, no restrictions would be imposed or delays would result that would have a material adverse affect on the contemplated benefits expected to be derived in the proposed merger.

Morgan Stanley relied upon, without independent verification, the assessment by the managements of Cooper and Ocular of: (i) the strategic, financial and other benefits expected to result from the merger; (ii) the timing and risks associated with the integration of Cooper and Ocular; (iii) their ability to retain key employees of Cooper and Ocular, respectively and (iv) the validity of, and risks associated with, Cooper's and Ocular's existing and future intellectual property, products, services and business models. Morgan Stanley did not make any independent valuation or appraisal of the assets or liabilities of Cooper and Ocular, nor was it furnished with any such appraisals. Morgan Stanley's opinion was necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions as in effect on, and the information made available to it as of, the date of its opinion. In arriving at its opinion, Morgan Stanley did not solicit interest with respect to the acquisition of, or business combination or any other extraordinary transaction involving, Ocular.

The following is a brief summary of the material financial analyses performed by Morgan Stanley in connection with its oral opinion and the preparation of its written opinion. Some of these summaries of financial analyses include information presented in tabular format. In order to fully understand the financial analyses used by Morgan Stanley, the tables must be read together with the text of each summary. The tables alone do not constitute a complete description of the financial analyses.

Ocular

Trading Range. Morgan Stanley reviewed ranges of closing prices of Ocular common stock for various periods ending on July 27, 2004. Morgan Stanley observed the following:

Period Ending July 27, 2004	Range of Closing Prices
30 Trading Days Prior	\$34.99 – \$38.36
90 Trading Days Prior	\$27.14 - \$38.36
Last Twelve Months	\$19.90 - \$38.36

Morgan Stanley used an implied transaction value per share of Ocular common stock of \$44.07 based on Cooper's common stock price of \$56.90 per share as of the close of market on July 27, 2004, and the merger consideration pursuant to the merger agreement of 0.3879 of a share of Cooper common stock plus \$22.00 in cash per share of Ocular common stock.

Morgan Stanley noted that the implied transaction value reflected an 18% premium to Ocular's closing price as of July 27, 2004, a 19% premium to the average price per share of Ocular common stock 30 trading days prior to July 27, 2004, and a 26% premium to the average price per share of Ocular common stock for the 60 trading days prior to July 27, 2004.

Comparable Company Trading Analysis. Morgan Stanley compared certain financial information of Ocular with publicly available information for the following selected companies with businesses that share certain characteristics with the businesses of Ocular:

- Advanced Medical Optics, Inc.
- Bausch & Lomb Incorporated
- Cooper
- VISX, Incorporated

In conducting its analysis, Morgan Stanley applied the relevant financial multiples of the comparable companies to publicly-available estimates by an equity research analyst (which were generally consistent with First Call consensus estimates) and to adjusted research analyst estimates (adjusted based on discussions with Ocular management) of various financial statistics for Ocular, including earnings per share and long-term earnings growth rate estimates. Morgan Stanley then estimated the implied value per share of Ocular as of July 27, 2004, by applying the range of multiples to both the publicly-available equity research analyst estimates adjusted based on discussions with Ocular management. Morgan Stanley estimated the following:

Calendar Year Financial Statistic	Ocular Financial Statistic	Comparable Company Multiple Range	Implied Value Per Share for Ocular
Based on Equity Research Analyst Estimates			
Price to Estimated 2004 Earnings Per Share	\$1.75	20.0x – 23.0x	\$34.93 - \$40.17
Price to Estimated 2005 Earnings Per Share	\$2.08	15.0x - 19.0x	\$31.23 - \$39.56
Price to Estimated 2005 Earnings Per Share to Estimated Long-term Earnings			
Growth	\$2.08 / 15%	0.90x - 1.20x	\$28.11 - \$37.48
Based on Adjusted Research Estimates			
Price to Estimated 2004 Earnings Per Share	\$1.82	20.0x – 23.0x	\$36.40 - \$41.86
Price to Estimated 2005 Earnings Per Share	\$2.35	15.0x - 19.0x	\$35.21 - \$44.60
Price to Estimated 2005 Earnings Per Share to Estimated Long-term Earnings			
Growth	\$2.35 / 15%	0.90x - 1.20x	\$31.69 - \$42.25

Morgan Stanley noted that the implied transaction value per share of Ocular common stock was \$44.07.

No company utilized in the comparable company analysis is identical to Ocular. In evaluating the comparable companies, Morgan Stanley made judgments and assumptions with regard to industry performance, general business, economic, market and financial conditions and other matters, many of which are beyond the control of Ocular, such as the impact of competition on the businesses of Ocular and the industry in general, industry growth and the absence of any material adverse change in the financial condition and prospects of Ocular or the industry or in the financial markets in general.

Discounted Equity Value. Morgan Stanley performed an analysis of the implied present values per share of Ocular common stock on a stand-alone basis based on Ocular's projected future equity value using publicly-available estimates of an equity research analyst and adjusted research estimates (adjusted based on discussions with Ocular management). To calculate the Discounted Equity Value, Morgan Stanley used the calendar year 2006 earning per share estimates from publicly available equity research and the 2006 adjusted research earnings per share estimate (adjusted based on discussions with Ocular management). Morgan Stanley also used an illustrative discount rate of 10% which reflected Ocular's average cost of capital. Morgan Stanley observed the following:

Calendar Year Financial Statistic		cular al Statistic	Next Calendar Year Multiple Range	Implied Value Per Share for Ocular
Based on Equity Research Analyst Estimates	¢	2.42	15.0 10.0	¢22.00 ¢.44.07
2006 Estimated Earnings Per Share Based on Adjusted Research Estimates	\$	2.42	15.0x – 19.0x	\$33.06 – \$41.87
2006 Estimated Earnings Per Share	\$	2.80	15.0x - 19.0x	\$38.28 - \$48.48

Morgan Stanley noted that the implied transaction value per share of Ocular common stock was \$44.07.

Discounted Cash Flow Analysis. Morgan Stanley calculated a range of equity values per share for Ocular based on a discounted cash flow analysis using two scenarios. For the two scenarios, Morgan Stanley relied on publicly available equity research estimates for calendar years 2004 through 2009 and the adjusted research estimates (adjusted based on discussions with Ocular management) for calendar years 2004 through 2009. In arriving at the estimated equity values per share of Ocular common stock, Morgan Stanley calculated a terminal value as of December 31, 2009, by applying a range of perpetual growth rates ranging from 2% to 4%. The unlevered free cash flows from calendar year 2004 through 2009 and the terminal value were then discounted to present values using a range of discount rates of 9% to 11%.

The following table summarizes Morgan Stanley's analysis:

Financial Statistic	Implied Equity Value of Ocular (\$MM)	Implied Equity Value Per Share of Ocular
Based on Equity Research Analyst Estimates (2%–4% perpetual growth rate, 9.0%–11.0% discount rate)	\$763 – \$1,285	\$29.60 – \$47.96
Based on Adjusted Research Estimates (2%–4% perpetual growth rate, 9.8%–11.0% discount rate)	\$907 – \$1,341	\$34.68 – \$49.92

Analysis of Selected Precedent Transactions. Morgan Stanley compared publicly available information for selected transactions to the relevant financial statistics for Ocular based on publicly available equity research estimates. The group of transactions consisted of ten selected healthcare sector transactions in which the target company was publicly traded, the consideration was a mix of stock and cash and the transaction value was greater than \$500 million, as well as selected ophthalmic sector transactions in which the target was publicly traded. Morgan Stanley compared publicly available information for the selected transactions to the relevant financial statistics for Ocular. The following is a list of these transactions:

Selected Precedent Healthcare Transactions (Target/Acquirer)

Atrix Laboratories Inc./QLT Inc. Centerpulse AG/Zimmer Holdings Inc. Dynacare Inc./Laboratory Corp of America Immunex Corp./Amgen Ocular/Wesley Jessen SICOR Inc./Teva Pharmaceuticals Industries Ltd. Summit Autonomous/Alcon Holdings (Nestle) Unilab Corp/Quest Diagnostics Inc. Wesley Jessen/Bausch & Lomb Wesley Jessen/Novartis

For each precedent transaction, Morgan Stanley analyzed, as of the announcement date of each transaction, the multiple implied by the transaction value of the (i) aggregate value to the acquired company's last twelve months revenue, (ii) aggregate value to the acquired company's next twelve months estimated revenue, (iii) price to the acquired company's last twelve months earnings per share, and (iv) price to the acquired company's next twelve months estimated earnings per share, and in each case, applied such multiples to the relevant Ocular metric. Morgan Stanley observed the following:

Precedent Transaction Financial Statistic	Precedent Transaction Statistic Range	Implied Value Per Share of Ocular
Aggregate Value to Last Twelve Months Revenue	2.5x - 4.5x	\$32.22 - \$49.13
Aggregate Value to Next Twelve Months Revenue	2.0x - 4.0x	\$29.48 - \$48.56
Price to Last Twelve Months Earnings Per Share	20.0x - 35.0x	\$32.15 - \$48.23
Price to Next Twelve Months Earnings Per Share	15.0x - 30.0x	\$28.91 - \$48.19

For each of these precedent transactions, Morgan Stanley also analyzed the premiums to the one-day and the 30-day average historical unaffected price, prior to the announcement of each precedent transaction. Morgan Stanley observed the following:

Precedent Transaction Financial Statistic	Precedent Transaction Statistic Range	Implied Value Per Share of Ocular
Premium to the one-day price	10% - 25%	\$41.12 - \$46.73
Premium to the 30-day average price	10% – 35%	\$40.73 - \$49.99

Morgan Stanley noted that the implied transaction value per share of Ocular common stock was \$44.07.

No company or transaction utilized in the analysis of selected precedent transactions is identical to Ocular or Cooper or the transaction. In evaluating the precedent transactions, Morgan Stanley made judgments and assumptions with regard to industry performance, general business, market and financial conditions and other matters, which are beyond the control of Ocular and Cooper, such as the impact of competition on the business of Ocular, Cooper, or the industry generally, industry growth and the absence of any adverse material change in the financial condition and prospects of Ocular, Cooper or the industry or in the financial markets in general, which

could affect the public trading value of the companies and the aggregate value of the transactions to which they are being compared.

The Cooper Companies

Trading Range. Morgan Stanley reviewed the range of closing prices of Cooper common stock for various periods ending July 27, 2004. Morgan Stanley observed the following:

Period Ending July 27, 2004	Range of Closing Prices
30 Trading Days Prior	\$55.07 - \$63.17
90 Trading Days Prior	\$50.25 - \$63.17
Last Twelve Months	\$32.89 - \$63.17

Comparable Company Trading Analysis. Morgan Stanley compared certain publicly available financial information of Cooper with publicly available information for selected companies with businesses that share certain characteristics with the businesses of Cooper. The following table lists these companies:

- Advanced Medical Optics, Inc.
- Bausch & Lomb Incorporated
- Ocular
- VISX, Incorporated

In conducting its analysis, Morgan Stanley applied the relevant financial multiples of the comparable companies to publicly available estimates by an equity research analyst of various financial statistics for Cooper, which were generally consistent with First Call consensus estimates. Morgan Stanley then estimated the implied value per share of Cooper as of July 27, 2004, by applying the range of multiples to the publicly available equity research analyst estimates. Morgan Stanley estimated the following:

Calendar Year Financial Statistic	Cooper Financial Statistic	Comparable Company Multiple Range	Implied Value Per Share for Cooper
Based on Equity Research Analyst Estimates			
Price to Estimated 2004 Earnings Per Share	\$2.64	20.0x - 25.0x	52.85 - 66.07
Price to Estimated 2005 Earnings Per Share	\$3.11	15.0x - 20.0x	\$46.68 - \$62.24
Price to Estimated 2005 Earnings Per Share to Estimated Long-term Earnings			
Growth	\$3.11 / 20%	0.90x - 1.20x	\$55.18 - \$73.57

Morgan Stanley noted the price per share of Cooper common stock on July 27, 2004, was \$56.90.

No company utilized in the comparable company analysis is identical to Cooper. In evaluating the comparable companies, Morgan Stanley made judgments and assumptions with regard to industry performance, general business, economic, market and financial conditions and other matters, many of which are beyond the control of Cooper, such as the impact of competition on the businesses of Cooper and the industry in general, industry growth and the absence of any material adverse change in the financial condition and prospects of Cooper or the industry or in the financial markets in general.

Discounted Equity Value. Morgan Stanley performed an analysis of the implied present value per share of Cooper common stock on a stand-alone basis based on Cooper's projected future equity value using the fiscal year 2006 estimates provided by Cooper management and extrapolating earnings to calendar year 2006 based on growth estimates provided by Cooper management. To calculate the Discounted Equity Value, Morgan Stanley used Cooper management's calendar year 2006 earnings per share estimate. Morgan Stanley also used an illustrative discount rate of 10% which reflected the Cooper average cost of capital. Morgan Stanley observed the following:

Calendar Year Financial Statistic	Cooper	Next Calendar Year	Implied Value Per
	Management Estimate	Multiple Range	Share for Cooper
2006 Estimated Earnings Per Share	\$3.58	17.5x - 20.0x	\$57.08 - \$65.24

Morgan Stanley observed the price per share of Cooper common stock on July 27, 2004, was \$56.90.

Discounted Cash Flow Analysis. Morgan Stanley calculated a range of equity values per share for Cooper based on a discounted cash flow analysis using financial projections provided by publicly available equity research estimates for calendar years 2004 through 2005 and an extrapolation of these estimates for calendar years 2006 through 2009 based on growth estimates provided by Cooper management. In arriving at the estimated equity values per share of Ocular common stock, Morgan Stanley calculated a terminal value as of December 31, 2009, by applying a range of perpetual growth rates ranging from 2% to 4%. The unlevered free cash flows from calendar year 2004 through 2009 and the terminal value were then discounted to present values using a range of discount rates of 9% to 11%. Morgan Stanley assumed Coopers' net debt balance, excluding Cooper's convertible notes, to be approximately \$43.4 million as of April 30, 2004.

The following table summarizes Morgan Stanley's analysis:

Financial Statistic	Implied Equity Value of Cooper (\$MM)	Implied Equity Value Per Share of Cooper
Based on Equity Research Analyst and Cooper Management Estimates (2%–4% perpetual growth rate, 9%–11% discount rate)	\$1,499 – \$2,611	\$41.14 - \$69.82

Accretion/Dilution Analysis. Morgan Stanley analyzed the pro forma impact of the transaction on Coopers' combined projected earnings per share for the calendar year ending December 31, 2005. In performing this analysis, Morgan Stanley utilized publicly available equity research analyst estimates for earnings per share for Cooper and Ocular.

Morgan Stanley's analysis indicated that, exclusive of the impact of potential synergies, the transaction would result in earnings per share accretion of 4% for the calendar year ending December 31, 2005. Morgan Stanley also analyzed the impact of a range of pre-tax synergies based on discussions with Ocular and Cooper management on Cooper's combined projected earnings per share for the calendar year ending December 31, 2005. Morgan Stanley's analysis indicated that, inclusive of the impact of the range of potential annual pre-tax synergies of \$18 million to \$31 million that the transaction would result in earnings per share accretion of 14% to 21%, respectively, for the calendar year ending December 31, 2005.

In connection with the review of the transaction by Ocular's board of directors, Morgan Stanley performed a variety of financial and comparative analyses for purposes of rendering its opinion. The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex process and is not necessarily susceptible to a partial analysis or summary description. In arriving at its opinion, Morgan Stanley considered the results of all of its analyses as a whole and did not attribute any particular weight to any analysis or factor it considered. Morgan Stanley believes that selecting any portion of its analyses, without considering all analyses as a whole, would create an incomplete view of the process underlying its analyses and opinion. In addition, Morgan Stanley may have given various analyses and factors more or less weight than other analyses and factors, and may have deemed various assumptions more or less probable than other assumptions. As a result, the ranges of valuations resulting from any particular analysis

described above should not be taken to be Morgan Stanley's view of the actual value of Ocular or Cooper. In performing its analyses, Morgan Stanley made numerous assumptions with respect to industry performance, general business and economic conditions and other matters. Many of these assumptions are beyond the control of Ocular or Cooper. Any estimates contained in Morgan Stanley's analyses are not necessarily indicative of future results or actual values, which may be significantly more or less favorable than those suggested by such estimates.

Morgan Stanley conducted the analyses described above solely as part of its analysis of the fairness of the merger consideration pursuant to the merger agreement from a financial point of view to holders of Ocular common stock and in connection with the delivery of its opinion dated July 28, 2004, to Ocular's board of directors. These analyses do not purport to be appraisals or to reflect the prices at which shares of common stock of Ocular or Cooper might actually trade.

The merger consideration to be received by holders of Ocular common stock pursuant to the merger agreement was determined through arm's length negotiations between Ocular and Cooper and was approved by Ocular's board of directors. Morgan Stanley provided advice to Ocular during these negotiations. Morgan Stanley did not, however, recommend any specific merger consideration to Ocular or its board of directors or that any specific merger consideration constituted the only appropriate consideration.

In addition, Morgan Stanley's opinion and its presentation to Ocular's board of directors was one of many factors taken into consideration by Ocular's board of directors in deciding to approve the merger. Consequently, the analyses as described above should not be viewed as determinative of the opinion of Ocular's board of directors with respect to the merger consideration or of whether Ocular's board of directors would have been willing to agree to different merger consideration.

Ocular's board of directors retained Morgan Stanley based upon Morgan Stanley's qualifications, experience and expertise. Morgan Stanley is an internationally recognized investment banking and advisory firm. Morgan Stanley, as part of its investment banking and financial advisory business, is continuously engaged in the valuation of businesses and securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions, negotiated underwritings, competitive biddings, secondary distributions of listed and unlisted securities, private placements and valuations for corporate, estate and other purposes. In the past, Morgan Stanley and its affiliates have provided financial advisory and financing services for Ocular and received fees for such services. In the ordinary course of Morgan Stanley's trading and brokerage activities, Morgan Stanley or its affiliates may at any time hold long or short positions, may trade or otherwise effect transactions, for its own account or for the account of customers in the senior loans, equity and other securities of Ocular, Cooper or any other parties involved in the transaction.

Pursuant to an engagement letter, Ocular formally engaged Morgan Stanley to provide financial advisory services and to render Morgan Stanley's opinion as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the consideration to be received by the holders of Ocular shares to Ocular in connection with this transaction. Pursuant to the terms of the engagement letter, if the transaction is completed, Morgan Stanley will receive a fee of approximately \$9 million, a portion of which was paid to Morgan Stanley upon delivery of its opinion to Ocular. Ocular has agreed to reimburse Morgan Stanley for other expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred in connection with its engagement and to indemnify Morgan Stanley and its affiliates, their respective directors, officers, agents and employees and each person, if any, controlling Morgan Stanley or any of its affiliates against certain liabilities and expenses, including any liabilities under the federal securities laws relating to or arising out of its engagement and any related transactions.

Regulatory Approvals Required for the Merger

The merger is subject to review by the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice and the U.S. Federal Trade Commission under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended. Under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, Cooper and Ocular are required

to make pre-merger notification filings and to await the expiration or early termination of the statutory waiting period prior to completing the merger. On August 6, 2004, Cooper and Ocular each filed a Premerger Notification and Report Form with the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice and the U.S. Federal Trade Commission. The merger may be subject to review by the governmental authorities of various other jurisdictions. Cooper and Ocular have not yet obtained any of the governmental or regulatory approvals required to complete the merger.

There can be no assurance that the governmental reviewing authorities will terminate the applicable statutory waiting periods or clear the merger at all or without restrictions or conditions that would have a materially adverse effect on the combined company if the merger is completed. These restrictions and conditions could include the grant of a complete or partial license, divestiture, spin-off or the holding separate of assets or businesses. Under the terms of the merger agreement, Cooper is not required to commit to any divestitures or similar arrangements with respect to its assets or conduct of business arrangements. Either Cooper or Ocular may refuse to complete the merger if any such restrictions or conditions are required by governmental authorities as a condition to approving the merger. No additional stockholder approval is expected to be required or sought for any decision by Cooper or Ocular, after the special meetings, to agree to any terms and conditions necessary to resolve any regulatory objections to the merger, and stockholder approval will not be sought unless additional stockholder approve the terms and conditions under applicable law.

In addition, during or after the statutory waiting periods and clearance of the merger, and even after completion of the merger, either the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice, the U.S. Federal Trade Commission could challenge, seek to block or block the merger under the antitrust laws, as it deems necessary or desirable in the public interest. Other competition agencies with jurisdiction over the merger could also initiate action to challenge or block the merger. In addition, in some jurisdictions, a competitor, customer or other third party could initiate a private action under the antitrust laws challenging or seeking to enjoin the merger, before or after it is completed. Cooper and Ocular cannot be sure that a challenge to the merger will not be made or that, if a challenge is made, Cooper and Ocular will prevail.

Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following discussion summarizes the material United States federal income tax consequences to Cooper, Ocular, Cooper stockholders and to United States holders of Ocular common stock who hold their Ocular common stock as a capital asset. It does not address all of the United States federal income tax consequences that may be relevant to particular stockholders in light of their individual circumstances or to stockholders who are subject to special rules, including, without limitation:

- banks and other financial institutions;
- tax-exempt organizations;
- insurance companies;
- dealers in securities or foreign currencies;
- mutual funds, regulated investment companies or real estate investment trusts;
- traders in securities that elect to use a mark-to-market method of accounting;
- holders that are not United States holders (as defined below);
- holders who hold such shares in a functional currency other than the United States dollar;
- investors in pass-through entities;



- persons who hold such shares as a hedge, straddle or other risk reduction, constructive sale or conversion transaction; or
- holders who acquired their shares upon the exercise of employee stock options or otherwise as compensation.

No ruling has been or will be sought from the Internal Revenue Service as to the United States federal income tax consequences of the merger, and the following summary is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service or the courts. It is based upon the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, referred to as the "Code," and the laws, regulations, rulings and decisions in effect as of the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, all of which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. This summary does not address tax consequences under state, local and foreign laws.

For purposes of this discussion, the term "United States holder" means:

- a citizen or resident of the United States;
- a corporation or other entity created or organized under the laws of the United States or any of its political subdivisions;
- a trust that (x) is subject to the supervision of a court within the United States and the control of one or more United States persons or (y) has a valid election in effect under applicable United States Treasury regulations to be treated as a United States person; or
- an estate that is subject to United States federal income tax on its income regardless of its source.

If a partnership holds shares of Ocular common stock, the tax treatment of a partner generally will depend on the status of the partner and on the activities of the partnership. Partners of partnerships holding Ocular common stock should consult their tax advisors.

Tax matters are very complicated, and the tax consequences of the merger to an Ocular stockholder will depend on such holder's particular tax situation. Ocular stockholders are encouraged to consult their tax advisors regarding the specific tax consequences of the merger, including tax return reporting requirements, the applicability of federal, state, local and foreign tax laws and the effect of any proposed change in the tax laws.

Structure of Merger

Cooper and Ocular expect that the merger will qualify as a reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Code. However, if either Cooper or Ocular, after consulting with its outside tax counsel, reasonably determines at any time that there is a reasonable likelihood that the merger would not qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, such party will have the right to revise the merger structure. In general this could occur if, as a result of a decline in the trading price of Cooper stock, or the exercise of appraisal rights by a greater than expected number of stockholders, the relative amount of cash (as a percentage of the total value of cash and Cooper stock, measured on the effective date of the merger) to be paid to Cooper stockholders became too great. If the merger structure is revised, it is intended that the restructured merger qualify as a transaction described in Section 351 of the Code, and assuming this was the case, the material tax consequences of the merger generally would be the same as those described below. See "*The Merger Agreement—Alternative Structure*" on page 76 for more details on the revised merger structure.

The following discussion assumes that the structure of the merger will not be revised.

Tax Treatment of Cooper, Cooper Stockholders and Ocular

The consummation of the merger is conditioned on (i) the receipt by Cooper of an opinion from Latham & Watkins, counsel to Cooper, dated the date of completion of the merger, to the effect that the merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and (ii) the receipt by Ocular of an opinion from Fenwick & West, counsel to Ocular, dated the date of completion of the merger, to the effect that the merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code and (ii) the receipt by Ocular of an opinion from Fenwick & West, counsel to Ocular, dated the date of completion of the merger, to the effect that the merger will be treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. The opinions will be based on representations contained in representation letters provided by Cooper, TCC Acquisition and Ocular, all of which must continue to be true and accurate in all respects as of completion of the merger, and on certain customary factual assumptions. The opinions will not be binding on the Internal Revenue Service or the courts.

Assuming that the merger is treated as a reorganization within the meaning Section 368(a) of the Code, no gain or loss will be recognized for federal income tax purposes by Cooper, Cooper stockholders or Ocular.

Exchange of Ocular Common Stock for a Combination of Cooper Common Stock and Cash

Assuming that the merger is treated as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code:

- An Ocular stockholder will recognize gain (if any) equal to the lesser of (A) the cash received by the stockholder in the merger or (B) an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (i) the sum of the amount of cash and the fair market value of the Cooper common stock received by the stockholder in the merger over (ii) the stockholder's adjusted tax basis in the Ocular common stock exchanged by the stockholder in the merger. For this purpose, an Ocular stockholder must calculate gain or loss separately for each identifiable block of Ocular common stock exchanged by the stockholder in the merger and cannot utilize a loss realized on one block of Ocular common stock to offset a gain realized on another block of Ocular common stock;
- An Ocular stockholder will not recognize any loss in the merger (except, possibly, in connection with cash received instead of a fractional share, as discussed below);
- The aggregate tax basis of the shares of Cooper common stock received by an Ocular stockholder (before reduction for the basis in any fractional share of Cooper common stock for which cash is received) in exchange for Ocular common stock pursuant to the merger will be the same as the aggregate tax basis of the stockholder's Ocular common stock, decreased by the amount of cash received by the stockholder in the merger (excluding any cash received instead of a fractional share) and increased by the amount of gain recognized by the stockholder in the merger (including any portion of the gain that is treated as a dividend but excluding any gain recognized as a result of cash received instead of a fractional share); and
- An Ocular stockholder's holding period with respect to the shares of Cooper common stock received in the merger will include the holding period of the Ocular common stock exchanged for the Cooper common stock.

Tax Character of Cash Consideration

In the case of most Ocular stockholders having no direct or indirect control over Cooper's corporate affairs, any gain will be treated as capital gain for United States federal income tax purposes. Such gain will be long-term capital gain if an Ocular stockholder's holding period in the Ocular common stock is more than one year. However, there are circumstances under which all or a part of any gain that an Ocular stockholder recognizes in the merger could be treated as a distribution of a dividend instead of capital gain to the extent of the stockholder's ratable share of undistributed accumulated earnings and profits of the corporation. Due to the

inherently factual nature of this determination, Ocular stockholders are encouraged to consult their tax advisors to determine whether any cash received in exchange for their Ocular stock in the merger will be treated as a distribution of a dividend.

Cash Received Instead of a Fractional Share

An Ocular stockholder who receives cash instead of a fractional share of Cooper common stock will generally recognize capital gain or loss based on the difference between the amount of the cash received instead of a fractional share and the stockholder's tax basis in such fractional share.

Tax Consequences of Appraisal Rights

An Ocular stockholder who dissents to the merger will generally recognize capital gain or loss in a net aggregate amount equal to the difference between the amount of cash received and the stockholder's tax basis in the dissenting shares. Although there is no authority directly on point, it is possible that a stockholder will be required to recognize gain or loss upon completion of the merger, and in advance of the receipt of any cash payment, in an amount generally equal to the trading price of Ocular common stock upon completion of the merger. In this event, capital gain or loss would also be recognized by the stockholder at the time the appraised fair cash value is received, to the extent that such payment exceeds or is less than the amount realized upon completion of the merger, and a portion of such payment may be characterized as interest income.

Backup Withholding

Noncorporate holders of Ocular common stock may be subject to backup withholding on any cash payments received in the merger. An Ocular stockholder will not be subject to backup withholding, however, if the holder (a) furnishes a correct taxpayer identification number and certifies that such holder is not subject to backup withholding on the substitute Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 or successor form included in the letter of transmittal to be delivered to such holder following completion of the merger; (b) provides a certification of foreign status on Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or a successor form; or (c) is otherwise exempt from backup withholding. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules will be allowed as a refund or credit against a holder's United States federal income tax liability, provided the holder furnishes the required information to the Internal Revenue Service.

Accounting Treatment

In accordance with GAAP, Cooper will account for the merger using the purchase method of accounting. Under this method of accounting, Cooper will record the cash consideration, the market value (based on an average of the closing prices of Cooper common stock for a range of trading days from two days before and through two days after July 28, 2004, the announcement date) of its common stock issued in the merger and the amount of direct transaction costs associated with the merger as the estimated purchase price of acquiring Ocular. Cooper will allocate the estimated purchase price to the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired (primarily patents, licenses and contracts), based on their respective fair values at the date of completion of the merger. Any excess of the estimated purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired will be accounted for as goodwill.

Identifiable intangible assets, currently estimated at \$30 million, will generally be amortized over useful lives of 15 years. In-process research and development, if any, will be expensed during the fiscal quarter in which the merger is completed. In accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," goodwill resulting from the business combination, currently estimated at \$920 million, will not be amortized but instead will be tested for impairment at least annually (more frequently if certain indicators are present). The amounts listed are only preliminary estimates. Actual amounts may differ materially from these estimates.

In the event that Cooper's management determines that the value of goodwill has become impaired, the combined company will incur an accounting charge for the amount of impairment during the fiscal quarter in which the determination is made.

Listing of Cooper Common Stock

Cooper will use reasonable best efforts to cause the shares of Cooper common stock to be issued in the merger to be approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange upon completion of the merger. Cooper common stock is traded under the symbol "COO."

Delisting and Deregistration of Ocular Common Stock

Upon completion of the merger, Ocular common stock will be delisted from the Nasdaq National Market and will be deregistered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and Ocular will no longer file periodic reports with the SEC.

Restrictions on Sales of Shares of Cooper Common Stock Received in the Merger

The shares of Cooper common stock to be issued in the merger will be registered under the Securities Act of 1933 and will be freely transferable, except for shares of Cooper common stock issued to any person who is deemed to be an "affiliate" of Ocular under the Securities Act of 1933 prior to the merger. Persons who may be deemed to be "affiliates" of Ocular prior to the merger include individuals or entities that control, are controlled by, or are under common control with Ocular prior to the merger, and may include officers and directors, as well as significant stockholders of Ocular prior to the merger. Affiliates of Ocular prior to the merger may not sell any of the shares of Cooper common stock received by them in the merger except pursuant to:

- an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933 covering the resale of those shares;
- an exemption under paragraph (d) of Rule 145 under the Securities Act of 1933; or
- any other applicable exemption under the Securities Act of 1933.

Cooper's registration statement on Form S-4, of which this joint proxy statement/prospectus is a part, does not cover the resale of shares of Cooper common stock to be received by affiliates of Ocular in the merger.

 Approximately
 shares of Cooper common stock held by affiliates of Ocular will be restricted and not immediately eligible for resale upon

 completion of the merger, based on
 shares of Ocular common stock held by affiliates of Ocular and the Cooper stock price of \$ on

 2004, the record date of the special meetings. In addition, approximately
 shares of Cooper common stock will be restricted and not

immediately eligible for resale upon completion of the merger, based on outstanding in-the-money options to acquire an aggregate of shares of Ocular on , 2004.

Interests of Directors, Executive Officers and Stockholders of Ocular in the Merger

In considering the recommendation of the Ocular board of directors that Ocular stockholders vote in favor of approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger, Ocular stockholders should be aware that some Ocular executive officers and directors may have interests in the merger that may be different from, or in addition to, their interests as stockholders of Ocular.

These interests relate to or arise from, among other things:

the continued indemnification of, and provision of directors' and officers' insurance to, current directors and officers of Ocular following the merger;



- the appointment of John D. Fruth and Edgar J. Cummins, currently directors of Ocular, as directors of Cooper upon completion of the merger;
- the potential receipt of severance payments by executive officers;
- the accelerated vesting of, and the payments of cash and Cooper common stock for, the officers' and directors' outstanding in-the-money Ocular stock options in the merger; and
- the accelerated vesting of, and payments of cash and Cooper common stock for, the directors' 2004 annual grant of Ocular stock options, issued on August 2, 2004, subsequent to the execution of the merger agreement, which in the aggregate provide for the purchase of 70,000 shares of Ocular common stock at an exercise price of \$44.79 per share.

The Ocular board of directors was aware of these interests and considered them, among other matters, in making its recommendation.

Indemnification; Directors' and Officers' Insurance

Cooper and TCC Acquisition have agreed that the indemnification obligations set forth in Ocular's certificate of incorporation and by-laws and any Ocular indemnification agreements will survive the merger (and, prior to completion of the merger, Cooper will cause the certificate of incorporation and by-laws of TCC Acquisition to reflect such provisions) and will not be amended, repealed or otherwise modified after completion of the merger in any manner that would adversely affect the indemnification rights of any individual who on or prior to completion of the merger was a director, officer, trustee, fiduciary, employee or agent of Ocular or any of its subsidiaries or who served at the request of Ocular or any of its subsidiaries as a director, officer, trustee, partner, fiduciary, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, pension or other employee benefit plan or enterprise, unless such amendment or modification is required by law.

Board Seats in Cooper

Under the merger agreement, Cooper has agreed to take all action necessary so that upon completion of the merger, John D. Fruth and Edgar J. Cummins, currently directors of Ocular, will be appointed as directors of Cooper. On July 26, 2004, the nominating committee of the board of directors of Cooper met and recommended the appointment of Mr. Fruth and Mr. Cummins as directors of Cooper upon completion of the merger.

Executive Officer Severance Payments and Stock Option Acceleration

All outstanding options to purchase Ocular common stock, including options held by executive officers, will become fully vested and exercisable immediately prior to completion of the merger. Holders of in-the-money options to purchase Ocular common stock will receive a combination of Cooper stock and cash in an amount equal to the spread value of their options less applicable withholding taxes. In addition, Ocular has agreements with each of its executive officers other than Mr. Fanning that provide that the executive officer would receive certain severance payments if he or she is terminated without Cause, as defined below, or resigns for Good Reason, as defined below, in connection with a change of control (which includes the completion of the merger). Ocular's agreement with Mr. Fanning provides him with the same benefits if he is Terminated, as defined below, in connection with a change of control (which includes the completion of the merger).

The following table identifies, for each executive officer as of July 27, 2004, the total severance payment to which he or she would be entitled, the aggregate number of shares subject to his or her outstanding vested and unvested Ocular stock options, the aggregate number of shares subject to his or her outstanding unvested Ocular stock options which will become fully vested and exercisable immediately prior to completion of the merger and the weighted average exercise price of his or her collective vested and unvested Ocular stock options. All options held by the executive officers are expected to be in-themoney upon completion of the merger.

Name and Title	Total Severance Payment	Aggregate Shares Subject to Outstanding Options	Aggregate Shares Subject to Unvested Options	Weighted Average Exercise Price of All Options
Stephen J. Fanning President and Chief Executive Officer*	\$ 853,125	321,000	218,001	\$ 21.34
Steven M. Neil Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary	447,525	110,000	85,000	20.30
Richard P. Franz, OD, FAAO Vice President, Professional Relations	373,052	118,000	39,001	20.65
Linda A. Hoffman Vice President, Operations	518,508	96,443	55,643	18.94
Ken Hurley Vice President, Information Technology	260,253	47,625	47,625	21.31
Bradley S. Jones Vice President, U.S. Sales	601,534	179,251	58,251	20.22
J. Christopher Marmo, Ph.D. Vice President, Research and Development	500,760	105,796	71,625	17.74
Gary E. Paladin Vice President, Global Marketing	278,100	45,126	27,626	23.59
John A. Weber Executive Vice President, Worldwide Operations	556,875	148,050	80,125	19.45
James M. Welch President International Division	625,950	131,009	77,509	20.46
Greg A. Zimmerman Vice President, Human Resources	269,730	52,126	52,126	20.06

* Mr. Fanning is also a member of Ocular's board of directors.

The term "Cause" for executive officers, other than for Mr. Fanning, means termination of employment due to (i) the executive officer's willful and continued failure to perform his or her duties to Ocular or its successor after delivery of a written demand for substantial performance which identifies how Ocular (or its successor) believes that the executive officer has not substantially performed his or her or her duties, or (ii) the officer's conviction of or plea of guilty or *nolo contendere* to felony criminal conduct. For Mr. Fanning, the term "Cause" means any one or more of the following events: (i) a material failure or refusal by him to diligently perform his duties to Ocular, provided Ocular provides him with 30 days advance notice to remedy the situation, (ii) misconduct by him that is materially detrimental to, or materially discredits, the reputation, character or standing of Ocular, including the commission of a felony crime, (iii) conduct by him that is intended to do injury to Ocular or (iv) disability that prevents him from performing his duties for more than 90 days in any 360-day period or his death.

The term "Good Reason" means in each case without the executive officer's consent or waiver, (i) a material diminution of the officer's duties or authority with Ocular, or the assignment of duties and responsibilities inconsistent with his or her status at Ocular, as of the date of the merger; (ii) a reduction in base salary or material reduction in benefits, as of the effective date of the completion of the merger; (iii) any breach of Ocular of any of its material obligations under its agreements with the officer; or (iv) a reassignment which requires the officer to move his or her principal work location more than 50 miles from Ocular's principal office in Concord, California.

Mr. Fanning will be deemed to have been "Terminated" in connection with a change of control if he is not offered a position in the surviving entity in the change of control, or an affiliate of such company, including Ocular, that is similar in responsibility and compensation to the position he held in Ocular prior to the change in control, within 50 miles of Ocular's headquarters prior to the change of control, and maintained in that position for at least 12 months after the change of control, except in the event of a termination for Cause, as defined above. The agreement further provides that, if Mr. Fanning is offered and maintained in a position where he continues to be the chief executive of the primary portion of the business that was operated by Ocular prior to the change of control, at similar compensation and within 50 miles of Ocular's headquarters prior to the change of control, he will not be deemed to have been "Terminated" even if he is not the president or the chief executive officer of the surviving entity.

In addition, under the terms of Ocular's offer letter to Mr. Neil, dated May 19, 2003, if the merger with Cooper is completed, it will end Mr. Neil's obligation to repay Ocular his \$215,000 new hire bonus should he voluntarily resign without Good Reason before July 2005.

Non-Employee Director Stock Option Acceleration

All outstanding options to purchase Ocular common stock held by non-employee directors will become fully vested and exercisable immediately prior to completion of the merger. Holders of in-the-money options to purchase Ocular common stock will receive a combination of Cooper stock and cash in an amount equal to the spread value of their options less applicable withholding taxes.

The following table identifies, for each non-employee director, as of July 27, 2004, the aggregate number of shares subject to his or her outstanding vested and unvested Ocular stock options, the aggregate number of shares subject to his or her outstanding unvested Ocular stock options which will become fully vested and exercisable immediately prior to completion of the merger and the weighted average exercise price of his or her collective vested and unvested Ocular stock options. All Ocular stock options held by non-employee Ocular directors as of July 27, 2004 are expected to be in-the-money upon completion of the merger.

Name	Aggregate Shares Subject to Outstanding Options	Aggregate Shares Subject to Unvested Options	Weighted Average Exercise Price of All Options
John D. Fruth	75,000	12,351	\$21.24
Edgar J. Cummins	115,000	12,756	19.92
Terence M. Fruth	115,000	12,756	19.92
William R. Grant	115,000	12,756	19.92
Terrance H. Gregg	85,000	12,756	18.99
Howard P. Liszt	30,000	24,996	27.92
Mary Jo Potter	30,000	20,826	20.50

On August 2, 2004, in connection with the directors' 2004 annual grant of Ocular stock options, the Ocular board of directors granted each non-employee director an option to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock, at an exercise price of \$44.79 per share. These option shares are not included in the table above.

Voting Agreement with John D. Fruth

In connection with the merger agreement, Cooper has entered into a voting agreement with John D. Fruth which provides for Mr. Fruth to vote in favor of the merger agreement and merger and against any alternative transaction. This agreement is further described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus under the heading "*Voting Agreement*" on page 92 and is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex B. This description may not contain all of the information about the voting agreement that is important to you. You are encouraged to read the agreement carefully in its entirety.

Management and Operations Following the Merger

Cooper intends to undertake a comprehensive review of the business, operations, capitalization and management of Ocular with a view to optimizing development of its potential in conjunction with Cooper's business.

Cooper's current directors and officers are expected to retain their positions with Cooper following the merger. As described above, upon completion of the merger, John D. Fruth and Edgar J. Cummins, currently directors of Ocular, will be appointed as directors of Cooper.

THE MERGER AGREEMENT

The following is a description of the material aspects of the merger agreement. While Cooper and Ocular believe that the following description covers the material terms of the merger agreement, the description may not contain all of the information that is important to you. You are encouraged to read carefully this entire document, including the merger agreement attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex A, for a more complete understanding of the merger. The following description is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the merger agreement.

Structure of the Merger

The merger agreement provides for the merger of Ocular with and into TCC Acquisition Corp., a newly-formed, wholly-owned subsidiary of Cooper, with TCC Acquisition surviving the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cooper.

Completion and Effectiveness of the Merger

The closing of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement will occur no later than the second business day after the last of the conditions to the transactions have been satisfied or waived, or at another time as Cooper and Ocular may agree (see "*Conditions to Completion of the Merger*" on page 78). Contemporaneously with, or as soon as practicable after the closing, Cooper and Ocular will file a certificate of merger with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. The merger will become effective upon the filing of the certificate or at another time as specified in the certificate of merger.

Cooper and Ocular currently expect that the the merger could be completed as early as , 2004. However, because the merger is subject to governmental and stockholder approvals and other customary conditions, Cooper and Ocular cannot predict exactly when the closing will occur.

Merger Consideration

Upon completion of the merger, each share of Ocular common stock outstanding immediately prior to completion of the merger will be automatically converted into the right to receive 0.3879 of a share of Cooper common stock (plus, with respect to each whole share of Cooper common stock, the associated preferred share purchase right described in *"Comparison of Stockholder Rights and Corporate Governance Matters—Stockholder Rights Plan"* on page 104) and \$22.00 in cash, without interest, and upon surrender of the certificate representing that share of Ocular common stock in the manner provided in the merger agreement, will be canceled. However, shares held by Ocular stockholders who validly exercise appraisal rights will be subject to appraisal in accordance with Delaware law.

All outstanding options for Ocular common stock will become fully vested and exercisable immediately prior to completion of the merger. Options for Ocular common stock with an exercise price equal to or greater than the sum of (x) \$22.00 in cash and (y) the closing price of Cooper's common stock on the day immediately prior to the closing date multiplied by 0.3879 (such sum, the "merger consideration value") (referred to as "out-of-the-money") will be canceled without any right to receive any consideration upon completion of the merger.

Options for Ocular common stock with an exercise price less than the merger consideration value (referred to as "in-the-money") will be canceled in exchange for the right to receive an amount equal to the merger consideration value minus the exercise price per share under the option (referred to as the "spread value").

The spread value of each in-the-money option will be paid in part in an amount in cash, without interest and reduced by any applicable withholding taxes, equal to the spread value multiplied by the quotient of (x) \$22.00 divided by (y) the merger consideration value. In addition, the remainder of the spread value will be paid in the number of shares of Cooper common stock equal to the quotient of (x) spread value multiplied by the quotient of (1) the closing price of Cooper's common stock on the day immediately prior to the closing date multiplied by (2) the merger consideration value, divided by (y) the closing price of Cooper's common stock on the day immediately prior to the closing date.

The exchange ratio in the merger (0.3879 of a share of Cooper common stock for each share of Ocular common stock) and the cash consideration will be adjusted to reflect the effect of any stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification or other like change with respect to Cooper common stock or Ocular common stock occurring on or after the date of the merger agreement and prior to completion of the merger.

Upon completion of the merger, each share of Ocular common stock held by Ocular in its treasury, or by Cooper, TCC Acquisition or any wholly-owned subsidiaries of Cooper or TCC Acquisition immediately prior to the merger will be automatically canceled and extinguished, and none of Ocular, Cooper, TCC Acquisition or any wholly-owned subsidiaries of Cooper or TCC Acquisition will receive any securities of Cooper or other consideration in exchange for those shares.

Fractional Shares

Cooper will not issue any fractional shares of Cooper common stock in the merger. Instead, each holder of Ocular common stock exchanged in the merger who would otherwise be entitled to receive a fraction of a share of Cooper common stock will receive cash, without interest, in lieu of a fractional share. Preferred share purchase rights do not attach to fractional shares of Cooper common stock or the cash received in lieu of the fractional shares.

Exchange of Ocular Stock Certificates for Cooper Stock Certificates

Upon completion of the merger, Cooper will deposit with American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, the exchange agent for the merger, (i) certificates representing the shares of Cooper common stock issuable in exchange for outstanding shares of Ocular common stock, (ii) cash in an amount sufficient to deliver the cash consideration, (iii) cash in lieu of issuing fractional shares of Cooper common stock and, if required, (iv) any dividends or other distributions on Cooper common stock with a record date occurring after completion of the merger in accordance with the merger agreement.

Ocular stockholders should not submit their Ocular stock certificates for exchange unless and until they receive the transmittal instructions and a letter of transmittal from the exchange agent.

Promptly following completion of the merger, the exchange agent will mail to each record holder of Ocular common stock a letter of transmittal and instructions for use to effect the surrender of their Ocular stock certificates in exchange for Cooper common stock and cash. Upon surrender of an Ocular stock certificate to the exchange agent, along with a completed and properly executed letter of transmittal and any other required documents, the Ocular stock certificate will be canceled and the Ocular stockholder will receive a certificate representing the number of whole shares of Cooper common stock to which such holder is entitled, the cash consideration, cash in lieu of fractional shares which such holder has the right to receive, and dividends or distributions, if any, payable in accordance with the merger agreement.

Cooper, the exchange agent and TCC Acquisition, as the surviving corporation, are entitled to deduct and withhold from the merger consideration otherwise payable such amounts as are required by applicable law.

Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares

Ocular stockholders are not entitled to receive any dividends or other distributions on their Cooper common stock with a record date after the merger becomes effective until they have surrendered their Ocular stock certificates. If there is any dividend or other distribution on Cooper common stock with a record date after the merger becomes effective and a payment date prior to the date an Ocular stock certificate is surrendered, the surrendering stockholder will receive any such dividend or other distribution with respect to the whole shares of Cooper common stock issued promptly after the certificate is surrendered.

Transfers of Ownership and Lost Stock Certificates

If an Ocular stock certificate is lost, stolen or destroyed, the holder of such certificate may need to execute an affidavit or post a bond prior to receiving (i) certificates representing the shares of Cooper common stock issuable in exchange for outstanding shares of Ocular common stock, (ii) the cash consideration, (iii) cash in lieu of fractional shares and (iv) any dividends or distributions on Cooper common stock with a record date after the merger becomes effective.

Alternative Structure

Cooper and Ocular expect that the merger will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. However, the merger agreement provides that if either Cooper or Ocular, after consulting with its outside tax counsel, reasonably determines at any time that there is a reasonable likelihood that the merger would not qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, such party will have the right to revise the merger structure to qualify as a transaction described in Section 351 of the Code. In general, failure to qualify as a reorganization would occur if, as a result of a decline in the trading price of Cooper stock or the exercise of appraisal rights by a greater than expected number of Ocular stockholders, the relative amount of cash (as a percentage of the sum of the aggregate value of all merger consideration plus the cash paid to dissenters) paid to Ocular stockholders upon completion of the merger is too great to permit the merger to qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. In general, the approximate trading price of Cooper common stock at which the parties may deem it prudent to revise the merger structure is \$43.00, equal to a % decline from the closing price of \$ on , 2004, the record date for the special meetings.

The revised merger structure would require Cooper to form a new wholly-owned subsidiary corporation which would in turn form two new wholly-owned subsidiary corporations known as Alternative Merger Sub 1 and Alternative Merger Sub 2. Alternative Merger Sub 1 would merge with and into Ocular, with Ocular as the surviving entity, and Alternative Merger Sub 2 would merge with and into Cooper, with Cooper as the surviving entity.

If either party elects to revise the merger structure, the merger agreement will be amended as appropriate, including an amendment providing that the obligations of Cooper and Ocular, respectively, to complete the alternative mergers will be subject to the satisfaction or waiver, if legally permissible, of the receipt of an opinion from such party's counsel that the mergers, taken together, will qualify as a transaction described in Section 351 of the Code. In addition, revisions to the merger structure would require Cooper and Ocular to resolicit stockholder approval of the merger agreement, mergers and related transactions. The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Cooper common stock entitled to vote on the merger structure. This represents a higher voting threshold for approval by Cooper stockholders than required under the current merger structure.

Conditions to Completion of the Merger

The obligations of Cooper and Ocular to complete the merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver, if legally permissible, of the following conditions:

- the registration statement of which this joint proxy statement/prospectus is a part must be declared effective by the SEC and no stop order suspending
 its effectiveness may be issued by the SEC and no proceedings for that purpose may be initiated or threatened by the SEC;
- the requisite approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger by Ocular stockholders;
- the requisite approval of the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger by Cooper stockholders;
- the absence of any statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, judgment, induction or arbitration award or other legal prohibition having the
 effect of preventing or otherwise prohibiting completion of the merger or limiting Cooper's activity in connection with the ownership or operation of
 Ocular;
- the receipt of all governmental and regulatory consents, approvals and authorizations required to complete the merger listed on the disclosure schedules (of which there are none), without (i) the imposition of conditions, (ii) the requirement of divestiture of assets or property or (iii) the requirement of expenditure of money by Cooper or Ocular to a third party in exchange for any such consent;
- the expiration or termination of the applicable waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, or the antitrust or competition laws of any other applicable jurisdiction; and
- the approval for listing on the New York Stock Exchange of the shares of Cooper common stock to be issued in the merger.

In addition, the obligations of Cooper and TCC Acquisition to effect the merger are subject to the fulfillment or waiver, prior to the closing date, of each of the following conditions:

- (i) specific representations and warranties of Ocular, relating to the due organization and qualification, capitalization and corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under the merger agreement, being accurate on the date of the merger agreement and the date the merger is completed as if they were made on that date (except to the extent that the representations and warranties speak as of another date) and (ii) all other representations and warranties of Ocular in the merger agreement or in any certificate or other writing delivered by Ocular to Cooper, disregarding all qualifications and exceptions relating to materiality or any material adverse effect, being accurate on the date of the merger agreement and the date the merger is completed as if they were made on that date (except to the extent that the representations and warranties speak as of another date), except where the failure of such representations and warranties to be accurate has not had and would not have a material adverse effect on Ocular;
- Ocular having performed or complied with its agreements and covenants in the merger agreement in all material respects;
- the receipt of an opinion from Cooper's counsel that the merger will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code;
- the receipt of all consents, approvals and authorizations listed on Ocular's disclosure schedules (of which there are none), without (i) the imposition of conditions, (ii) the requirement of divestiture of assets or property or (iii) the requirement of expenditure of money by Cooper or Ocular to a third party in exchange for any such consent;
- the absence of the occurrence of any material adverse effect with respect to Ocular;
- no action or claim by any governmental entity or by any other person (in the case of an action or claim by any person other than a governmental entity, which will be reasonably likely to succeed) may be

pending or threatened before any domestic or foreign governmental entity or court or arbitrator wherein an unfavorable injunction, judgment, order, decree, ruling or charge would (i) prevent or restrain the completion of any of the transactions contemplated in the merger agreement, (ii) cause the merger to be rescinded following its completion, (iii) affect adversely the right or powers of Cooper to own, operate or control Ocular or any portion of either company's business or assets or (iv) have a material adverse effect on Ocular or Cooper, and no such injunction, judgment, order, decree, ruling or charge may be in effect; and

the termination of all unexpired and unexercised Ocular options upon completion of the merger.

Finally, the obligations of Ocular to effect the merger are subject to fulfillment or waiver, prior to the closing date, of each of the following conditions:

- (i) specific representations and warranties of Cooper, relating to the due organization and qualification, capitalization and corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under the merger agreement, being accurate on the date of the merger agreement and the date the merger is completed as if they were made on that date (except to the extent that the representations and warranties speak as of another date) and (ii) all other representations and warranties of Cooper in the merger agreement or in any certificate or other writing delivered by Cooper to Ocular, disregarding all qualifications and exceptions relating to materiality or material adverse effect, being accurate on the date of the merger agreement and the date the merger is completed as if they were made on that date (except to the extent that the representations and warranties speak as of another date), except where the failure of such representations and warranties to be accurate has not had and would not have a material adverse effect on Cooper;
- Cooper having performed or complied with its agreements and covenants in the merger agreement in all material respects;
- the receipt of an opinion from Ocular's counsel that the merger will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code;
- · the absence of the occurrence of any material adverse effect with respect to Cooper; and
- the appointment of John D. Fruth and Edgar J. Cummins, currently directors of Ocular, as directors of Cooper upon completion of the merger.

"Material adverse effect," when used in reference to Cooper or Ocular, means any effect, event, occurrence, development, circumstance, change or condition that, individually or in the aggregate with other effects is, or would reasonably be expected to be materially adverse to the assets, liabilities, business, property, condition (financial or otherwise) or results of operations of the company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole. However, the merger agreement provides that none of the following shall be deemed to constitute a material adverse effect: (i) any effect affecting any of the industries in which the company operates generally or affecting the economy generally (to the extent that such effects do not disproportionately affect the company, taken as a whole with its subsidiaries, as compared to other companies in such industries); (ii) any change in the company's stock price or trading volume, provided that this provision does not exclude any underlying effect which may have caused such change in stock price or trading volume; or (iii) any effect resulting from the announcement or pendency of the merger.

Representations and Warranties

The merger agreement contains customary representations and warranties of Cooper and Ocular relating to, among other things:

- corporate organization and qualification, including, for Ocular, the organization and qualification of its subsidiaries;
- charter documents and corporate books and records;



- capital structure;
- corporate authority and board approval;
- absence of conflicts and required filings and consents;
- required permits and compliance with laws;
- SEC filings and the financial statements contained in those filings;
- disclosures included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus;
- absence of certain changes or events since the beginning of the fiscal year;
- tax treatment of the merger;
- litigation;
- opinions of financial advisors;
- stockholder vote required to complete the merger;
- FDA compliance; and
- brokers and investment banker fees.
- The merger agreement also contains additional representations and warranties of Ocular relating to:
- employee benefits plans;
- labor and employment matters;
- contracts;
- environmental matters;
- intellectual property;
- taxes;
- insurance;
- transactions with affiliates;
- properties;
- significant U.S. customers;
- product warranties and recalls;
- unlawful practice of medicine; and
- compliance with health care laws.

The merger agreement also contains additional representations and warranties of Cooper relating to the ownership and activities of TCC Acquisition, absence of any discussions or negotiations with third parties in connection with an acquisition proposal of Cooper, and absence of any contracts or agreements entered into by Cooper or its affiliates that will restrict or prohibit the conduct of the surviving company's business.

The representations and warranties contained in the merger agreement are subject to materiality and knowledge qualifications in many respects, and expire at completion of the merger.

Non-Solicitation of Other Offers

Under the terms of the merger agreement, subject to specific exceptions described below, each party has agreed that neither it nor any of its subsidiaries will, and that it will use its reasonable best efforts to cause its and its subsidiaries' representatives not to, directly or indirectly:

- solicit, initiate, encourage or facilitate any acquisition proposal, in the case of Ocular, or a Cooper acquisition proposal, in the case of Cooper;
- enter into any agreement or commitment with respect to any acquisition proposal or enter into any agreement, arrangement or understanding requiring it to abandon, terminate or fail to complete the merger or any other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement; or
- participate in any discussions or negotiations with, or furnish any information to, any person in connection with, or take any other action to facilitate any inquiries or the making of any proposal that constitutes, or could reasonably be expected to lead to, any acquisition proposal, in the case of Ocular, or a Cooper acquisition proposal, in the case of Cooper.

Notwithstanding these prohibitions, if either Ocular or Cooper receives an unsolicited acquisition proposal or a Cooper acquisition proposal, as the case may be, its board of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with its outside counsel, that, in the case of Ocular, such acquisition proposal is reasonably likely to lead to a superior proposal and the failure to take any action would be reasonably likely to result in a breach of the Ocular board of directors' fiduciary duties, or that, in the case of Cooper, the failure to take any action with respect to such Cooper acquisition proposal would be reasonably likely to result in a breach of the Cooper board of directors' fiduciary duties, it may, after promptly notifying the other party, take the following actions:

- furnish information to the third party making the acquisition proposal or a Cooper acquisition proposal, as the case may be, provided it enters into a customary confidentiality agreement with the third party, the terms of which are no more favorable to the third party than currently in place with the other party; and
- participate in discussions and negotiations with the third party with respect to the acquisition proposal or a Cooper acquisition proposal, as the case may be.

Upon the execution of the merger agreement, each party is obligated to cause its representatives to, and to the extent within its control cause its affiliates and representatives of affiliates to, cease immediately and cause to be terminated any and all existing discussions, conversations, negotiations and other communications with any third parties with respect to, or that could reasonably be expected to lead to, an acquisition proposal and promptly request that all confidential information furnished on behalf of the party be returned.

Each party is obligated to notify the other party within 24 hours in writing upon receipt of any submission, proposal, offer or inquiry relating to any potential acquisition proposal by a third party. The notice must include the material terms of the acquisition proposal or a Cooper acquisition proposal, as the case may be, or inquiry, the identity of the person and its affiliates making the proposal or inquiry, any information requested or any negotiations or discussions being sought to be initiated and all related written materials provided in connection with the proposal or inquiry or a written summary of any acquisition proposal or a Cooper acquisition proposal, as the case may be, or inquiry, if it is not in writing. The recipient of the proposal or inquiry also must keep the other party informed on a prompt basis with respect to any developments with respect to any acquisition proposal or a Cooper acquisition proposal, as the case may be, or inquiry, including any changes in price, structure, form of consideration or closing conditions.

Cooper and Ocular have agreed to call, hold and convene a meeting of their respective stockholders promptly after the registration statement of which this joint proxy statement/prospectus forms a part is declared effective by the SEC. The Cooper board of directors agreed to recommend to Cooper stockholders the approval of the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger and to use its reasonable best efforts to obtain the required stockholder approval for the issuance of shares. The Ocular board of directors also agreed to recommend to

Ocular stockholders the approval and adoption of the merger agreement and the approval of merger and to use its reasonable best efforts to obtain the required stockholder approval for the approval and adoption for the merger agreement and approval of the merger. Both Ocular's and Cooper's boards of directors and any committee of such boards of directors agree not to:

- withdraw or modify or propose publicly to withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse to the other party, the approval or recommendation of the adoption and approval of the merger, in the case of Ocular, or the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger, in the case of Cooper;
- approve or recommend, or propose publicly to approve or recommend, any acquisition proposal, in the case of Ocular, or Cooper acquisition proposal, in the case of Cooper; or
- cause Ocular or Cooper to enter into any letter of intent or other agreement related to any acquisition proposal or Cooper acquisition proposal, as the case may be.

Notwithstanding these obligations, Ocular's board of directors is not prohibited from taking and disclosing to its stockholders a position contemplated by Rule 14d-9 or Rule 14e-2(a) promulgated under the Exchange Act, provided that, the Ocular board of directors will not recommend that its stockholders tender their shares in connection with a tender offer, except to the extent the Ocular board of directors determines in good faith judgment, after consulting with outside legal counsel, that failure to make such a recommendation is reasonably likely to result in a breach of its fiduciary duties to its stockholders under applicable law. In addition, in the event that a superior proposal is made prior to the Ocular stockholders meeting, the Ocular board of directors is not prohibited from withdrawing or modifying its recommendation if it determines in good faith, after consultation with outside counsel, that failure to withdraw or modify its recommendation is reasonably likely to its stockholders.

In addition, Cooper's board of directors is not prohibited from taking and disclosing to its stockholders a position contemplated by Rule 14d-9 or Rule 14e-2(a) promulgated under the Exchange Act, provided that, the Cooper board of directors will not recommend that its stockholders tender their shares in connection with a tender offer, except to the extent the Cooper board of directors determines in good faith judgment, after consulting with outside legal counsel, that failure to make such a recommendation is reasonably likely to result in a breach of its fiduciary duties to its stockholders under applicable law. In addition, in the event that a conflicting proposal is made prior to the Cooper stockholders meeting, the Cooper board of directors is not prohibited from withdrawing or modifying its recommendation if it determines in good faith, after consultation with outside counsel, that failure to withdraw or modify its recommendation is reasonably likely to result in a breach of its fiduciary duties to its stockholders.

For a period of not less than five business days after receipt of notice of a superior proposal or conflicting proposal, as the case may be, the notifying party is required, if requested by the other party, to negotiate in good faith to revise the merger agreement so that the acquisition proposal that constituted a superior proposal or conflicting proposal no longer constitutes a superior proposal or conflicting proposal.

Both Ocular and Cooper agree that any violation of the restrictions set forth in the non-solicitation provisions of the merger agreement by any of their representatives or affiliates or affiliate representatives, whether or not purporting to act on behalf of the respective companies, shall constitute a breach of the merger agreement; and that any breach of, or failure to observe, any of the provisions of non solicitation provisions of the merger agreement as a result of any action by any executive officer, or member of the board of directors, of Ocular or Cooper, as the case may be, or of which the breaching party does not notify the other promptly upon any of its executive officers or directors becoming informed thereof, will be deemed a material breach of the merger agreement.

An "acquisition proposal" means any offer or proposal concerning any:

- merger, consolidation, business combination, or similar transaction involving Ocular or any of its subsidiaries;
- sale, lease or other disposition directly or indirectly by merger, consolidation, business combination, share exchange, joint venture, or otherwise of
 assets of the company or any of its subsidiaries representing a material portion of the consolidated assets of Ocular and its subsidiaries (other than
 acquisitions of inventory and equipment in the ordinary course of business);
- issuance, sale, or other disposition of securities representing 35% or more of the voting power of Ocular;
- transaction in which any person shall acquire beneficial ownership, or the right to acquire beneficial ownership or any group shall have been formed which beneficially owns or has the right to acquire beneficial ownership of 35% or more of the outstanding voting capital shares of Ocular; or
- any combination of the foregoing.

A "Cooper acquisition proposal" means any offer or proposal, concerning any:

- merger, consolidation, business combination, or similar transaction involving Cooper;
- sale, lease or other disposition directly or indirectly by merger, consolidation, business combination, share exchange, joint venture, or otherwise of
 assets of Cooper representing a majority of the consolidated assets of Cooper (other than acquisitions of inventory and equipment in the ordinary
 course of business);
- issuance, sale, or other disposition of securities representing a majority or more of the voting power of Cooper;
- transaction in which any person shall acquire beneficial ownership, or the right to acquire beneficial ownership or any group shall have been formed
 which beneficially owns or has the right to acquire beneficial ownership of a majority or more of the outstanding voting capital shares of Cooper; or
- any combination of the foregoing.

A "superior proposal" means a bona fide offer or proposal made by a third party to acquire, directly or indirectly, pursuant to a tender offer, exchange offer, merger, consolidation or other business combination, all or substantially all of the assets of the company or a majority of the outstanding voting securities of Ocular, which (i) was not solicited by Ocular, its subsidiaries, any Ocular representatives or any affiliate representatives of Ocular, (ii) does not contain a financing contingency and (iii) in the good faith judgment of the Ocular board of directors after consultation with outside legal advisors and company's financial advisor, and after taking into account the various legal, financial and regulatory aspects of the proposal and the person making such proposal, (x) if accepted, is reasonably likely to be consummated, and (y) if consummated would result in a transaction that is more favorable to Ocular stockholders, from a financial point of view, than the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

A "conflicting proposal" means any acquisition proposal relating to Cooper which is expressly conditioned on the termination of the merger agreement prior to completion of the merger.

Conduct of Business Before Completion of the Merger

Cooper and Ocular have agreed to restrictions on their respective activities until either completion of the merger or the termination of the merger agreement. In general, Cooper is required to conduct its business in the ordinary course consistent with past practice. Ocular is required to conduct its businesses in the ordinary course consistent with past practice, to use its reasonable best efforts to keep available the services of the current

officers, key employees and consultants of Ocular and its subsidiaries and to preserve the current relationships of Ocular and its subsidiaries with their customers, suppliers, distributors and other business relations, maintain insurance policies currently in effect, keep in good order and repair all of its material assets and properties and take reasonable and customary action to protect its intellectual property.

Additional Restrictions on Ocular's Operations

Subject to specified exceptions, Ocular has also agreed that, without the written consent of Cooper, it will not and will not permit any of its subsidiaries to:

- amend its certificate of incorporation or by-laws;
- issue, sell, pledge, dispose of, grant, transfer, encumber, or authorize the issuance, sale, pledge, disposition, grant, transfer, or encumbrance of any capital shares of, or other equity interests in, Ocular or any of its subsidiaries, or any options, warrants or other securities convertible or exchangeable into such capital shares other than, the issuance of shares upon exercise of options and after February 1, 2005, the issuance of options for up to 500,000 shares of Ocular common stock;
- sell, pledge, mortgage, dispose of, transfer, lease, license, guarantee or encumber, or authorize the sale, pledge, mortgage, disposition, transfer, lease, license, guarantee or encumbrance of, any material property or assets except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;
- enter into any transaction outside the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice other than intercompany transactions or transactions which in the aggregate do not to exceed \$500,000;
- declare, set aside or pay any dividend or other distribution with respect to Ocular's securities or enter into any agreement with respect to the voting of its capital shares;
- · reclassify, split, issue or redeem or acquire, or modify or amend any of its capital shares or other equity interests;
- (i) merge with, acquire, or invest in any direct or indirect interest or investment in any person except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice; (ii) incur or modify, guarantee or become responsible for indebtedness or other obligations of any person except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice; (iii) amend, terminate, cancel, extend or make any material changes to, or waive any rights under, Ocular's material contracts except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice; (iv) enter into any contract material to the condition, business, assets or operations of Ocular except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice; (v) make any capital expenditures in excess of Ocular's 2004 budget; (vi) issue any debt securities of Ocular or its subsidiaries; (vii) make or authorize any material loans to any persons or guarantee any indebtedness of a person except in the ordinary course of business except for new borrowings, including any borrowings under Ocular's existing credit facilities; (ix) enter into any "keep well" or other arrangement to maintain any financial statement condition of another person other than a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ocular or (x) enter into or amend any contract, agreement, commitment or arrangement that, if fully performed, would not otherwise be permitted by the merger agreement;
- except as required by law or any existing contractual commitment or pursuant to the Ocular employee retention plan (i) increase or grant additional compensation or benefits to its employees, officers and directors (except for increases in accordance with past practices in Ocular's or its subsidiaries' employee salaries or wages which are not across-the-board increases, bonuses (other than to executive officers) in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices in connection with performance reviews, periodic grants, promotions and other routine awards, payments pursuant to bonus plans in effect as of the date of the merger agreement relating to bonuses for performance in 2004, and the adoption of new bonus plans for 2005 in the ordinary course of business that are consistent with plans in effect as of July 28, 2004), and bonuses paid to employees hired after July 28, 2004 (excluding

executive officers) in the ordinary course of business), (ii) grant any rights to severance or termination pay other than to new hires consistent with rights of existing employees or establish any new or amend any existing employee benefit plan, (iii) amend any existing benefits plan to waive or accelerate vesting criteria, exercisability or funding, (iv) provide for success bonus payments for completion of the merger other than pursuant to specified existing contractual commitments, (v) fail to enforce Ocular's or its subsidiaries' rights under any agreements relating to employment, severance, non-compete, confidentiality or nonsolicitation obligations or (vi) implement the Ocular employee stock purchase plan;

- enter into any new line of business;
- adopt a plan of liquidation, dissolution, merger, consolidation, restructuring, recapitalization or other reorganization relating to Ocular or any of its subsidiaries;
- pre-pay any long-term debt, except in the ordinary course of business in an amount not to exceed \$500,000;
- make any changes in accounting policies or procedures except as required by GAAP or by a governmental entity;
- waive, release, assign, settle or compromise any material claims, litigation or arbitration or settle, pay or discharge any claims except in the ordinary course of business or within insurance policy limits;
- make any material tax election outside the ordinary course of business or settle any material liability for taxes, file any amended tax return, change any
 annual tax accounting period or method, surrender any right to any tax refund, or give or request any waiver of a statute limitation with respect to any
 tax return, claim or assessment;
- take, or agree to take, any action that would prevent the merger from qualifying as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code;
- · modify, amend, terminate, waive, release or assign any material rights or claims relating to any confidentiality or standstill agreement;
- write up, write down or write off the book value of any assets for Ocular or its subsidiaries;
- sell, assign, pledge, mortgage, license, sublicense, encumber, impair, abandon or fail to maintain any material intellectual property, grant or extend any
 rights to Ocular intellectual property outside of the ordinary course of business, fail to take reasonable and customary action to enforce Ocular's
 intellectual property rights, enter into any material contracts with respect to intellectual property or amend, terminate or materially change any material
 right under any material contract relating to intellectual property;
- take action to exempt any third party from any state takeover law or state laws that limit or restrict business combinations;
- enter into any agreements, consummate any transactions, or take any other action that would, is intended to, or would reasonably be expected to, result in (i) any of the representations and warranties of Ocular in the merger agreement being untrue and incorrect as of the closing such that the closing conditions to the merger would not be satisfied or (ii) any of the other closing conditions to the merger not being satisfied;
- enter into any transaction with any affiliate of Ocular or any director, officer or 5% beneficial owner;
- enter into any transaction that limits or restricts Ocular or its subsidiaries from engaging or competing in any line of business or geographic area;
- make any payment to an affiliate, except in accordance with the terms of any existing contract or compensation arrangement to employees or directors;
- change any material terms of any insurance coverage; or
- enter into any agreement or otherwise make any commitment to do any of the foregoing.

Additional Restrictions on Cooper's Operations

In addition, Cooper has also agreed that, without the written consent of Ocular, it will not and will not permit any of its subsidiaries to:

- amend or otherwise change its certificate of incorporation or by-laws in a manner that adversely affects the rights of holders of Cooper common stock;
- declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution, payable in cash, stock property or otherwise, with respect to any Cooper capital stock, other than regular semi-annual cash dividends;
- merge with, acquire, or invest in any direct or indirect interest or investment in any person, any equity interests of any person or any division of any
 person or any assets (other than acquisitions of inventory and capital expenditures in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, and
 any mergers or acquisitions which do not involve acquisitions of entities engaged in the contact lenses industry, do not require approval of Cooper
 stockholders and would not reasonably be expected to materially delay completion of the merger);
- adopt a plan of complete or partial liquidation, dissolution, recapitalization or other reorganization;
- enter into any agreements, consummate any transactions, or take any other action that would, is intended to or would reasonably be expected to result in (i) any of the representations and warranties of Cooper being untrue and incorrect as of the closing such that the closing conditions of the merger agreement would not be satisfied or (ii) any of the other closing conditions to the merger not being satisfied;
- take, or agree to take, any action that would prevent the merger from qualifying as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code; and
- authorize or enter into any agreement or otherwise make any commitment to do any of the foregoing.

Regulatory Filings; Antitrust Matters; Obtaining Regulatory Approvals

Cooper and Ocular have agreed to use their reasonable best efforts to:

- take all appropriate action and do all things necessary under applicable law or otherwise to consummate the merger as promptly as practicable;
- obtain from any governmental entities any consents, licenses, permits, waivers, approvals, authorizations or orders required to be obtained or made by either party or their respective subsidiaries to avoid any action or proceeding by any governmental entity related to the merger agreement;
- make all necessary filings with respect to the merger agreement required under applicable federal and state securities laws, the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended; and any other applicable law; and
- contest any action by any governmental entity seeking to restrain, enjoin, impose conditions upon or alter the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

However, Cooper is not required to agree to (i) the imposition of conditions, (ii) the requirement of divestiture of assets or property or (iii) the requirement of expenditure of money by either party to a third party in exchange for any such consent. Both parties agree to furnish to the other party all information required for any application or other filing under the rules and regulations of any applicable law in connection with the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

In addition, both parties and their respective boards of directors agree to (i) take all action necessary so that no takeover statute or similar statute or regulation is or becomes applicable to the merger, the merger agreement or any other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement and (ii) if any takeover statute or similar statute or regulation becomes applicable, take all action necessary so that the merger and the other transactions

contemplated by the merger agreement may be consummated as promptly as practicable and otherwise to minimize the effect of such statute or regulation on the merger and the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement.

Tax Treatment

Each of Cooper and Ocular has agreed that it will not take any action that would disqualify the merger, and to use its reasonable best efforts to take any action to cause the merger to qualify, as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code.

Employee Benefit Matters

Ocular Employees

Upon completion of the merger, and subject to the terms of each applicable plan, Cooper will cause the surviving corporation to provide each employee of Ocular or its subsidiaries continuing his or her employment with the surviving corporation (other than employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement or similar arrangement) with benefits under medical, dental, vision and similar health and welfare plans that are in the aggregate no less favorable than either those provided to similarly situated employees of Cooper and its subsidiaries or those provided to such employees immediately prior to completion of the merger. Following completion of the merger, the surviving corporation will pay bonuses that have accrued with respect to performance prior to completion of the merger by persons that are employees at completion of the merger, pursuant to any unpaid bonus plans in effect on the date of the merger agreement, at such time as such bonus otherwise would have been payable under such bonus plan, and the entitlement of any such employee to any such bonus will not be impaired by the termination of his or her employment by Cooper or any subsidiary thereof, other than termination for cause following completion of the merger.

Ocular Stock Options

Prior to completion of the merger, Ocular's board of directors (or, if appropriate, any committee thereof) is obligated to adopt appropriate resolutions and take all such other action as may be necessary (i) to effectuate the treatment of all outstanding options for Ocular common stock upon completion of the merger as contemplated by the merger agreement as described above and (ii) to terminate, as of completion of the merger, all Ocular's stock option plans and any plan, program or arrangement providing for the prospective issuance or grant of any interest in respect of the capital stock of Ocular or its subsidiaries. After completion of the merger, each Ocular stock option plan will be terminated, no options will remain outstanding and no further options for Ocular common stock will be granted under such stock option plan.

Ocular Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Effective as of the date of the merger agreement, Ocular's board or directors or any committee of the board administering the Ocular employee stock purchase plan, is obligated to adopt all resolutions and take any other actions as may be required to terminate the Ocular employee stock purchase plan immediately upon completion of the merger.

Retirement Plans

Effective as of the day immediately preceding completion of the merger, the Ocular Sciences, Inc. Retirement Savings Plan will terminate, and no further contributions will be made to that plan as of such termination, except for contributions that have been accrued on behalf of participants prior to that plan's termination and contributions made on behalf of participants that are based on compensation earned prior to the date of that plan's termination. The Ocular Sciences Puerto Rico, Inc. 1165E Plan will continue in effect under its current terms.

Indemnification and Insurance

Cooper and TCC Acquisition have agreed that the indemnification obligations set forth in Ocular's certificate of incorporation and by-laws and any Ocular indemnification agreements will survive the merger (and, prior to completion of the merger, Cooper will cause the certificate of incorporation and by-laws of TCC Acquisition to reflect such provisions) and will not be amended, repealed or otherwise modified after completion of the merger in any manner that would adversely affect the indemnification rights of any individual who on or prior to completion of the merger was a director, officer, trustee, fiduciary, employee or agent of Ocular or any of its subsidiaries or who served at the request of Ocular or any of its subsidiaries as a director, officer, trustee, partner, fiduciary, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, pension or other employee benefit plan or enterprise, unless such amendment or modification is required by law.

For six years from completion of the merger, TCC Acquisition will maintain for the benefit of the current directors and officers of Ocular an insurance and indemnification policy that provides coverage for acts or omissions occurring prior to completion of the merger with a \$20 million limit and other terms that are no less favorable than Ocular's existing policy. However, TCC Acquisition is not required to pay an annual premium for such insurance in excess of 175% of the annual premium in effect after August 4, 2004. Alternatively, TCC Acquisition may purchase a prepaid six year tail insurance policy providing for the same level of coverage at a cost not to exceed 175% of the annual premium in effect after August 4, 2004. If coverage cannot be renewed at that price, benefits may be reduced in order to obtain the maximum coverage available at that price.

Termination of the Merger Agreement and Abandonment of the Merger

By Cooper or Ocular

Either Ocular or Cooper, by action of their respective boards of directors, may terminate the merger agreement and abandon the merger at any time prior to completion of the merger, whether before or after approval of the merger and merger agreement by Ocular stockholders:

- by mutual written consent of Cooper and Ocular;
- if the merger is not completed by the outside date of January 31, 2005 (which date may, from time to time, be extended by either party up to and including April 30, 2005 in the event all conditions to effect the merger other than one or more of the regulatory conditions have been or are capable of being satisfied at the time of each such extension and the regulatory conditions have been or are reasonably capable of being satisfied on or prior to April 30, 2005), except that this right to terminate the merger agreement is not available to any party whose failure to fulfill any obligation under the merger agreement has been the cause of the failure of the merger to close;
- if any governmental entity issues an order, decree or ruling or takes any other action permanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the merger, and such order, decree, ruling or other action has become final and nonappealable;
- if Ocular stockholders do not approve and adopt the merger agreement and approve the merger at its special meeting or at any postponements and
 adjournments thereof, except that Ocular may not terminate the merger agreement for this reason if Ocular's stockholders do not approve and adopt the
 merger agreement and approve the merger due to a breach by Ocular of its obligations under the merger agreement; or
- if Cooper stockholders do not approve the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger at its special meeting or at any postponements and adjournments thereof, except that Cooper may not terminate the merger agreement for this reason if Cooper's stockholders do not approve the issuance of Cooper common stock due to a breach by Cooper of its obligations under the merger agreement.

By Cooper

Cooper, by action of the Cooper board of directors, may terminate the merger agreement and abandon the merger at any time prior to completion of the merger, whether before or after approval of the merger and merger agreement by Ocular stockholders:

- if (i) the Ocular board of directors withdraws, modifies or qualifies its recommendation of the merger or the merger agreement, or fails within 5 business days of Cooper's request to reconfirm its recommendation; (ii) a tender offer or exchange offer that, if successful, would result in any person or group becoming a beneficial owner of 35% or more of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock is commenced and Ocular's board of directors fails to recommend that Ocular stockholders not tender their shares in such tender or exchange offer; (iii) any person or group becoming a beneficial owner of 35% or more of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock; or (iv) Ocular fails to call or hold its stockholders meeting by January 26, 2005, or if the outside date of January 31, 2005 is extended, the fifth day prior to the new outside date;
- if (i) since July 28, 2004, there has been any event, development or change of circumstance that constitutes, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect with respect to Ocular which is not cured within 20 days after Cooper has provided written notice to Ocular or (ii) Ocular has breached any of its covenants or agreements or any of its representations or warranties in the merger agreement becomes untrue or incorrect which breach or misrepresentation is not cured within 20 days after Cooper has provided written notice to Ocular stating its intention to terminate the merger agreement and the basis for its termination, and such breach or misrepresentation would cause certain of the closing conditions of the merger agreement relating to the accuracy of Ocular's representations and warranties or Ocular's performance or compliance with all its covenants and agreements under the merger agreement not to be satisfied; or
- if, prior to its stockholder approval of the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger, Cooper receives a conflicting proposal and Cooper's board
 of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with outside legal counsel, to enter into an agreement to effect the conflicting proposal,
 provided that Cooper may not terminate the merger agreement for this reason unless Cooper has complied with the non-solicitation provisions of the
 merger agreement and 5 business days have elapsed from delivery of written notice to Ocular of Cooper's determination to enter into an agreement to
 effect the conflicting proposal and Ocular has not submitted a binding offer which the Cooper board of directors has determined in its good faith
 judgment to be at least as favorable to Cooper stockholders as the conflicting proposal.

By Ocular

Ocular, by action of the Ocular board of directors, may terminate the merger agreement and abandon the merger at any time prior to completion of the merger, whether before or after approval of the merger agreement by Ocular stockholders:

- if (i) the Cooper board of directors withdraws, modifies or qualifies its recommendation of the issuance of the shares of Cooper common stock in the merger, or fails within 5 business days of Ocular's request to reconfirm its recommendation or (ii) Cooper fails to call or hold its stockholders meeting by January 26, 2005, or if the outside date of January 31, 2005 is extended, the fifth day prior to the new outside date;
- if (i) since July 28, 2004, there has been any event, development or change of circumstance that constitutes, individually or in the aggregate, a material
 adverse effect with respect to Cooper which is not cured within 20 days after Ocular has provided written notice to Cooper or (ii) either Cooper or
 TCC Acquisition has breached any of its covenants or agreements or any of its representations or warranties in the merger agreement becomes untrue
 or incorrect which breach or misrepresentation is not cured within 20 days after Ocular has provided written notice to Cooper stating its intention to
 terminate the merger agreement and the basis for such termination, and such breach or misrepresentation would cause

certain of the closing conditions of the merger agreement relating to the accuracy of Cooper's representations and warranties or Cooper's performance or compliance with all its covenants and agreements under the merger agreement not to be satisfied; or

if, prior to its stockholder adoption and approval of the merger agreement and approval of the merger, Ocular receives a superior proposal and Ocular's board of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with outside legal counsel, to enter into an agreement to effect the superior proposal, provided that Ocular may not terminate the merger agreement for this reason unless Ocular has complied with the non-solicitation provisions of the merger agreement and 5 business days have elapsed from delivery of written notice to Cooper of Ocular's determination to enter into an agreement to effect the superior proposal and Cooper has not submitted a binding offer which the Ocular board of directors has determined in its good faith judgment to be at least as favorable to Ocular stockholders as the superior proposal.

Termination Fee

Following negotiations, Cooper and Ocular agreed that the parties would pay termination fees and reimburse each other's expenses in the event that the transaction is terminated in certain circumstances. The amount of the termination fee and maximum expense reimbursement were determined based on dollar values acceptable to each of Cooper and Ocular, with reference to what was generally viewed as within the range of acceptable amounts for similar transactions.

To Be Paid by Cooper

Cooper has agreed to pay Ocular a termination fee of \$35 million if the merger agreement is terminated:

- by Ocular, because (i) the Cooper board of directors withdraws or adversely modifies or qualifies its recommendation of the issuance of Cooper common stock to Ocular stockholders in the merger or fails upon Ocular's request to reconfirm its recommendation within 5 business days after such request or (ii) Cooper fails to hold a stockholders meeting by January 26, 2005, or if outside date of January 31, 2005 is extended, the fifth day prior to the new outside date;
- by Cooper, because Cooper fails to obtain the requisite stockholder approval for the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger, and Ocular is entitled to terminate the merger agreement for reasons described in the previous bullet point;
- by Cooper, because Cooper receives a conflicting proposal prior to its stockholder approval of the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger and the Cooper board of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with outside legal counsel, to enter into an agreement to effect the conflicting proposal; or
- (i)(x) by Cooper or Ocular because Cooper stockholders did not approve the issuance of the Cooper common stock in the merger (other than Cooper if Ocular was entitled to terminate pursuant to the first bullet point above) or (y) by Ocular because Cooper or TCC Acquisition breached any of its covenants or agreements set forth in the merger agreement or any representation or warranty of Cooper or TCC Acquisition became untrue or incorrect and (ii) at any time after July 28, 2004 and before the vote at the Cooper stockholders meeting, a conflicting proposal has been publicly announced and not bona fide withdrawn and Cooper enters into a definitive agreement with respect to a conflicting proposal or completes a conflicting proposal, in either case, within 12 months following the termination of the merger agreement.

To Be Paid by Ocular

Ocular has agreed to pay Cooper a termination fee of \$35 million if the merger agreement is terminated:

- by Cooper, because (i) the Ocular board of directors withdraws or adversely modifies or qualifies its recommendation of the merger and merger agreement or fails upon Cooper's request to reconfirm its recommendation within 5 business days after such request, (ii) a tender offer or exchange offer that, if successful, would result in any person or group becoming a beneficial owner of 35% or more of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock is commenced and Ocular's board of directors fails to recommend that Ocular stockholders not tender their shares in such tender or exchange offer or (iii) Ocular fails to call or hold its stockholders meeting by January 26, 2005, or if the outside date of January 31, 2005 is extended, the fifth day prior to the new outside date;
- by Ocular, because Ocular fails to obtain the requisite stockholder approval for the merger and merger agreement and Cooper is entitled to terminate the merger agreement for reasons described in the previous bullet point;
- by Cooper, because any person or group became a beneficial owner of 35% or more of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock and within the 12 following months, Ocular completes an acquisition proposal or enters into a definitive agreement with respect to an acquisition proposal;
- (i)(x) by Cooper or Ocular, because Ocular stockholders did not approve and adopt the merger agreement and approve the merger agreement (other than Ocular if Cooper was entitled to terminate pursuant to the first bullet point above) or (y) by Cooper, because Ocular breached any of its covenants or agreements set forth in the merger agreement or any representation or warranty of Ocular became untrue or incorrect, and (ii) at any time after July 28, 2004 and before the vote at the Ocular stockholders meeting, an acquisition proposal has been publicly announced and not bona fide withdrawn and Ocular enters into a definitive agreement with respect to an acquisition proposal or completes an acquisition proposal, in either case, within the 12 months following the termination of the merger agreement; or
- by Ocular, because Ocular receives a superior proposal prior to its stockholder approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger and the Ocular board of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with outside legal counsel, to enter into an agreement to effect the superior proposal.

Except as described above and in "*Expenses*" below, neither party will have any liability to the other upon termination of the merger agreement, unless it breaches its obligations with respect to confidentiality under the merger agreement or willfully and materially breaches its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements under the merger agreement.

Expenses

Ocular has agreed to reimburse Cooper up to \$6 million for the reasonable documented out-of-pocket expenses incurred by Cooper in connection with the merger if the merger agreement is terminated because (i) the Ocular stockholders fail to adopt and approve the merger agreement and approve the merger, (ii) a material adverse effect with respect to Ocular has occurred and not cured within 20 days of written notice, (iii) Ocular has materially breached any of its covenants in the merger agreement or any of its representations or warranties have become untrue and incorrect, and such breach or misrepresentation is not cured within 20 days of written notice, or (iv) Cooper is entitled to a termination fee for any of the reasons as described in *"Termination Fee to be Paid by Ocular"* above.

Cooper has agreed to reimburse Ocular up to \$4.5 million for the reasonable documented out-of-pocket expenses incurred by Ocular in connection with the merger if the merger agreement is terminated because (i) the Cooper stockholders fail to approve the issuance of the shares of Cooper common stock in connection with the

merger, (ii) a material adverse effect with respect to Cooper has occurred and not cured within 20 days of written notice, (iii) either Cooper or TCC Acquisition has materially breached any of its covenants in the merger agreement or any of its representations or warranties have become untrue and incorrect, and such breach or misrepresentation is not cured within 20 days of written notice, or (iv) Ocular is entitled to a termination fee for any of the reasons as described in *"Termination Fee to be Paid by Cooper"* above.

Cooper and Ocular have agreed to each pay one-half of the expenses related to printing, filing and mailing this joint proxy statement/prospectus and all SEC and other regulatory filing fees incurred in connection with the registration statement and this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

Except as described in the previous three paragraphs, all expenses incurred by Cooper and Ocular in connection with the merger will be borne solely and entirely by the party which has incurred the expense.

Amendments, Extensions and Waivers

The merger agreement may be amended by action of the Cooper board of directors and the Ocular board of directors at any time prior to completion of the merger. However, after approval of the merger agreement by Ocular stockholders, no amendment may be made without further stockholder approval which, by law or in accordance with the rules of the any relevant stock exchange requires further approval by Ocular stockholders. All amendments to the merger agreement must be in writing and signed by each party.

At any time prior to completion of the merger, any party may (i) extend the time for the performance of any of the obligations or other acts of the other party, (ii) waive any inaccuracies in the representations and warranties of the other party contained in the merger agreement or in any document delivered pursuant to the merger agreement and (iii) waive compliance by the other party with any of the agreements or conditions contained in the merger agreement. However, after any approval of the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement by Ocular stockholders, no extension or waiver of any provisions of the merger agreement may be made without further stockholder approval which, by law or in accordance with the rules of any relevant stock exchange requires further approval by Ocular stockholders. Any extensions or waivers must be in writing signed by the party or parties to be bound, but such extension or waiver or failure to insist on strict compliance with an obligation, covenant, agreement or condition will not operate as a waiver of, or estoppel with respect to, any subsequent or other failure.

VOTING AGREEMENT

The following summary describes the material provisions of the voting agreement, which is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex B and is incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. This summary may not contain all of the information about the voting agreement that is important to you. Cooper and Ocular encourage you to read the voting agreement carefully in its entirety.

Concurrently with the execution and delivery of the merger agreement, Cooper and TCC Acquisition entered into a voting agreement with John D. Fruth, the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Ocular. As of the record date for the Ocular special meeting, Mr. Fruth beneficially owned shares of Ocular common stock, representing approximately 19% of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock.

Under the voting agreement, Mr. Fruth agreed to vote his shares of Ocular common stock:

- in favor of the approval of the merger and the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement and in favor of approval and adoption of the merger agreement;
- against any other acquisition proposal for Ocular;
- against any:
 - (a) change in a majority of persons who constitute the Ocular board of directors,
 - (b) amendment to the Ocular certificate of incorporation or bylaws, or
 - (c) other action involving Ocular or any subsidiary of Ocular which is intended, or could reasonably be expected, to impede, interfere with, discourage, impair or adversely affect the ability of Ocular to consummate the merger or the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement or the voting agreement; and
- against any action or agreement that would result in a material breach of any covenant, representation or warranty or any obligation of Ocular under the merger agreement.

Mr. Fruth has revoked any previous proxies granted with respect to the matters discussed above and has agreed not to grant any additional proxies or powers of attorney with respect to these matters, deposit any of his Ocular shares into a voting trust or enter into any additional voting agreements with respect to his Ocular shares.

The voting agreement also prohibits Mr. Fruth from transferring any shares of Ocular common stock, except to family members or charitable trusts in which Mr. Fruth retains all voting power with respect to the transferred shares.

Mr. Fruth also agreed not to offer, pledge, sell or otherwise transfer any shares of Cooper received in exchange for his Ocular shares through the merger for a period of three years from the date the merger is completed, excluding (a) the transfer by Mr. Fruth and his permitted transferees referred to in clause (b) of collectively up to 250,000 shares of Cooper each fiscal quarter pursuant to a 10b5-1 trading plan or otherwise and (b) all transfers to members of Mr. Fruth's immediate family or to a charitable foundation, provided that these transferees agree to be bound by the three-year transfer restriction. These transfer restrictions terminate when Mr. Fruth ceases to be a member of the Cooper board of directors.

The voting agreement, excluding the three-year transfer restrictions on Cooper stock received by Mr. Fruth, terminates upon the earliest to occur of:

- the termination of the merger agreement pursuant to its terms;
- the written agreement of both Mr. Fruth and Cooper; and
- completion of the merger.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial statements are based upon the historical consolidated condensed financial statements and notes thereto (as applicable) of Cooper and Ocular, which are incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed balance sheet gives pro forma effect to the merger as if the merger had been completed on April 30, 2004 and combines Cooper's April 30, 2004 unaudited consolidated condensed balance sheet with Ocular's June 30, 2004 unaudited consolidated condensed balance sheet. The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed statements of income give pro forma effect to the merger as if it had been completed on November 1, 2002 and combines Cooper's audited consolidated condensed statements of income for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2003 with Ocular's audited consolidated condensed statements of income for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, and Cooper's unaudited consolidated condensed statements of income for the six month period ended April 30, 2004 with Ocular's unaudited consolidated condensed statements of income for the six month period ended April 30, 2004 with Ocular's unaudited consolidated condensed statements of income for the six month period ended April 30, 2004 with Ocular's unaudited consolidated condensed statements of income for the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and equity instruments issued. The effect of these changes could be material.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial statements are based upon the estimates and assumptions set forth below. The pro forma adjustments (including estimates and assumptions) made in connection with the preparation of the pro forma information are preliminary and have been made solely for purposes of preparing the pro forma information for illustrative purposes necessary to comply with the disclosure requirements of the SEC. The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial statements do not purport to be indicative of the results of operations of the combined company for future periods or the consolidated financial position or results that actually would have been realized for the periods presented had Cooper and Ocular been a single entity during these periods. The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial statements do not give effect to any synergies or cost savings that may result from the integration of Cooper's and Ocular's businesses. Acquisition costs are estimated at \$50 million, including Cooper's estimated transaction expenses for the merger and costs of redundancies and other exit costs. These costs are only preliminary estimates, as the actual costs will depend on future decisions. Depending on the timing and nature of these decisions, the actual costs of redundancies and integration will either be recorded as part of the purchase price or charged to expense in the combined company's statement of operations in the period in which they are incurred.

These unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the historical consolidated condensed financial statements and related notes contained in the annual, quarterly and other reports filed by Cooper and Ocular with the SEC. See "*Where You Can Find More Information*" on page 118.

The acquisition will be accounted for as a purchase under GAAP. These unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial statements reflect a preliminary allocation of the purchase price. The preliminary allocations are subject to change based on finalization of the fair values of the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired has been classified as goodwill. The purchase price, in thousands, is computed as follows:

Cash	\$ 592,786
Fair value of shares issued	592,786
Less Ocular cash acquired	(50,721)
Total purchase price	\$1,134,851

The pro forma fair value of the Cooper common stock to be issued in the merger is based on the number of Ocular shares and in-the-money options outstanding on July 28, 2004, and an assumed fair value of the combined cash and stock consideration to be paid per Ocular share of \$44.00. The actual value of the Cooper common stock to be issued in the merger will depend on the actual number of shares of Ocular common stock and in-the-money options outstanding at the closing of the merger, based on an average of the closing prices of Cooper common stock for a range of trading days from two days before through two days after July 28, 2004, the announcement date.

The preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, net of deferred taxes, was estimated as follows, in thousands, for the purpose of preparing the pro forma financial statements as if the merger had been completed on April 30, 2004:

Tangible assets at fair value	\$ 302,431
Identifiable intangible assets	30,000
Goodwill	920,283
Other assets	12,991
Liabilities assumed	(130,854)
Total purchase price	\$1,134,851

The following is a summary of the pro forma adjustments reflected in the unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed balance sheet:

- A. Adjustment to record the elimination of Ocular's equity.
- B. Adjustment to record the purchase of Ocular including \$553 million in additional long term debt, \$553 million in Cooper common shares, \$50 million in accrued acquisition costs and \$30 million in purchased identifiable intangible assets with related deferred tax liability of \$2.7 million and goodwill of \$795 million representing the excess of purchase price over net assets acquired, subject to allocation. The fair value of in-process research and development, if any, will be expensed during the fiscal quarter in which the merger is completed.
- C. Adjustment to record the exchange of Ocular in-the-money options for cash of \$39 million and Cooper common stock with a fair value of \$39 million using a formula which compensates holders of such stock options in the same cash and stock ratio as the merger consideration received by Ocular stockholders.
- D. Adjustment to record debt acquisition costs.
- E. Adjustment to eliminate Ocular's identifiable intangible assets.
- F. Adjustment to record purchased property, plant and equipment at fair value, and related deferred tax asset.
- G. Adjustment to record purchased inventory at fair value.

The following is a summary of adjustments reflected in the unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed statements of income:

- H. Adjustment to record the reduction of royalty payments on specific patents under the terms of an existing royalty agreement, due to the acquisition of Ocular.
- I. Adjustment to record the sell through of purchased inventory recorded at fair value.
- J. Adjustment to eliminate Ocular's amortization of intangible assets acquired.
- K. Adjustment to record the amortization expense related to the amortizable intangible assets acquired, over useful lives of 15 years.

L. Adjustment to record the increase in interest expense at the LIBOR rate plus 175 basis points, with \$238 million fixed at LIBOR plus 375 basis points at the beginning of the term. Total acquisition related debt of \$646 million consists of \$593 million for the purchase price, approximately \$45 million for acquisition costs in the periods presented, and \$8 million for debt acquisition costs. A change of ¹/8 percent in the interest rate would result in a change in interest expense and net income of \$817,206 and \$696,257, before and after tax, respectively, on an annual basis.

Interest expense is calculated on the pro forma outstanding variable and fixed rate debt, using historical rates over the period, including amortization of debt acquisition costs and unused credit facility fees. Actual interest rates will differ, the effect of which could be material.

- M. Adjustment to record an income tax benefit from the individual pro forma adjustments based on the tax effects of statutory rates relative to the jurisdictions in which the income and deductions would be realized.
- N. Adjustment to the number of shares used to compute earnings per share for the issuance of 10.5 million shares to purchase Ocular.

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet

(In thousands) April 30, 2004

			April 50, 2004							
	Historical									
	April 30,									
	2004 Cooper	2004 Ocular	А	В	С	D	Е	F	G	Pro Forma Combined
ASSETS										
Current assets:										
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 20,731	\$ 50,721								\$ 71,452
Trade receivable, net	84,682	58,170								142,852
Marketable securities	2,372									2,372
Inventories	103,266	69,191							\$ 16,300	188,757
Deferred tax assets	20,381	4,979							\$ 10,000	25,360
Other current assets	22,819	18,777								41,596
Total current assets	254,251	201,838							\$ 16,300	472,389
Property, plant and equipment at cost	138,776	143,014						\$ (8,000)		273,790
Goodwill, net	308,448	44,533		\$ 795,474	\$ 78,620		\$ 12,756	5,200	\$ (16,300)	1,228,731
Other intangible assets, net	26,417	12,756		30,000			(12,756)			56,417
Deferred tax asset	12,667			(2,677)				2,800		12,790
Other assets	4,194	4,468	\$ (334,155)	334,155		\$ 8,400				17,062
	¢ 744 750	¢ 400 000	¢ (224.155)	¢ 1 150 050	¢ 70.000	¢ 0.400	¢	<u> </u>	¢	¢ 0.001.170
	\$ 744,753	\$ 406,609	\$ (334,155)	\$ 1,156,952	\$ 78,620	\$ 8,400	\$ -	\$ —	\$ —	\$ 2,061,179
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY										
Current liabilities:										
Short-term debt	\$ 23,877	\$ 398								\$ 24,275
Accounts payable	13,658	10,547								24,275
Accrued acquisition costs	12,943	10,347		\$ 50,000						62,943
Accrued income taxes	23,198	9,273		\$ 30,000						32,471
Other current liabilities	39,792	49,184								88,976
Ouler current natinities	33,732	45,104								00,970
Total current liabilities	113,468	69,402		50,000						232,870
Long-term debt and other noncurrent liabilities	154,872	3,052		553,476	\$ 39,310	\$ 8,400				759,110
5										
Total liabilities	268,340	72,454		603,476	39,310	8,400				991,980
Stockholders' equity:										
Common stock, \$.10 par value	3,325	25	\$ (25)	976	69					4,370
Additional paid-in capital	320,671	119,252	(119,252)	552,500	39,241					912,412
Accumulated other comprehensive income and other	18,163	16,874	(16,874)							18,163
Retained earnings	143,230	198,004	(198,004)							143,230
Treasury stock at cost	(8,976)									(8,976)
Total stockholders' equity	476,413	334,155	(334,155)	553,476	39,310					1,069,199
	\$ 744,753	\$ 406,609	\$ (334,155)	\$ 1,156,952	\$ 78,620	\$ 8,400	<u> </u>	<u>s </u>	<u> </u>	\$ 2,061,179
	J /44,/JJ	\$ 400,009	ə (334,155)	φ 1,100,952	¢ /0,020	¢ 0,400	ə —	ə —	ه —	\$ 2,001,179

See summary of the pro forma adjustments reflected in the unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial statements on pp. 94 and 95.

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Statements of Income

(In thousands, except per share figures) Twelve Months Ended October 31, 2003

		His	torical											
	E	cal Year Ended ober 31, 2003		scal Year Ended ember 31, 2003			Pr	ro Forma Adjust	ments					
	C	ooper		Ocular	н	I	J	K	L	М		N		Forma nbined
Net sales	\$	411,790	\$	310,563									\$ 72	22,353
Cost of sales		146,588		143,391	\$ (950)	\$ 16,300							30	05,329
Gross profit		265,202		167,172	950	(16,300)							42	17,024
Selling, general and administrative expense Research and development		162,852		114,320									22	77,172
expense		5,573		6,133										11,706
Amortization of intangibles		1,535		1,328			(1,328)	\$ 2,000						3,535
Restructuring and related expense		_		10,858									1	10,858
							<u> </u>	<u> </u>						
Operating income		95,242		34,533	950	(16,300)	1,328	(2,000)					1	13,753
Interest expense		6,964		634		(/	() (\$ 27,506					35,104
Other income, net		2,209		2,475										4,684
Income before income taxes		90,487		36,374	950	(16,300)	1,328	(2,000)	(27,506)					83,333
Provision for income taxes		21,717		9,820	930	(10,300)	1,520	(2,000)	(27,300)	\$ (10,670)				20,867
Net income	\$	68,770	\$	26,554	\$ 950	\$ (16,300)	\$ 1,328	\$ (2,000)	\$ (27,506)	\$ 10,670	\$	_	\$ (62,466
Earnings per share:														
Basic	\$	2.20											\$	1.50
Diluted Number of shares used to compute earnings per share:	\$	2.13											\$	1.46
Basic		31,226										0,452		41,678
Diluted		32,274									1	0,452	4	42,726

See summary of the pro forma adjustments reflected in the unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial statements on pp. 94 and 95.

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Statements of Income (In thousands, except per share figures)

Six Months Ended April 30, 2004

	Histo	orical							
	Six Months Ended	Six Months Ended			Pro Form	na Adjustments			
	April 30, 2004 Cooper	June 30, 2004 Ocular	н	J	K	L	М	Ν	Pro Forma Combined
Net sales	\$230,286	\$163,893							\$394,179
Cost of sales	81,945	69,311	\$(557)						150,699
Gross profit	148,341	94,582	557						243,480
Selling, general and									
administrative expense	92,114	62,946							155,060
Research and development									
expense	2,747	4,408							7,155
Amortization of intangibles	808	664		\$(664)	\$ 1,000				1,808
Restructuring and related									
expense		5,173							5,173
Operating income	52,672	21,391	557	664	(1,000)				74,284
Interest expense	2,979	258				\$ 13,611			16,848
Other income (loss), net	1,662	(313)							1,349
		·							
Income before income taxes	51,355	20,820	557	664	(1,000)	(13,611)			58,785
Provision for income taxes	11,301	5,207					\$(2,201)		14,307
Net income	\$ 40,054	\$ 15,613	\$ 557	\$ 664	\$(1,000)	\$(13,611)	\$ 2,201	\$ —	\$ 44,478
			_	_					
Earnings per share:									
Basic	\$ 1.24								\$ 1.04
Diluted	\$ 1.19								\$ 1.01
Number of shares used to									
compute earnings per share:									
Basic	32,359							10,452	42,811
Diluted	33,742							10,452	44,194

See summary of the pro forma adjustments reflected in the unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial statements on pp. 94 and 95.

DESCRIPTION OF COOPER CAPITAL STOCK

The following is a summary of the material terms of Cooper's capital stock. Because it is only a summary, it does not contain all the information that may be important to you. Accordingly, you should read carefully the more detailed provisions of the restated certificate of incorporation of Cooper, as amended, the amended and restated bylaws of Cooper and the Rights Agreement between Cooper and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as amended, each of which has been filed with the SEC. See "Comparison of Stockholder Rights and Corporate Governance Matters" on page 100.

General

As of the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, Cooper's authorized capital stock consists of:

- 70,000,000 shares of common stock, par value \$0.10 per share, and
- 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.10 per share.

As of the record date for the Cooper special meeting, preferred stock were issued and outstanding. shares of Cooper common stock were issued and outstanding and no shares of Cooper

Preferred Stock

The Cooper board of directors is authorized to determine the voting powers, if any, and the designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional, conversion and other special rights on any series of preferred stock, the number of shares constituting any series of preferred stock, and the designation of any series of preferred stock. In connection with Cooper's stockholder rights agreement, the Cooper board of directors has designated 175,000 shares of preferred stock as "Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock." See "*Comparison of Stockholder Rights and Corporate Governance Matters*—*Stockholder Rights Plan*" on page 104.

Common Stock

Holders of Cooper common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of holders of Cooper common stock. Subject to preferences that may be applicable to any outstanding preferred stock, holders of Cooper common stock are entitled to dividends as may be declared from time to time by the Cooper board of directors out of funds legally available for that purpose. Cooper has paid semi-annual dividends on its common stock ranging from \$0.025 to \$0.03 per share on six occasions since November 1, 2001. Holders of Cooper common stock have no preemptive, redemption, conversion or sinking fund rights. Upon a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Cooper, the holders of Cooper common stock are entitled to share equally and ratably in the assets of Cooper, if any, remaining after the payment of all debts and liabilities of Cooper and the liquidation preference of any outstanding Cooper preferred stock. All issued and outstanding shares of Cooper common stock are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

Transfer Agent

The transfer agent and registrar of the Cooper common stock is American Stock Transfer & Trust Company.

COMPARISON OF STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS

Cooper and Ocular are both incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. Until completion of the merger, the rights of holders of Ocular common stock are governed by the Delaware General Corporation Law, or the DGCL, the restated certificate of incorporation of Ocular and the bylaws of Ocular. After completion of the merger, Ocular stockholders will become stockholders of Cooper, and their rights will be governed by the DGCL, the restated certificate of incorporation of Cooper, as amended, the amended and restated bylaws of Cooper, and the Rights Agreement between Cooper and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as amended.

The rights of both Cooper and Ocular stockholders under Delaware law and their respective charters and bylaws are the same, in all material respects, with respect to matters such as cumulative voting, classification of the board of directors, removal of directors, amending the certificate of incorporation and bylaws, notice of stockholder meetings, proxies, dividends and restrictions on business combinations. The following is a summary of the material differences between the rights of Cooper stockholders and the rights of Ocular stockholders. While Cooper and Ocular believe that this summary covers the material differences between the two, this summary may not contain all of the information that is important to you. This summary is not intended to be a complete discussion of the respective rights of Cooper and Ocular stockholders, and it is qualified in its entirety by reference to the DGCL and the various documents of Cooper and Ocular referred to in this summary. You should carefully read this entire joint proxy statement/prospectus and the other documents referred to in this joint proxy statement/prospectus for a more complete understanding of the differences between being a stockholder of Cooper and Decular. Cooper and Ocular have filed with the SEC their respective documents referred to herein and will send copies of these documents to you upon your request. See "*Where You Can Find More Information*" on page 118.

	Ocular	Соорег
Authorized Capital Stock	The authorized capital stock of Ocular consists of 80,000,000 shares of common stock, par value of \$0.001 per share and 4,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value of \$0.001 per share. No shares of preferred stock are outstanding.	The total authorized capital stock of Cooper consists of 70,000,000 shares of common stock, par value \$0.10 per share and 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.10 per share. No shares of preferred stock are outstanding.
Number of Directors	The Ocular bylaws provide that the number of directors will be fixed from time to time by the Ocular board of directors. The Ocular board of directors currently consists of eight directors.	Cooper's bylaws provide that the number of directors of Cooper will be not less than six nor more than eleven, and will be fixed from time to time by Cooper's board of directors, The number of directors of Cooper currently is fixed at eight. Following the appointment of John D. Fruth and Edgar J. Cummins, currently directors of Ocular, as directors of Cooper upon completion of the merger, the board will consist of ten directors.
Vacancies on the Board of Directors	Ocular's certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that vacancies and newly created directorships may be filled by the stockholders, by the majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director.	Cooper's certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that vacancies and newly created directorships may be filled by a majority of the directors then in office, though less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director.

	Ocular	Cooper
Stockholder Action by Written Consent	Ocular's certificate of incorporation provides that Ocular's stockholders may only take action at annual or special meetings, and prohibits Ocular's stockholders from taking action by written consent.	Cooper's certificate of incorporation and bylaws permit action by the written consent of Cooper stockholders without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a consent in writing, setting forth the action to be taken, is signed by holders of outstanding stock that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote were present and voted. Such written consents are valid for a maximum of sixty days.
Special Meeting of Stockholders	Ocular's bylaws permit the chairman of the board, a majority of the board of directors, the chief executive officer, the president or the holders of at least ten percent of the shares of Ocular to call a special meeting.	Cooper's bylaws permit the chairman of the board, a majority of the board of directors or the holders of a majority of the shares of Cooper to call a special meeting.
Delivery and Notice Requirements of Stockholder Nominations and Proposals	Ocular's bylaws provide that, in order for a stockholder to nominate a person for election to the Ocular board of directors or to bring other business before an annual meeting of stockholders, the stockholder's notice must be delivered to the principal executive offices of Ocular not later than the close of business on the sixtieth day nor earlier than the ninetieth day prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year's annual meeting. Such stockholder's notice must set forth (i) as to each nominee, all information about the nominee that is required to be disclosed under Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (ii) as to each matter the stockholder proposes to bring before the meeting a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the meeting, the text of the proposal or resolution, the reasons for conducting such business at the meeting, and any material interest in such business of such stockholder, and, in each case, as to the stockholder giving the notice, the name and address of such stockholder and the class and number of shares of capital stock which are owned by such stockholder.	Cooper's bylaws provide that, in order for a stockholder to bring business before an annual meeting of stockholders or to nominate a person for election as a director, the stockholder's notice must be delivered to and received at the principal executive offices of Cooper not later than the close of business on the ninetieth day nor earlier than the close of business on the one hundred twentieth day prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year's annual meeting. Such stockholder's notice must set forth (i) as to each matter the stockholder proposes to bring before the meeting a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the meeting, the text of the proposal or resolution, the reasons for conducting such business at the meeting, and any material interest in such business of such stockholder, (ii) as to any nomination of a person for election as a director, certain specified information as to such person, and, in each case, as to the stockholder giving the notice, the name and address of such stockholder, the class and number of shares of capital stock which are owned by such stockholder, a

of capital stock which are owned by such stockholder, a representation that the stockholder is a holder of record of stock of Cooper entitled to vote at such meeting, and a representation as to whether the stockholder, or a group of which it is a member, intends to solicit proxies from stockholders in support of the proposal or nominee, as applicable.

Table of Contents		
	Ocular	Cooper
Limitation of Personal Liability of Directors	Ocular's certificate of incorporation provides that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, no director of Ocular shall be personally liable for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director.	Cooper's certificate of incorporation provides that a director of Cooper will not be personally liable to Cooper or Cooper's stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duties, except for liability for:
		 any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to Cooper or Cooper's stockholders;
		 acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;
		 payment of a dividend or the repurchase or redemption of stock in violation of Delaware law; or
		 any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.
Indemnification of Officers and Directors	Ocular's bylaws provide for indemnification of each person who was or is made a party to, or is threatened to be made a party to, or is involved in any action, suit or proceeding (a "proceeding"), by reason of the fact that he or she (or a person of whom he or she is the legal representative) is or was a director or officer of Ocular or is or was serving at the request of Ocular as a director or officer of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law against all expenses, liability and loss (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes and penalties and amounts paid or to be paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such person in connection therewith, and such indemnification shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director or officer and shall inure to the benefit of his or her heirs, executors	Cooper's bylaws provide for indemnification of any party who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise involved in any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, including any appeal ("proceeding") (other than a proceeding by or in the right of the Cooper) by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer or employee of Cooper or any predecessor corporation or entity, or is or was serving at the request of the Cooper as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the

shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director or officer and shall inure to the benefit of his or her heirs, executors and administrators. Ocular's bylaws further provide that Ocular will pay all expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred by such a director or officer in defending any such proceeding as such expenses are incurred in advance of its final disposition, except that Ocular is not required to advance any expenses to a person

against whom Ocular directly brings a claim, in a

102

best interests of the Cooper, and, with respect to any criminal

unlawful. The termination of any proceeding by judgment,

of the corporation, and,

proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was

order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere

or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he

reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests

Ocular

proceeding, alleging that such person has breached his or her duty of loyalty to Ocular, committed an act or omission not in good faith or that involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, or derived an improper personal benefit from a transaction. Cooper

with respect to any criminal proceeding, that he had reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful. Further, Cooper will indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise involved in any threatened, pending or completed proceeding by or in the right of Cooper to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer or employee of Cooper or any predecessor corporation or entity, or is or was serving at the request of Cooper as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with the defense or settlement of such proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best. interests of Cooper, except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to Cooper unless and only to the extent that the Court of Chancery or the court in which such proceeding was brought determines upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the Court of Chancery or such other court shall deem proper. However, Cooper shall indemnify any officer, director or employee in connection with any proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such person only if such proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the Board of Directors and any indemnification by reason of the fact that such person is or was serving at the request of Cooper as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise shall be reduced by the amount of any such expenses, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement for which such person has otherwise received payment (under any insurance policy, charter or by-law provision or otherwise). Expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred by a present or former director, officer or employee in defending a proceeding

Stockholder Rights Plan

Ocular

Ocular does not have a stockholder rights plan.

Cooper

shall be paid by Cooper in advance of the final disposition of any proceeding; provided, however, that if the Delaware General Corporation Law so requires, an advance of expenses incurred by any such person in his capacity as a present director or officer (and not in any other capacity in which service was or is rendered by such person, including without limitation any employee benefit plan) will be made only upon receipt by Cooper of an undertaking by or on behalf of such director or officer to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that he is not entitled to be indemnified by Cooper.

On October 29, 1997, Cooper adopted a stockholder rights plan pursuant to a rights agreement, and amended the rights agreement on September 25, 1998. The rights were adjusted pursuant to the agreement in connection with Cooper's two for one stock split, effected via a stock dividend, on November 22, 2002. The following description of the rights agreement is subject in its entirety to the terms and conditions of the rights agreement. You should read the rights agreement carefully. See *"Where You Can Find More Information"* on page 118.

Pursuant to Cooper's rights agreement, one-half of a right attaches to each share of Cooper common stock outstanding. Each right entitles the registered holder to purchase from Cooper one two-hundredth (1/200th) of a share of Cooper Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock at an initial purchase price of \$72.50, subject to customary antidilution adjustments. A holder of rights will not have any rights as a stockholder of Cooper by virtue of holding the rights. The rights expire in 2007 and are designed to assure that all Cooper stockholders receive fair and equal treatment in the event of any proposed takeover and to guard against partial tender offers, open market accumulation and other abusive tactics to gain control of the Company without paying all stockholders a premium. The Company's board of directors will be entitled to redeem the rights at \$0.01 per right at any time before, or within 10 days after, a person has acquired 20% or more of

Ocular Cooper the outstanding common stock. If a person becomes an "Acquiring Person", i.e., a person who acquires 20% or more of the outstanding common stock of Cooper, each right will entitle its holder to purchase, at the right's then-current exercise price, a number of shares of Cooper having a market value at that time of twice the right's exercise price. Rights held by the Acquiring Person will become void and will not be exercisable to purchase shares at the bargain purchase price. If Cooper is acquired in a merger or other business combination after a person has become an Acquiring Person, each right will entitle its holder to purchase, at the right's then-current exercise price, a number of the acquiring company's common shares having a market value at that time of twice the right's exercise price. This provision will not apply if an acquisition that results in ownership of 20% or more of the outstanding Cooper common stock under a merger or other acquisition agreement is made pursuant to a cash tender offer under the Exchange Act and filed with the SEC on Schedule 14d-1 or any successor form and if the board, on the advice of its investment banker, determines that a cash tender offer for all outstanding shares is fair and in the best interest of Cooper and its stockholders. Delaware law provides stockholders of a Delaware corporation Appraisal Rights Delaware law provides stockholders of a Delaware corporation involved in certain types of mergers the right to demand and involved in certain types of mergers the right to demand and receive payment of the fair value of their stock, known as receive payment of the fair value of their stock, known as appraisal rights. Appraisal rights are available to Ocular appraisal rights. Appraisal rights are not available to Cooper stockholders with respect to the merger. See "Appraisal Rights" stockholders with respect to the merger. on page 106.

APPRAISAL RIGHTS

Holders of shares of Ocular common stock who do not vote in favor of approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger and who properly demand appraisal of their shares will be entitled to appraisal rights in connection with the merger under Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, or the DGCL. Under Delaware law, holders of shares of Cooper common stock are not entitled to appraisal rights in connection with the merger.

The following discussion is not a complete statement of the law pertaining to appraisal rights under the DGCL and is qualified in its entirety by the full text of Section 262 which is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex E. The following summary does not constitute any legal or other advice nor does it constitute a recommendation that stockholders exercise their appraisal rights under Section 262. All references in Section 262 and in this summary to a "stockholder" are to the record holder of the shares of Ocular common stock as to which appraisal rights are asserted. A person having a beneficial interest in shares of Ocular common stock held of record in the name of another person, such as a broker, fiduciary, depositary or other nominee, must act promptly to cause the record holder to follow the steps summarized below properly and in a timely manner to perfect appraisal rights.

Under Section 262, persons who hold shares of Ocular common stock who do not vote in favor of approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger and who otherwise follow the procedures set forth in Section 262 will be entitled to have their shares appraised by the Delaware Court of Chancery and to receive payment in cash of the "fair value" of the shares, exclusive of any element of value arising from the accomplishment or expectation of the merger, together with a fair rate of interest, if any, as determined by the court.

Notice of Appraisal Rights. Under Section 262, where a merger is to be submitted for approval at a meeting of stockholders, as in the case of approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger by Ocular's stockholders, the corporation, not less than 20 days prior to the meeting, must notify each of its stockholders entitled to appraisal rights that appraisal rights are available and include in the notice a copy of Section 262. This joint proxy statement/prospectus shall constitute the notice, and the full text of Section 262 is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex E. Any holder of Ocular common stock who wishes to exercise appraisal rights, or who wishes to preserve such holder's right to do so, should review the following discussion and Annex E carefully because failure to timely and properly comply with the procedures specified will result in the loss of appraisal rights. Moreover, because of the complexity of the procedures for exercising the right to seek appraisal of shares of common stock, Ocular believes that if an Ocular stockholder considers exercising such rights, such stockholder should seek the advice of legal counsel.

Filing Written Demand. Any Ocular stockholder wishing to exercise appraisal rights must deliver to Ocular, before the vote on approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger at Ocular's annual meeting, a written demand for the appraisal of the stockholder's shares, and that stockholder must not vote in favor of approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger. A holder of shares of Ocular common stock wishing to exercise appraisal rights must hold of record the shares on the date the written demand for appraisal is made and must continue to hold the shares of record through completion of the merger, since appraisal rights will be lost if the shares are transferred prior to completion of the merger. The holder must not vote in favor of approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger, and it will constitute a waiver of the stockholder's right of appraisal and will nullify any previously delivered written demand for appraisal. Therefore, a stockholder who votes by proxy and who wishes to exercise appraisal rights must vote against approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger or abstain from voting on the merger agreement. Neither voting against approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger (in person or by proxy), nor abstaining from voting or failing to vote on the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and

approval of the merger will in and of itself constitute a written demand for appraisal satisfying the requirements of Section 262. The written demand for appraisal must be in addition to and separate from any proxy or vote. The demand must reasonably inform Ocular of the identity of the holder as well as the intention of the holder to demand an appraisal of the "fair value" of the shares held by the holder. A stockholder's failure to make the written demand prior to the taking of the vote on approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger at Ocular's annual meeting of stockholders will constitute a waiver of appraisal rights.

Only a holder of record of shares of Ocular common stock is entitled to assert appraisal rights for the shares registered in that holder's name. A demand for appraisal in respect of shares of Ocular common stock should be executed by or on behalf of the holder of record, fully and correctly, as the holder's name appears on the holder's stock certificates, should specify the holder's name and mailing address and the number of shares registered in the holder's name and must state that the person intends thereby to demand appraisal of the holder's shares in connection with the merger. If the shares are owned of record in a fiduciary capacity, such as by a trustee, guardian or custodian, execution of the demand should be made in that capacity, and if the shares are owned of record by more than one person, as in a joint tenancy and tenancy in common, the demand should be executed by or on behalf of all joint owners. An authorized agent, including an agent for two or more joint owners, may execute a demand for appraisal on behalf of a holder or record; however, the agent must identify the record owner or owners and expressly disclose that, in executing the demand, the agent is acting as agent for the record owner or owners. If the shares are held in "street name" by a broker, bank or nominee, the broker, bank or nominee may exercise appraisal rights with respect to the shares held for one or more beneficial owners; while not exercising the rights with respect to the shares held for other beneficial owners; in such case, however, the written demand should set forth the number of shares as to which appraisal is sought and where no number of shares is expressly mentioned the demand will be presumed to cover all shares of Ocular common stock held in the name of the record owner. Stockholders who hold their shares in brokerage accounts or other nominee forms and who wish to exercise appraisal rights are urged to consult with their brokers to determine the appropriate procedures for the making of a demand for appraisal by

All written demands for appraisal pursuant to Section 262 should be sent or delivered to Ocular Sciences, Inc., 1855 Gateway Boulevard, Seventh Floor, Concord, CA 94520-3200, California 94043, Attention: Corporate Secretary.

Withdrawal of Demand. Any holder of Ocular common stock may withdraw his, her or its demand for appraisal and accept the consideration offered pursuant to the merger agreement by delivering to the surviving corporation a written withdrawal of the demand for appraisal. However, any such attempt to withdraw the demand made more than 60 days after the effective date of the merger will require written approval of the surviving corporation. No appraisal proceeding in the Delaware Court of Chancery will be dismissed without the approval of the Delaware Court of Chancery, and such approval may be conditioned upon such terms as the Court deems just. If the surviving corporation does not approve a request to withdraw a demand for appraisal when that approval is required, or if the Delaware Court of Chancery does not approve the dismissal of an appraisal proceeding, the Ocular stockholder will be entitled to receive only the appraised value determined in any such appraisal proceeding, which value could be less than, equal to or more than the consideration being offered pursuant to the merger agreement.

Notice by the Surviving Corporation. Within ten days after completion of the merger, the surviving corporation must notify each holder of Ocular common stock who has made a written demand for appraisal pursuant to Section 262, and who has not voted in favor of approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger, that the merger has become effective.

Filing a Petition for Appraisal. Within 120 days after completion of the merger, but not thereafter, the surviving corporation or any holder of Ocular common stock who has so complied with Section 262 and is entitled to appraisal rights may file a petition in the Delaware Court of Chancery demanding a determination of the fair value of the shares held by all dissenting holders. The surviving corporation is under no obligation to and

has no present intention to file a petition and holders should not assume that the surviving corporation will file a petition. Accordingly, it is the obligation of the holders of Ocular common stock to initiate all necessary action to perfect their appraisal rights in respect of shares of Ocular common stock within the time prescribed in Section 262. Within 120 days after completion of the merger, any holder of Ocular common stock who has complied with the requirements for exercise of appraisal rights will be entitled, upon written request, to receive from the surviving corporation a statement setting forth the aggregate number of shares not voted in favor of approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger and with respect to which demands for appraisal have been received and the aggregate number of holders of such shares. The statement must be mailed within ten days after a written request therefore has been received by the surviving corporation or within ten days after the expiration of the period for delivery of demands for appraisal, whichever is later.

Under the merger agreement, Ocular has agreed to provide Cooper notice of any demands for appraisal received by it. Cooper will have the right to participate in and direct all negotiations and proceedings with respect to demands for appraisal under Section 262 of the DGCL. Ocular will not voluntarily make any payments with respect to, or settle or offer to settle, any demand for appraisal without the prior written consent of Cooper. If a petition for an appraisal is timely filed by a holder of shares of Ocular common stock and a copy thereof is served upon the surviving corporation, the surviving corporation will then be obligated within 20 days to file with the Delaware Register in Chancery a duly verified list containing the names and addresses of all stockholders who have demanded an appraisal of their shares and with whom agreements as to the value of their shares have not been reached. After notice to the stockholders as required by the court, the Delaware Court of Chancery is empowered to conduct a hearing on the petition to determine those stockholders who have complied with Section 262 and who have become entitled to appraisal rights thereunder. The Delaware Court of Chancery may require the stockholders who demanded payment for their shares to submit their stock certificates to the Register in Chancery for notation thereon of the pendency of the appraisal proceeding; and if any stockholder fails to comply with the direction, the Court of Chancery may dismiss the proceedings as to the stockholder.

Determination of Fair Value. After determining the holders of Ocular common stock entitled to appraisal, the Delaware Court of Chancery will appraise the "fair value" of their shares, exclusive of any element of value arising from the accomplishment or expectation of the merger, together with a fair rate of interest, if any, to be paid upon the amount determined to be the fair value. In determining fair value and, if applicable, a fair rate of interest, the Court of Chancery of Delaware will take into account all relevant factors. In *Weinberger v. UOP, Inc.*, the Supreme Court of Delaware discussed the factors that could be considered in determining fair value in an appraisal proceeding, stating that "proof of value by any techniques or methods that are generally considered acceptable in the financial community and otherwise admissible in court" should be considered, and that "fair price obviously requires consideration of all relevant factors involving the value of a company." The Delaware Supreme Court stated that, in making this determination of fair value, the court must consider market value, asset value, dividends, earnings prospects, the nature of the enterprise and any other facts that could be ascertained as of the date of the merger that throw any light on future prospects of the merged corporation. Section 262 provides that fair value is to be "exclusive of any element of value arising from the accomplishment or expectation of the merger." In *Cede & Co. v. Technicolor, Inc.*, the Delaware Supreme Court stated that such exclusion is a "narrow exclusion [that] does not encompass known elements of value," but which rather applies only to the speculative elements of value arising from such accomplishment or expectation. In *Weinberger*, the Supreme Court of Delaware also stated that "elements of future value, including the nature of the enterprise, which are known or susceptible of proof as of the date of the merger and not the product of speculation, may be considered."

Stockholders considering seeking appraisal should be aware that the fair value of their shares as so determined could be more than, the same as or less than the merger consideration they would receive pursuant to the merger (0.3879 shares of Cooper common stock and \$22.00 for each one share of Ocular common stock) if they did not seek appraisal of their shares and that an investment banking opinion as to fairness from a financial point of view is not necessarily an opinion as to fair value under Section 262. Although Ocular believes that the merger consideration is fair, no representation is made as to the outcome of the appraisal of fair value as determined by the Delaware Court of Chancery, and stockholders should recognize that such an appraisal could

result in a determination of a value higher or lower than, or the same as, the merger consideration. Neither Ocular nor Cooper anticipate offering more than the applicable merger consideration to any Ocular stockholder exercising appraisal rights, and reserve the right to assert, in any appraisal proceeding, that for purposes of Section 262, the "fair value" of a share of Ocular common stock is less than the applicable merger consideration, and that the methods which are generally considered acceptable in the financial community and otherwise admissible in court should be considered in the appraisal proceedings. In addition, Delaware courts have decided that the statutory appraisal remedy, depending on factual circumstances, may or may not be a dissenter's exclusive remedy. The Delaware Court of Chancery will also determine the amount of interest, if any, to be paid upon the amounts to be received by persons whose shares of Ocular common stock have been appraised. If a petition for appraisal is not timely filed, then the right to an appraisal will cease. The costs of the action may be determined by the Court and taxed upon the parties as the Court deems equitable under the circumstances. The Court may also order that all or a portion of the expenses incurred by a stockholder in connection with an appraisal, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and the fees and expenses of experts utilized in the appraisal proceeding, be charged pro rata against the value of all the shares entitled to be appraised.

If any stockholder who demands appraisal of shares of Ocular common stock under Section 262 fails to perfect, or successfully withdraws or loses, such holder's right to appraisal, the stockholder's shares of Ocular common stock will be deemed to have been converted upon completion of the merger into the right to receive 0.3879 shares of Cooper common stock and \$22.00, without interest for each share of Ocular common stock owned by such stockholder (and cash in lieu of any fractional shares) that constitutes the merger consideration under the merger agreement. A stockholder will fail to perfect, or effectively lose or withdraw, the holder's right to appraisal if no petition for appraisal is filed within 120 days after completion of the merger or if the stockholder delivers to the surviving corporation a written withdrawal of the holder's demand for appraisal and an acceptance of the merger, in accordance with Section 262.

From and after completion of the merger, no dissenting stockholder shall have any rights of an Ocular stockholder with respect to that holder's shares for any purpose, except to receive payment of fair value and to receive payment of dividends or other distributions on the holder's shares of Ocular common stock, if any, payable to Ocular stockholders of record as of a time prior to completion of the merger; provided, however, that if a dissenting stockholder delivers to the surviving company a written withdrawal of the demand for an appraisal within 60 days after completion of the merger or subsequently with the written approval of the surviving company, or, if no petition for appraisal is filed within 120 days after completion of the merger, then the right of that dissenting stockholder to an appraisal will cease and the dissenting stockholder will be entitled to receive only the merger consideration. Once a petition for appraisal is filed with the Delaware court, the appraisal proceeding may not be dismissed as to any Ocular stockholder without the approval of the court.

Failure to comply strictly with all of the procedures set forth in Section 262 of the DGCL will result in the loss of a stockholder's statutory appraisal rights. Consequently, any stockholder wishing to exercise appraisal rights is urged to consult legal counsel before attempting to exercise those rights.

THE COOPER SPECIAL MEETING

Date, Time, Place and Purpose of the Cooper Special Meeting

The special meeting of Cooper stockholders will be held at 10:00 a.m. local time on , 2004 at The Benjamin Hotel, 152 East 50th Street, New York, New York to consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the issuance of Cooper common stock pursuant to the merger agreement.

Cooper may also transact such other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournments or postponements thereof.

Recommendation of the Cooper Board of Directors

The Cooper board of directors has unanimously approved the merger agreement, and unanimously recommends that Cooper stockholders vote "FOR" approval of the issuance of Cooper common stock to Ocular stockholders pursuant to the merger agreement. See "*The Merger*—*Reasons for the Merger*—*Cooper*" on page 43.

Record Date; Outstanding Shares; Shares Entitled to Vote

Only holders of record of Cooper common stock at the close of business on the record date, , 2004, are entitled to notice of and to vote at the special meeting. As of the record date, there were shares of Cooper common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the special meeting, held by approximately holders of record. A list of Cooper stockholders will be available for review at The Benjamin Hotel during regular business hours for a period of ten days before the special meeting. Each holder of Cooper common stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Cooper common stock he or she owned as of the record date.

Quorum and Vote Required

A quorum of stockholders is necessary to hold a valid special meeting. The presence, in person or by proxy, of shares of Cooper common stock representing a majority of shares of Cooper common stock outstanding and entitled to vote on the Cooper record date is necessary to constitute a quorum at the Cooper special meeting. Abstentions and "broker non-votes," discussed below, count as present for establishing a quorum.

Stockholder approval of the issuance of Cooper common stock pursuant to the merger agreement is required under the regulations of the New York Stock Exchange. The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of shares of Cooper common stock cast on such proposal, in person or by proxy, is required for such approval provided that the total votes cast on the proposal represent a majority of the outstanding shares of Cooper common stock entitled to vote on the proposal.

As of the record date for the special meeting, the directors and executive officers of Cooper as a group beneficially owned and were entitled to vote approximately shares of Cooper common stock, or approximately % of the outstanding shares of Cooper on that date.

Votes will be counted by the inspector of elections appointed for the meeting, who will separately tabulate "FOR" and "AGAINST" votes, abstentions and broker non-votes with respect to the proposal to approve the issuance of Cooper common stock pursuant to the merger agreement.

Voting; Proxies; Revocation

Cooper stockholders may vote by proxy or in person at the special meeting.

Voting in Person

If you plan to attend the special meeting and wish to vote in person, you will be given a ballot at the special meeting. Please note, however, that if your shares are held in "street name," which means your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee, and you wish to vote at the special meeting, you must bring to the special meeting a proxy from the record holder of the shares authorizing you to vote at the special meeting.

Voting by Proxy

You should vote your proxy even if you plan to attend the special meeting. You can always change your vote at the special meeting. Voting instructions are included on your proxy card. If you properly grant your proxy and submit it to Cooper in time to vote, one of the individuals named as your proxy will vote your shares as you have directed. If no instructions are indicated on a properly executed proxy card or voting instruction, the shares will be voted "FOR" the approval of the proposal.

If other matters properly come before the Cooper special meeting, the shares represented by proxies will be voted, or not voted, by the individuals named in the proxies in their discretion. No proxy that is voted against approval of the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger will be voted in favor of any adjournment or postponement of the Cooper special meeting for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies.

If you are the record holder of Cooper shares of common stock, you may submit your proxy through the mail by completing your proxy card, and signing, dating and returning it in the enclosed, pre-addressed, postage-paid envelope. To be valid, a returned proxy card must be signed and dated.

If you are not the record holder of your shares, you must provide the record holder of your shares with instructions on how to vote your shares. The bank, broker or other nominee holding your shares may allow you to deliver your voting instructions by telephone or over the internet. Cooper stockholders whose shares are held by a bank, broker or other nominee should refer to their voting instruction card forwarded by the bank, broker or other nominee holding their shares. If your voting instruction card does not include telephone or internet voting instructions, please complete and return your voting instruction card by mail.

Revocation of Proxy

You may revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted at the Cooper special meeting by:

- delivering to the Secretary of Cooper a signed notice of revocation, bearing a date later than the date of the proxy, stating that the proxy is revoked;
- granting a new proxy, relating to the same shares and bearing a later date; or
- attending the special meeting and voting in person; however, attendance at the special meeting will not, by itself, revoke a proxy.

If your shares are held in the name of a broker, bank or other nominee, you may change your vote by submitting new voting instructions to your broker, bank or other nominee. You must contact your broker, bank or other nominee to find out how to do so.

Written notices of revocation and other communications with respect to the revocation of Cooper proxies should be addressed to:

The Cooper Companies, Inc. 6140 Stoneridge Mall Road, Suite 590 Pleasanton, CA 94588 Attn: Corporate Secretary

Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes

Abstentions and "broker non-votes" will be counted in determining whether a quorum is present at the Cooper special meeting. Abstentions, which occur when a stockholder attends a meeting, either in person or by proxy, but abstains from voting, and "broker non-votes," which occur when a nominee holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the nominee does not have discretionary authority with respect to the proposal, will not count as votes either for or against the proposal to approve the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger or towards the total votes cast on the proposal for purposes of determining if the necessary majority of outstanding shares has voted on the proposal.

Proxy Solicitation

Cooper is soliciting proxies for the Cooper special meeting from Cooper stockholders. Cooper will bear the entire cost of soliciting proxies from Cooper stockholders, except that Cooper and Ocular have each agreed to pay one-half of the costs of filing, printing and mailing this joint proxy statement/prospectus and related proxy materials. In addition to the solicitation of proxies by mail, Cooper will request that banks, brokers and other record holders send proxies and proxy materials to the beneficial owners of Cooper common stock held by them and secure their voting instructions if necessary. Cooper will reimburse those record holders for their reasonable expenses in so doing. Cooper has also made arrangements with D.F. King & Company, Inc. to assist it in soliciting proxies, and has agreed to pay a fee of approximately \$10,000 plus expenses for those services. Cooper also may use several of its regular employees, who will not be specially compensated, to solicit proxies from Cooper stockholders, either personally or by telephone, internet, telegram, facsimile or special delivery letter.

Other Business; Adjournments

Cooper does not expect that any matter other than the proposal presented in this joint proxy statement/prospectus will be brought before the Cooper special meeting. However, if other matters incident to the conduct of the special meeting are properly presented at the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the special meeting, the persons named as proxies will vote in accordance with their best judgment with respect to those matters. Under the laws of the State of Delaware, no business may be raised at the Cooper special meeting unless proper notice to Cooper stockholders has been given not less than 10 nor more than 60 days before the date of the meeting. In addition, Cooper's bylaws provide that no matter may be brought before a special meeting that is not stated in the notice of the special meeting.

Adjournments may be made for the purpose of, among other things, soliciting additional proxies. An adjournment may be made from time to time by approval of the holders of shares representing a majority of the votes present in person or by proxy at the Cooper special meeting, whether or not a quorum exists, without further notice other than by an announcement made at the special meeting. If the adjournment is for more than 30 days, a notice of the adjourned meeting will be given to each stockholder entitled to vote at the meeting. Cooper does not currently intend to seek an adjournment of the special meeting. No proxy that is voted against approval of the issuance of Cooper common stock in the merger will be voted in favor of any adjournment or postponement of the Cooper special meeting for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies.

Assistance

If you need assistance in completing your proxy card or have questions regarding the Cooper special meeting, please contact:

Cooper's proxy solicitor at: D.F. King & Co., Inc. 48 Wall Street New York, NY 10005 (800) 549-6697

or Investor Relations at Cooper at:

Investor Relations The Cooper Companies, Inc. 21062 Bake Parkway, Ste 200 Lake Forest, CA 92630 Tel: (949) 597-4700 Fax: (949) 768-3688 Email: ir@coopercos.com

THE OCULAR SPECIAL MEETING

Date, Time, Place and Purpose of the Ocular Special Meeting

The special meeting of Ocular stockholders will be held at 10:00 a.m. local time on Concord, California.

, 2004 at the Hilton Concord, 1970 Diamond Boulevard,

The Ocular special meeting is being held to consider and vote upon a proposal to approve and adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 28, 2004, by and among Cooper, TCC Acquisition Corp., which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cooper, and Ocular, and to approve the merger contemplated by the merger agreement.

Ocular may also transact such other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournments or postponements thereof.

Recommendation of the Ocular Board of Directors

The Ocular board of directors has unanimously adopted the merger agreement and unanimously recommends that Ocular stockholders vote "FOR" approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger. See "*The Merger*—*Reasons for the Merger*—*Ocular*" on page 46.

Record Date; Outstanding Shares; Shares Entitled to Vote

Only holders of record of Ocular common stock at the close of business on the record date, , 2004, are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Ocular special meeting. As of the record date, there were shares of Ocular common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the special meeting, held by holders of record. A list of Ocular stockholders will be available for review at the executive offices of Ocular during regular business hours for a period of ten days before the special meeting. Each holder of Ocular common stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Ocular common stock he or she owned as of the record date. If you do not vote, either in person or by proxy, it will have the same effect as voting against the merger agreement.

Quorum and Vote Required

A quorum of stockholders is necessary to hold a valid special meeting. The required quorum for the transaction of business at the special meeting is a majority of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock entitled to vote and present, whether in person or by proxy, at the special meeting. Abstentions and "broker non-votes," discussed below, count as present for establishing a quorum.

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock entitled to vote at the special meeting is required to approve the merger agreement.

John D. Fruth, Chairman of the Board of Directors of Ocular, who beneficially owned as of the record date approximately shares, or approximately 19% of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock, has executed a voting agreement in which he has agreed to vote in favor of the approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger. See *"Voting Agreement"* on page 92.

As of the record date for the Ocular special meeting, the directors and executive officers of Ocular and their affiliates (excluding John D. Fruth) as a group beneficially owned approximately shares of Ocular common stock, or % of the outstanding shares of Ocular on that date.

Votes will be counted by the inspector of elections appointed for the meeting, who will separately tabulate "FOR" and "AGAINST" votes, abstentions and broker non-votes with respect to the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and approve the merger.

Voting; Proxies; Revocation

You may vote by proxy or in person at the Ocular special meeting.

Voting in Person

If you plan to attend the Ocular special meeting and wish to vote in person, you will be given a ballot at the special meeting. Please note, however, that if your shares are held in "street name," which means your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee, and you wish to vote at the special meeting, you must bring to the special meeting a proxy from the record holder of the shares authorizing you to vote at the special meeting.

Voting by Proxy

You should vote your proxy even if you plan to attend the Ocular special meeting. You can always change your vote at the special meeting. Voting instructions are included on your proxy card. If you properly give your proxy and submit it to Ocular in time to vote, one of the individuals named as your proxy will vote your shares as you have directed.

The method of voting by proxy differs for shares held as a record holder and shares held in street name. If you hold your shares of Ocular common stock as a record holder you should complete, date and sign the enclosed proxy card and promptly return it in the enclosed, pre-addressed, postage-paid envelope or otherwise mail it to Ocular. If you hold your shares of Ocular common stock in street name, you will receive instructions from your broker, bank or other nominee that you must follow in order to vote your shares. Your broker or bank may allow you to deliver your voting instructions by the telephone or over the internet. Please follow the instructions that are provided by your broker or bank.

All properly signed proxies that are received prior to the special meeting and that are not revoked will be voted at the special meeting according to the instructions indicated on the proxies or; if no direction is indicated, "FOR" approval of the merger agreement.

You should not send in any certificates representing Ocular common stock at this time. Following completion of the merger, you will receive instructions for the surrender and exchange of your Ocular stock certificates.

Revocation of Proxy

You may revoke your proxy at any time before it is exercised at the Ocular special meeting by taking any of the following actions:

- delivering to the Secretary of Ocular a signed notice of revocation, bearing a date later than the date of the proxy, stating that the proxy is revoked;
- signing and delivering a new proxy, relating to the same shares and bearing a later date; or
- attending the special meeting and voting in person, however, attendance at the special meeting will not, by itself, revoke a proxy.

If your shares are held in street name, you may change your vote by submitting new voting instructions to your brokers, bank or other nominee. You must contact your broker, bank or other nominee to find out how to do so.

Written notices of revocation and other communications with respect to the revocation of Ocular proxies should be addressed to:

Ocular Sciences, Inc. 1855 Gateway Boulevard, Suite 700 Concord, CA 94520 Attn: Corporate Secretary

Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Ocular common stock as of the record date will be required to adopt the merger agreement. As a result, abstentions and broker non-votes will have the same effect as voting "AGAINST" the approval and adoption of the merger agreement and approval of the merger.

Proxy Solicitation

Ocular is soliciting proxies for the special meeting from stockholders of Ocular. Ocular will bear the entire cost of soliciting proxies from Ocular stockholders, except that Ocular and Cooper have each agreed to pay one-half of the costs of filing, printing and mailing this joint proxy statement/prospectus and related proxy materials. In addition to the solicitation of proxies by mail, Ocular will request that banks, brokers and other record holders send proxies and proxy materials to the beneficial owners of Ocular common stock held by them and secure their voting instructions if necessary. Ocular will reimburse those record holders for their reasonable expenses in so doing. Ocular has also made arrangements with Strategic Stock Surveillance, LLC to assist it in soliciting proxies, and has agreed to pay a fee of approximately \$7,500 plus expenses for those services. Ocular also may use several of its regular employees, who will not be specially compensated, to solicit proxies from Ocular stockholders, either personally or by telephone, internet, telegram, facsimile or special delivery letter.

Other Business; Adjournments

Ocular does not expect that any matter other than the proposal presented in this joint proxy statement/prospectus will be brought before the Ocular special meeting. However, if other matters incident to the conduct of the special meeting are properly presented at the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the special meeting, the persons named as proxies will vote in accordance with their best judgment with respect to those matters. Under Delaware law, no business may be raised at the Ocular special meeting unless proper notice to Ocular stockholders has been given not less than ten nor more than 60 days before that date of the meeting. In addition, Ocular's bylaws provide that no matter may be bought before a special meeting that is not stated in the notice of the special meeting.

Adjournments may be made for the purpose of, among other things, soliciting additional proxies. An adjournment may be made from time to time by approval of the holders of shares representing a majority of the votes present in person or by proxy at the special meeting, whether or not a quorum exists, without further notice other than by an announcement made at the special meeting. Ocular does not currently intend to seek an adjournment of the special meeting. No proxy that is voted against adoption and approval of the merger and approval of the merger will be voted in favor of any adjournment or postponement of the Ocular special meeting for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies.

Assistance

If you need assistance in completing your proxy card or have questions regarding the Ocular special meeting, please contact:

Ocular's proxy solicitor at: Strategic Stock Surveillance, LLC 331 Madison Avenue New York, NY (866) 657-8728 (toll free) or investor relations of Ocular at:

EVC Group, Inc. 90 Montgomery Street Suite 1001 San Francisco, CA 94165 Tel: (415) 896-6820 Email: ocularir@evcgroup.com

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION LEGAL MATTERS

The legality of Cooper common stock offered by this joint proxy statement/prospectus will be passed upon for Cooper by its counsel, Latham & Watkins LLP. Certain United States federal income tax consequences of the merger will be passed upon for Cooper by Latham & Watkins LLP and for Ocular by Fenwick & West LLP. Certain attorneys of Latham & Watkins LLP and their families own beneficial interests in less than 1%, in the aggregate, of the outstanding shares of Cooper common stock.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of The Cooper Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of October 31, 2003 and 2002, and for each of the years in the three-year period ended October 31, 2003, have been incorporated by reference herein in reliance upon the reports of KPMG LLP, independent accountants, incorporated by reference herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing. The audit report covering the October 31, 2003 financial statements refers to a change in accounting for Goodwill and Intangible Assets in 2002.

The consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of Ocular Sciences, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003 have been incorporated by reference herein in reliance upon the reports of KPMG LLP, independent accountants, incorporated by reference herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing. The audit report covering the December 31, 2003 financial statements refers to a change in accounting for Goodwill and Intangible Assets in 2002.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

Pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, stockholders may present proper proposals for inclusion in Cooper's proxy statement and for consideration at Cooper's next annual meeting of stockholders, which is currently scheduled to occur on or around March 23, 2005. To be eligible for inclusion in Cooper's 2005 proxy statement, your proposal must be received by Cooper no later than October 11, 2004 and must otherwise comply with Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In addition, Cooper's bylaws contain an advance notice provision with respect to matters to be brought at a special meeting of stockholders and not included in Cooper's proxy statement. Further, if you would like to nominate a director or bring any other business before the stockholders at the 2005 annual meeting other than pursuant to Rule 14a-8 of the Exchange Act, you must comply with the procedures contained in the bylaws and you must notify Cooper in writing and such notice must be delivered to or received by the Secretary no later than the close of business on the ninetieth day nor earlier than the close of business on the one hundred twentieth day prior to March 23, 2005. While the board will consider stockholder proposals, Cooper reserves the right to omit from Cooper's 2005 proxy statement any stockholder proposal that it is not required to include under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including Rule 14a-8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

You may write to the Secretary of Cooper at Cooper's principal executive office, The Cooper Companies, Inc., 6140 Stoneridge Mall Road, Suite 590, Pleasanton, CA 94588, Attn: Corporate Secretary, to deliver the notices discussed above and for a copy of the relevant bylaw provisions regarding the requirements for making stockholder proposals and nominating director candidates.

Ocular will hold its annual meeting of stockholders in 2005 only if the merger has not already been completed. If such a meeting is held, stockholder proposals will be eligible for consideration for inclusion in the proxy statement for the 2005 annual meeting in accordance with Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 if such proposals are received by Ocular before the close of business on December 23, 2004. Stockholders that intend to present a proposal that will not be included in the proxy statement for the 2005 annual meeting must give notice of the proposal to Ocular no fewer than 60 nor more than 90 days prior to May 21,

2005. Even if Ocular receives a proposal from a stockholder in a timely manner, it will not guarantee that the proposal will be included in the proxy statement or that it will be presented at the 2005 annual meeting because other requirements exist under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

You may write to the Secretary of Ocular at the following address: Ocular Sciences, Inc., 1855 Gateway Boulevard, Suite 700, Concord, CA 94520, Attn: Corporate Secretary, to deliver the notices discussed above and for a copy of the relevant bylaw provisions regarding the requirements for making stockholder proposals and nominating director candidates.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

Cooper and Ocular file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy these reports, statements or other information filed by either Cooper or Ocular at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference rooms. The SEC filings of Cooper and Ocular are also available to the public from commercial document retrieval services and at the website maintained by the SEC at http://www.sec.gov.

Cooper has filed a registration statement on Form S-4 to register with the SEC the Cooper common stock to be issued to Ocular stockholders in the merger. This joint proxy statement/prospectus is a part of that registration statement and constitutes a proxy statement and a prospectus of Cooper, in addition to being a proxy statement of Ocular for the Ocular special meeting. The registration statement, including the attached exhibits and schedules, contains additional relevant information about Cooper and Ocular and Cooper common stock. As allowed by SEC rules, this joint proxy statement/prospectus does not contain all the information you can find in the registration statement or the exhibits to the registration statement.

The SEC allows Cooper and Ocular to "incorporate by reference" information into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. This means that Cooper and Ocular can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this joint proxy statement/prospectus, except for any information that is superseded by information that is included directly in this joint proxy statement/prospectus or incorporated by reference subsequent to the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

This joint proxy statement/prospectus incorporates by reference the documents listed below that Cooper and Ocular have previously filed with the SEC. They contain important information about Cooper and Ocular and their financial condition. The following documents, which were filed by Cooper with the SEC, are incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus:

- annual report of Cooper on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2003, filed with the SEC on January 28, 2004;
- quarterly report of Cooper on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2004, filed with the SEC on March 12, 2004;
- quarterly report of Cooper on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 30, 2004, filed with the SEC on June 14, 2004;
- current reports of Cooper on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 11, 2004, February 27, 2004, March 29, 2004 and July 29, 2004;
- the description of Cooper's preferred share purchase rights, contained in the current reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 31, 1997 and September 28, 1998, and any amendment or report filed with the SEC for the purpose of updating the description;

- the description of the common stock of Cooper contained in its registration statements on Form 8-A filed with the SEC on October 28, 1983, March 1, 1985 and November 2, 1987 and any amendment or report filed with the SEC for the purpose of updating the description; and
- the description of the preferred share purchase rights contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A filed November 3, 1997.

The following documents, which were filed by Ocular with the SEC, are incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus:

- annual report of Ocular on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, filed with the SEC on March 15, 2004;
- quarterly report of Ocular on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004, filed with the SEC on May 10, 2004;
- quarterly report of Ocular on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, filed with the SEC on August 6, 2004;
- current reports of Ocular on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 6, 2004 and July 29, 2004; and
- the description of the common stock of Ocular contained in its registration statement on Form 8-A filed with the SEC on May 30, 1997, and any amendment or report filed with the SEC for the purpose of updating the description.

In addition, Cooper and Ocular incorporate by reference additional documents that either may file with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 between the date of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and the dates of the Cooper special meeting and the Ocular special meeting, respectively. These documents include periodic reports, such as annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, as well as proxy statements.

Cooper and Ocular also incorporate by reference the following additional documents:

- the agreement and plan of merger attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex A; and
- the voting agreement attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex B.

Cooper has supplied all information contained or incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus relating to Cooper, and Ocular has supplied all the information relating to Ocular.

You can obtain any of the documents incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus through Cooper or Ocular, as the case may be, or from the SEC through the SEC's website at the address described above. Documents incorporated by reference are available from Cooper and Ocular without charge, excluding any exhibits to those documents, unless the exhibit is specifically incorporated by reference as an exhibit in this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

Cooper stockholders and Ocular stockholders may request a copy of information incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus by contacting the investor relations department for each of Cooper and Ocular at:

For Cooper: Investor Relations The Cooper Companies, Inc. 21062 Bake Parkway, Ste 200 Lake Forest, CA 92630 Tel: (949) 597-4700 Fax: (949) 768-3688 Email: ir@coopercos.com For Ocular: EVC Group, Inc. 90 Montgomery Street Suite 1001 San Francisco, CA 94165 Tel: (415) 896-6820 Email: ocularir@evcgroup.com

In addition, you may obtain copies of the information relating to Cooper, without charge, by sending an e-mail to ir@coopercos.com.

In addition, you may obtain copies of the information relating to Ocular, without charge, by sending an e-mail to ocularic@evcgroup.com. Furthermore, you may obtain copies of some of this information by making a request through the Ocular investor relations website, www.ocularsciences.com.

In order for you to receive timely delivery of the documents in advance of the Cooper and Ocular special meetings, Cooper or Ocular, respectively, should receive your request no later than , 2004.

Neither Cooper nor Ocular have authorized anyone to give any information or make any representation about the merger or the companies that is different from, or in addition to, that contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus or in any of the materials that have been incorporated into this joint proxy statement/prospectus. Therefore, if anyone does give you information of this sort, you should not rely on it. If you are in a jurisdiction where offers to exchange or sell, or solicitations of offers to exchange or purchase, the securities offered by this joint proxy statement/prospectus or the solicitation of proxies is unlawful, or if you are a person to whom it is unlawful to direct these types of activities, then the offer presented in this joint proxy statement/prospectus does not extend to you. The information contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus is accurate only as of the date of this document unless the information specifically indicates that another date applies.

ANNEX A

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

BY AND AMONG

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.

TCC ACQUISITION CORP.

AND

OCULAR SCIENCES, INC.

DATED AS OF JULY 28, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1. Defined Terms		A-5
Section 1.1	<u>Certain Definitions</u>	A-5
Section 1.2	Terms Defined Elsewhere	A-10
Article 2 The Mer		4 10
Article 2. <u>The Mer</u>		A-12
Section 2.1	<u>The Merger</u>	A-12
Section 2.2	<u>Effective Time</u>	A-12
Section 2.3	<u>Effect of the Merger</u>	A-12
Section 2.4	<u>Certificate of Incorporation; By-laws</u>	A-13
Section 2.5	Directors and Officers	A-13
Article 3. <u>Conversi</u>	ion of Securities; Exchange of Certificates	A-13
Section 3.1	Conversion of Securities	A-13
Section 3.2	Exchange of Certificates.	A-14
Section 3.3	Share Transfer Books	A-16
Section 3.4	Company Stock Options	A-16
Section 3.5	Dissenting Stockholders	A-17
Section 3.6	<u>Tax Adjustment</u>	A-17
Article 4 Compan	y Representations and Warranties	A-18
Section 4.1	<u>Organization and Qualification; Subsidiaries.</u>	A-10 A-18
Section 4.2	<u>Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws; Corporate Books and Records</u>	A-18
Section 4.2 Section 4.3	Capitalization	A-10 A-19
Section 4.5	Authority.	A-19 A-19
Section 4.5	<u>No Conflict; Required Filings and Consents.</u>	A-20
Section 4.6	Permits; Compliance With Law	A-20
Section 4.7	<u>SEC Filings; Financial Statements.</u>	A-21
Section 4.8	Disclosure Documents.	A-22
Section 4.9	Absence of Certain Changes or Events	A-23
Section 4.10	<u>Employee Benefit Plans.</u>	A-24
Section 4.11	Labor and Other Employment Matters	A-25
Section 4.12	<u>Tax Treatment</u>	A-27
Section 4.13	<u>Contracts</u>	A-27
Section 4.14	<u>Litigation</u>	A-28
Section 4.15	Environmental Matters	A-28
Section 4.16	<u>Intellectual Property</u>	A-28
Section 4.17	<u>Taxes</u>	A-31
Section 4.18	<u>Insurance</u>	A-32
Section 4.19	<u>Opinion of Financial Advisor</u>	A-32
Section 4.20	<u>Vote Required</u>	A-32
Section 4.21	<u>Brokers</u>	A-32
Section 4.22	<u>Properties.</u>	A-32
Section 4.23	<u>Transactions with Affiliates</u>	A-33
Section 4.24	<u>Customers.</u>	A-33
Section 4.25	<u>FDA Compliance</u>	A-33
Section 4.26	Product Warranty and Recall	A-34
Section 4.27	Unlawful Practice of Medicine	A-34
Section 4.28	Compliance with Health Care Laws.	A-34
	-	

Article 5. Represen	ntations and Warranties of Parent and Merger Sub	A-35
Section 5.1	Organization and Qualification; Subsidiaries	A-35
Section 5.2	Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws; Corporate Books and Records	A-35
Section 5.3	Capitalization	A-35
Section 5.4	Authority	A-36
Section 5.5	<u>No Conflict; Required Filings and Consents.</u>	A-36
Section 5.6	Litiqation.	A-36
Section 5.7	<u>SEC Filings; Financial Statements.</u>	A-37
Section 5.8	Disclosure Documents.	A-38
Section 5.9	Absence of Certain Changes or Events	A-38
Section 5.10	Compliance with Laws	A-38
Section 5.11	<u>FDA Compliance</u>	A-38
Section 5.12	Tax Treatment	A-39
Section 5.13	<u>Ownership of Merger Sub; No Prior Activities.</u>	A-39
Section 5.14	Brokers	A-39
Section 5.15	Vote Required	A-39
Section 5.16	Fairness Opinion	A-39
Section 5.17	DGCL Section 203	A-40
Section 5.18	<u>No Negotiations</u>	A-40
Section 5.19	Restrictions on Conduct of Business	A-40
		A 40
Article 6. <u>Covenan</u> Section 6.1		A-40
	<u>Conduct of Business by the Company Pending the Closing</u>	A-40 A-44
Section 6.2	<u>Conduct of Business by Parent Pending the Closing</u>	A-44 A-44
Section 6.3	<u>Cooperation</u>	A-44 A-44
Section 6.4	<u>Registration Statement; Proxy Statement.</u>	
Section 6.5	<u>Stockholders' Meetings</u>	A-46
Section 6.6	<u>Access to Information; Confidentiality.</u> No Solicitation of Transactions by Company	A-46
Section 6.7 Section 6.8	<u>No Solicitation of Transactions by Company</u> Appropriate Actions Concentry Filings	A-47 A-48
Section 6.9	<u>Appropriate Action; Consents; Filings.</u> [Intentionally Omitted.]	A-40 A-49
		A-49 A-49
Section 6.10	<u>Certain Notices</u>	
Section 6.11	Public Announcements Stock Eventsee Listing	A-50
Section 6.12	<u>Stock Exchange Listing</u> <u>Company Stock Options, Employee Benefit and Related Matters.</u>	A-50 A-50
Section 6.13 Section 6.14	<u>Company Stock Options, Employee Benefit and Related Matters.</u> Indemnification of Directors and Officers.	A-50 A-51
Section 6.15		A-51 A-52
Section 6.16	<u>Plan of Reorganization</u> Affiliate Letters	A-52
Section 6.17		A-52
Section 6.18	<u>FIRPTA Affidavit</u> <u>401(k) Plan</u>	A-52
Section 6.19	<u>No Solicitation of Transactions by Parent</u>	A-52 A-52
Section 6.20	Board of Directors	A-52
Article 7. <u>Closing</u>		A-54
Section 7.1	Conditions to Obligations of Each Party Under This Agreement	A-54
Section 7.2	Additional Conditions to Obligations of Parent and Merger Sub	A-55
Section 7.3	Additional Conditions to Obligations of the Company	A-55
Article 8. <u>Termina</u>	tion, Amendment and Waiver	A-56
Section 8.1	Termination.	A-56
Section 8.2	<u>Effect of Termination.</u>	A-58

Section 8.3	<u>Amendment</u>	A-59
Section 8.4	<u>Waiver</u>	A-59
Section 8.5	<u>Fees and Expenses</u>	A-60
Article 9. <u>General</u>	Provisions	A-60
Section 9.1	Non-Survival of Representations and Warranties	A-60
Section 9.2	<u>Notices</u>	A-60
Section 9.3	<u>Headings</u>	A-61
Section 9.4	<u>Severability</u>	A-61
Section 9.5	<u>Entire Agreement</u>	A-61
Section 9.6	<u>Assignment</u>	A-61
Section 9.7	<u>Parties in Interest</u>	A-61
Section 9.8	<u>Mutual Drafting</u>	A-61
Section 9.9	Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Trial by Jury	A-61
Section 9.10	<u>Disclosure</u>	A-62
Section 9.11	<u>Counterparts</u>	A-62
Section 9.12	<u>Specific Performance</u>	A-62

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER, dated as of July 28, 2004 (this "Agreement"), by and among THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC., a Delaware corporation ("Parent"), TCC ACQUISITION CORP., a Delaware corporation and a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Parent ("Merger Sub"), and OCULAR SCIENCES, INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Company").

WHEREAS, the respective Boards of Directors of Parent, Merger Sub and the Company have approved and declared advisable the merger of the Company with and into Merger Sub (the "Merger") upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement and in accordance with the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "DGCL"); and

WHEREAS, the respective Boards of Directors of Parent and the Company have determined that the Merger is in the best interest of their respective stockholders, and Parent has approved this Agreement and the Merger as the sole stockholder of Merger Sub; and

WHEREAS, as a condition to and inducement to Parent's and Merger Sub's willingness to enter into this Agreement, simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, one of the stockholders of the Company is entering into a voting agreement with Parent and Merger Sub (the "Voting Agreement"), in the form set forth in Exhibit A hereto; and

WHEREAS, for federal income tax purposes, it is intended that the Merger shall qualify as a "reorganization," and this Agreement shall constitute a plan of reorganization, within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the respective representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth in this Agreement and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Article 1.

Defined Terms

Section 1.1 Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the term:

"affiliate" means a person that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the first-mentioned person.

"Acquisition Proposal" means any offer or proposal (other than the Merger) concerning any (A) merger, consolidation, business combination, or similar transaction involving the Company or any Company Subsidiary, (B) sale, lease or other disposition directly or indirectly by merger, consolidation, business combination, share exchange, joint venture, or otherwise of assets of the Company or any Company Subsidiary representing a material portion of the consolidated assets of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries (other than acquisitions of inventory and equipment in the ordinary course of business), (C) issuance, sale, or other disposition of (including by way of merger, consolidation, business combination, share exchange, joint venture or any similar transaction) securities (or options, rights or warrants to purchase, or securities convertible into or exchangeable for such securities) representing 35% or more of the voting power of the Company or (D) transaction in which any person shall acquire beneficial ownership, or the right to acquire beneficial ownership or any group shall have been formed which beneficially owns or has the right to acquire beneficial ownership of 35% or more of the Company or (E) any combination of the foregoing (other than the Merger).

"beneficial ownership" (and related terms such as "beneficially owned" or "beneficial owner") has the meaning set forth in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act.

"Blue Sky Laws" means state securities or "blue sky" laws.

"business day" means any day other than a day on which the SEC shall be closed.

"CERCLA" means the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended as of the date hereof.

"Closing Date" means the date of the Effective Time.

"Closing Price" means the closing price of the Parent Common Stock on the NYSE on the day immediately prior to the Closing Date.

"Company Material Adverse Effect" means any effect, event, occurrence, development, circumstance, change or condition (an "Effect") that, individually or in the aggregate with other Effects is, or would reasonably be expected to be materially adverse to the assets, liabilities, business, property, condition (financial or otherwise) or results of operations of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole; *provided, however*, that in no event shall any of the following be deemed to constitute a Company Material Adverse Effect: (A) any Effect affecting any of the industries in which the Company or any Company Subsidiary operates generally or affecting the economy generally (to the extent that such Effects do not disproportionately affect the Company, taken as a whole with the Company Subsidiaries, as compared to other companies in such industries); (B) any change in the Company's stock price or trading volume; *provided, however*, that clause (B) shall not exclude any underlying Effect which may have caused such change in stock price or trading volume; or (C) any Effect resulting from the announcement or pendency of the Merger.

"Company Stock Option Plan" means any stock option plan or other equity-based compensation plan of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, including, without limitation, the O.S.I. Corporation 1989 Stock Option Plan, the Ocular Sciences, Inc. 1997 Equity Incentive Plan, the Ocular Sciences, Inc. Amended and Restated 1997 Directors Stock Option Plan, the Ocular Sciences, Inc. 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESPP") and the Ocular Sciences, Inc. Deferred Fee Plan for Directors, each as amended.

"contracts" means any of the agreements, contracts, leases, powers of attorney, notes, loans, evidence of indebtedness, purchase orders, letters of credit, settlement agreements, franchise agreements, undertakings, covenants not to compete, employment agreements, licenses, instruments, obligations, understandings, policies, sales orders, quotations and other executory commitments to which any company is a party or to which any of the assets of any company are subject, whether oral or written, express or implied.

"control" (including the terms "controlled by" and "under common control with") means the possession, directly or indirectly or as trustee or executor, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of a person, whether through the ownership of stock or as trustee or executor, by contract or credit arrangement or otherwise.

"Environmental Claims" means all notices of violation, liens, claims, demands, suits, or causes of action for any damage, including, without limitation, personal injury or property damage, arising out of or related to Environmental Conditions or pursuant to applicable Environmental Laws.

"Environmental Conditions" means any onsite or offsite Releases relating to or arising out of the use, handling, storage, treatment, disposal, recycling, generation or transportation, of Hazardous Substances by the Company or any Company Subsidiary. With respect to Environmental Claims by third parties, Environmental Conditions also include the exposure of persons to Hazardous Substances at the work place or the exposure of persons or property to Hazardous Substances migrating from or otherwise emanating from the Facilities.

"Environmental Laws" means all applicable foreign, federal, state, district and local laws, all rules or regulations promulgated thereunder, and all orders, consent orders, judgments, notices, or permits issued, promulgated or entered pursuant thereto (collectively, "Environmental Regulations"), relating to pollution

or protection of the environment, including, without limitation, (i) Environmental Regulations relating to emissions, discharges, releases or threatened releases of Hazardous Substances into the environment, (ii) Environmental Regulations relating to the identification, generation, manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal, recovery, transport or other handling of Hazardous Substances, (iii) Environmental Regulations relating to the health and safety of persons (including employees) or property, (iv) CERCLA, (v) the Toxic Substances Control Act, (vi) the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, (vii) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, (viii) the Clean Water Act, (ix) the Safe Drinking Water Act, (x) the Clean Air Act, (x) the Occupational Safety and Health Act, (xi) the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, Rodenticide Act, (xii) the Atomic Energy Act, (xiii) the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act and (xiv) The Oil Pollution Act.

"Equity Interest" means any share, capital stock, partnership, member or similar interest in any entity, and any option, warrant, right or security (including debt securities) convertible, exchangeable or exercisable therefor.

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

"ERISA Affiliate" means any entity or trade or business (whether or not incorporated) other than the Company that together with the Company is considered under common control and treated as a single employer under Section 4.14(b), (c), (m) or (o) of the Code.

"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

"Expenses" includes all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses (including, without limitation, all fees and expenses of counsel, accountants, investment bankers, experts and consultants to a party hereto and its affiliates) incurred by a party or on its behalf in connection with or related to the authorization, preparation, negotiation, execution and performance of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the preparation, printing, filing and mailing of the Proxy Statement and the Registration Statement and the solicitation of stockholder approvals and all other matters related to the transactions contemplated hereby.

"Facilities" means all plants, offices, manufacturing facilities, stores, warehouses, administration buildings and all real property and related facilities owned or leased at any time by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

"GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles as applied in the United States.

"Governmental Entity" means any domestic or foreign governmental body or court including all international, federal, state, provincial, regional, local, municipal or other governmental administrative, judicial, legislative or regulatory authority.

"group" has the meaning as used in Section 13 of the Exchange Act, except where the context otherwise requires.

"Hazardous Substances" means all pollutants, contaminants, chemicals, wastes, by-products, and any other infectious, carcinogenic, ignitable, corrosive, reactive, toxic or otherwise hazardous substances, waste or materials (whether solids, liquids or gases) subject to regulation, control, investigation or remediation under applicable Environmental Laws. By way of example only, the term Hazardous Substances includes petroleum and/or petroleum by-products, urea formaldehyde, flammable, explosive and radioactive materials, radon gas, PCBs, pesticides, herbicides, asbestos, acids, metals and solvents.

"HSR Act" means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder.

"Intellectual Property" means all intellectual property or other proprietary rights of every kind, foreign or domestic, in and to all: (a) inventions (whether or not patentable), patents, patent applications, invention

disclosures, together with all provisionals, reissuances, continuations, continuations-in-part, divisions, revisions, renewals, extensions, and reexaminations thereof, and other rights of invention; (b) trademarks, service marks, trade names, trade dress, logos, domain names, product names and slogans, including any common law rights, registrations, and applications for registration for any of the foregoing, and the goodwill associated with all of the foregoing; (c) copyrights and other rights of authorship, and any applications, registrations and renewals in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, any moral rights of attribution and integrity, the content contained on any World Wide Web site; (d) trade secrets, know-how and confidential and proprietary business or technical information, including, without limitation, customer and supplier lists and related information, pricing and cost information, business and marketing plans, any other financial, marketing and business data, technical data, processes, formulations, specifications and schematics; (e) computer applications, operating systems, and any other software (including source code and object code) documentation for any of the foregoing, electronic data and databases, web sites (including all related computer code and content); (f) rights to exclude others from appropriating any of such intellectual property including the rights to sue for and remedies against past, present and future infringements of any or all of the foregoing and rights of priority and protection of interests therein under the laws of the United States and abroad and (g) copies and tangible embodiments thereof.

"IRS" means the United States Internal Revenue Service.

"knowledge" means the actual knowledge of the officers of the Company as set forth on Section 1.2 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, and the knowledge such officers would have following reasonable inquiry of any other employees of the Company being primarily responsible for the matter being represented.

"Law" means any foreign or domestic federal, state, provincial, local, municipal or other law, statute, code, treaty, ordinance, rule, regulation, order, judgment, writ, stipulation, award, injunction, decree or arbitration award or finding.

"Lien" means any encumbrance, lien, mortgage, deed of trust, charge, lease, easement, servitude, pledge, restriction, or security interest of any kind.

"Nasdaq" means the Nasdaq National Market System.

"NYSE" means the New York Stock Exchange.

"Other Filings" means all filings made by or required to be made by, the Company or the Parent, as the case may be, with the SEC other than the Registration Statement and the Proxy Statement.

"Parent Acquisition Proposal" means any offer or proposal (other than the Merger), concerning any (A) merger, consolidation, business combination, or similar transaction involving Parent, (B) sale, lease or other disposition directly or indirectly by merger, consolidation, business combination, share exchange, joint venture, or otherwise of assets of Parent representing a majority of the consolidated assets of Parent (other than acquisitions of inventory and equipment in the ordinary course of business), (C) issuance, sale, or other disposition of (including by way of merger, consolidation, business combination, share exchange, joint venture or any similar transaction) securities (or options, rights or warrants to purchase, or securities convertible into or exchangeable for such securities) representing a majority or more of the voting power of Parent or (D) transaction in which any person shall acquire beneficial ownership, or the right to acquire beneficial ownership or any group shall have been formed which beneficially owns or has the right to acquire beneficial ownership of a majority or more of the outstanding voting capital shares of Parent or (E) any combination of the foregoing.

"Parent Conflicting Proposal" means any Parent Acquisition Proposal which is expressly conditioned on the termination of this Agreement prior to the consummation of the Merger.

"Parent Material Adverse Effect" means any Effect that, individually or in the aggregate with other Effects is, or would reasonably be expected to be, materially adverse to the assets, liabilities, business, property, condition (financial or otherwise) or results of operations of Parent and the Parent Subsidiaries,

taken as a whole; *provided, however*, that in no event shall any of the following be deemed to constitute a Parent Material Adverse Effect: (A) any Effect affecting any of the industries in which Parent or any Parent Subsidiary operates generally or affecting the economy generally (to the extent that such Effects do not disproportionately affect Parent, taken as a whole with the Parent Subsidiaries, in any material respect); (B) any change in Parent's stock price or trading volume; *provided, however*, that clause (B) shall not exclude any underlying Effect which may have caused such change in stock price or trading volume; or (C) any Effect resulting from the announcement or pendency of the Merger.

"Parent Rights" means the preferred stock purchase rights issuable pursuant to the Parent Rights Agreement.

"Parent Rights Agreement" means the Rights Agreement, dated as of October 29, 1997 between the Parent and American Stock Transfer & Trust, as Rights Agent, as amended.

"person" means an individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association, trust, unincorporated organization, other entity or group (as defined in Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act).

"Regulations" means regulations promulgated under the Code.

"Release" means any past or present releasing, spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, escaping, leaching, disposing, or dumping into the environment or the workplace of any Hazardous Substance.

"Share Issuance" means the issuance of shares of Parent Common Stock pursuant to Section 3.1.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

"Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

"subsidiary" or *"subsidiaries"* means any corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association or other business entity of which (i) if a corporation, a majority of the total voting power of shares of stock entitled (without regard to the occurrence of any contingency) to vote in the election of directors, managers or trustees thereof is at the time owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by Parent, the Company or any other person, or (ii) if a limited liability company, partnership, association or other business entity, a majority of the partnership or other similar ownership interest thereof is at the time owned or controlled, directly or any other person.

"Superior Proposal" means a bona fide offer or proposal made by a third party to acquire, directly or indirectly, pursuant to a tender offer, exchange offer, merger, consolidation or other business combination, all or substantially all of the assets of the Company or a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Company, which (A) was not solicited by the Company, any Company Subsidiary, any Company Representatives or any Company Affiliate Representatives, (B) does not contain a financing contingency, and (C) in the good faith judgment of the Company Board after consultation with outside legal advisors and the Company's financial advisor, and after taking into account the various legal, financial and regulatory aspects of the proposal and the person making such proposal, (i) if accepted, is reasonably likely to be consummated, and (ii) if consummated would result in a transaction that is more favorable to the Company's stockholders, from a financial point of view, than the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

"Taxes" means any and all taxes, fees, levies, duties, tariffs, imposts and other charges of any kind (together with any and all interest, penalties, additions to tax and additional amounts imposed with respect thereto) imposed by any Governmental Entity or domestic or foreign taxing authority, whether disputed or not, including, without limitation, income, franchise, windfall or other profits, gross receipts, property, sales, use, net worth, capital stock, payroll, employment, social security, workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, excise, withholding, ad valorem, stamp, transfer, value-added, gains tax and license, registration and documentation fees, and shall, in each case, include any liability for the Taxes of any other person under Treasury Regulation Section 1.1502-6 (or any similar provision of state, local or foreign law), as a transferee or successor, or by contract or otherwise.

"*Tax Return*" means any report, return (including information return), claim for refund, election, estimated tax filing or declaration required to be supplied to any Governmental Entity or domestic or foreign taxing authority with respect to Taxes, including any schedule or attachment thereto, and including any amendments thereof.

Section 1.2 Terms Defined Elsewhere. The following terms are defined elsewhere in this Agreement, as indicated below:

"Aggregate Spread Value"		Section 3.4(b)
"Agreement"		Preamble
"Alternative Holdco"		Section 3.6
"Alternative Merger 1"		Section 3.6
"Alternative Merger 2"		Section 3.6
"Alternative Mergers"		Section 3.6
"Alternative Merger Sub 1"		Section 3.6
"Alternative Merger Sub 2"		Section 3.6
"Alternative Structure Event"		Section 3.6
"Cash Consideration Percentage"		Section 3.4(b)
"Certificate of Merger"		Section 2.2
"COBRA"		Section 4.10(f)
"Code"		Recitals
"Company"		Preamble
"Company Affiliate Representatives"		Section 6.7(a)
"Company Board"		Section 4.4(a)
"Company Certificate of Incorporation"		Section 4.2
"Company Benefit Plan"		Section 4.10(a)
"Company By-laws"		Section 4.2
"Company Common Shares"		Section 3.1(a)
"Company Disclosure Schedule"		Article 4
"Company Financial Advisor"		Section 4.19
"Company Financial Statements"		Section 4.7(b)
"Company Intellectual Property"		Section 4.16(a)
"Company Material Contracts"		Section 4.13
"Company Options"		Section 3.4
"Company Permits"		Section 4.6
"Company Preferred Shares"		Section 4.3(a)
"Company Recommendation"		Section 6.7(c)
"Company SEC Filings"		Section 4.7(a)
	A-10	

"Company Stockholders Meeting" Section 6.5(a) "Company Subsidiary" Section 4.1(b) "Company Termination Fee" Section 8.2(e) "Confidentiality Agreement" Section 6.6(b) "Continuing Employees" Section 6.13(a) "D&O Insurance" Section 6.14(b) "DGCL" Recitals "Dissenting Shares" Section 3.5 "Effect" Section 1.1 "Effective Time" Section 2.2 "ESPP" Section 1.1 "Excess Shares" Section 3.2(e)(i) "Exchange Agent" Section 3.2(b) "Exchange Fund" Section 3.2(b) "Exchange Ratio" Section 3.1(a) "FDA" Section 4.6 "FDCA" Section 4.6 "Foreign Plan" Section 4.10(g) "Health Care Law" Section 4.28 "License Agreement" Section 4.16(b) "Merger" Recitals "Merger Consideration" Section 3.1(a) "Merger Consideration Value" Section 3.4(a) "Merger Sub" Preamble "Multiemployer Plan" Section 4.10(d) "New Certificate" Section 3.2(a)(ii) Section 3.2(a)(i) "Old Certificates" "Outside Date" Section 8.1(b) "Parent" Preamble "Parent Affiliate Representatives" Section 6.19 "Parent Board" Section 6.4(a) "Parent By-laws" Section 5.2 "Parent Certificate" Section 5.2 "Parent Common Stock" Section 3.1(a)

"Parent Disclosure Schedule"	Article 5
"Parent Financial Statements"	Section 5.7(b)
"Parent Options"	Section 5.3(a)
"Parent Preferred Stock"	Section 5.3(a)
"Parent Recommendation"	Section 6.19
"Parent SEC Filings"	Section 5.7(a)
"Parent Stockholders Meeting"	Section 6.5(b)
"Parent Subsidiary"	Section 5.5(a)
"Parent Termination Fee"	Section 8.2(f)
"Per Share Cash Consideration"	Section 3.1(a)
"Per Share Stock Consideration"	Section 3.1(a)
"Plan"	Section 6.18
"Program"	Section 4.28
"Proxy Statement"	Section 6.4(a)
"Registration Statement"	Section 6.4(a)
"Regulations"	Section 1.1
"Regulatory Conditions"	Section 8.1(b)
"Representatives"	Section 6.6
"Section 16"	Section 6.13
"SOXA"	Section 4.7(c)
"Surviving Corporation"	Section 2.1
"Stock Consideration Percentage"	Section 3.4(b)
"Voting Agreement"	Recitals
	Article 2.

The Merger

Section 2.1 The Merger. Upon the terms and subject to satisfaction or waiver of the conditions set forth in this Agreement, and in accordance with the DGCL, the Company, at the Effective Time, shall be merged with and into Merger Sub. As a result of the Merger, the separate corporate existence of the Company shall cease and Merger Sub shall continue as the surviving corporation of the Merger (the "Surviving Corporation").

Section 2.2 Effective Time. On the date that is no later than two (2) business days after the satisfaction or, if permissible, waiver of the conditions set forth in Article 7, or on such other date as may be mutually agreed by the parties, the parties hereto shall cause the Merger to be consummated by filing a certificate of merger (the "Certificate of Merger") with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, in such form as required by, and executed in accordance with the relevant provisions of, the DGCL (the date and time of such filing, or if another date and time is specified in such filing, such specified date and time, being the "Effective Time").

Section 2.3 Effect of the Merger. At the Effective Time, the effect of the Merger shall be as provided in the applicable provisions of the DGCL. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, at the Effective Time,

except as otherwise provided herein, all the property, rights, privileges, powers and franchises of the Company and Merger Sub shall vest in the Surviving Corporation, and all debts, liabilities and duties of the Company and Merger Sub shall become the debts, liabilities and duties of the Surviving Corporation.

Section 2.4 Certificate of Incorporation; By-laws. At the Effective Time, the Certificate of Incorporation and the By-laws of Merger Sub shall become the Certificate of Incorporation and the By-laws of the Surviving Corporation, each as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, as the same may be amended in accordance with Section 6.14(a) hereof.

Section 2.5 Directors and Officers. The directors of Merger Sub immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the initial directors of the Surviving Corporation, each to hold office in accordance with the Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws of the Surviving Corporation. The officers of Merger Sub immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the initial officers of the Surviving Corporation, each to hold office in accordance with the Certificate of Incorporation, each to hold office in accordance with the Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws of the Surviving Corporation.

Article 3.

Conversion of Securities; Exchange of Certificates

Section 3.1 Conversion of Securities. At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of Merger Sub, the Company or the holders of any of the following securities (except as specifically provided herein with respect to elections made by such holders):

(a) Conversion Generally. Each common share, par value \$0.001 per share, of the Company ("Company Common Shares") issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (other than any Company Common Shares to be canceled pursuant to Section 3.1(b) and Dissenting Shares referred to in Section 3.5) shall be converted, subject to other provisions of this Section 3.1 and Section 3.2(e), into the right to receive (i) 0.3879 (the "Exchange Ratio") of a share of common stock, par value \$0.10 per share (together with the associated one-half of a Parent Right, "Parent Common Stock"), of Parent (the "Per Share Stock Consideration"), and (ii) \$22.00 in cash without interest (the "Per Share Cash Consideration" and, together with the Per Share Stock Consideration"). At the Effective Time, all such Company Common Shares shall no longer be outstanding and shall automatically be canceled and retired and shall cease to exist, and each certificate previously representing any such shares shall thereafter represent the right to receive the Merger Consideration, subject to other provisions of this Section 3.1, Section 3.2(e) and Section 3.5 below. No fractional shares of Parent Common Stock shall be issued, and in lieu thereof, a cash payment shall be made pursuant to Section 3.2(e) hereof.

(b) Cancellation of Certain Shares. Each Company Common Share held by Parent, Merger Sub, any wholly owned subsidiary of Parent or Merger Sub, or by the Company immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be canceled and extinguished without any conversion thereof and no payment shall be made with respect thereto.

(c) Merger Sub. Each share of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, of Merger Sub issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall remain issued, outstanding and unchanged as a validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable share of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, of the Surviving Corporation.

(d) Change in Shares. If between the date of this Agreement and the Effective Time the outstanding shares of Parent Common Stock or Company Common Shares shall have been changed into a different number of shares or a different class, by reason of any stock dividend, subdivision, reclassification, recapitalization, split, combination or exchange of shares, the Exchange Ratio, the Per Share Cash Consideration and any number or amount contained herein which is based on the price of Parent Common Stock or Company Common Shares or the number of shares of Parent Common Stock or Company Common Shares, as the case may be, shall be correspondingly adjusted to reflect such stock dividend, subdivision, reclassification, recapitalization, split, combination or exchange of shares.

Section 3.2 Exchange of Certificates.

(a) Exchange Procedures.

(i) Promptly after the Effective Time, Parent will cause the Exchange Agent to mail to each holder of record of Company Common Shares (as of immediately prior to the Effective Time) a letter of transmittal and instructions for use in effecting surrender by such holder of certificates representing such holder's Company Common Shares ("Old Certificates") to the Exchange Agent in exchange for the consideration provided in this Article 3.

(ii) The holder of each Old Certificate, upon the surrender by such holder to the Exchange Agent of such Old Certificate, together with the letter of transmittal duly executed by such holder, shall be entitled to receive in exchange for such Old Certificate the Merger Consideration into which the Company Common Shares theretofore represented by such Old Certificate have been converted pursuant to Section 3.1 (together with any applicable cash in lieu of fractional shares and dividends or distributions in respect of such Merger Consideration), and such Old Certificate shall forthwith thereafter be canceled. Until such time as a certificate representing Parent Common Stock (the "New Certificate") is issued to or at the direction of a holder of an Old Certificate entitled to receive Per Share Stock Consideration pursuant to Section 3.1, such Parent Common Stock shall be deemed not outstanding, and such Parent Common Stock shall not be entitled to vote on any matter. In the event of a transfer of ownership of Company Common Shares that is not registered on the transfer records of the Company, a New Certificate representing the appropriate number of shares of Parent Common Stock and the cash consideration payable hereunder with respect to such Company Common Shares may be issued and paid to a person other than the person in whose name the Old Certificate so surrendered is registered, if such Old Certificate shall be properly endorsed or otherwise be in proper form for transfer and the person requesting such payment shall pay any transfer or other taxes required by reason of the issuance of shares of Parent Common Stock to a person other than the registered holder of such Old Certificate or shall establish to the satisfaction of Parent that such tax has been paid or is not applicable. Each Old Certificate shall be deemed at any time after the Effective Time to represent only the right to receive, upon exchange as contemplated in this Section 3.2, the Merger Consideration into which the Company Common Shares formerly represented by such Old Certificate are converted in the Merger. No interest shall be paid or accrue on any Merger Consideration payable upon surrender of any Old Certificate.

(b) Exchange Agent. As of the Effective Time, Parent shall deposit, or shall cause to be deposited, with a bank or trust company designated by Parent and reasonably acceptable to the Company (the "Exchange Agent"), for the benefit of the holders of Company Common Shares, for exchange in accordance with this Article 3, through the Exchange Agent, certificates representing the shares of Parent Common Stock and an amount of cash sufficient to deliver to the holders of Company Common Shares (other than Dissenting Shares) the aggregate Merger Consideration (such certificates for shares of Parent Common Stock and cash, together with cash in lieu of fractional shares and any dividends or distributions with respect to the shares of Parent Common Stock with a record date occurring after the Effective Time, being hereinafter referred to as the "Exchange Fund") deliverable pursuant to Section 3.1 in exchange for outstanding Company Common Shares. The Exchange Agent shall, pursuant to irrevocable instructions, deliver the Merger Consideration contemplated to be issued pursuant to Section 3.1 out of the Exchange Fund. Except as contemplated by Section 3.2(e) hereof, the Exchange Fund shall not be used for any other purpose. Prior to the Effective Time, Parent shall enter into an agreement with the Exchange Agent, in a form reasonably satisfactory to the Company, setting forth the procedures to be used for such exchange and the other actions contemplated by this Section 3.2.

(c) Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares of Parent Common Stock. No dividends or other distributions declared or made after the Effective Time with respect to Parent Common Stock with a record date after the Effective Time shall be paid to the holder of any unsurrendered Old Certificate with respect to the shares of Parent Common Stock represented thereby, and no cash payment in lieu of fractional shares shall be paid to any such holder pursuant to Section 3.2(e), unless and until the holder of such Old

Certificate shall surrender such Old Certificate. Subject to the effect of escheat, tax or other applicable Laws, following surrender of any such Old Certificate, there shall be paid to the holder of the certificates representing whole shares of Parent Common Stock issued in exchange therefor, in addition to the Merger Consideration deliverable therefore pursuant to Section 3.1, without interest, (A) promptly, the amount of any cash payable with respect to a fractional share of Parent Common Stock to which such holder is entitled pursuant to Section 3.2(e) and the amount of dividends or other distributions with a record date after the Effective Time theretofore paid with respect to such whole shares of Parent Common Stock and (B) at the appropriate payment date, the amount of dividends or other distributions, with a record date after the Effective Time but prior to surrender and a payment date occurring after surrender, payable with respect to such whole shares of Parent Common Stock.

(*d*) Further Rights in Company Common Shares. All Merger Consideration issued and paid upon conversion of the Company Common Shares in accordance with the terms hereof (including any cash paid pursuant to Section 3.2(e)) shall be deemed to have been issued and paid in full satisfaction of all rights pertaining to such Company Common Shares.

(e) Fractional Shares. No certificates or scrip representing fractional shares of Parent Common Stock shall be issued upon the surrender for exchange of Old Certificates, no dividend or distribution with respect to Parent Common Stock shall be payable on or with respect to any fractional share and such fractional share interests will not entitle the owner thereof to any rights of a stockholder of Parent.

(i) As promptly as practicable following the Effective Time, the Exchange Agent shall determine the difference between (A) the number of full shares of Parent Common Stock delivered to the Exchange Agent by Parent pursuant to Section 3.2(b) and (B) the aggregate number of full shares of Parent Common Stock to be distributed to holders of Company Common Shares pursuant to Section 3.1(a) (such difference being the "Excess Shares"). As soon after the Effective Time as practicable, the Exchange Agent, as agent for such holders of Parent Common Stock, shall sell the Excess Shares at then prevailing prices on the NYSE, all in the manner provided in this Section 3.2(e).

(ii) The sale of the Excess Shares by the Exchange Agent shall be executed on the NYSE and shall be executed in round lots to the extent practicable. Until the net proceeds of any such sale or sales have been distributed to such holders of Company Common Shares, the Exchange Agent will hold such proceeds in trust for such holders of Company Common Shares as part of the Exchange Fund. All commissions, transfer taxes and other out-of-pocket transaction costs of the Exchange Agent incurred in connection with such sale or sales of Excess Shares shall be deducted from the Exchange Fund. In addition, the Exchange Agent's compensation and expenses in connection with such sale or sales shall be deducted from the Exchange Fund. The Exchange Agent shall determine the portion of such net proceeds to which each holder of Company Common Shares shall be entitled, if any, by multiplying the amount of the aggregate net proceeds by a fraction, the numerator of which is the amount of the fractional share interest to which such holder of Company Common Shares is entitled (after taking into account all shares of Parent Common Stock to be issued to such holder) and the denominator of which is the aggregate amount of fractional share interests to which all holders of Company Common Shares are entitled.

(iii) As soon as practicable after the determination of the amount of cash, if any, to be paid to holders of Company Common Shares with respect to any fractional share interests, the Exchange Agent shall promptly pay such amounts to such holders of Company Common Shares subject to and in accordance with the terms of Section 3.2(b).

(f) Termination of Exchange Fund. Any portion of the Exchange Fund which remains undistributed to the holders of Company Common Shares for six (6) months after the Effective Time shall be delivered to Parent upon demand, and any holders of Company Common Shares who have not theretofore complied with this Article 3 shall thereafter look only to Parent for the Merger Consideration, any cash in lieu of fractional shares of Parent Common Stock to which they are entitled pursuant to Section 3.2(e) and any dividends or other distributions with respect to Parent Common Stock to which they are entitled pursuant to Section 3.2(b), in each case, without any interest thereon.

(g) No Liability. None of Parent, the Company, Merger Sub or the Surviving Corporation shall be liable to any holder of Company Common Shares for any such shares of Parent Common Stock (or dividends or distributions with respect thereto) or cash from the Exchange Fund delivered to a public official pursuant to any abandoned property, escheat or similar Law.

(*h*) Lost Certificates. If any Old Certificate shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the person claiming such Old Certificate to be lost, stolen or destroyed and, if required by Parent, the posting by such person of a bond, in such reasonable amount as Parent may direct, as indemnity against any claim that may be made against it with respect to such Old Certificate, the Exchange Agent will issue in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed Old Certificate the Merger Consideration, any cash in lieu of fractional shares of Parent Common Stock to which the holders thereof are entitled pursuant to Section 3.2(e) and any dividends or other distributions to which the holders thereof are entitled pursuant to Section 3.2(b), in each case, without any interest thereon.

(i) Withholding. Parent, Merger Sub or the Exchange Agent shall be entitled to deduct and withhold from the consideration otherwise payable pursuant to this Agreement to any holder of Company Common Shares such amounts as Parent, Merger Sub or the Exchange Agent are required to deduct and withhold under the Code, or any provision of state, local or foreign tax Law, with respect to the making of such payment. To the extent that amounts are so withheld by Parent, Merger Sub or the Exchange Agent, such withheld amounts shall be treated for all purposes of this Agreement as having been paid to the holder of Company Common Shares in respect of whom such deduction and withholding was made by Parent, Merger Sub or the Exchange Agent.

Section 3.3 Share Transfer Books. At the Effective Time, the share transfer books of the Company shall be closed and thereafter, there shall be no further registration of transfers of Company Common Shares theretofore outstanding on the records of the Company. From and after the Effective Time, the holders of certificates representing Company Common Shares outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall cease to have any rights with respect to such Company Common Shares except as otherwise provided herein or by Law. On or after the Effective Time, any Old Certificates presented to the Exchange Agent or Parent for any reason shall be converted into the Merger Consideration, any cash in lieu of fractional shares of Parent Common Stock to which the holders thereof are entitled pursuant to Section 3.2(e) and any dividends or other distributions to which the holders thereof are entitled pursuant to Section 3.2(b).

Section 3.4 Company Stock Options. At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the holders of any outstanding unexercised and unexpired option to purchase Company Common Shares, whether or not then vested or exercisable, issued under a Company Stock Option Plan or otherwise (each, a "Company Option" and collectively, the "Company Options"), or any other Person, except as expressly provided herein:

(*a*) each Company Option outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time with an exercise price per share equal to or greater than the sum of (i) the Per Share Cash Consideration and (ii) the Closing Price of the Parent Common Stock multiplied by the Exchange Ratio (such sum, the "Merger Consideration Value")) shall be canceled and the holder thereof shall have no right to receive any consideration therefor; and

(b) each Company Option outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time with an exercise price per share less than the Merger Consideration Value shall be canceled in exchange for the right to receive a payment in cash, without interest, and Parent Common Stock equal in the aggregate to the product (such product, the "Aggregate Spread Value") of (i) the excess of (A) the Merger Consideration Value over (B) the exercise price per share under such Company Option, and (ii) the number of Company Common Shares into which such Company Option is exercisable. The Aggregate Spread Value of each Common Option shall be paid as follows: (i) in an amount in cash, without interest, equal to the Aggregate Spread Value multiplied by the Cash Consideration Percentage, reduced by the applicable withholding taxes on the Aggregate Spread Value, and (ii) in a number of shares of Parent Common Stock equal to (A) the Aggregate

Spread Value multiplied by Stock Consideration Percentage, divided by (B) the Closing Price of the Parent Common Stock. As soon as reasonably practicable following the Effective Time, but in no event more than twenty (20) business days thereafter, the Surviving Corporation shall mail to each holder of a Company Option the applicable cash payment and certificates for shares of Parent Common Stock. The term "Cash Consideration Percentage" shall mean the percentage obtained by dividing the Per Share Cash Consideration by the Merger Consideration Value. The term "Stock Consideration Percentage" shall mean the percentage obtained by dividing (i) the Closing Price of the Parent Common Stock multiplied by the Exchange Ratio, by (ii) the Merger Consideration Value.

(c) The Company represents and warrants to Parent that no consent or approval of any of the holders of Company Options is required in order to implement the provisions of this Section 3.4. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company Board shall take all necessary action to cause all outstanding unvested Company Options to become fully vested and exercisable immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger.

Section 3.5 Dissenting Stockholders. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Company Common Shares that are outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time and held by a holder thereof who properly exercises and perfects appraisal rights for such shares in accordance with Section 262 of the DGCL ("Dissenting Shares") will be paid for by the Surviving Corporation in accordance with Section 262 of the DGCL; provided, however, that if any such holder shall fail to perfect or otherwise shall waive, withdraw or lose the right to appraisal and payment under the DGCL, the right of such holder to such appraisal of its Company Common Shares shall cease and such Company Common Shares shall be deemed converted as of the Effective Time into the right to receive the Merger Consideration as provided in this Article 3. The Company shall give Parent (a) prompt notice of any written demands for appraisal received by the Company, withdrawals of such demands, and any other related instruments served pursuant to Section 262 of the DGCL. The Company shall not, except with the prior written consent of Parent, (i) voluntarily make any payment with respect to any demands for appraisal for Dissenting Shares, (ii) offer to settle, or settle, any such demands, (iii) waive any failure to timely deliver a written demand for appraisal in accordance with the DGCL, or (iv) agree to do any of the foregoing.

Section 3.6 Tax Adjustment. In the event that either party, after consulting with outside counsel, reasonably determines at any time that there is a reasonable likelihood that the Merger would not qualify as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, then such party shall have the right to elect that the structure of the Merger shall be revised as follows: (i) Parent shall form a new Delaware corporation which is a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Parent ("Alternative Holdco"), (ii) Parent shall cause Alternative Holdco to form a new Delaware corporation which is a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Alternative Holdco ("Alternative Merger Sub 1") and another new Delaware corporation which is a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Alternative Holdco ("Alternative Merger Sub 2"), (iii) at the Effective Time, Alternative Merger Sub 1 shall be merged with and into the Company, with the Company continuing as the surviving corporation ("Alternative Merger 1") and Alternative Merger Sub 2 shall be merged with and into Parent, with Parent continuing as the surviving corporation and each share of Alternative Holdco stock held by Parent shall be cancelled ("Alternative Merger 2," and with Alternative Merger 1, the "Alternative Mergers"), provided that (i) in no event will such revision to the structure of the Merger result in any change in the amount of cash consideration to which the holders of Company Common Stock and Company Options would otherwise be entitled to receive under this Agreement, and (ii) the percentage ownership of the Company's stockholders and option holders in Alternative Holdco shall be the same as it would have been in Parent immediately after the Effective Time under this Agreement (and Alternative Holdco shall have the same capital structure (subject to immaterial exceptions) as Parent would have had immediately after the Effective Time under this Agreement). In the event that either party exercises this option to revise the structure of the Merger (an "Alternative Structure Event"), (i) all references to the term "Parent Common Stock" when used in the context of Parent Common Stock to be issued in the Merger shall be deemed to be references to common stock to be issued by Alternative Holdco in Alternative Merger 1, (ii) all references to the Share Issuance shall be deemed to be references to Alternative Merger 2; (iii) this Agreement shall be deemed automatically amended by the parties as appropriate to give effect to the structure of

the Alternative Mergers, including, but not limited to, the amendment of Sections 7.2(c) and 7.3(c) to provide that Parent or the Company, as applicable, shall have received the opinion of its outside counsel, dated the Closing Date, to the effect that on the basis of the facts, representations and assumptions set forth in representation letters of Parent, Alternative Holdco, Alternative Merger Sub 1, Alternative Merger Sub 2 and the Company (or in such opinion), the Alternative Mergers, taken together, will constitute a transaction described in Section 351 of the Code and (iii) each party shall execute a written amendment to this Agreement as necessary to reflect the foregoing and to otherwise effect the substance of the transaction as set forth in the Merger Agreement. Each of the Company and Parent shall cooperate in good faith with one another and use its best efforts, to take or cause to be taken all actions, and to do or cause to be done, all things necessary, including amending this Agreement, to provide a mechanism to exchange Parent Company Stock and to ensure that, if an Alternative Structure Event were to occur, the Alternative Mergers could be consummated as closely as reasonably practicable to the time the Merger would have been consummated but for the Alternative Structure Event. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Section 3.6 the changes described in this Section 3.6 shall not be implemented in a manner that would be materially adverse to the interests of the holders of Parent Common Stock or the holders of Company Common Stock.

Article 4.

Company Representations and Warranties

Except as set forth in the Disclosure Schedule delivered by the Company to Parent prior to the execution of this Agreement (the "Company Disclosure Schedule"), which, subject to Section 9.10, identifies exceptions by specific Section references, the Company hereby represents and warrants to Parent as follows:

Section 4.1 Organization and Qualification; Subsidiaries.

(a) The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware and has the requisite power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted.

(b) Each subsidiary of the Company (each a "Company Subsidiary" and, collectively, the "Company Subsidiaries") has been duly organized, and is validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or organization, as the case may be. Each Company Subsidiary has the requisite corporate power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted.

(c) Each of the Company and each Company Subsidiary is duly qualified or licensed to do business, and is in good standing, in each jurisdiction where the character of the properties owned, leased or operated by it or the nature of its business makes such qualification, licensing or good standing necessary, except for such failures to be so qualified, licensed or in good standing that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(*d*) Section 4.1 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list of all of the Company Subsidiaries. None of the Company or any Company Subsidiary holds an Equity Interest in any other person except for passive investments in the Equity Interests (not to exceed 2% of any such company's outstanding Equity Interests) of public companies as part of the cash management program of the Company.

Section 4.2 Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws; Corporate Books and Records. The copy of the Company's Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the "Company Certificate of Incorporation") attached to Section 4.2(i) of the Company Disclosure Schedule and the copy of the Company's By-laws (the "Company By-laws") attached to Section 4.2(ii) of the Company Disclosure Schedule are true and complete copies thereof as in effect on the date hereof. The Company is not in violation of any of the provisions of the Company Certificate of Incorporation or the Company By-laws. True and complete copies of (i) all approved minutes of meetings of the

Company Board, or any committees thereof, or of meetings of the stockholders of the Company, and (ii) actions by written consent of the Company Board, or any committees thereof, have been made available by the Company to Parent.

Section 4.3 Capitalization.

(a) The authorized capital shares of the Company consist of 80,000,000 Company Common Shares, par value \$0.001 per share, and 4,000,000 preferred shares, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Company Preferred Shares"). As of July 26, 2004, (A) 25,157,814 Company Common Shares were issued and outstanding, all of which were validly issued and fully paid, nonassessable and free of preemptive rights (which are binding upon the Company or any Company Subsidiary), and (B) 3,397,536 Company Common Shares were issuable (and such number was reserved for issuance) upon exercise of Company Options outstanding as of such date. As of the date hereof, no Company Preferred Shares are issued or outstanding. Except for Company Options and the stock option agreements related thereto and except for arrangements and agreements set forth in Section 4.3 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, there are no options, warrants or other rights, agreements, arrangements or commitments of any character to which the Company or any Company Subsidiary is a party or by which the Company or any Company Subsidiary is bound relating to the issued or unissued Equity Interests of the Company or any Company Subsidiary to issue or sell any of its capital shares or other Equity Interests, or securities convertible into or exchangeable for such Equity Interests price of all outstanding Company Options equals \$20.863.

(b) The Company has previously made available to Parent a true and complete list, as of the date hereof, of the prices at which outstanding Company Options as of the date hereof may be exercised under any applicable Company Stock Option Plan, the number of Company Options outstanding at each such price and the vesting schedule of the Company Options for each officer of the Company. All of the Company Common Shares subject to issuance under the Company Stock Option Plans, upon issuance on the terms and conditions specified in the instruments pursuant to which they are issuable, will be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid, nonassessable and free of preemptive rights (which are binding upon the Company or any Company Subsidiary). There are no outstanding contractual obligations of the Company or any Company Subsidiary (A) restricting the transfer of, (B) affecting the voting rights of, (C) requiring the repurchase, redemption or disposition of, or containing any right of first refusal with respect to, (D) requiring the registration for sale of, or (E) granting any preemptive or antidilutive right with respect to, any Company Common Shares or any other Equity Interests in, the Company or any Company Subsidiary. Each outstanding capital share of each Company Subsidiary is duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid, nonassesable and free of preemptive rights (other than any pre-emptive rights under applicable Law) and is owned, beneficially and of record, by the Company or another Company Subsidiary or a nominee of the Company or of another Company Subsidiary free and clear of all Liens, options, rights of first refusal, agreements, limitations on the Company's or such other Company Subsidiary's voting rights, charges and other encumbrances of any intere whatsoever. There are no outstanding contractual obligations of the Company Subsidiary to provide funds to, or make any investment (in the form of a loan, capital contribution or otherwise) in, any Company Subsidiary or any other person, other than guarantee

Section 4.4 Authority.

(*a*) The Company has all necessary corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, to perform its obligations hereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company and, other than, with respect to the Merger, as provided in Section 4.20, the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary corporate action, as required by

the DGCL and no other corporate proceedings on the part of the Company and no stockholder votes are necessary to authorize this Agreement or to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. The Board of Directors of the Company (the "Company Board") has approved this Agreement, declared advisable the transactions contemplated hereby and has directed that this Agreement and the Merger be submitted to the Company's stockholders for approval at a meeting of such stockholders. This Agreement has been duly authorized (other than with respect to the Merger) and validly executed and delivered by the Company and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms subject only to the effect, if any, of (i) applicable bankruptcy and other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally, and (ii) rules of law governing specific performance, injunctive relief and other equitable remedies.

(b) The Company has taken all appropriate actions so that the restrictions on business combinations contained in Section 203 of the DGCL will not apply with respect to or as a result of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the Merger, or the Voting Agreements without any further action on the part of the stockholders or the Company Board. No other state takeover statute or similar statute or regulation is applicable to or purports to be applicable to the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 4.5 No Conflict; Required Filings and Consents.

(a) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company does not, and the performance of this Agreement by the Company will not, (A) conflict with or violate any provision of the Company Certificate of Incorporation or Company By-laws or any equivalent organizational documents of any Company Subsidiary, provided that the Merger is not consummated prior to obtaining the stockholder approval set forth in Section 4.20, (B) assuming that all consents, approvals, authorizations and permits described in Section 4.5(b) have been obtained and all filings and notifications described in Section 4.5(b) have been made and any waiting periods thereunder have terminated or expired, conflict with or violate in any material respects any Law applicable to the Company or any Company Subsidiary or by which any material property or asset of the Company or any Company Subsidiary is bound or affected or (C) require any consent or approval under, result in any breach of or any loss of any benefit under, constitute a change of control or default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under or give to others any right of termination, vesting, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, or result in the creation of a material Lien on any property or asset of the Company or any Company Subsidiary pursuant to, any material promissory note, bond, mortgage, indenture, contract, agreement, lease, license, Company Permit or other instrument or obligation, except, with respect to clause (C) for any such conflicts, violations, breaches, defaults or other occurrences which would not, individually or in the aggregate, (x) reasonably be expected to prevent or materially delay consummation of the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or (y) have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company does not, and the performance of this Agreement by the Company will not, require the Company to obtain any material consent, approval, authorization or permit of, or make any material filing with or notification to, any Governmental Entity or any other person, except under the Exchange Act, Securities Act, any applicable Blue Sky Laws, the rules and regulations of Nasdaq, the HSR Act, foreign or supranational antitrust and competition Laws and the filing and recordation of the Certificate of Merger as required by the DGCL.

Section 4.6 Permits; Compliance With Law. Each of the Company and each Company Subsidiary is in possession of all authorizations, licenses, permits, certificates, registrations, approvals and clearances of any Governmental Entity, and has made all filings, applications and registrations with any Governmental Entity (including any authorizations required under the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act of 1938, as amended (the "FDCA") and any regulations of the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (the "FDA") promulgated thereunder) necessary for the Company and each Company Subsidiary to own, lease and/or operate its properties or other assets, or to carry on its respective businesses substantially in the manner described in the Company SEC Filings filed prior to the date hereof and substantially as it is being conducted as of the date hereof, including, but not

limited to, the testing, manufacturing, storing, packaging, labeling and distributing of any product of the Company or any Company Subsidiary (the "Company Permits"), and all such Company Permits are valid, and in full force and effect, except where the failure to have, or the suspension or cancellation of, or failure to be valid or in full force and effect of, any of the Company Permits, or the failure to have made such filings, applications and/or registrations, would not, individually or in the aggregate, (x) reasonably be expected to prevent or materially delay consummation of the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or (y) have a Company Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is in conflict with, or in default or violation of, (A) in any material respect, any Law applicable to the Company or any Company Subsidiary or by which any material property or asset of the Company or any Company Subsidiary is bound or affected or (B) any Company Permits, except, with respect to clause (B) for any such conflicts, defaults or violations that would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to (x) prevent or materially delay consummation of the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or (y) have a Company Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has, within the last three years, received any written or, to the knowledge of the Company, oral warning, notice, notice of violation or probable violation, notice of revocation, or other communication from or on behalf of any Governmental Entity, alleging (A) any violation of any Company Permit, or (B) that the Company or any Company Subsidiary requires any Company Permit for its business as currently conducted that is not currently held by it, except for any such communications received after the date hereof and promptly disclosed to Parent, none of which could, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. No investigation or inquiry by any Governmental Entity with respect to the Company or any Company Subsidiary is pending, or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened, with respect to any alleged or claimed violation of Law applicable to the Company or any Company Subsidiary or by which any material property or asset of the Company or any Company Subsidiary is bound or affected, except for any such investigation or inquiry commenced after the date hereof and promptly disclosed to Parent, none of which could, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

Section 4.7 SEC Filings; Financial Statements.

(*a*) The Company has timely filed or furnished all registration statements, prospectuses, forms, reports, definitive proxy statements, schedules and documents required to be filed or furnished by it under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, as the case may be, since June 30, 2001 (collectively, the "Company SEC Filings"). Each Company SEC Filing (A) as of its date, complied in all material respects with the requirements of the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, as the case may be, and (B) did not at the time it was filed (or if amended or superseded by a filing prior to the date of this Agreement then on the date of such filing) contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. As of the date of this Agreement, no Company Subsidiary is subject to the periodic reporting requirements of the Exchange Act.

(b) Each of the consolidated financial statements (including, in each case, any notes thereto) contained in the Company SEC Filings (the "Company Financial Statements") was prepared in accordance with GAAP applied (except as may be indicated in the notes thereto and, in the case of unaudited quarterly financial statements, as permitted on Form 10-Q, 8-K or any successor form under the Exchange Act) on a consistent basis throughout the periods indicated (except as may be indicated in the notes thereto), and each presented fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company and the consolidated Company Subsidiaries as of the respective dates thereof and for the respective periods indicated therein (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end adjustments which were not and would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to be material). The books and records of the Company and each Company Subsidiary have been, and are being, maintained in all material respects in accordance with applicable legal and accounting requirements, and the Company Financial Statements are consistent with such books and records.

(c) The Company has in place the "disclosure controls and procedures" (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) required in order for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer of the Company to engage in the review and evaluation process mandated by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ("SOXA"). The Company's "disclosure controls and procedures" are reasonably designed to ensure that material information (both financial and non-financial) relating to the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company's principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and to make the certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company required by Section 302 of SOXA with respect to such reports. Except as reflected in the Company Financial Statements, neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is a party to any material off-balance sheet arrangements (as defined in Item 303 of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Exchange Act). To the Company's knowledge, KPMG LLP, which has expressed its opinion with respect to the financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries included in Company SEC Filings (including the related notes), is "independent" with respect to the Company and the Company Subsidiaries within the meaning of Regulation S-X since July 1, 2001. The Company has made such disclosure of non-audit services performed by KPMG LLP in its proxy statements with respect to its annual meetings of stockholders as is required under the rules and regulations of the SEC.

(d) Except as and to the extent set forth on the consolidated balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated Company Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 included in the Company Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, including the notes thereto, none of the Company or any consolidated Company Subsidiary has any liabilities or obligations of any nature (whether accrued, absolute, contingent, determined, determinable or otherwise), other than (i) liabilities or obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice since December 31, 2003 that would not, individually or in the aggregate, (x) reasonably be expected to prevent or materially delay consummation of the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or (y) have a Company Material Adverse Effect or (ii) fees and expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.

(e) The Company has previously provided to Parent a true and complete copy of any amendment or modification which has not yet been filed with the SEC to any agreement, document or other instrument which previously had been filed by the Company with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Act or the Exchange Act.

Section 4.8 Disclosure Documents.

(*a*) The Proxy Statement and any Other Filings to be made by the Company, and any amendments or supplements thereto, at (A) the time the Registration Statement is declared effective, (B) the time the Proxy Statement (or any amendment thereof or supplement thereto) is first mailed to the stockholders of the Company, (C) the time of the Company Stockholders Meeting, and (D) the Effective Time, will comply as to form in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act, the Exchange Act and other applicable Laws.

(b) The Proxy Statement and any Other Filings to be made by the Company, and any amendments or supplements thereto, do not, and will not, at (A) the time the Registration Statement is declared effective, (B) the time the Proxy Statement (or any amendment thereof or supplement thereto) is first mailed to the stockholders of the Company, (C) the time of the Company Stockholders Meeting, and (E) the Effective Time, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. The representations and warranties contained in this (b) will not apply to statements or omissions included in the Proxy Statement or any Other Filings based upon information furnished in writing to the Company by Parent or Merger Sub specifically for use therein.

Section 4.9 Absence of Certain Changes or Events. Since December 31, 2003, except as specifically contemplated by, or as disclosed in, this Agreement or the Company SEC Filings or Section 4.9 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, there has not been (a) any Company Material Adverse Effect or (b) any of the following:

(i) any amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Company;

(ii) any declaration, setting aside or payment of any dividend on, or other distribution (whether in cash, stock, property or a combination thereof) with respect to any of its capital shares (other than dividends paid by a wholly owned Company Subsidiary to the Company or to any other wholly owned Company Subsidiary);

(iii) any reclassification, combination, split, subdivision, or issuance or authorization of the issuance of any other securities in respect of, or any redemption, purchase or other acquisition, directly or indirectly, of any of the Company's capital shares or other Equity Interests except for repurchases from employees or other service providers of the Company following termination of their employment or services pursuant to the terms of their pre-existing stock option or purchase agreements;

(iv) any granting by the Company or any of Company Subsidiary of any increase in compensation or increase in benefits payable or to become payable to its directors, officers or employees, except for normal increases of cash compensation in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, or any payment by the Company or any Company Subsidiary of any bonus, except for bonuses made in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, or any granting by the Company or any of Company Subsidiary of any increase in severance or termination pay or any entry by the Company or any of Company Subsidiary into, or modification or amendment of any currently effective employment, severance, termination or indemnification agreement or any agreement the benefits of which are contingent or the terms of which are materially altered upon the occurrence of a transaction involving the Company of the nature contemplated by this Agreement;

(v) entry by the Company or any of Company Subsidiary into any licensing or other agreement with regard to the acquisition or disposition of any material Company Intellectual Property other than licenses and agreements entered into in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(vi) any termination or material amendment with respect to any Company Material Contract in effect since the date of the Company Balance Sheet;

(vii) any material change by the Company in its accounting policies or procedures, except as required by GAAP or by a Governmental Entity or in connection with compliance with Section 404 of SOXA;

(viii) any material revaluation by the Company of any of its assets other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(ix) any cancellation by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries of any material debts or waiver of any claims or rights of material value;

(x) any issuance or sale of any debt securities of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, any incurrence of any liability or obligation for borrowed money (other than any borrowings under the Company's revolving credit agreements with Comerica Bank and Wells Fargo as in effect on the date hereof, and any refinancing thereof or amendment thereto that does not increase the principal amount of loans available thereunder) or any liability or obligation as guarantor with respect to the obligations of others, any grant of any security interest, pledge or lien on any material assets or properties of the Company or any Company Subsidiary or the making of any loan to any person (other than a Company Subsidiary) outside the ordinary course of business;

(xi) any sale, transfer or other disposition outside of the ordinary course of business of any material properties or assets (real, personal or mixed, tangible or intangible) by the Company or any of Company Subsidiary;

(xii) any material damage, destruction or loss, whether or not covered by insurance, affecting the assets, properties or business of the Company or any Company Subsidiary; or

(xiii) any agreement, whether in writing or otherwise, to take any action described in this section by the Company or any of Company Subsidiary.

Section 4.10 Employee Benefit Plans.

(*a*) Section 4.10(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list of each "employee benefit plan" as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA and any other plan, policy, program, practice, agreement, understanding or arrangement (whether written or oral) providing compensation or other benefits to any current or former director, officer, employee or consultant (or to any dependent or beneficiary thereof of the Company or any ERISA Affiliate), which are now, maintained, sponsored or contributed to by the Company or any ERISA Affiliate, or under which the Company or any ERISA Affiliate has any obligation or liability, whether actual or contingent, including, without limitation, all material incentive, bonus, deferred compensation, vacation, holiday, cafeteria, medical, dental, life, accident, disability, stock purchase, stock option, stock appreciation, phantom stock, restricted stock or other stock-based compensation plans, policies, programs, practices or arrangements (each a "Company Benefit Plan"). Neither the Company nor, to the knowledge of the Company, any other person or entity has any express or implied commitment, whether legally enforceable or not, to modify, change or terminate any Company Benefit Plan, other than with respect to a modification, change or termination required by ERISA or the Code.

With respect to each Company Benefit Plan, the Company has made available to Parent true and complete copies of (A) each Company Benefit Plan (or, if not written a written summary of its material terms), including without limitation all plan documents, adoption agreements, trust agreements, insurance contracts or other funding vehicles and all amendments thereto, (B) all summary plan descriptions, including any summary of material modifications, and all brochures and material written communications describing such plans delivered to participants generally, (C) the most recent annual reports (Form 5500 series) filed with the IRS with respect to such Company Benefit Plan (and, if the most recent annual report is a Form 5500R, the most recent Form 5500C filed with respect to such Company Benefit Plan) and all schedules and attachments thereto, (D) the most recent actuarial report or other financial statement relating to such Company Benefit Plan, (E) the most recent determination or opinion letter, if any, issued by the IRS with respect to any Company Benefit Plan and any pending request for such a determination letter, (F) the most recent nondiscrimination tests performed under the Code (including 401(k) and 401(m) tests) for each Company Benefit Plan, and (G) all filings made with any Governmental Entity.

(b) Each Company Benefit Plan has been administered in all material respects in accordance with its terms and all applicable Laws, including ERISA and the Code, and contributions required to be made under the terms of any of the Company Benefit Plans as of the date of this Agreement have been timely made or, if not yet due, have been properly reflected on the most recent consolidated balance sheet filed or incorporated by reference in the Company SEC Filings filed prior to the date of this Agreement. With respect to the Company Benefit Plans, no event has occurred and, to the knowledge of the Company, there exists no condition or set of circumstances in connection with which the Company could be subject to any material liability (other than for routine benefit liabilities) under the terms of, or with respect to, such Company Benefit Plans, ERISA, the Code or any other applicable Law.

(c) (A) Each Company Benefit Plan which is intended to qualify under Section 401(a), Section 401(k), Section 401(m) or Section 4975(e)(6) of the Code has either received a favorable determination or opinion letter from the IRS as to its qualified status or the remedial amendment period for such Company Benefit Plan has not yet expired, and each trust established in connection with any Company Benefit Plan which is intended to be exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code is, to the knowledge of the Company, so exempt, and to the Company's knowledge no fact or event has occurred that could adversely affect the qualified status of any such Company Benefit Plan or the exempt status of any such trust, (B) to the Company's knowledge there has been no prohibited transaction (within the meaning of Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code and other than a transaction that is exempt under a statutory or administrative exemption) with respect to any Company Benefit Plan that could result in

liability to the Company, (C) each Company Benefit Plan can be amended, terminated or otherwise discontinued after the Effective Time in accordance with its terms, without liability (other than liability for ordinary administrative expenses typically incurred in a termination event), (D) no suit, administrative proceeding, action or other litigation has been brought, or to the knowledge of the Company is threatened, against or with respect to any such Company Benefit Plan, including any audit or inquiry by the IRS or United States Department of Labor (other than routine benefits claims), (E) to the knowledge of the Company, neither the Company nor any ERISA Affiliate has any liability under ERISA Section 502, (F) all tax, annual reporting and other governmental filings required by ERISA and the Code have been timely filed with the appropriate Governmental Entity and all notices and disclosures have been timely provided to participants, and (G) all contributions and payments to Company Benefit Plans are, to the extent otherwise deductible pursuant to applicable Law, so deductible under Code sections 162 or 404.

(*d*) No Company Benefit Plan is a multiemployer pension plan (as defined in Section 3(37) of ERISA) ("Multiemployer Plan") or other pension plan subject to Title IV of ERISA and none of the Company or any ERISA Affiliate has sponsored or contributed to or been required to contribute to a Multiemployer Plan or other pension plan subject to Title IV of ERISA.

(e) No amount that could be received (whether in cash or property or the vesting of property), as a result of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, by any employee, officer or director of the Company or any Company Subsidiary who is a "disqualified individual" (as such term is defined in Treasury Regulation Section 1.280G-1) under any Company Benefit Plan could be characterized as an "excess parachute payment" (as defined in Section 280G(b)(1) of the Code).

(*f*) Except as required by Law, no Company Benefit Plan provides any of the following retiree or post-employment benefits to any person: medical, disability or life insurance benefits. The Company and each ERISA Affiliate are in material compliance with (i) the requirements of the applicable health care continuation and notice provisions of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended, and the regulations (including proposed regulations) thereunder ("COBRA") and any similar state law and (ii) the applicable requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended, and the regulations (including the proposed regulations) thereunder.

(g) With respect to each Company Benefit Plan maintained outside the jurisdiction of the United States, including any such plan required to be maintained or contributed to by applicable Law, custom or rule of the relevant jurisdiction (each, a "Foreign Plan"): (i) all employer and employee contributions to each Foreign Plan required by Law or by the terms of such Foreign Plan have been made, or, if applicable, accrued in accordance with normal accounting practices and all material obligations under such Foreign Plans have been fully performed; (ii) each Foreign Plan required to be registered has been maintained in good standing with applicable regulatory authorities and (iii) except for Foreign Plans administrated by any governmental or regulatory authority, no Foreign Plan would constitute a "multiemployer pension plan" (as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA) or other plan subject to Title IV of ERISA if maintained or administered in, or otherwise subject to the laws of, the United States.

Section 4.11 Labor and Other Employment Matters.

(a) Each of the Company and each Company Subsidiary is in material compliance with all applicable Laws respecting labor, employment, fair employment practices, terms and conditions of employment, workers' compensation, occupational safety, plant closings, and wages and hours. None of the Company or any Company Subsidiary is liable for any payment to any trust or other fund or to any Governmental Entity, with respect to unemployment compensation benefits, social security or other benefits or obligations for employees (other than routine payments to be made in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice). Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is a party to any collective bargaining or other labor union contract applicable to persons employed by the Company or any Company Subsidiary, and no collective bargaining agreement or other labor union contract is being negotiated by the Company or any Company Subsidiary. There is no labor dispute, strike, slowdown or work stoppage against the Company or

any Company Subsidiary pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened which may interfere in any respect with the respective business activities of the Company or any Company Subsidiary. No labor union or similar organization has otherwise been certified to represent any persons employed by the Company or any Company Subsidiary or has applied to represent such employees or, to the knowledge of the Company, is attempting to organize so as to represent such employees. None of the Company, any Company Subsidiary or their respective representatives or employees has committed any unfair labor practices in connection with the operation of the respective businesses of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, and there is no charge or complaint against the Company or any Company Subsidiary by the National Labor Relations Board or any comparable state or foreign agency pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened, except where such unfair labor practice, charge or complaint would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. None of the Company or any Company Subsidiary is delinquent in payments to any of its employees for any wages, salaries, commissions, bonuses or other direct compensation for any services performed for it or amounts required to be reimbursed to such employees. Each of the Company and each Company Subsidiary has withheld all amounts required by Law or by agreement to be withheld from the wages, salaries, and other payments to employees, and is not liable for any arrears of wages or any Taxes or any penalty for failure to comply with any of the foregoing. There are no material pending claims against the Company or any Company Subsidiary under any workers' compensation plan or policy or for long term disability. There are no material controversies pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened, between the Company or any Company Subsidiary and any of their current or former employees, which controversies have or could reasonably be expected to result in an action, suit, proceeding, claim, arbitration or investigation before any Governmental Entity. To the Company's knowledge, no employee of the Company or any Company Subsidiary is in any material respect in violation of any term of any employment contract, non-disclosure agreement, noncompetition agreement, or any restrictive covenant to a former employer relating to the right of any such employee to be employed by the Company or such Company Subsidiary because of the nature of the business conducted or presently proposed to be conducted by it or to the use of trade secrets or proprietary information of others. No employee of the Company or any Company Subsidiary who holds a material position of responsibility within the Company's organization (taken as whole with the Company Subsidiaries) has given notice to the Company or any Company Subsidiary of termination of employment, nor does the Company have any knowledge, that any such employee intends to terminate his or her employment with the Company or any Company Subsidiary. The Company has made available to Parent true and complete copies of the most recent EEO-1 Report filed on behalf of the Company and each Company Subsidiary. The Company and the Company Subsidiaries are not required to file Vets 100 Reports and do not maintain Affirmative Action Plans.

(b) The Company has identified in Section 4.11(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule and has made available to Parent true and complete copies of (A) all severance and employment agreements (except for offer letters of employment generated in the ordinary course of business and pursuant to which no severance or "change of control" provisions are applicable) with directors, officers or employees of or consultants to the Company or any Company Subsidiary, (B) all severance programs and policies of the Company and each Company Subsidiary with or relating to its employees, and (C) all plans, programs, agreements and other arrangements of the Company and each Company Subsidiary with or relating to its directors, officers, employees or consultants which contain change in control provisions. Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will (either alone or in conjunction with any other event, such as termination of employment) (A) result in any payment (including, without limitation, severance, unemployment compensation, parachute or otherwise) becoming due to any director or any employee of the Company or any Company Subsidiary or affiliate from the Company or any Company Subsidiary or affiliate under any Company Benefit Plan or otherwise, (B) significantly increase any benefits otherwise payable under any Company Benefit Plan or (C) result in any acceleration of the time of payment or vesting of any material benefits. No individual who is a party to an employment agreement listed in Section 4.11(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule or any agreement incorporating change in control provisions with the Company has terminated employment or been terminated, nor, to the knowledge

of the Company, has any event occurred that could give rise to a termination event, in either case under circumstances that has given, or could give, rise to a severance obligation on the part of the Company under such agreement.

(c) There are no pending or threatened claims (other than claims for benefits in the ordinary course), lawsuits or arbitrations which have been asserted or instituted against any Company Benefit Plan, any fiduciaries thereof with respect to their duties to the Company Benefit Plans or the assets of any of the trusts under any of the Company Benefit Plans which could reasonably be expected to result in any material liability of the Company or any Company Subsidiary to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, the Department of Treasury, the Department of Labor or any Multiemployer Plan.

Section 4.12 Tax Treatment. None of the Company, any Company Subsidiary or, to the knowledge of the Company, any of the Company's affiliates has taken or agreed to take, or will take or will agree to take, any action that would prevent the Merger from qualifying as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. The Company is not aware of any agreement, plan or other circumstance that would prevent the Merger from qualifying as a "reorganization" within the meaning of section 368(a).

Section 4.13 Contracts. None of the Company or any Company Subsidiary is a party to or bound by any contract (A) any of the benefits to any party of which will be increased, or the vesting of the benefits to any party of which will be accelerated, by the occurrence of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, or the value of any of the benefits to any party of which will be calculated on the basis of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, or (B) which, as of the date hereof, (1) is a "material contract" (as such term is defined in Item 601(b)(10) of Regulation S-K of the SEC), (2) involves aggregate expenditures in the future in excess of \$500,000 (excluding purchase orders and expenditures to renew insurance policies and Company Benefit Plans in the ordinary course of business), (3) involves annual expenditures in the future in excess of \$250,000 and is not cancelable within six months (excluding purchase orders and expenditures to renew insurance policies and Company Benefit Plans in the ordinary course of business), (4) contains any non-compete or exclusivity provisions with respect to any line of business or geographic area with respect to the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or which restricts the conduct of any line of business by the Company or any Company Subsidiary or any geographic area in which the Company or any Company Subsidiary may conduct business, or which grants any person an exclusive right to use any material Company Intellectual Property with respect to any line of business or any geographic area, (5) is a material original equipment manufacturer or contract manufacturing agreement, (6) is a material supply agreement, including but not limited to telecommunications or information technology services agreements, involving annual expenditures in excess of \$250,000, (7) is a joint venture agreement or joint development, or similar agreement which requires expenditures in the aggregate in excess of \$500,000, (8) is a distributor agreement pursuant which has resulted, or is reasonably expected to result, in annual revenues to the Company or any Company Subsidiary in excess of \$250,000 or which is an exclusive agreement not cancelable within six months, (9) the termination of which would be reasonably expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, or (10) which would prohibit or materially delay the consummation of the Merger or any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Each Contract of the type described in this Section 4.13, whether or not set forth in Section 4.13 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, is referred to herein as a "Company Material Contract." Each Company Material Contract is valid and binding on the Company and each Company Subsidiary party thereto and, to the Company's knowledge, each other party thereto, and is in full force and effect, and the Company and each Company Subsidiary has in all material respects performed all obligations required to be performed by it to the date hereof under each Company Material Contract and, to the Company's knowledge, each other party to each Company Material Contract has in all material respects performed all obligations required to be performed by it under such Company Material Contract, except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to (x) prevent or materially delay consummation of the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or (y) have a Company Material Adverse Effect. None of the Company or any Company Subsidiary knows of, or has received written notice of, any violation or default under (or any condition which with the passage of time or the giving of notice would cause such a violation of or default under) any Company Material Contract, except for

violations or defaults that would not, individually or in the aggregate, (x) prevent or materially delay consummation of the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or (y) have a Company Material Adverse Effect. Section 4.13 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth the standard terms, conditions, and warranties offered by the Company and the Company Subsidiaries with respect to sales of its products.

Section 4.14 Litigation. (A) There is no material suit, claim, action, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened (i) against the Company or any Company Subsidiary or (ii) for which the Company or any Company Subsidiary is obligated to indemnify a third party, (B) none of the Company or any Company Subsidiary is subject to any outstanding order, writ, injunction, judgment, decree, or arbitration ruling or award, and (C) there has been no refusal to indemnify or denial of indemnification by any third party in connection with any past, pending or threatened suit, claim, action, proceeding, investigation, order, ruling or award with respect to which the Company or any Company Subsidiary is or may be entitled to indemnification from any third party.

Section 4.15 Environmental Matters.

(a) The Company and each Company Subsidiary is in material compliance with all Environmental Laws.

(b) There are no existing or, to the knowledge of the Company, potential Environmental Claims against the Company or any Company Subsidiary, nor have any of them received any notification of any allegation of any actual or potential responsibility for, or any inquiry or investigation regarding, (A) any alleged violation of Environmental Laws by the Company or any Company Subsidiary or (B) any Release or threatened Release at any location of any Hazardous Substance generated or transported by the Company, Company Subsidiary or any agent acting on behalf of the Company or Company Subsidiary.

(*c*) There have been no Releases at or from the Facilities of Hazardous Substances that could trigger the need for investigation and/or remediation pursuant to Environmental Laws, except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(*d*) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary manufactures or distributes any product in the State of California which requires a warning mandated by the California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986.

(e) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is a party, whether as a direct signatory or as successor, assign or third-party beneficiary, to any contract (excluding insurance policies and leases) under which the Company or any Company Subsidiary is obligated by or entitled to the benefits of any representation, warranty, indemnification, covenant, release, waiver, or restriction concerning Environmental Laws or Hazardous Substances, except for any such obligations that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(*f*) There are no existing or proposed consent decrees, consent orders, judgments, or judicial or administrative orders entered into by any Governmental Entity and the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or judgments, judicial order, or administrative orders issued by any Governmental Entity against the Company or any Company Subsidiaries under or with respect to Environmental Laws.

Section 4.16 Intellectual Property.

(a) "Company Intellectual Property" means all Intellectual Property that is owned by the Company or any Company Subsidiary and the rights of the Company or any Subsidiary under any License Agreement granting rights in Intellectual Property owned by third persons and used in the business of the Company or any Company Subsidiary as currently conducted or in existence on the date hereof which will be used in the business of Company or any Company Subsidiary as currently planned to be conducted.

(b) "License Agreement" means all agreements (including any licenses, outstanding decrees, orders, judgments, covenants not to sue, settlement agreements or stipulations) to which the Company or any Company Subsidiary is a party or otherwise bound (whether between Company or any Company Subsidiary and an independent Person or intercompany), which contain provisions (i) granting to Company or any Company Subsidiary rights in any Intellectual Property, (ii) granting to third Persons any rights in any Intellectual Property, or (iii) restricting Company's or any Company Subsidiary's right to use any Intellectual Property.

(c) Section 4.16(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule identifies each patent, patent application, trademark registration, trademark application, service mark registration, service mark application, copyright registration and domain name that is owned by or filed in the name of the Company or any Company Subsidiary (whether solely or jointly with another person). Each item of Intellectual Property listed on Schedule 4.16(a) and shown as registered, filed, issued by or applied for, has been duly registered, filed, issued or applied for with the official government registrars and/or issuers (or officially recognized issuers) of patents, trademarks, copyrights or internet domain names, in the various jurisdictions indicated on such Schedule, and except as set forth on Schedule 4.16(a), each such registration, application, filing and/or issuance (i) is valid and subsisting and has not been abandoned or canceled; and (ii) has been maintained effective by all requisite filings, renewals and payments.

(d) Section 4.16(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list of all material License Agreements in effect as of the date hereto (other than (x) licenses by the Company or a Company Subsidiary to its customers in the ordinary course of business (y) agreements or licenses relating to information or content or related materials used in the Company's or a Subsidiary's products and services acquired or licensed in the ordinary course of business, or (z) licenses for generally available software under license and financial terms which would not reasonably be expected to have an aggregate purchase price of greater than \$250,000. Except as set forth on *Schedule 4.16(b)*, (i) each License Agreement set forth on Schedule 4.16(b) is in full force and effect and is valid and legally binding on the Company or any Company Subsidiary that is a party thereto and, to the Company's knowledge, each other party thereto, (ii) neither Company nor any Company Subsidiary is in material default of such License Agreement, and no event has occurred that with notice or lapse of time would constitute a material default or permit termination, or any material modification, or acceleration of material rights thereunder; and (iii) neither the Company nor any of the Company Subsidiaries has granted any sublicense or similar right with respect to such License Agreement. Company has made available to Buyer correct and complete copies of all material License Agreements (as amended to date) set forth on *Schedule 4.16(b)*.

(e) Except as set forth on Section 4.16 of the Company Disclosure Schedule:

(i) The Company Intellectual Property constitutes (i) all Intellectual Property other than rights with respect to patents and patent applications and (ii) to the knowledge of the Company, all rights with respect to patents and patent applications, necessary for or to the conduct of the business of the Company or any Company Subsidiary as presently conducted. The Company and each Company Subsidiary own, free and clear of any Liens by any other entity, such Company Intellectual Property (except for Intellectual Property subject to License Agreements).

(ii) No person has given written notice to the Company or any Company Subsidiary asserting (i) the invalidity, non-enforceability or nonregisterability of, (ii) infringement, misappropriation, dilution, or other violation of, or (iii) conflicting ownership rights with respect to any Company Intellectual Property, and no (x) Company Intellectual Property owned by the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or (y) to the knowledge of the Company, any Company Intellectual Property other than that owned by the Company or any Company Subsidiary, is the subject of any pending or, to the Company's knowledge, threatened action, suit or claim, asserting any of (i) through (iii) above.

(iii) Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, the conduct of the Company's and the Company Subsidiary's respective businesses (including but not limited to the making, using, selling, manufacturing,

marketing, licensing, reproduction, distribution, or publishing of any process, machine, manufacture or product of Company or any Company Subsidiary) does not constitute or cause an infringement, misappropriation or improper use or disclosure of (i) any Intellectual Property of any third party other than patents or patent applications and (ii) to the knowledge of the Company, any patent or any patent application of a third party.

(iv) To the Company's knowledge, there exists no prior act or current conduct or use by the Company, or any Company Subsidiary or any third party licensee or licensor of Company Intellectual Property that would render void or invalid any material Company Intellectual Property.

(v) To the Company's knowledge, no person is infringing upon, misappropriating, diluting or otherwise violating the rights of the Company or any Company Subsidiary to any material Company Intellectual Property. Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has brought or threatened a claim against any Person challenging such Person's ownership or use of, or the validity, enforceability or registerability of, any Intellectual Property.

(vi) The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the Company and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby will not constitute a material breach or default under or conflict with any material License Agreement, will not cause the cancellation, suspension, limitation or termination or give rise to a right to cancel, suspend or terminate any material License Agreements or impair the right of the Surviving Corporation and the Company Subsidiaries to continue exercising any rights to the full extent that the Company and the Company Subsidiaries respectively currently have under such License Agreements. The Surviving Corporation and the Company Subsidiaries shall have the same rights, on identical terms and conditions, to and in the respective Company Intellectual Property immediately subsequent to the Closing hereunder as the Company and the Company Subsidiaries have immediately prior to the Closing hereunder.

(vii) The Company and the Company Subsidiaries have maintained in confidence all material Company Intellectual Property for which confidentiality is required or appropriate in the exercise of reasonable business judgment in accordance with procedures adequate in all material respects for maintaining such confidentiality and in accordance in all material respects with procedures required by law or otherwise customarily used in the industry to protect rights of like importance and, without limiting the foregoing, each employee of the Company or any Company Subsidiary whose duties relate to research and development activities of the Company or any Company Subsidiary or has otherwise had access to, contributed to or developed any Company Intellectual Property, has a contractual or legal obligation of confidentiality to the Company and the Company Subsidiaries with respect to such information, and has an obligation to transfer to the Company or a Company Subsidiary, for no additional consideration, rights in inventions and authored works made during the course of his or her employment using resources of the Company or any Company Subsidiary.

(viii) (A) Neither the execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, will violate any privacy policy or other terms of use relating to any web sites of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or violate in any material respect any applicable Laws relating to the use or dissemination of information collected in connection with the operation of such web sites or otherwise, and (B) the Company's and each Company Subsidiary's use and dissemination of any and all data and information concerning users of such web sites and any other persons is in compliance with their privacy policies and terms of use, and in material compliance with all applicable Laws.

(ix) No former or current employee, director, officer or stockholder of the Company or any Company Subsidiary has (or will have after giving effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement), directly or indirectly, any right, title or interest in any Company Intellectual Property, nor does any such person have any rights to past or future royalty payments or license fees deriving from licenses, technology agreements or other agreements, whether written or oral, between any such person and Company or any Company Subsidiary.

Section 4.17 Taxes.

(a) The Company and each Company Subsidiary has timely filed with the appropriate taxing authority all material Tax Returns required to be filed, taking into account any extensions of time within which to file such Tax Returns, and all such Tax Returns were true and complete in all material respects. All material Taxes that are due and payable (whether or not shown due on any Tax Return) have been timely paid and any unpaid Taxes of the Company and each Company Subsidiary (i) did not exceed the reserve for Tax liability (excluding any reserve for deferred Taxes established to reflect timing differences between book and Tax income) set forth on the face of the balance sheets contained in the Company Financial Statements contained in the Company SEC Filings with respect to the fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2004, and (ii) to the knowledge of the Company, will not exceed that reserve as adjusted for operations and transactions through the Effective Time in accordance with the past custom and practice of the Company and each Company Subsidiary in filing their Tax Returns. Since March 31, 2004, neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has (x) incurred any liability for Taxes other than in the ordinary course of business or (y) paid Taxes other than Taxes paid on a timely basis.

(*b*) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has (i) granted any waivers or extensions of the time to assess any Taxes or (ii) requested any extensions of time, which are currently in effect, with respect to Tax Returns that were or are due to be filed.

(c) There are no audits or other administrative proceedings or court proceedings currently pending or in progress with regard to any Taxes or Tax Returns of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, and neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has received a written notice or announcement of any audits or other administrative proceedings or court proceedings, subject to such exceptions that, if resolved in a manner unfavorable to the Company or any Company Subsidiary, would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably expected to have, a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(*d*) There are no Tax Liens upon any property or assets of the Company or any Company Subsidiary except Liens for current Taxes not yet due and payable.

(e) The Company and each Company Subsidiary has withheld and paid all Taxes required to have been withheld and paid in connection with amounts paid or owing to any employee, independent contractor, creditor, stockholder, or other third party.

(*f*) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is responsible for the Taxes of any other person (other than the Company or any Company Subsidiary) under Treasury Regulation Section 1.1502-6 (or any similar provision of state, local, or foreign law), as a transferee or successor, by contract, or otherwise.

(*g*) The Company has not been a United States real property holding corporation within the meaning of Section 897(c)(2) of the Code during the applicable period described in Section 897(c)(1)(A)(ii) of the Code.

(*h*) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is a party to any contract, plan or arrangement, under which it is obligated to make or to provide, or could be become obligated to make or to provide, a payment or benefit that would be nondeductible under Code Section 280G or in excess of the deduction limitation set forth in Code Section 162(m).

(i) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is party to any Tax allocation, indemnification or sharing agreement.

(*j*) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has been a member of a group filing a consolidated, combined or unitary income Tax Return (other than a group whose common parent was the Company).

(*k*) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has distributed any corporation in a transaction intended to qualify under Code Section 355 within the past two years, nor has the Company or any Company Subsidiary been distributed in a transaction intended to qualify under Code Section 355 within the past two years.

(*l*) The Company operates at least one significant historic business line, within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section 1.368-1(d), and no assets of the Company have been sold, transferred, or otherwise disposed of that would prevent Parent from continuing the historic business of the Company or from using a significant portion of the Company's historic business assets following the Merger, as such terms are used in Treasury Regulations Section 1.368-1(d).

(*m*) None of the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has entered into any transaction which constitutes a "reportable transaction" (as defined in Treasury Regulation Section 1.6011-4), and to the best knowledge of Company and each Company Subsidiary, none of the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has entered into a "potentially abusive tax shelter" (as defined in Treasury Regulation Section 301.6112-1).

Section 4.18 Insurance. Section 4.18 of the Company Disclosure Schedule contains a complete list of policies and contracts of insurance maintained by the Company as of the date hereof. There is no material claim pending under any of policies or bonds of the Company or any Company Subsidiary as to which coverage has been questioned, denied or disputed by the underwriters of such policies or bonds. All premiums due and payable to date under all such policies and bonds have been paid and the Company and each Company Subsidiary is otherwise in compliance in all material respects with the terms of such policies and bonds. Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has been notified in writing of any threatened termination of, or material premium increase with respect to, any such policies or contracts. All such policies that provide insurance against liability to third parties were written on an occurrence basis. The Company maintains insurance coverage in such amounts and covering such risks as are in accordance with normal industry practice for companies engaged in businesses similar to that of the Company (taking into account the cost and availability of such insurance).

Section 4.19 Opinion of Financial Advisor. The Company Board has received the written opinion of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated (the "Company Financial Advisor") dated as of July 28, 2004 addressed to the Company Board, to the effect that, as of such date, the Merger Consideration is fair from a financial point of view to the holders of Company Common Shares, and the Company delivered to Parent a true and complete copy of such opinion.

Section 4.20 Vote Required. The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of the outstanding Company Common Shares is the only vote of the holders of any class or series of capital shares or other Equity Interests of the Company necessary to approve the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 4.21 Brokers. No broker, finder or investment banker (other than the Company Financial Advisor) is entitled to any brokerage, finder's or other fee or commission in connection with the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary. The Company has heretofore made available to Parent a true and complete copy of all agreements between the Company and the Company Financial Advisor pursuant to which such firm would be entitled to any payment relating to the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 4.22 Properties.

(*a*) Each of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries has good and marketable title to, or valid leasehold interests in, all of its properties and assets except for defects in title, easements, restrictive covenants and similar encumbrances that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. The right, title and interest of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries in all such properties and assets is free and clear of all Liens, except for (i) Liens that are reflected in the Company Financial Statements or reflected in Section 4.22 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, and (ii) Liens that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(b) Each of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries has complied with the terms of all leases to which it is a party and under which it is in occupancy, and all such leases are in full force and effect, except for any failure to so comply or any failure of such leases to be in full force and effect that would not,

individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. The Company and the Company Subsidiaries enjoy peaceful and undisturbed possession under all such leases, except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(*c*) The assets and properties owned or leased by the Company or any Company Subsidiary constitute all assets and properties necessary and sufficient to conduct the business of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries as currently conducted on the date hereof, except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(*d*) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary owns any real property. Section 4.22 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list of all material office Facilities, and other Facilities that are material to the operations of the Company, leased by the Company and the Company Subsidiaries. The Company has made available to Parent and Merger Sub true and complete copies of all material leases of real property under which the Company or any Company Subsidiary is the tenant or subtenant.

(e) Each building system, structure, fixture or improvement, owned, leased or used by the Company or any Company Subsidiary and required for the operation of its business, is in all material respects in good working condition (reasonable wear and tear excepted) and adequate for the operation of the business of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries as currently conducted on the date hereof, except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

Section 4.23 Transactions with Affiliates. Except as set forth in the Company SEC Filings neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is a party to any transaction, contract, agreement or understanding with any (i) present or former officer or director of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, other than as part of the normal and customary terms of such persons' employment or service with the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or any of their family members, (ii) record or beneficial owner of five (5) percent or more of any voting securities of the Company or any Company Subsidiary or (iii) any affiliate of the Company (other than any Company Subsidiary) or of any such officer, director, family member or beneficial owner.

Section 4.24 Customers. Set forth in 4.24(a) of the Company Disclosure Schedule is a list of the twenty largest U.S. customers of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, based on the dollar value of materials or products purchased by such customers from the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. Schedule 4.24 sets forth which of these customers have exclusive contracts or arrangements with the Company or any Company subsidiary and the term of such contracts or arrangements.

Section 4.25 FDA Compliance. All products currently being manufactured, tested, developed, processed, labeled, stored or distributed by or on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, which are subject to the jurisdiction of the FDA, are being manufactured, tested, developed, processed, labeled, stored, distributed, and marketed in compliance with all applicable Laws, guidances or orders administered or issued by the FDA or any other Governmental Entity, including without limitation, the FDA's current Good Manufacturing Practice regulations, except where any failure to so comply would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. All applicable operations of the Company and each Company Subsidiary have achieved and maintained ISO 13485 Quality System certification, and there is no pending or, to the Company's knowledge threatened, audit, repeal, failure to renew or challenge to any such certifications. All products being manufactured by the Company or any Company Subsidiary are in compliance with applicable registration, licensing and notification requirements required by applicable Law for each site at which a product of the Company or any Company Subsidiary is manufactured except where any failure to so comply would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. All pre-clinical and clinical trials being conducted by or on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, are being conducted in compliance with all applicable Laws and guidances of the FDA or any other Governmental Entity, including without limitation, the FDA's current Good Clinical Practice regulations and federal and state laws, regulations and

guidances restricting the use and disclosure of individually identifiable health information except where any failure to so comply would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is the subject, officially or otherwise, of any pending or threatened investigation by the FDA pursuant to its "Fraud, Untrue Statements of Material Facts, Bribery, and Illegal Gratuities" Final Policy set forth in 56 Fed. Reg. 46191 (September 10, 1991) and any amendments thereto. Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has committed any act, made any statement, or failed to make any statement that would provide a basis for the FDA to invoke its policy with respect to "Fraud, Untrue Statements of Material Facts, Bribery and Illegal Gratuities" and any amendments thereto. To the Company's knowledge, each product distributed, sold or leased, or service rendered, by the Company or any Company Subsidiary complies in all material respects with all applicable product safety standards of each applicable product safety agency, commission, board or other Governmental Entity.

The Company and each Company Subsidiary is in compliance with all applicable FDA import and export requirements, including, but not limited to, import-for-export requirements, export notifications or authorizations and record keeping requirements except as would not have, individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect.

Section 4.26 Product Warranty and Recall. No product or product component manufactured and/or distributed by the Company, any Company Subsidiary or, to the knowledge of the Company, by any other person pursuant to an arrangement with the Company or any Company Subsidiary, is (i) adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 351; or (ii) misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 352. Section 4.26 of the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth a list of (i) all recalls, field notifications, field corrections and safety alerts with respect to products manufactured and/or distributed by the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or by any third party on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, in each case between January 1, 2001 and the date of this Agreement, and the dates, if any, such recalls, field notifications, field corrections and safety alerts were resolved or closed, and (iii) to the knowledge of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or by any third party on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or by any third party on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or by any third party on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or by any third party on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or by any third party on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, that are open hereof. There are no outstanding recalls, field notifications, field corrections, safety alerts or product complaints with respect to the products manufactured and/or distributed by the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or by any third party on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or by any third party on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, and to the Company or any Company or any Company Subsidiary, or by any third party on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, and to the Company or any Company or any Company Subsidiary, and to the Company or any Company or any Company Subsidiary, and to the Company or any Company or any formation and for distributed by

Section 4.27 Unlawful Practice of Medicine. Neither the Company, nor any Company Subsidiary has engaged in an unlawful or unauthorized practice of medicine or other professionally licensed activities through any web sites sponsored or operated, or formerly sponsored or operated, by the Company or any Company Subsidiary.

Section 4.28 Compliance with Health Care Laws. Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has engaged in any activity prohibited under federal or state criminal or civil health care laws (including without limitation the federal Anti-Kickback Statute, Stark Law and federal False Claims Act and any comparable state laws), or the regulations promulgated pursuant to such laws (each, a "Health Care Law"), or which are cause for civil penalties or mandatory or permissive exclusion from Medicare, Medicaid or any other state or federal health care program ("Program"). There is no civil, criminal, administrative or other action, suit, demand, claim, hearing, investigation, proceeding, notice or demand pending, received or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened against the Company or any Company Subsidiary which relates to a violation by the Company or such Company Subsidiary of any Health Care Law or which could reasonably result in its exclusion from participation in any Program.

Article 5.

Representations and Warranties of Parent and Merger Sub

Except as set forth in the Disclosure Schedule delivered by Parent and Merger Sub to the Company prior to the execution of this Agreement (the "Parent Disclosure Schedule"), which shall, subject to Section 9.10, identify exceptions by specific Section references, Parent and Merger Sub hereby jointly and severally represent and warrant to the Company as follows:

Section 5.1 Organization and Qualification; Subsidiaries

(*a*) Each of Parent and Merger Sub is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware, and has the requisite power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted.

(b) Each of Parent and Merger Sub is duly qualified or licensed to do business, and is in good standing, in each jurisdiction where the character of the properties owned, leased or operated by it or the nature of its business makes such qualification, licensing or good standing necessary, except for such failures to be so qualified, licensed or in good standing that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.2 Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws; Corporate Books and Records. The copy of Parent's Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (the "Parent Certificate"), attached to Section 5.2(i) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule and the copy of Parent's and Amended and Restated By-laws (the "Parent By-laws") attached to Section 5.2(ii) of the Parent Disclosure Schedule are true and complete copies thereof as in effect on the date hereof. Parent is not in violation of any of the provisions of the Parent Certificate or Parent By-laws. True and complete copies of (i) all approved minutes of meetings of Parent's Board of Directors, or any committees thereof, or of meetings of the stockholders of Parent, and (ii) actions by written consent of Parent's Board of Directors, or any committees thereof, have been made available by Parent to the Company.

Section 5.3 Capitalization.

(*a*) The authorized capital stock of Parent consists of 70,000,000 shares of Parent Common Stock and 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.10 per share (the "Parent Preferred Stock"). As of July 26, 2004, (A) 32,696,796 shares of Parent Common Stock (other than treasury shares) were issued and outstanding, all of which were validly issued and fully paid, nonassessable and free of preemptive rights (which are binding upon the Company or any Company Subsidiary), (B) 585,203 shares of Parent Common Stock were held in the treasury of Parent or by the Parent Subsidiaries, and (C) 2,431,062 shares of Parent Options") outstanding as of such date. As of the date hereof, (A) 300,000 shares of Parent Preferred Stock are designated as Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock and have been reserved for issuance in connection with the Parent Rights, and (B) no shares of Parent Preferred Stock are issued or outstanding. As of July 26, 2004, except for Parent Options to purchase not more than 2,431,062 shares of Parent Common Stock, outstanding Parent Rights under the Parent Rights Agreement, agreements or arrangements described in the Parent SEC Filings or Section 5.3 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule, there were no options, warrants or other rights, agreements, arrangements or commitments of any character to which Parent is a party or by which Parent is bound relating to the issued and unissued Equity Interest of Parent or obligating Parent to issue or sell any of its capital shares or other Equity Interests, or securities convertible into or exchangeable for such capital shares of, or other Equity interests in, Parent. The shares of Parent Common Stock to be issued in connection with the Merger, when issued as contemplated herein, will be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and will not be issued in violation of any preemptive rights.

(*b*) There are no outstanding contractual obligations of the Parent (A) restricting the transfer of, (B) affecting the voting rights of, (C) requiring the repurchase, redemption or disposition of, or containing

any right of first refusal with respect to, (D) requiring the registration for sale of, or (E) granting any preemptive or antidilutive right with respect to, any shares of capital stock of Parent or any other Equity Interests in, Parent.

Section 5.4 Authority. Each of Parent and Merger Sub has all necessary corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, to perform its obligations hereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Each of (A) the execution and delivery of this Agreement by each of Parent and Merger Sub and the consummation by Parent and Merger Sub, as applicable, of the transactions contemplated hereby and (B) other than, with respect to the Share Issuance, as provided in Section 5.15, the issuance of shares of Parent Common Stock and payment of cash consideration in accordance with the Merger, have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary corporate action, and no other corporate proceedings on the part of Parent and Merger Sub and no other stockholder votes are necessary to authorize this Agreement or to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. Parent's Board of Directors has approved this Agreement, declared advisable the transactions contemplated hereby and has directed that the Share Issuance be submitted to the Company's stockholders for approval at a meeting of such stockholders. This Agreement has been validly executed and delivered by Parent and Merger Sub, as applicable, and constitute a legal, valid and binding obligation of Parent and Merger Sub, enforceable against Parent and Merger Sub in accordance with its terms, subject only to the effect, if any, of (i) applicable bankruptcy and other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally, and (ii) rules of law governing specific performance, injunctive relief and other equitable remedies.

Section 5.5 No Conflict; Required Filings and Consents.

(a) The execution and delivery of this Agreement do not, and the performance thereof by Parent and Merger Sub will not, (A) conflict with or violate any provision of the Parent Certificate of Incorporation or Parent By-laws or the Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws of Merger Sub, provided that the Merger is not consummated prior to obtaining the stockholder approval set forth in Section 5.15, (B) assuming that all consents, approvals, authorizations and permits described in Section 5.5(b) have been obtained and all filings and notifications described in Section 5.5(b) have been made and any waiting periods thereunder have terminated or expired, conflict with or violate any Law applicable to Parent or Merger Sub or any other subsidiary of Parent (each a "Parent Subsidiary" and, collectively, the "Parent Subsidiaries") or by which any material property or asset of Parent, Merger Sub or any Parent Subsidiary is bound or affected or (C) result in any breach of, any loss of any benefit under, constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, or give to others any right of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, or result in the creation of a material Lien on any property or asset of Parent, Merger Sub or any Parent Subsidiary pursuant to any material promissory note, bond, mortgage, indenture, contract, agreement, lease, license, permit, other instrument or obligation, except, with respect to clause (C), for any such conflicts, violations, breaches, defaults or other occurrences which would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to (x) prevent or materially delay consummation of the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or (y) have a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by Parent and Merger Sub do not, and the performance hereof by Parent and Merger Sub will not, require any consent, approval, authorization or permit of, or filing with or notification to, any Governmental Entity or other person, except (A) under the Exchange Act, the Securities Act, any applicable Blue Sky Laws, the rules and regulations of the NYSE, the HSR Act, foreign or supranational antitrust and competition laws, filing and recordation of the Certificate of Merger as required by the DGCL and as otherwise set forth in the Parent Disclosure Schedule and (B) where failure to obtain such consents, approvals, authorizations or permits, or to make such filings or notifications, would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to (x) prevent or materially delay consummation of the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or (y) have a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.6 Litigation. (A) There is no material suit, claim, action, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the knowledge of Parent, threatened (i) against Parent or (ii) for which Parent is obligated to indemnify a third

party, (B) Parent is not subject to any outstanding order, writ, injunction, judgment, decree, or arbitration ruling or award, and (C) there has been no refusal to indemnify or denial of indemnification by any third party in connection with any past, pending or threatened suit, claim, action, proceeding, investigation, order, ruling or award with respect to which Parent is or may be entitled to indemnification from any third party.

Section 5.7 SEC Filings; Financial Statements.

(*a*) Parent has timely filed or furnished all registration statements, prospectuses, forms, reports and documents required to be filed or furnished by it under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, as the case may be, since June 30, 2001 (collectively, the "Parent SEC Filings"). Each Parent SEC Filing (A) as of its date complied in all material respects with the requirements of the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, as the case may be, and (B) did not at the time it was filed (or if amended or superseded by a filing prior to the date of this Agreement then on the date of such filing) contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

(b) Each of the consolidated financial statements (including, in each case, any notes thereto) contained in the Parent SEC Filings (the "Parent Financial Statements") was prepared in accordance with GAAP applied (except as may be indicated in the notes thereto and, in the case of unaudited quarterly financial statements, as permitted on Form 10-Q, 8-K or any successor form under the Exchange Act) on a consistent basis throughout the periods indicated (except as may be indicated in the notes thereto), and each presented fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows of Parent as of the respective dates thereof and for the respective periods indicated therein (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end adjustments which were not and would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to be material). The books and records of Parent have been, and are being, maintained in all material respects in accordance with applicable legal and accounting requirements, and the Parent Financial Statements are consistent with such books and records.

(c) Parent has in place the "disclosure controls and procedures" (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) required in order for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Parent to engage in the review and evaluation process mandated by Section 302 of SOXA. The "disclosure controls and procedures" of Parent are reasonably designed to ensure that material information (both financial and non-financial) relating to Parent and its consolidated subsidiaries required to be disclosed by Parent in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to Parent's principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and to make the certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Parent required by Section 302 of SOXA with respect to such reports. Except as reflected in the Parent Financial Statements, neither Parent nor any Parent Subsidiary is a party to any material off-balance sheet arrangements (as defined in Item 303(c) of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Exchange Act). To Parent's knowledge, KPMG LLP, which has expressed its opinion with respect to the financial statements of Parent and its subsidiaries included in Parent SEC Filings (including the related notes), is "independent" with respect to Parent within the meaning of Regulation S-X. Parent has made such disclosure of non-audit services performed by KPMG LLP in its proxy statements with respect to its annual meetings of stockholders as is required under the rules and regulations of the SEC.

(*d*) Except as and to the extent set forth on the consolidated balance sheet of Parent and the consolidated Parent Subsidiaries as of October 31, 2003 included in the Parent Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2003, including the notes thereto, none of Parent or any consolidated Parent Subsidiary has any liabilities or obligations of any nature (whether accrued, absolute, contingent, determined, determinable or otherwise), other than (i) liabilities or obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice since October 31, 2003 that would not, individually or in the aggregate, (x) reasonably be expected to prevent or materially delay consummation of the Merger or any

other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or (y) have a Parent Material Adverse Effect or (ii) fees and expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby

Section 5.8 Disclosure Documents.

(*a*) The Registration Statement and any Other Filings, and any amendments or supplements thereto, at (A) the time the Registration Statement is declared effective, (B) the time the Proxy Statement (or any amendment thereof or supplement thereto) is first mailed to the stockholders of the Company and (C) the Effective Time, will comply as to form in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act, the Exchange Act and other applicable Laws.

(b) The Registration Statement and any Other Filings, and any amendments or supplements thereto, do not, and will not, at (A) the time the Registration Statement is declared effective, (B) the time the Proxy Statement (or any amendment thereof or supplement thereto) is first mailed to the stockholders of the Company, (C) the time of the Company Stockholders Meeting, and (D) the Effective Time, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. The representations and warranties contained in this Section 5.8(b) will not apply to statements or omissions included in the Registration Statement or any Other Filings based upon information furnished in writing to the Parent or Merger Sub by the Company specifically for use therein.

Section 5.9 Absence of Certain Changes or Events. Since October 31, 2003, except as specifically contemplated by, or as disclosed in, this Agreement or in the Parent SEC Filings or in Section 5.9 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule, there has not been (i) any action, event, occurrence or transaction that would have been prohibited by Section 6.2 if this Agreement had been in effect at the time thereof or any agreement, arrangement or commitment in respect of any action, event, occurrence or transaction that would have been prohibited by Section 6.2 if this Agreement that been prohibited by Section 6.2 if this Agreement that would have been prohibited by Section 6.2 if this Agreement that would have been prohibited by Section 6.2 if this Agreement had been in effect at the time thereof, (ii) any Parent Material Adverse Effect or an event or development that would, individually or in the aggregate, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect, or (iii) any event or development that would, individually be expected to prevent or materially delay the performance of this Agreement by Parent.

Section 5.10 Compliance with Laws. Neither Parent nor any Parent Subsidiary is in conflict with, or in default or violation of, any Law applicable to Parent or any Parent Subsidiary or by which any material property or asset of Parent or any Parent Subsidiary is bound or affected, except for any such conflicts, defaults or violations that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.11 FDA Compliance. All products currently being manufactured, tested, developed, processed, labeled, stored or distributed by or on behalf of Parent or any Parent Subsidiary, which are subject to the jurisdiction of the FDA, are being manufactured, tested, developed, processed, labeled, stored, distributed, and marketed in compliance with all applicable Laws, guidances or orders administered or issued by the FDA or any other Governmental Entity, including without limitation, the FDA's current Good Manufacturing Practice regulations, except where any failure to so comply would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect. All applicable operations of Parent and each Parent Subsidiary have achieved and maintained ISO 13485 Quality System certification, and there is no pending or, to the Parent's knowledge threatened, audit, repeal, failure to renew or challenge to any such certifications. All products being manufactured by Parent or any Parent Subsidiary are in compliance with applicable Law for each site at which a product of Parent or any Parent Subsidiary is manufactured except where any failure to so comply would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect. All pre-clinical and clinical trials being conducted by or on behalf of Parent or any Parent Subsidiary is manufactured except where any failure to so comply would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect. All pre-clinical and clinical trials being conducted by or on behalf of Parent or any Parent Subsidiary are being conducted in compliance with all applicable Laws and guidances of the FDA or any other Governmental Entity, including without limitation, the FDA's current Good Clinical Practice regulations and federal and state laws, regulations and guidances restricting the use and disclosure of individually identifiable health information except where any failure to so comply would not, individually or in the aggregate,

have a Parent Material Adverse Effect. Neither Parent, nor any Parent Subsidiary, is the subject, officially or otherwise, of any pending or threatened investigation by the FDA pursuant to its "Fraud, Untrue Statements of Material Facts, Bribery, and Illegal Gratuities" Final Policy set forth in 56 Fed. Reg. 46191 (September 10, 1991), and any amendments thereto. Neither Parent, nor any Parent Subsidiary has committed any act, made any statement, or failed to make any statement that would provide a basis for the FDA to invoke its policy with respect to "Fraud, Untrue Statements of Material Facts, Bribery and Illegal Gratuities" and any amendments thereto. To Parent's knowledge, each product distributed, sold or leased, or service rendered, by Parent or any Parent Subsidiary complies in all material respects with all applicable product safety standards of each applicable product safety agency, commission, board or other Governmental Entity.

Parent and each Parent Subsidiary is in compliance with all applicable FDA import and export requirements, including, but not limited to, import-forexport requirements, export notifications or authorizations and record keeping requirements except as would not have, individually or in the aggregate, a Parent Material Adverse Effect.

Section 5.12 Tax Treatment. None of Parent, any Parent Subsidiary or, to the knowledge of Parent, any of Parent's affiliates has taken or agreed to take, or will take or will agree to take, any action that would prevent the Merger from qualifying as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. Parent is not aware of any agreement, plan or other circumstance that would prevent the Merger from qualifying as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code.

Section 5.13 Ownership of Merger Sub; No Prior Activities.

(a) Merger Sub was formed solely for the purpose of engaging in the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(b) All of the outstanding capital stock of Merger Sub is owned directly by Parent. There are no options, warrants or other rights (including registration rights), agreements, arrangements or commitments to which Merger Sub is a party of any character relating to the issued or unissued capital stock of, or other Equity Interests in, Merger Sub or obligating Merger Sub to grant, issue or sell any shares of the capital stock of, or other Equity Interests in, Merger Sub, by sale, lease, license or otherwise. There are no obligations, contingent or otherwise, of Merger Sub to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of the capital stock of Merger Sub.

(c) Except for obligations or liabilities incurred in connection with its incorporation or organization and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, Merger Sub has not and will not prior to the Effective Time have incurred, directly or indirectly, through any subsidiary or affiliate, any obligations or liabilities or engaged in any business activities of any type or kind whatsoever or entered into any agreements or arrangements with any person.

Section 5.14 Brokers. Other than J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., no broker, finder or investment banker is entitled to any brokerage, finder's or other fee or commission in connection with the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of Parent or any Parent Subsidiary.

Section 5.15 Vote Required. The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Parent Common Stock is the only vote, if any, of the holders of any class or series of capital stock or other Equity Interests of Parent necessary to approve the Share Issuance. The affirmative vote of Parent, as the sole stockholder of Merger Sub, is the only vote, if any, of the holders of any class or series of capital stock or other Equity Interests of any class or series of capital stock or other Equity Interests of any class or series of capital stock or other Equity Interests of Merger Sub necessary to approve the Merger.

Section 5.16 Fairness Opinion. Parent's Board of Directors has received a written opinion from J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. dated as of July 28, 2004 to the effect that, as of such date, the Merger Consideration is fair from a financial point of view to Parent, and Parent delivered to the Company a true and complete copy of such opinion.

Section 5.17 DGCL Section 203. Neither Parent nor any affiliate of Parent is, or has been during the last three years, an "interested stockholder" (as defined in Section 203 of the DGCL) of the Company other than as contemplated pursuant to this Agreement.

Section 5.18 No Negotiations. As of the date hereof, neither Parent nor any Parent Subsidiary is engaged in any discussions or negotiations with, or furnishing any information to, any person in connection with or relating to a Parent Acquisition Proposal.

Section 5.19 Restrictions on Conduct of Business. Neither Parent nor any of its affiliates is a party to any contract related to the contact lens industry that will materially restrict or prohibit the Surviving Corporation (or any successor thereof) following the Effective Time from engaging or participating in any material line of business or market in such industry (including the conduct following the Effective Time of the Company's business as currently conducted), or from competing in any material market in the world in any material respect, or from making use of any material Intellectual Property, including any contract granting exclusive rights, or rights of first refusal or first negotiation, or otherwise containing provisions materially limiting the rights of the Surviving Corporation (or any successor thereof) with respect to the sale, purchase, distribution or manufacture of any products or services in any material respect.

Article 6.

Covenants

Section 6.1 Conduct of Business by the Company Pending the Closing. The Company agrees that, between the date of this Agreement and the Effective Time, except as set forth in Section 6.1 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, as required by Section 6.13 of this Agreement or as specifically permitted by any other provision of this Agreement, unless Parent shall otherwise agree in writing, the Company will, and will cause each Company Subsidiary to, (A) conduct its operations only in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, and shall not take any action inconsistent therewith or with this Agreement, (B) use all reasonable best efforts to keep available the services of the current officers, key employees and consultants of the Company and each Company Subsidiary and to preserve the current relationships of the Company and each Company Subsidiary with such of the customers, suppliers, distributors, business partners and other persons with which the Company or any Company Subsidiary has business relations, (C) have in effect and maintain at all times insurance of the kinds, in the amounts and with the insurers as is presently in effect, (D) keep in working condition and good order and repair all of its material assets and properties, normal wear and tear excepted and (E) take reasonable and customary action to protect the Company's Intellectual Property to the end that the Company's and each Company Subsidiary's goodwill and ongoing business shall not be impaired in any material respects as of the Closing Date. Without limiting the foregoing, and as an extension thereof, except as set forth in Section 6.1 of the Company Disclosure Schedule or as specifically permitted by any other provision of this Agreement, the Company shall not (unless required by applicable Law or the regulations or requirements of Nasdaq), and shall not permit any Company Subsidiary to, between the date of this Agreement and the Effective Time, directly or indirectly, do, or agree to do, any of the following without the prior

(a) amend or otherwise change its Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws or equivalent organizational documents;

(b) (A) issue, sell, pledge, dispose of, grant, transfer, encumber, or authorize the issuance, sale, pledge, disposition, grant, transfer, or encumbrance of any capital shares of, or other Equity Interests in, the Company or any Company Subsidiary, of any class, or securities convertible or exchangeable or exercisable for any such capital shares or other Equity Interests, or any options, warrants or other rights of any kind to acquire any such capital shares or other Equity Interests or such convertible or exchangeable securities, or any other ownership interest (including, without limitation, any such interest represented by contract right), of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, other than (1) the issuance of Company Common Shares upon the exercise of Company Options outstanding as of the date hereof in accordance with their terms, and

(2) the grant of Company Options after February 1, 2005 (and the issuance of Company Common Shares upon the exercise of such Company Options) to acquire up to an aggregate of 500,000 Company Common Shares at an exercise price not lower than the fair value of the Company Common Shares on the date of grant, in connection with performance evaluations or promotions in 2005, or (B) sell, pledge, mortgage, dispose of, transfer, lease, license, guarantee or encumber, or authorize the sale, pledge, mortgage, disposition, transfer, lease, license, guarantee or encumber, or any Company Subsidiary, except pursuant to existing contracts or commitments or the sale or purchase of goods, in each case in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, or the disposition of equipment or furniture no longer in use as a result of the implementation of the Company's Generation II project (as described in Company SEC Filings), or (C) enter into any commitment or transaction outside the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice other than (1) transactions between a wholly owned Company Subsidiary and the Company or another wholly owned Company Subsidiary and (2) transactions or commitments involving expenditures in the aggregate not to exceed \$500,000;

(*c*) declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution (whether payable in cash, stock, property or a combination thereof) with respect to any of its capital shares (other than dividends paid by a wholly owned Company Subsidiary to the Company or to any other wholly owned Company Subsidiary) or enter into any agreement with respect to the voting of its capital shares;

(*d*) reclassify, combine, split, subdivide, or issue or authorize the issuance of any other securities in respect of, or redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire, directly or indirectly, or modify or amend any of its capital shares or other Equity Interests;

(e) (A) merge with, acquire or agree to acquire (including, without limitation, by merger, consolidation, or acquisition of stock or assets), or invest in or agree to invest in (by acquisition of stock or securities, contributions to capital, property transfers or otherwise) any direct or indirect interest or investment in any person, any Equity Interests of any person (other than a wholly-owned Company Subsidiary), any division of any person or any assets, other than acquisitions of assets in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and capital expenditures permitted by clause (E), (B) incur or modify any indebtedness for borrowed money or issue any debt securities or assume, guarantee or endorse, or otherwise as an accommodation become responsible for (whether directly, contingently or otherwise), the debt securities, indebtedness or other obligations of any person (other than a wholly owned Company Subsidiary) for borrowed money, except for indebtedness for borrowed money incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice (including any borrowings under the Company's revolving credit agreements with Comerica Bank and Wells Fargo as in effect on the date hereof, and any amendment thereto or refinancing thereof that does not increase the principal amount of loans available thereunder), (C) amend, terminate, cancel, or agree to any material change in, any Company Material Contract other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, (D) waive, release or assign any material right or claim under any Company Material Contract, (E) make or authorize any capital expenditure in excess of the Company's 2004 budget as disclosed to Parent prior to the date hereof and for capital expenditures occurring in the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2005, in an amount per quarter equal to one quarter of the total 2004 budget, (F) enter into any Contract (whether written or oral) material to the condition (financial or otherwise), business, properties, assets, prospects or results or operations of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, other than in the ordinary course of business, (G) issue or sell any debt securities of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, (H) make or authorize any material loan to any person or guarantee any indebtedness of a person, other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice or loans by the Company to any wholly-owned Company Subsidiary, or by any wholly-owned Company Subsidiary to the Company or any other wholly-owned Company Subsidiary, (I) increase the principal, interest or otherwise modify the redemption terms or any other terms of the existing indebtedness of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, other than in connection with new borrowings in the ordinary course of business under the terms of credit facilities in effect on the date hereof (including amendments and refinancings that do not increase the principal amount of loans available thereunder) that

do not increase the total amount available for borrowing thereunder, (J) enter into any "keep well" or other agreement to maintain any financial statement condition of another person (other than a wholly-owned Company Subsidiary) or (K) enter into or amend any contract, agreement, commitment or arrangement that, if fully performed, would not be permitted under this Section 6.1(e);

(f) except as may be required by applicable Law or any contractual commitments or corporate policies with respect to severance or termination pay in existence on the date of this Agreement as disclosed in Section 4.11(b) of the Company Disclosure Schedule or pursuant to the Retention Plan set forth in Section 6.1(f) of the Company Disclosure Schedule: (A) increase the compensation or benefits payable or to become payable to its directors, officers or employees (except for (1) increases in accordance with past practices in salaries or wages of employees of the Company or any Company Subsidiary which are not across-the-board increases, (2) bonuses (other than to executive officers) in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices in connection with performance reviews, periodic grants, promotions and other routine awards), (3) payments pursuant to bonus plans in effect on the date hereof relating to bonuses for performance in 2004, and the adoption of new bonus plans for 2005 in the ordinary course of business that are consistent with plans in effect on the date hereof), and (5) bonuses paid to employees hired after the date hereof (excluding executive officers) in the ordinary course of business, (B) grant any rights to severance or termination pay to, or enter into any employment or severance agreement with, any director, officer or other employee of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, other than rights granted to new hires that are consistent with the rights of existing employees holding similar positions, or establish, adopt, enter into or amend any collective bargaining, bonus, profit sharing, thrift, compensation, stock option, restricted stock, pension, retirement, deferred compensation, employment, termination, severance or other plan, agreement, trust, fund, policy or arrangement for the benefit of any director, officer or employee, except to the extent required by applicable Law, (C) take any affirmative action to amend or waive any performance or vesting criteria or accelerate vesting, exercisability or funding under any Company Benefit Plan other than as contemplated by Section 4.10 or Section 4.11 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, (D) provide for the payment of any amounts to directors, officers and employees as a result of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement other than amounts payable under agreements, policies or commitments that are disclosed in Sections 4.10 or 4.11 of the Company Disclosure Schedule, (E) fail to take such action as would be reasonable under the circumstances to enforce any rights of the Company or any Company Subsidiary under any employment agreement, severance agreement, noncompete agreement, nonsolicitation agreement, covenant not to disclose confidential information or other similar agreement with respect to any current or former employee or independent contractor of the Company or any Company Subsidiary in effect as of the date hereof or (F) take any action to implement the ESPP;

(*g*) enter into any new line of business;

(*h*) adopt a plan of complete or partial liquidation, dissolution, merger, consolidation, restructuring, recapitalization or other reorganization of the Company or any Company Subsidiary (other than the Merger);

(*i*) (A) pre-pay any long-term debt, except in the ordinary course of business in an amount not to exceed \$500,000 in the aggregate for the Company and the Company Subsidiaries taken as a whole, or pay, discharge, settle or satisfy any claims, liabilities or obligations (absolute, accrued, asserted, unasserted, contingent or otherwise), except (A) in the ordinary course of business, (B) the settlement of claims, litigation or arbitration within insurance policy limits, and (C) the payment of obligations under contracts currently in effect or entered into after the date of this Agreement in compliance with this Section 6.1 and which payments are not otherwise prohibited;

(*j*) make any change in accounting policies or procedures, except as required by GAAP or by a Governmental Entity or in connection with compliance with Section 404 of SOXA;

(*k*) (A) waive, release, assign, settle or compromise any material claims, or any material litigation or arbitration and (B) settle, pay or discharge any claim with respect to, or arising out of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, in each case, other than within insurance policy limits;

(*l*) (A) make any material tax election outside the ordinary course of business or settle or compromise any material liability for Taxes, (B) file any amended Tax Return, (C) change any annual tax accounting period or method of tax accounting, (D) enter into any closing agreement relating to any tax, (E) surrender any right to claim any tax refund or (F) give or request any waiver of a statute of limitation with respect to any Tax Return, claim or assessment other than waivers of statutes of limitations as set forth in Section 6.1(l) of the Disclosure Schedule (it being agreed that Parent shall have the right to participate in any proceeding with respect to any material liability for Taxes of the Company or any Company Subsidiary)

(*m*) take, or agree to take, any action that would prevent the Merger from qualifying as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code;

(*n*) modify, amend or terminate, or waive, release or assign any material rights or claims with respect to any confidentiality or standstill agreement to which the Company is a party;

(*o*) write up, write down or write off the book value of any assets, individually or in the aggregate, for the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, other than in the ordinary course of business in accordance with GAAP consistently applied or assets no longer in use as a result of the implementation of the Company's Generation II project (as described in Company SEC Filings);

(*p*) (A) sell, assign, license, mortgage, pledge, sublicense, encumber, impair, abandon or fail to maintain any material Company Intellectual Property other than in the ordinary course of business, consistent with past practice, (B) grant, extend, amend, waive or modify any rights in or to the Company Intellectual Property, other than in the ordinary course of business, consistent with past practice, (C) fail to take such actions as are reasonable and customary to enforce its Intellectual Property rights or prosecute or maintain its Intellectual Property, (D) enter into any material contract with respect to Intellectual Property or (E) amend, terminate, request or agree to a material change, or waive, release or assign any material right or claim under any material contract with respect to Intellectual Property, in each case other than grants of security interests therein in the ordinary course of business, consistent with past practice, to secure borrowings by the Company or any Company Subsidiary thereof;

(*q*) take any action to exempt or make not subject to any state takeover law or state law that purports to limit or restrict business combinations or the ability to acquire or vote shares any person or entity (other than Parent, Merger Sub or any Parent Subsidiary) or any action taken thereby, which person, entity or action would have otherwise been subject to the restrictive provisions thereof and not exempt therefrom;

(*r*) enter into any agreements, consummate any transactions, or take any other action that would, is intended to, or would reasonably be expected to, result in (1) any of the representations and warranties of the Company set forth in this Agreement not being true and correct as of the Closing such that the condition to the Merger set forth in Section 7.2(a) would not be satisfied, or (2) any of the other conditions to the Merger set forth in Article 7 not being satisfied (except as expressly permitted in Section 6.7);

(s) enter into any transaction with any affiliate of the Company (other than a wholly owned Company Subsidiary) or any director, officer, or beneficial owner of more than 5% of voting securities of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or any of their family members or affiliates (other than compensation for services permitted by the other provisions of this Section);

(*t*) enter into any transaction or agreement that limits or otherwise restricts the Company or any Company Subsidiary or that could reasonably be expected to, after the Closing Date, limit or restrict the Surviving Corporation or its affiliates and successors, from engaging or competing in any line of business or in any geographic area;

(*u*) make any payment to an affiliate (other than the Company or any Company Subsidiary), except in accordance with the terms of any contract or compensation arrangement in effect on the date hereof to employees or directors in the ordinary course of business and in accordance with Section 6.1(f);

(*v*) change (including by way of amendment, modification, or failure to renew) any insurance coverage in any material respect except as expressly permitted in Section 6.14(b); or

(w) enter into any agreement or otherwise make any commitment to do any of the foregoing.

Section 6.2 Conduct of Business by Parent Pending the Closing. Except as set forth in Section 6.2 of the Parent Disclosure Schedule or as specifically permitted by any other provision of this Agreement, Parent shall conduct its operations in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, and shall not take any action inconsistent therewith or with this Agreement, and shall not (unless required by applicable Law or any NYSE regulations applicable to the Parent), between the date of this Agreement and the Effective Time, directly or indirectly, do, or agree to do, any of the following, without the prior written consent of the Company:

(*a*) amend or otherwise change the Parent Certificate or Parent By-laws in a manner that adversely affects the rights of holders of Parent Common Stock;

(*b*) (A) declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution, payable in cash, stock, property or otherwise, with respect to any of Parent's capital stock (other than regular semi-annual cash dividends of \$0.03 per share), or (B) fail to pay regular semi-annual cash dividends of \$0.03 per share (subject to Parent's having legally available funds therefor);

(c) merge with, acquire or agree to acquire (including, without limitation, by merger, consolidation, or acquisition of stock or assets), or invest in or agree to invest in (by acquisition of stock or securities, contributions to capital, property transfers or otherwise) any direct or indirect interest or investment in any person, any Equity Interests of any person, any division of any person or any assets, other than (1) acquisitions of inventory and capital expenditures in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and (2) any mergers, acquisitions of assets, or acquisitions of capital stock, or agreements to enter into any such transactions, which (1) do not involve acquisitions of entities (or substantially all of the assets of entities) engaged to any material extent in the design, development or manufacture of soft contact lenses, (2) do not require approval of Parent's stockholders and (3) would not reasonably be expected to create a substantial risk that the Effective Time would be delayed in any material way, or that any of the conditions set forth in Article 7 would not be satisfied;

(*d*) adopt a plan of complete or partial liquidation, dissolution, recapitalization or other reorganization of Parent other than an agreement or plan with respect to a Parent Acquisition Proposal permitted by Section 6.2(e);

(*e*) enter into any agreements, consummate any transactions, or take any other action that would, is intended to, or would reasonably be expected to, result in (1) any of the representations and warranties of Parent set forth in this Agreement not being true and correct as of the Closing such that the condition to the Merger set forth in Section 7.2(a) would not be satisfied, or (2) any of the other conditions to the Merger set forth in Article 7 not being satisfied (except as expressly permitted in Section 6.19);

(*f*) take, or agree to take, any action that would prevent the Merger from qualifying as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code; or

(g) authorize or enter into any agreement or otherwise make any commitment to do any of the foregoing.

Section 6.3 Cooperation. The Company and Parent shall coordinate and cooperate in connection with (A) the preparation of the Registration Statement, the Proxy Statement and any Other Filings, (B) determining whether any action by or in respect of, or filing with, any Governmental Entity is required, or any actions, consents, approvals or waivers are required to be obtained from parties to any Company Material Contracts, in connection with the consummation of the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (C) seeking any such actions, consents, approvals or waivers or making any such filings, furnishing information required in connection therewith or with the Registration Statement, the Proxy Statement or any Other Filings and timely seeking to obtain any such actions, consents, approvals or waivers.

Section 6.4 Registration Statement; Proxy Statement.

(*a*) As promptly as practicable after the execution of this Agreement, Parent and the Company shall prepare and file with the SEC a joint proxy statement relating to the Company Stockholders Meeting and Parent Stockholders Meeting (together with any amendments thereof or supplements thereto, the "Proxy

Statement") and Parent shall prepare and file with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-4 (together with all amendments thereto, the "Registration Statement") in which the Proxy Statement shall be included as a prospectus, in connection with the registration under the Securities Act of the shares of Parent Common Stock to be issued to the stockholders of the Company pursuant to the Merger and to be issued pursuant to holders of Company Options pursuant to Section 3.4(b). Each of Parent and the Company shall prepare and file with the SEC any Other Filings as and when required or requested by the SEC. Each of Parent and the Company will use reasonable best efforts to respond to any comments made by the SEC with respect to the Proxy Statement and any Other Filings, and to cause the Registration Statement to become effective as promptly as practicable. Prior to the effective date of the Registration Statement, Parent shall take all or any action required under any applicable federal, state or foreign securities laws in connection with the issuance of shares of Parent Common Stock in the Merger. Each of Parent and the Company shall furnish all information concerning it and the holders of its capital stock as the other may reasonably request in connection with such actions and the preparation of the Registration Statement, the Proxy Statement and any Other Filings. As promptly as practicable after the Registration Statement shall have become effective, the Company and Parent shall mail the Proxy Statement to their stockholders; provided, however, that the Company and Parent shall consult and cooperate with each other in determining the appropriate time for mailing the prospectus contained in the Registration Statement with the Proxy Statement in light of the dates set for the Company Stockholders Meeting and the Parent Stockholder Meeting. The Proxy Statement shall (subject to the last sentence of Section 6.7(c) hereof) include the recommendation of the Company Board that adoption of the Agreement by the Company's stockholders is advisable and that the Company Board has determined that the Merger is fair and in the best interests of the Company's stockholders, and shall (subject to the last sentence of 6.20(c) hereof) include the recommendation Parent Recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Parent (the "Parent Board") that approval of the Share Issuance by the Parent's stockholders is advisable and that the Parent Board has determined that the Share Issuance is in the best interests of Parent's stockholders.

Subject to the last sentence of Section 6.7(c) and subject to the last sentence of Section 6.20(c) hereof, no amendment or supplement (other than pursuant to Rule 425 of the Securities Act with respect to releases made in compliance with Section 6.11 of this Agreement) to the Proxy Statement, the Registration Statement or any Other Filings will be made by Parent or the Company without the approval of the other party (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed). Parent and the Company each will advise the other, promptly after it receives notice thereof, of the time when the Registration Statement has become effective or any supplement or amendment has been filed, of the issuance of any stop order, the suspension of the qualification of the Parent Common Stock issuable in connection with the Merger for offering or sale in any jurisdiction, or any request by the SEC for amendment of the Proxy Statement, the Registration Statement or any Other Filings or comments thereon and responses thereto or requests by the SEC for additional information.

(b) The information supplied by Parent for inclusion in the Registration Statement and the Proxy Statement shall not, at (i) the time the Registration Statement is declared effective, (ii) the time the Proxy Statement (or any amendment thereof or supplement thereto) is first mailed to the stockholders of the Company, (iii) the time of the Company Stockholders Meeting and (iv) the time of the Parent Stockholders Meeting, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements contained therein not misleading. If at any time prior to the Effective Time, any event or circumstance relating to Parent or any Parent Subsidiary, or their respective officers or directors, should be discovered by Parent which should be set forth in an amendment or a supplement to the Registration Statement, the Proxy Statement or any Other Filing, Parent shall promptly inform the Company. All documents that Parent is responsible for filing with the SEC in connection with the transactions contemplated herein will comply as to form and substance in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act and the rules and regulations thereunder, and other applicable Law.

(*c*) The information supplied by the Company for inclusion in the Registration Statement and the Proxy Statement shall not, at (i) the time the Registration Statement is declared effective, (ii) the time the Proxy

Statement (or any amendment thereof or supplement thereto) is first mailed to the stockholders of the Company, (iii) the time of the Company Stockholders Meeting and (iv) the time of the Parent Stockholders Meeting, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements contained therein not misleading. If at any time prior to the Effective Time, any event or circumstance relating to the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or their respective officers or directors, should be discovered by the Company which should be set forth in an amendment or a supplement to the Registration Statement, the Proxy Statement or any Other Filing, the Company shall promptly inform Parent. All documents that the Company is responsible for filing with the SEC in connection with the transactions contemplated herein will comply as to form and substance in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act and the rules and regulations thereunder, the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder and other applicable Law.

Section 6.5 Stockholders' Meetings.

(a) The Company shall call and hold a meeting of its stockholders (the "Company Stockholders Meeting") as promptly as reasonably practicable following the date on which the Registration Statement becomes effective, for the purpose of voting upon the adoption and approval of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement. In connection with the Company Stockholders Meeting, the Company will (i) subject to applicable Law, use its reasonable best efforts (including postponing or adjourning the Company Stockholders Meeting to obtain a quorum or to solicit additional proxies, but for no other reason without the prior consent of Parent, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld) to obtain the necessary approvals by its stockholders of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby, and (ii) otherwise comply with all legal requirements applicable to the Company Stockholders Meeting.

(b) Parent shall call and hold a meeting of its stockholders (the "Parent Stockholders Meeting") as promptly as reasonably practicable following the date on which the Registration Statement becomes effective for the purpose of voting upon the approval of the Share Issuance. In connection with the Parent Stockholders Meeting, Parent will (i) subject to applicable Law, use its reasonable best efforts (including postponing or adjourning the Parent Stockholders Meeting to obtain a quorum or to solicit additional proxies but for no other reason without the prior consent of the Company, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld) to obtain the necessary approvals by its stockholders of the Share Issuance, and (ii) otherwise comply with all legal requirements applicable to the Parent Stockholders Meeting.

Section 6.6 Access to Information; Confidentiality.

(a) Except as required pursuant to any confidentiality agreement or similar agreement or arrangement to which the Company, Parent or any of their respective subsidiaries is a party (which such person shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause the counterparty to waive), from the date of this Agreement to the Effective Time, the Company and Parent shall, and shall cause each of its subsidiaries and each of their and their subsidiaries' respective directors, officers, employees, accountants, consultants, legal counsel, advisors, and agents and other representatives (collectively, the "Representatives") to (A) provide to the other party and its respective Representatives access at reasonable times upon prior notice to the officers, employees, agents, properties, offices and other facilities of such party and its subsidiaries and to the books and records thereof and (B) furnish promptly such information concerning the business, properties, contracts, assets, liabilities, personnel and other aspects of such party and its subsidiaries may reasonably request. No investigation conducted pursuant to this Section 6.6(a) shall affect or be deemed to modify or limit any representation or warranty made in this Agreement, or affect the satisfaction or non-satisfaction of any condition to the Merger set forth in this Agreement. Each party may withhold competitively sensitive information or impose conditions on its use.

(*b*) With respect to the information disclosed pursuant to Section 6.6(a), the parties shall comply with, and shall cause their respective Representatives to comply with, all of their respective obligations under the Confidentiality Agreement previously executed by the Company and Parent (the "Confidentiality Agreement").

Section 6.7 No Solicitation of Transactions by Company.

(a) None of the Company or any Company Subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, take (and the Company shall not authorize or permit the Company Representatives or, to the extent within the Company's control, other affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, employees, accountants, consultants, legal counsel, advisors, agents and other representatives (the "Company Affiliate Representatives") to take), any action to (A) solicit, initiate, encourage or facilitate, any Acquisition Proposal (including by way of furnishing non-public information), (B) enter into any agreement or commitment with respect to any Acquisition Proposal (other than confidentiality agreements permitted by clause (x) below), or enter into any agreement, arrangement or understanding requiring it to abandon, terminate or fail to consummate the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement, or (C) participate in any way in discussions or negotiations with, or furnish any information to, any person in connection with, or take any other action to facilitate any inquiries or the making of any proposal that constitutes, or could reasonably be expected to lead to, any Acquisition Proposal; provided, however, that if, at any time prior to the Company Stockholders Meeting, the Company Board determines in good faith, after consultation with outside counsel, that (1) the Company has received an unsolicited Acquisition Proposal which is reasonably likely to lead to a Superior Proposal, and (2) the failure to take such action would be reasonably likely to result in a breach of the Company Board's fiduciary duties to the stockholders of the Company, the Company may, in response to such Acquisition Proposal and subject to the Company's compliance with, Section 6.7(b) and Section 6.7(c), (x) furnish information with respect to the Company and the Company Subsidiaries to the person making such Acquisition Proposal pursuant to a customary confidentiality agreement the terms of which are no more favorable to the other party to such confidentiality agreement than those in place with Parent and (y) participate in discussions and negotiations with respect to such Acquisition Proposal. Upon execution of this Agreement, the Company shall, and shall cause the Company Representatives and, to the extent within the Company's control, its other affiliates and the Company Affiliate Representatives to, cease immediately and cause to be terminated any and all existing discussions, conversations, negotiations and other communications with any parties conducted heretofore with respect to, or that could reasonably be expected to lead to, an Acquisition Proposal and promptly request that all confidential information with respect thereto furnished on behalf of the Company be returned. Without limiting the foregoing, the Company agrees that any violation of the restrictions set forth in this Section 6.7 by any of the Company's Representatives or affiliates or the Company Affiliate Representatives, whether or not purporting to act on behalf of the Company, shall constitute a breach of this Section 6.7 by the Company; and that any breach of, or failure to observe, any of the provisions of this Section 6.7 by the Company as a result of any action by any executive officer, or member of the Board of Directors, of the Company, or of which the Company does not notify Parent promptly upon any of its executive officers or directors becoming informed thereof, shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement by the Company and, for purposes of Section 6.19(d), a breach in a material respect of this Section 6.7.

(b) The Company shall promptly (and in no event later than 24 hours after receipt thereof), (1) provide written notification to Parent of any submission, proposal, offer or inquiry received by it relating to any potential Acquisition Proposal and of the material terms of any proposal or inquiry, including the identity of the person and its affiliates making the same, that it may receive in respect of any such potential Acquisition Proposal, or of any information requested from it or of any negotiations or discussions being sought to be initiated with it, (2) furnish to Parent a copy of any such proposal or inquiry, if it is in writing, or a written summary of any such proposal or inquiry, if it is not in writing and (3) keep Parent informed on a prompt basis with respect to any developments with respect to the foregoing, including any changes in price, structure, form of consideration or closing conditions.

(*c*) Subject to the provisions of this Section 6.7(c), neither the Company Board nor any committee thereof shall (A) withdraw or modify, or propose publicly to withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse to Parent, the approval or recommendation by the Company Board or such committee of the adoption and approval of the Merger (the "Company Recommendation") and the matters to be considered at the Company Stockholders Meeting, (B) other than the Merger, approve or recommend, or propose publicly to approve or

recommend, any Acquisition Proposal or (C) other than the Merger, cause the Company to enter into any letter of intent, agreement in principle, acquisition agreement or other similar agreement related to any Acquisition Proposal. Nothing contained in this Section 6.7(c) shall prohibit the Company Board (x) from taking and disclosing to the Company's stockholders a position contemplated by Rule 14d-9 or Rule 14e-2(a) promulgated under the Exchange Act; provided, however, that the Company Board shall not recommend that the stockholders of the Company tender their shares in connection with a tender offer, except to the extent the Company Board determines in its good faith judgment that failure to make such a recommendation is reasonably likely to result in a breach of the fiduciary duties of the Company Board to stockholders under applicable Law, after consulting with outside legal counsel, or (y) in the event that a Superior Proposal is made prior to the Company Stockholders Meeting, from withdrawing or modifying the Company Recommendation if the Company Board determines in good faith, after consultation with outside counsel, that failure to withdraw or modify the Company Recommendation is reasonably likely to result in a breach of its fiduciary duties to the stockholders of the Company; provided, however, that the Company Board shall not withdraw or modify the Company Recommendation prior to the date that is five (5) business days following Parent's receipt of written notice of the Company Board's determination to do so (it being understood and agreed that any amendment to the amount or form or other material term of the Superior Proposal shall require a new notice and a new five (5) business day period); provided, further that (i) the Company continues to comply with all other provisions of this Agreement including, without limitation, this Section 6.7 hereof, (ii) such action is in response to a Superior Proposal that did not result from a breach by the Company of this Section 6.7 and (iii) if requested by Parent, the Company shall, during such five (5) business day period, negotiate in good faith with Parent to make such adjustments to the terms and conditions of this Agreement such that the Company Board would no longer determine in good faith that such third party Acquisition Proposal constitutes a Superior Proposal.

(*d*) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 6.7, in the event Parent takes any of the actions permitted in Section 6.19(a)(x) or (y) or breaches in any material respect the provisions of Section 6.19, the restrictions set forth in Section 6.7(a) will cease to be in effect, but the Company will still be bound by the provisions set forth in Section 6.7(b) and (c).

Section 6.8 Appropriate Action; Consents; Filings.

(a) The Company and Parent shall use their reasonable best efforts to (A) take, or cause to be taken, all appropriate action, and do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or advisable under applicable Law or otherwise to consummate and make effective the transactions contemplated by this Agreement as promptly as practicable, (B) obtain from any Governmental Entity any consents, licenses, permits, waivers, approvals, authorizations or orders required to be obtained or made by Parent or the Company or any of their respective Subsidiaries, or to avoid any action or proceeding by any Governmental Entity (including, without limitation, those in connection with the HSR Act), in connection with the authorization, execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein, including, without limitation, the Merger, (C) make all necessary filings, and thereafter make any other required submissions, with respect to this Agreement and the Merger required under (x) the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, and any other applicable federal or state securities Laws, (y) the HSR Act and (z) any other applicable Law and (D) contest any action by any Governmental Entity seeking to restrain, enjoin, impose conditions upon or alter the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; provided, however, that Parent and the Company shall cooperate with each other in connection with the making of all such filings, including providing copies of all such documents to counsel for the non-filing party and its advisors prior to filing and, if requested, to accept all reasonable additions, deletions or changes suggested in connection therewith; provided, however, that nothing in this Section 6.8(a) shall require Parent to agree to (AA) the imposition of conditions, (BB) the requirement of divestiture of assets or property or (CC) the requirement of expenditure of money by Parent or the Company to a third party in exchange for any such consent. The Company and Parent shall furnish to each other all information required for any application or other filing under the rules and regulations of any applicable Law (including all information required to be included in the Proxy Statement and the Registration Statement) in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

To the extent reasonably practicable, neither Parent nor the Company shall agree to participate in any meeting or discussion with any Governmental Entity in respect of any filings, investigation or other inquiry concerning this Agreement or the Merger unless it consults with the other party in advance and, to the extent permitted by such Governmental Entity, gives the other party the opportunity to attend and participate in such meeting or discussion.

(b) The Company and Parent shall give (or shall cause their respective Subsidiaries to give) any notices to third parties, and use, and cause their respective Subsidiaries to use, all reasonable best efforts to obtain any third party consents, (A) necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated in this Agreement, (B) required to be disclosed in the Company Disclosure Schedule or the Parent Disclosure Schedule, as applicable, (C) required to prevent a Company Material Adverse Effect from occurring prior to or after the Effective Time or a Parent Material Adverse Effect from occurring after the Effective Time or (D) otherwise referenced in Section 7.1(e) or Section 7.2(d). In the event that either party shall fail to obtain any third party consent described in the first sentence of this Section 6.8(b), such party shall use all reasonable best efforts, and shall take any such actions reasonably requested by the other party hereto, to minimize any adverse effect upon the Company and Parent, their respective subsidiaries, and their respective businesses resulting, or which could reasonably be expected to result from the failure to obtain such consent.

(c) From the date of this Agreement until the Effective Time, each party shall promptly notify the other party in writing of any pending or, to the knowledge of such party, threatened action, suit, arbitration or other proceeding or investigation by any Governmental Entity or any other person (A) challenging or seeking material damages in connection with the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement, or the conversion of Company Common Shares into Merger Consideration pursuant to the Merger or (B) seeking to restrain or prohibit the consummation of the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement or otherwise limit the right of Parent or any Parent Subsidiary to own or operate all or any portion of the businesses or assets of the Company or any Company Subsidiary. Each party shall give the other reasonable opportunity to participate in (but not to conduct, or direct the conduct of) the defense of or negotiations with respect to any such action, suit, arbitration or other proceeding or investigation shall be entitled to control the defense thereof.

(*d*) Without limiting the foregoing, Parent, the Company and their respective Boards of Directors shall (x) take all action necessary so that no takeover statute or similar statute or regulation is or becomes applicable to the Merger, this Agreement or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (y) if any takeover statute or similar statute or regulation becomes applicable to the Merger, this Agreement or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement, take all action necessary so that the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement may be consummated as promptly as practicable on the terms contemplated by this Agreement and otherwise to minimize the effect of such statute or regulation on the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(e) The Company agrees to provide, and will cause the Company Subsidiaries and its and their respective officers and employees to provide, and will use reasonable best efforts to cause its accountants, attorneys and other representatives to provide, reasonable cooperation in connection with the arrangement of any financing to be consummated contemporaneous with the Closing in respect of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Section 6.9 [Intentionally Omitted.]

Section 6.10 Certain Notices. From and after the date of this Agreement until the Effective Time, each party hereto shall promptly notify the other party hereto of (A) the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event the occurrence or non-occurrence of which would be likely to cause (1) any representation or warranty contained herein to be untrue or inaccurate at any time during the period commencing on the date hereof and ending on the Effective Time or (2) any condition to the obligations of any party to effect the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement not to be satisfied or (B) the failure of the Company or Parent, as the case may

be, to comply with or satisfy any covenant, condition or agreement to be complied with or satisfied by it pursuant to this Agreement which would reasonably be expected to result in any condition to the obligations of any party to effect the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement not to be satisfied; *provided, however*, that the delivery of any notice pursuant to this Section 6.10 shall not cure any breach of any representation or warranty requiring disclosure of such matter prior to the date of this Agreement, affect the satisfaction or non-satisfaction of any condition to the Merger set forth in this Agreement or otherwise limit or affect the remedies available hereunder to the party receiving such notice.

Section 6.11 Public Announcements. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, none of the parties hereto shall issue any press release or make any public announcement concerning the Merger or the other transactions contemplated hereby without obtaining the prior written approval of the other party, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, unless a party determines in good faith that any such disclosure is otherwise required by applicable Law or the rules or regulations of the NYSE or Nasdaq, as applicable; *provided, however*, that to the extent any such release or disclosure is so required, prior to making such release or disclosure, the party intending to make such release or disclosure shall use its reasonable best efforts consistent with such applicable Law or rules or regulations of the NYSE or Nasdaq, as applicable, to consult and discuss in good faith with the other parties the form and content thereof prior to its release and consider in good faith any reasonable changes which are suggested by such party or parties prior to releasing or making the statement.

Section 6.12 Stock Exchange Listing. Parent shall promptly prepare and submit to the NYSE and any other applicable exchange a listing application covering the shares of Parent Common Stock to be issued in the Merger and shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause such shares to be approved for listing on such NYSE, subject to official notice of issuance, prior to the Effective Time.

Section 6.13 Company Stock Options, Employee Benefit and Related Matters.

(a) As of the Effective Time, and subject to the terms of each applicable plan, Parent shall, or shall cause the Surviving Corporation to, provide each employee of the Company or any Company Subsidiary other than employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement or similar arrangement specifying any terms or conditions of work (the "Continuing Employees") with benefits under medical, dental, vision and similar health and welfare plans that are in the aggregate no less favorable than either those provided to similarly situated employees of Parent and Parent Subsidiaries or to those provided to such Continuing Employees immediately prior to the Effective Time. To the extent satisfied prior to the Effective Time or thereafter under the applicable medical, dental and vision Company Benefit Plans, Parent and the Surviving Corporation shall cause any medical, dental and vision plans of Parent or any Parent Subsidiary to provide that such Continuing Employees shall be eligible to participate in as of the Effective Time or thereafter to waive limitations as to preexisting condition exclusions and waiting periods with respect to participation and coverage requirements under such Parent and Surviving Corporation plans. Parent shall, or shall cause the Surviving Corporation to, cause the medical, dental and vision plans of Parent or Parent Subsidiaries in which Continuing Employees are eligible to participate as of the Effective Time or thereafter to provide credit to the Continuing Employees for any copayments and deductibles paid by such Continuing Employees under the applicable medical, dental and vision Company Benefit Plans for the year in which the Closing occurs for the purposes of satisfying any applicable co-payments and deductibles under such Parent or Parent Subsidiary plans for the year in which the Closing occurs. Following the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation will pay (or cause to be paid) any bonuses that have accrued with respect to performance prior to the Effective Time by persons that are employees at the Effective Time, pursuant to any unpaid bonus plans in effect on the date hereof, at such time as such bonus otherwise would have been payable under such bonus plan, and the entitlement of any such employee to any such bonus shall not be impaired by the termination of his or her employment by Parent or any Subsidiary, other than termination for cause, thereof following the Effective Time.

(b) Prior to the Effective Time, the Company Board (or, if appropriate, any committee thereof) shall adopt appropriate resolutions and take all such other action as may be necessary (i) to effectuate the

treatment of all outstanding Company Options as of the Effective Time as contemplated in Section 3.4 and (ii) to terminate, as of the Effective Time, all Company Stock Option Plans and any plan, program or arrangement providing for the prospective issuance or grant of any interest in respect of the capital stock of the Company or Company Subsidiary. After the Effective Time, each Company Stock Option Plan shall be terminated, and no further Company Options shall be granted thereunder.

(c) Prior to the Effective Time, each of the Company Board, or an appropriate committee of non-employee directors thereof, and the Parent's Board of Directors, or an appropriate committee of non-employee directors thereof, shall adopt a resolution consistent with the interpretive guidance of the SEC so that the acquisition and disposition by any officer or director of the Company who may become a covered person of Parent for purposes of Section 16 of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder ("Section 16") of shares of Parent Common Stock or options to acquire Parent Common Stock and Company Common Shares or options to acquire Company Common Shares, respectively, in each case pursuant to this Agreement and the Merger, shall be an exempt transaction for purposes of Section 16.

(*d*) Effective as of the date hereof, the Company Board, or, if appropriate, any committee of the Company Board administering the ESPP, shall adopt such resolutions and take such other actions as may be required to provide that the ESPP shall terminate immediately as of the Effective Time.

Section 6.14 Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

(a) Parent and the Surviving Corporation agree that the indemnification obligations set forth in the Company Certificate and Company By-laws and any Company indemnification agreements shall survive the Merger (and, prior to the Effective Time, Parent shall cause the Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws of Merger Sub to reflect such provisions) and shall not be amended, repealed or otherwise modified after the Effective Time in any manner that would adversely affect the rights thereunder of any individual who on or prior to the Effective Time was a director, officer, trustee, fiduciary, employee or agent of the Company or any Company Subsidiary or who served at the request of the Company or any Company Subsidiary as a director, officer, trustee, partner, fiduciary, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, pension or other employee benefit plan or enterprise, unless such amendment or modification is required by Law.

(b) For six (6) years from the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall provide to the Company's current directors and officers an insurance and indemnification policy that provides coverage for events occurring prior to the Effective Time (the "D&O Insurance") with a \$20,000,000 limit and with other terms that are no less favorable than the Company's existing policy (true and complete copies which have been previously provided to Parent) or, if substantially equivalent insurance coverage is unavailable, the best available coverage; provided, however, that the Surviving Corporation shall not be required to pay an annual premium for the D&O Insurance in excess of 175% of the annual premium to be in effect after August 4, 2004; provided further that if the premium for such coverage exceeds such amount, the Surviving Corporation shall purchase the D&O Insurance with the greatest coverage available for such 175% amount. The provisions of the immediately preceding sentence shall be deemed to have been satisfied if prepaid policies have been obtained prior to the Effective Time for purposes of this Section 6.14, which policies provide such directors and officers with coverage for an aggregate period of six (6) years with respect to claims arising from facts or events that occurred on or before the Effective Time, including, without limitation, in respect of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (and nothing in Section 6.1 shall prohibit the Company from obtaining such a prepaid policy prior to the Effective Time, provided that the cost thereof shall not exceed 175% of the annual premium to be in effect after August 4, 2004. If such prepaid policies have been obtained prior to the Effective Time, Parent shall, and shall cause the Surviving Corporation to, maintain such policies in full force and effect, and continue to honor the obligations thereunder. The obligations under this Section 6.14 shall not be terminated or modified in such a manner as to adversely affect any Indemnitee to whom this Section 6.14 applies without the consent of such affected Indemnitee (it being expressly agreed that the Indemnitees to whom this Section 6.14 applies shall be third party beneficiaries of this Section 6.14), and in the event that Parent consolidates or merges with any other

Person and shall not be the continuing or surviving corporation or entity in such consolidation or merger, or transfers all or substantially all of its assets to any other Person, then Parent shall make proper provision so that the continuing or surviving corporation or entity, or transferee of such assets, as the case may be, shall assume the obligations set forth in this Section 6.14.

Section 6.15 Plan of Reorganization. This Agreement is intended to constitute a "plan of reorganization" within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.368-2(g). Each party hereto shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Merger to qualify, and will not knowingly take any actions or cause any actions to be taken which could reasonably be expected to prevent the Merger from qualifying, as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. Parent, Merger Sub and the Company shall each deliver to counsel to Parent and counsel to the Company, for the purpose of enabling each such counsel to render the tax opinions described in Sections 7.2(c) and 7.3(c) of this Agreement, representation letters, executed and dated as of the Closing Date, in form and in substance substantially identical to those attached hereto as Exhibits C and D respectively (allowing for such amendments to the representation letters as counsel deems reasonably necessary).

Section 6.16 Affiliate Letters. The Company shall, within five business days of the date hereof, deliver to Parent a list (reasonably satisfactory to counsel for Parent) setting forth the names of all persons who are expected to be, at the time of the Company Stockholders Meeting, "affiliates" of the Company for purposes of Rule 145 under the Securities Act. The Company shall furnish such information and documents as Parent may reasonably request for the purpose of reviewing the list. The Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause each person who is identified as an affiliate in the list furnished or supplemented pursuant to this Section 6.16 to execute a written agreement, as soon as practicable after the date hereof, in substantially the form of Exhibit B hereto.

Section 6.17 FIRPTA Affidavit. The Company shall furnish to Parent an affidavit, dated the Closing Date, stating, under penalty of perjury, that the Company is not and has not been a United States real property holding corporation within the meaning of Code Section 897(c)(2) during the applicable period described in Code Section 897(c)(1)(A)(ii).

Section 6.18 401(k) Plan. If requested in writing by Parent, the Company shall, immediately prior to the Closing Date, terminate any of the Company's or a Company Subsidiary's 401(k) Plan or Company Benefit Plan maintained under Section 1165 of the Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code (each, a "Plan") effective as of the day immediately preceding the Closing Date, and no further contributions shall be made to the Plan as of such termination, except for contributions that have been accrued on behalf of participants prior to the Plan's termination and contributions made on behalf of participants that are based on compensation earned prior to the date of the Plan's termination. The Company shall provide to the Parent (i) executed resolutions by the Board of Directors of the Company or a Company Subsidiary authorizing any such requested termination and (ii) the Company shall take or cause to be taken such further actions in furtherance of such termination as Parent may reasonably request.

Section 6.19 No Solicitation of Transactions by Parent.

(a) None of Parent or any Parent Subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, take (and Parent shall not authorize or permit the Parent Representatives or, to the extent within Parent's control, other affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, employees, accountants, consultants, legal counsel, advisors, agents and other representatives (the "Parent Affiliate Representatives") to take), any action to (A) solicit, initiate, encourage or facilitate any Parent Acquisition Proposal (including by way of furnishing non-public information), (B) enter into any agreement or commitment with respect to any Parent Acquisition Proposal (other than confidentiality agreements permitted by clause (x) below), or enter into any agreement, arrangement or understanding requiring it to abandon, terminate or fail to consummate the Merger or any other transactions contemplated by this Agreement, or (C) participate in any way in discussions or negotiations with, or furnish any information to, any person in connection with, or take any other action to facilitate any inquiries or the making of any proposal that constitutes, or could reasonably be expected to lead to, any Parent Acquisition Proposal; *provided, however*, that if, at any time prior to the Parent

Stockholders Meeting, the Parent Board determines in good faith, after consultation with outside counsel, that the failure to take such action would be reasonably likely to result in a breach of the Parent Board's fiduciary duties to the stockholders of Parent, Parent may, in response to a Parent Acquisition Proposal and subject to Parent's compliance with Section 6.19(b) and (c), (x) furnish information with respect to Parent and the Parent Subsidiaries to the person making such Parent Acquisition Proposal pursuant to a customary confidentiality agreement the benefits of the terms of which are no more favorable to the other party to such confidentiality agreement than those in place with the Company and (y) participate in discussions and negotiations with respect to such Parent Acquisition Proposal. Upon execution of this Agreement, Parent shall, and shall cause the Parent Representatives and, to the extent within Parent's control, its other affiliates and the Parent Affiliate Representatives, to cease immediately and cause to be terminated any and all existing discussions, conversations, negotiations and other communications with any parties conducted heretofore with respect to, or that could reasonably be expected to lead to, a Parent Acquisition Proposal and promptly request that all confidential information with respect thereto furnished on behalf of Parent be returned. Without limiting the foregoing, Parent agrees that any violation of the restrictions set forth in this Section 6.19 by any of Parent's Representatives or affiliates or Parent Affiliate Representatives, whether or not purporting to act on behalf of Parent, shall constitute a breach of this Section 6.19 by Parent; and that any breach of, or failure to observe, any of the provisions of this Section 6.19 by Parent as a result of any action by any executive officer, or member of the Board of Directors, of Parent, or of which Parent does not notify the Company promptly upon any of its executive officers or directors becoming informed thereof, sha

(b) Parent shall promptly (and in no event later than 24 hours after receipt thereof), (1) provide written notification to the Company of any submission, proposal, offer or inquiry received by it relating to any potential Parent Acquisition Proposal and of the material terms of any proposal or inquiry, including the identity of the person and its affiliates making the same, that it may receive in respect of any such potential Parent Acquisition Proposal, or of any information requested from it or of any negotiations or discussions being sought to be initiated with it, (2) furnish to the Company a copy of any such proposal or inquiry, if it is in writing, or a written summary of any such proposal or inquiry, if it is not in writing and (3) keep the Company informed on a prompt basis with respect to any developments with respect to the foregoing, including any changes in price, structure, form of consideration or closing conditions.

(c) Subject to the provisions of this Section 6.19(c), neither the Parent Board nor any committee thereof shall (A) withdraw or modify, or propose publicly to withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse to the Company, the approval or recommendation by Parent Board or such committee of the approval of the Share Issuance (the "Parent Recommendation") and the matters to be considered at the Parent Stockholders Meeting, (B) other than the Merger, approve or recommend, or propose publicly to approve or recommend, any Parent Acquisition Proposal, or (C) other than the Merger, cause Parent to enter into any letter of intent, agreement in principle, acquisition agreement or other similar agreement related to any Acquisition Proposal. Nothing contained in this Section 6.19(c) shall prohibit the Parent Board (x) from taking and disclosing to Parent's stockholders a position contemplated by Rule 14d-9 or Rule 14e-2(a) promulgated under the Exchange Act; *provided, however*, that the Parent Board determines in its good faith judgment that failure to make such a recommendation is reasonably likely to result in a breach of the fiduciary duties of the Parent Board to stockholders Meeting, from withdrawing or modifying the Parent Recommendation if the Parent Board determines in good faith, after consultation with outside counsel, that failure to withdraw or modify the Parent Recommendation is reasonably likely to result in a breach of its fiduciary duties to the stockholders of Parent, *provided* that the Parent Board shall not withdraw or modify the Parent Recommendation prior to the date that is five (5) business days following the Company's receipt of written notice of the Parent's Board's determination to enter into an agreement to effect such Parent Conflicting Proposal (it being understood and agreed that any amendment to the amount or form or other material term

of the Parent Conflicting Proposal shall require a new notice and a new five (5) business day period); *provided, further* that (i) Parent continues to comply with all other provisions of this Agreement including, without limitation, Section 6.19 hereof, (ii) such action is in response to a Parent Conflicting Proposal that did not result from a breach by Parent of this Section 6.19 and (iii) if requested by the Company, Parent shall, during such five (5) business day period, negotiate in good faith with the Company to make such adjustments to the terms and conditions of this Agreement such that the Parent Board would no longer determine in good faith that failure to make such an approval or recommendation is reasonably likely to result in a breach of the fiduciary duties of the Parent Board to stockholders under applicable Law, after consulting with outside legal counsel.

(*d*) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 6.19, in the event the Company takes any of the actions permitted in Section 6.7(a)(x) or (y) or breaches in any material respect the provisions of Section 6.7, the restrictions set forth in Section 6.19(a) will cease to be in effect but Parent will still be bound by the provisions set forth in Section 6.19(b) and (c).

Section 6.20 Board of Directors. The Parent Board shall add John D. Fruth and Edgar J. Cummins as members of the Parent Board, effective as of the Effective Time.

Article 7.

Closing Conditions

Section 7.1 Conditions to Obligations of Each Party Under This Agreement. The respective obligations of each party to effect the Merger and the other transactions contemplated herein shall be subject to the satisfaction at or prior to the Effective Time of the following conditions, any or all of which may be waived, in whole or in part, to the extent permitted by applicable Law:

(*a*) *Effectiveness of the Registration Statement.* The Registration Statement shall have been declared effective by the SEC under the Securities Act. No stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement shall have been issued by the SEC and no proceedings for that purpose shall have been initiated or, to the knowledge of Parent or the Company, threatened by the SEC.

(b) Company Stockholder Approval. This Agreement and the Merger shall have been approved and adopted by the requisite vote of the stockholders of the Company.

(c) Parent Stockholder Approval. The Share Issuance shall have been approved by the requisite vote of the stockholders of Parent.

(*d*) No Order. No Governmental Entity, nor any federal or state court of competent jurisdiction shall have enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, judgment, injunction or arbitration award or finding or other order (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent), in any case which is in effect and which prevents or prohibits consummation of the Merger or limits Parent's activity in connection with the ownership or operation of the Company (including any hold separate order).

(e) Consents and Approvals. All consents, approvals and authorizations of any Governmental Entity set forth in Schedule 7.1(e) of the Company Disclosure Schedule shall have been obtained, in each case, without (A) the imposition of conditions, (B) the requirement of divestiture of assets or property or (C) the requirement of expenditure of money by Parent or the Company to a third party in exchange for any such consent.

(f) HSR Act. Any applicable waiting periods, together with any extensions thereof, under the HSR Act and the antitrust or competition laws of any other applicable jurisdiction shall have expired or been terminated.

(g) Exchange Listing. The shares of Parent Common Stock issuable to the Company's stockholders in the Merger shall have been approved for listing on the NYSE, subject to official notice of issuance.

Section 7.2 Additional Conditions to Obligations of Parent and Merger Sub. The obligations of Parent and Merger Sub to effect the Merger and the other transactions contemplated herein are also subject to the following conditions:

(a) Representations and Warranties. (1) The representations and warranties of the Company contained in Section 4.1(a), Section 4.3(a) and Section 4.4 of this Agreement shall be true and correct as of the date hereof and as of the Effective Time as though made on and as of the Effective Time (except that those representations and warranties which address matters only as of a particular date need only be true and correct as of such date), and (2) all other representations and warranties of the Company contained in this Agreement, and in any certificate or other writing delivered by the Company pursuant hereto, in each case disregarding and without giving any effect to all qualifications and exceptions contained herein and therein relating to materiality or Company Material Adverse Effect or any similar standard or qualification, shall be true and correct as of the date hereof and as of the Effective Time as though made on and as of the Effective Time (except that those representations and warranties which address matter only as of a particular date need only be true and correct as of such date), except where the untruth or incorrectness of such representations and warranties have not had and would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. Parent shall have received a certificate of the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of the Company to that effect.

(b) Agreements and Covenants. The Company shall have performed or complied in all material respects with all agreements and covenants required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by it on or prior to the Effective Time. Parent shall have received a certificate of the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of the Company to that effect.

(c) Tax Opinion. Parent shall have received the opinion of Latham & Watkins LLP, dated the Closing Date, to the effect that on the basis of the facts, representations and assumptions set forth in such opinion, the Merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. In rendering such opinion, Latham & Watkins LLP may require and rely upon the representation letters described in Section 6.15 hereof to be delivered on the Closing Date.

(*d*) *Consents and Approvals.* All consents, approvals and authorizations listed on Schedule 7.2(d) of the Company Disclosure Schedule shall have been obtained in each case, without (A) the imposition of conditions, (B) the requirement of divestiture of assets or property or (C) the requirement of expenditure of money by Parent or the Company to a third party in exchange for any such consent.

(e) Material Adverse Effect. There shall not have occurred any Company Material Adverse Effect.

(f) Court Proceedings. No action or claim by any Governmental Entity or by any other person (in the case of an action or claim by any person other than a Governmental Entity, which shall be reasonably likely to succeed) shall be pending or threatened before any court or quasi-judicial or administrative agency of any federal, state, local or foreign jurisdiction or before any other Governmental Entity or arbitrator wherein an unfavorable injunction, judgment, order, decree, ruling or charge would (A) prevent or restrain the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (B) cause the Merger to be rescinded following consummation thereof, (C) affect adversely the right or powers of Parent to own, operate or control the Company or any portion of the business or assets of the Company or Parent or (D) have or have a Company Material Adverse Effect or Parent Material Adverse Effect, and no such injunction, judgment, order, decree, ruling or charge shall be in effect.

(g) Company Options. All actions necessary to assure that upon consummation of the Merger, each unexpired and unexercised Company Option shall be canceled with the effect set forth in Section 3.4 shall have been completed to the reasonable satisfaction of Parent.

Section 7.3 Additional Conditions to Obligations of the Company. The obligation of the Company to effect the Merger and the other transactions contemplated herein are also subject to the following conditions:

(a) Representations and Warranties. (1) The representations and warranties of Parent contained in Section 5.1(a), Section 5.3(a) and Section 5.4 in this Agreement shall be true and correct as of the date

hereof and as of the Effective Time as though made on and as of the Effective Time (except that those representations and warranties which address matters only as of a particular date need only be true and correct as of such date), and (2) all other representations and warranties of Parent contained in this Agreement and in any certificate or other writing delivered by Parent pursuant hereto, in each case disregarding and without giving any effect to all qualifications and exemptions contained herein and therein relating to materiality or Parent Material Adverse Effect or any similar standard or qualification, shall be true and correct as of the date hereof and as of the Effective Time (except that those representations and warranties which address matters only as of a particular date need only remain true and correct in all material respects as of such date), except where the untruth or incorrectness of such representation and warranties have not had and could not have, individually or in the aggregate, a Parent Material Adverse Effect. The Company shall have received a certificate of the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of Parent to that effect.

(b) Agreements and Covenants. Parent shall have performed or complied in all material respects with all agreements and covenants required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by it on or prior to the Effective Time. The Company shall have received a certificate of the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of the Company to that effect.

(c) Tax Opinion. The Company shall have received the opinion of Fenwick & West LLP, dated the Closing Date, to the effect that on the basis of the facts, representations and assumptions set forth in such opinion, the Merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a "reorganization" within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. In rendering such opinion, Fenwick & West LLP may require and rely upon the representation letters described in Section 6.15 to be delivered on the Closing Date.

(d) Material Adverse Effect. Since the date of this Agreement, there shall not have occurred any Parent Material Adverse Effect.

(e) Board of Directors. Pursuant to Section 6.21 hereof, John D. Fruth and Edgar J. Cummins shall have been elected to the Parent's Board of Directors, effective upon the Effective Time.

Article 8.

Termination, Amendment and Waiver

Section 8.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated, and the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement may be abandoned, at any time prior to the Effective Time, by action taken or authorized by the Board of Directors of the terminating party or parties, whether before or after approval of the matters presented in connection with the Merger by the stockholders of the Company:

(a) By mutual written consent of Parent and the Company, by action of their respective Boards of Directors;

(b) By either Parent or the Company if the Merger shall not have been consummated prior to January 31, 2005, *provided*, *however*, that such date may, from time to time, be extended by Parent (by written notice thereof to the Company) or by the Company (by written notice thereof to Parent) up to and including April 30, 2005 in the event all conditions to effect the Merger other than one or more conditions set forth in Section 7.1(d), Section 7.1(e) and Section 7.1(f) (the "Regulatory Conditions") have been or are capable of being satisfied at the time of each such extension and the Regulatory Conditions have been or are reasonably capable of being satisfied on or prior to April 30, 2005, (such earlier date, as it may be so extended, shall be referred to herein as the "Outside Date"); *provided, further* that the right to terminate this Agreement under this Section 8.1(b) shall not be available to any party whose failure to fulfill any obligation under this Agreement has been the cause of, or resulted in, the failure of the Merger to occur on or before such date;

(c) By either Parent or the Company if any Governmental Entity shall have issued an order, decree or ruling or taken any other action (including the failure to take action) permanently restraining, enjoining or

otherwise prohibiting the Merger, and such order, decree, ruling or other action shall have become final and nonappealable (which order, decree, ruling or other action the parties shall have used their reasonable best efforts to resist, resolve or lift, as applicable, subject to the provisions of Section 6.8);

(*d*) By either Parent or the Company if the approval by the stockholders of the Company required for the consummation of the Merger shall not have been obtained by reason of the failure to obtain the required vote at a duly held meeting of stockholders or at any adjournment thereof, provided that no termination by the Company pursuant to this paragraph (d) shall be effective unless (i) such failure was not due to a breach by the Company of its obligations hereunder, and (ii) concurrently therewith it fulfills its obligations under Section 8.2 hereof;

(e) By Parent if (A) the Company Board shall have withdrawn, modified or qualified in a manner adverse to Parent, or failed upon Parent's request to reconfirm its recommendation of the Merger or this Agreement (or determined to do so) within five (5) business days after such request; (B) a tender offer or exchange offer that, if successful, would result in any person or group becoming a beneficial owner of 35% or more of the outstanding Company Common Shares is commenced (other than by Parent or an affiliate of Parent) and the Company Board fails to recommend that the stockholders of the Company not tender their shares in such tender or exchange offer; (C) any person (other than Parent or an affiliate of Parent) or group becomes the beneficial owner of 35% or more of the outstanding Company Common Shares; or (D) for any reason the Company fails to call or hold the Company Stockholders Meeting by the fifth day prior to the Outside Date;

(*f*) By either Parent or the Company if the approval by the stockholders of Parent required for the Share Issuance shall not have been obtained by reason of the failure to obtain the required vote at a duly held meeting of stockholders or at any adjournment thereof, provided that no termination by Parent pursuant to this paragraph (*f*) shall be effective unless (i) such failure was not due to a breach by Parent of its obligations hereunder, and (ii) concurrently therewith it fulfills its obligations under Section 8.2 hereof;

(*g*) By Parent, if since the date of this Agreement, there shall have been any event, development or change of circumstance that constitutes, has had or would have, individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect and such Company Material Adverse Effect is not cured within 20 days after written notice thereof by Parent to the Company or if (A)(1) the Company shall have breached any of its covenants or agreements set forth in this Agreement or (2) any representation or warranty of the Company set forth in this Agreement shall have become untrue or incorrect, (B) such breach or misrepresentation is not cured within twenty (20) days after written notice thereof, which notice shall state that it is Parent's intention to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.1(g) and indicating the basis for such termination, and (C) such breach or misrepresentation would cause the conditions set forth in Section 7.2(a) or Section 7.2(b) not to be satisfied;

(*h*) By the Company, if since the date of this Agreement, there shall have been any event, development or change of circumstance that constitutes, has had or would have, individually or in the aggregate, a Parent Material Adverse Effect and such Parent Material Adverse Effect is not cured within 20 days after written notice thereof by the Company to Parent or if (A)(1) either Parent or Merger Sub has breached any of its covenants or agreements set forth in this Agreement or (2) any representation or warranty of Parent or Merger Sub set forth in this Agreement shall have become untrue or incorrect, (B) such breach or misrepresentation is not cured within 20 days after written notice thereof, which notice shall state that it is the Company's intention to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.1(g) and indicating the basis for such termination, and (C) such breach or misrepresentation would cause the conditions set forth in Section 7.3(a) or Section 7.3(b) not to be satisfied;

(*i*) By the Company, if Parent's Board of Directors shall have withdrawn, modified or qualified in a manner adverse to the Company, or failed upon the Company's request to reconfirm the Parent Recommendation (or determined to do so) within five (5) business days after such request, or if for any reason Parent fails to call or hold the Parent Stockholders Meeting by the fifth day prior to the Outside Date; or

(*j*) By the Company, if, prior to the Company Stockholder Approval it receives a Superior Proposal and the Company Board determines in good faith, after consultation with outside legal counsel, to enter into an

agreement to effect the Superior Proposal; provided, that the Company may not terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.1(j) unless (A) the Company has complied with its obligations under Section 6.7 and (B) five (5) business days have elapsed following delivery to Parent of a written notice of such determination by the Company Board and during such five (5) business day period Parent has not submitted a binding offer that the Company Board has determined in its good faith judgment to be at least as favorable to the Company's stockholders as the Superior Proposal; *provided*, that concurrently therewith the Company fulfills its obligations pursuant to Section 8.2;

(*k*) By Parent, if, prior to Parent Stockholder Approval it receives a Parent Conflicting Proposal and the Parent Board determines in good faith, after consultation with outside legal counsel, to enter into an agreement to effect the Parent Conflicting Proposal; provided, that Parent may not terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.1(*k*) unless (A) Parent has complied with its obligations under Section 6.19 and (B) five (5) business days have elapsed following delivery to the Company of a written notice of such determination by the Parent Board and during such five (5) business day period the Company has not submitted a binding offer that the Parent Board has determined in its good faith judgment to be at least as favorable to the Parent's stockholders as the Parent Conflicting Proposal; *provided*, that concurrently therewith Parent fulfills its obligations pursuant to Section 8.2.

Section 8.2 Effect of Termination.

(a) Limitation on Liability. In the event of termination of this Agreement by either the Company or Parent as provided in Section 8.1, this Agreement shall forthwith become void and there shall be no liability or obligation on the part of Parent or the Company or their respective Subsidiaries, officers or directors except (x) with respect to Section 6.6, Section 6.11, this Section 8.2 and Article 9 and (y) with respect to any liabilities or damages incurred or suffered by a party as a result of the willful and material breach by the other party of any of its representations, warranties, covenants or other agreements set forth in this Agreement.

(b) Parent Expenses. If (A) this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 8.1(d) or Section 8.1(g), or (B) Parent is entitled to the Company Termination Fee pursuant to Section 8.2(e), then the Company shall pay Parent an amount equal to the sum of Parent's Expenses up to \$6,000,000.

(c) Company Expenses. Parent and the Company agree that if (A) this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 8.1(f) or Section 8.1(h), or (B) the Company is entitled for any reason to the Parent Termination Fee pursuant to Section 8.2(f), then Parent shall pay to the Company an amount equal to the sum of the Company's Expenses up to \$4,500,000.

(d) Payment of Expenses. Payment of Expenses pursuant to Section 8.2(b) or Section 8.2(c) shall be made not later than two business days after delivery to the other party of notice of demand for payment and a documented itemization setting forth in reasonable detail all Expenses of the party entitled to receive payment (which itemization may be supplemented and updated from time to time by such party until the 90th day after such party delivers such notice of demand for payment).

(e) Company Termination Fee. In addition to any payment required by Section 8.2(b), the Company shall pay to Parent a termination fee of \$35,000,000 (the "Company Termination Fee") in immediately available funds in the event that this Agreement is terminated: (i) by Parent pursuant to Section 8.1(e)(A), (B) or (D); (ii) by the Company pursuant to Section 8.1(d) (if at such time Parent was entitled to terminate pursuant to Section 8.1(e)(A), (B) or (D)); (iii) by Parent pursuant to Section 8.1(d) (if at such time Parent was entitled to terminate pursuant to Section 8.1(e)(A), (B) or (D)); (iii) by Parent pursuant to Section 8.1(e)(C), provided that within twelve months following such termination, an Acquisition Proposal with respect to the Company is consummated or the Company enters into a definitive agreement with respect to an Acquisition Proposal; (iv) by either party pursuant to Section 8.1(d) (other than by the Company if at such time Parent was entitled to terminate pursuant to Section 8.1(e)(A), (B) or (D)) or by Parent pursuant to Section 8.1(g)(A)(1) and Section 8.1(g)(A)(2) provided that, in the case of this clause (iv), (A) at any time after the date of this Agreement and before the vote on the Merger at the Company Stockholders Meeting, an Acquisition Proposal with respect to the Company shall have been publicly announced and not bona fide withdrawn, and

(B) within twelve months following termination of this Agreement, the Company subsequently consummates an Acquisition Proposal or enters into a definitive agreement with respect to such Acquisition Proposal; or (v) by the Company pursuant to Section 8.1(j).

(f) Parent Termination Fee. In addition to any payment required by Section 8.2(c), Parent shall pay to the Company a termination fee of \$35,000,000 (the "Parent Termination Fee") in immediately available funds in the event that this Agreement is terminated: (i) by the Company pursuant to Section 8.1(i); (ii) by Parent pursuant to Section 8.1(f) (if at such time the Company was entitled to terminate pursuant to Section 8.1(i)); (iii) by Parent pursuant to Section 8.1(k); or (iv) by either party pursuant to Section 8.1(f) (other than by Parent if at such time the Company was entitled to terminate pursuant to Section 8.1(i)) or by the Company pursuant to Section 8.1(h)(A)(1) or Section 8.1(h)(A)(2), provided that in the case of this clause (iv), (A) at any time after the date of this Agreement and before the vote on the Share Issuance at the Parent Stockholders Meeting, a Parent Conflicting Proposal with respect to Parent shall have been publicly announced and not bona fide withdrawn, and (B) within twelve months following such termination, (x) a Parent Acquisition Proposal with respect to Parent is consummated or (y) or Parent enters into a definitive agreement with respect to a Parent Acquisition Proposal.

(g) All Payments. Any payment required to be made pursuant to Section 8.2(e)(v) or Section 8.2(f)(iii) shall be made concurrently with such termination. Any payment required to be made pursuant to Section 8.2(e)(i), Section 8.2(f)(i) or Section 8.2(f)(ii) shall be made not later than two business days after the date of termination. Any payment required to be made pursuant to Section 8.2(e)(iii), Section 8.2(e)(iii), Section 8.2(e)(iii), Section 8.2(e)(iii), Section 8.2(e)(iii), Section 8.2(e)(iv) or Section 8.2(e)(iv) or Section 8.2(e)(iv) or Section 8.2(e)(iv) shall be made not later than two business days after the entering into of a definitive agreement with respect to, or the consummation of, an Acquisition Proposal or Parent Acquisition Proposal, as applicable. In no event shall more than one fee pursuant to Section 8.2(e) or Section 8.2(f) be made. All payments under this Section 8.2 shall be made by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account designated by the party entitled to receive payment. The Company and Parent acknowledge that the agreements contained in this Section 8.2 are an integral part of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and that, without these agreements, neither the Company nor Parent would enter into this Agreement. Accordingly, if either party fails promptly to pay any amount due to the other party pursuant to this Section 8.2 and, in order to obtain such payment, the Company or Parent, as applicable, commences a suit which results in a judgment against the other party for the fees and expenses set forth in this Section 8.2, such defaulting party shall pay to the prevailing party its costs and expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees and expenses) incurred in connection with such suit, together with interest on the aggregate amount of the fees and expenses at a rate equal to the prime rate reported in the *Wall Street Journal* on the date such payment was required to be made plus two (2) percent.

Section 8.3 *Amendment*. This Agreement may be amended by the parties hereto by action taken by or on behalf of their respective Boards of Directors at any time prior to the Effective Time; *provided, however*, that, after approval of the Merger by the stockholders of the Company, no amendment may be made without further stockholder approval which, by Law or in accordance with the rules of any relevant stock exchange, requires further approval by such stockholders. This Agreement may not be amended except by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto.

Section 8.4 Waiver. At any time prior to the Effective Time, any party hereto may (A) extend the time for the performance of any of the obligations or other acts of the other party hereto, (B) waive any inaccuracies in the representations and warranties of the other party contained herein or in any document delivered pursuant hereto, and (C) waive compliance by the other party with any of the agreements or conditions contained herein; *provided, however*, that after any approval of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement by the stockholders of the Company, there may not be, without further approval of such stockholders, any extension or waiver of this Agreement or any portion thereof which, by Law or in accordance with the rules of any relevant stock exchange, requires further approval by such stockholders. Any such extension or waiver shall be valid only if set forth in an instrument in writing signed by the party or parties to be bound thereby, but such extension or waiver or failure to insist on strict compliance with an obligation, covenant, agreement or condition shall not operate as a waiver of, or estoppel with respect to, any subsequent or other failure.

Section 8.5 Fees and Expenses. Subject to Section 8.2(a), Section 8.2(b), Section 8.2(c) and Section 8.2(g) hereof, all Expenses incurred by the parties hereto shall be borne solely and entirely by the party which has incurred the same; *provided, however*, that each of Parent and the Company shall pay one-half of the Expenses related to printing, filing and mailing the Registration Statement and the Proxy Statement and all SEC and other regulatory filing fees incurred in connection with the Registration Statement and the Proxy Statement.

Article 9.

General Provisions

Section 9.1 Non-Survival of Representations and Warranties. None of the representations and warranties in this Agreement or in any instrument delivered pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the Effective Time. This Section 9.1 shall not limit any covenant or agreement of the parties which by its terms contemplates performance after the Effective Time.

Section 9.2 Notices. Any notices or other communications required or permitted under, or otherwise in connection with this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when delivered in person or upon confirmation of receipt when transmitted by facsimile transmission (but only if followed by transmittal by national overnight courier or hand for delivery on the next business day) or on receipt after dispatch by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed, or on the next business day if transmitted by national overnight courier, in each case as follows:

If to Parent or Merger Sub, addressed to it at:

The Cooper Companies, Inc. 6140 Stoneridge Mall Road, Suite 590 Pleasanton, CA 94588 Attn: Carol R. Kaufman Facsimile: (925) 460-3662

with a mandated copy to:

Latham & Watkins LLP 885 Third Avenue, Suite 1000 New York, NY 10022 Attn.: Samuel A. Fishman, Esq. Erica H. Steinberger, Esq Facsimile: (212) 751-4864

If to the Company, addressed to it at:

Ocular Sciences, Inc. 1855 Gateway Boulevard, Suite 700 Concord, CA 94520 Attn: John Fruth Stephen Fanning Facsimile: (925) 969-7128

with a mandated copy to:

Fenwick & West LLP Silicon Valley Center 801 California St. Mountain View, CA 94041 Attn: Barry Kramer, Esq. David Michaels, Esq. Facsimile: (415) 650-938-5200

Section 9.3 Headings. The headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

Section 9.4 Severability. If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced by any rule of Law or public policy, all other conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect so long as the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any manner materially adverse to any party. Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in an acceptable manner to the end that transactions contemplated hereby are fulfilled to the extent possible.

Section 9.5 Entire Agreement. This Agreement (together with the Exhibits, Parent and Company Disclosure Schedules and the other documents delivered pursuant hereto), the Voting Agreements and the Confidentiality Agreement constitute the entire agreement of the parties and supersede all prior agreements and undertakings, both written and oral, between the parties, or any of them, with respect to the subject matter hereof and, except as otherwise expressly provided herein, are not intended to confer upon any other person any rights or remedies hereunder.

Section 9.6 Assignment. None of this Agreement or any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder shall be assigned by any of the parties hereto, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of the other parties, and any attempt to make any such assignment without such consent shall be null and void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Merger Sub may assign, in its sole discretion, any and all rights, interests and obligations under this Agreement to any wholly owned Parent Subsidiary without the consent of the Company.

Section 9.7 Parties in Interest. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure solely to the benefit of each party hereto and their respective successors and assigns, and nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, other than pursuant to Section 6.14, is intended to or shall confer upon any other person any right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement.

Section 9.8 Mutual Drafting. Each party hereto has participated in the drafting of this Agreement, which each party acknowledges is the result of extensive negotiations between the parties.

Section 9.9 Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Trial by Jury.

(*a*) This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the Laws of the State of New York applicable to contracts made and to be performed entirely within such State, without regard to the conflicts of law rules of such State, except to the extent that the DGCL mandatorily apply to the Merger.

(b) Each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits, for itself and its property, to the exclusive jurisdiction of any Delaware State court, or Federal court of the United States of America, sitting in Delaware, and any appellate court from any thereof, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the agreements delivered in connection herewith or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby or for recognition or enforcement of any judgment relating thereto, and each of the parties hereby irrevocably and unconditionally (A) agrees not to commence any such action or proceeding except in such courts, (B) agrees that any claim in respect of any such action or proceeding may be heard and determined in such Delaware State court or, to the extent permitted by Law, in such Federal court, (C) waives, to the fullest extent it may legally and effectively do so, any objection which it may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue of any such action or proceeding in any such Delaware State or Federal court. Each of the parties hereto agrees that a final judgment in any such action or proceeding shall be conclusive and may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by Law. Each party

to this Agreement irrevocably consents to service of process in the manner provided for notices in Section 9.2. Nothing in this Agreement will affect the right of any party to this Agreement to serve process in any other manner permitted by Law.

(c) EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY CONTROVERSY WHICH MAY ARISE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IS LIKELY TO INVOLVE COMPLICATED AND DIFFICULT ISSUES, AND THEREFORE IT HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY OF THE AGREEMENTS DELIVERED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY. EACH PARTY CERTIFIES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT (A) NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE EITHER OF SUCH WAIVERS, (B) IT UNDERSTANDS AND HAS CONSIDERED THE IMPLICATIONS OF SUCH WAIVERS, (C) IT MAKES SUCH WAIVERS VOLUNTARILY, AND (D) IT HAS BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION 9.9(C).

Section 9.10 Disclosure. Any matter disclosed in any section of a party's Disclosure Schedule shall be considered disclosed for other sections of such Disclosure Schedule, but only to the extent such matter on its face would reasonably be expected to be relevant to a particular section of a party's Disclosure Schedule in light of the disclosure made in such section. The provision of monetary or other quantitative thresholds for disclosure does not and shall not be deemed to create or imply a standard of materiality hereunder.

Section 9.11 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, and by the different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when executed shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement.

Section 9.12 Specific Performance. The parties hereto agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise breached. It is accordingly agreed that the parties shall be entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at Law or in equity. Each party hereto agrees to waive any requirement for the posting of, or securing of, a bond in connection with any such remedy.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Parent, Merger Sub and the Company have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first written above by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized.

THE COOPER	COMPANIES,	INC.

By:	/s/ CAROL R. KAUFMAN
Name: Title:	Carol R. Kaufman Vice President of Legal Affairs, Secretary and Chief Administrative Officer
	TCC ACQUISITION CORP.
By:	/s/ CAROL R. KAUFMAN
Name: Title:	Carol R. Kaufman Vice President and Secretary
OCULAR SCIENCES, INC.	
By:	/s/ Stephen J. Fanning
Name: Title:	Stephen J. Fanning President and Chief Executive Officer

[Merger Agreement]

ANNEX B

VOTING AGREEMENT

This Voting Agreement is made and entered into as of July 28, 2004 (this "**Agreement**"), by and among THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC., a Delaware corporation ("**Parent**"), TCC ACQUISITION CORP., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Parent ("**Merger Sub**"), and JOHN D. FRUTH (the "**Stockholder**"), the stockholder of Ocular Sciences, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "**Company**"). The Stockholder, Merger Sub and Parent are collectively referred to herein as the "**Parties**".

RECITALS

WHEREAS, concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, Parent, Merger Sub and the Company have entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of the date hereof (the "**Merger Agreement**"), providing for, among other things, the merger of the Company with and into Merger Sub (the "**Merger**"), which Merger Agreement has been unanimously approved by the Boards of Directors of the Company and Merger Sub;

WHEREAS, the Stockholder is either the record or the beneficial owner of (i) the number of shares (collectively, the "**Existing Shares**" and, together with any shares of common stock, stated value \$0.01 per share, of the Company ("**Company Common Stock**") acquired by the Stockholder after the date hereof, whether upon the exercise of options, warrants, conversion of convertible securities, or otherwise, the "**Company Shares**") of Company Common Stock and (ii) the options to acquire the number of shares of Company Common Stock (the "**Options**"), in each case as set forth in *Exhibit A* attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, as a condition to entering into the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub and Parent have required that the Stockholder agrees, and in order to induce Merger Sub and Parent to enter into the Merger Agreement the Stockholder has agreed, to enter into this Agreement relating to, among other things, the voting of the Company Shares in favor of the Merger and the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and agreements herein and in the Merger Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

1. Certain Definitions. Except as specified herein, capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Merger Agreement.

2. Agreement to Vote; Non-Solicitation.

(a) *Voting*. The Stockholder hereby agrees to vote (or cause to be voted) all of the Company Shares at any annual, special or other meeting of the stockholders of the Company (including the Company Stockholders Meeting), and at any postponement or adjournment or adjournments thereof, or pursuant to any consent or action in writing in lieu of a meeting or otherwise:

(i) in favor of the approval of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement and in favor of the approval and adoption of the Merger Agreement;

(ii) against any Acquisition Proposal;

(iii) against (A) any change in a majority of persons who constitute the Board of Directors of the Company, (B) any amendment to the Company's Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws, or (C) any other action involving the Company or any Company Subsidiary which is intended, or could reasonably be expected, to impede, interfere with, discourage, impair or adversely affect (x) the ability

of the Company to consummate the Merger, or (y) the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement or this Agreement (other than the Merger and the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement); and

(iv) against any action or agreement that would result in a material breach of any covenant, representation or warranty or any other obligation of the Company under the Merger Agreement.

(b) *Proxies and Voting Agreements*. The Stockholder hereby revokes any and all previous proxies granted with respect to matters set forth in Section 2(a). In addition, the Stockholder shall not, directly or indirectly, except as provided in this Agreement, grant any proxies or powers of attorney with respect to matters set forth in Section 2(a), deposit any of the Company Shares into a voting trust or enter into a voting agreement with respect to any of the Company Shares.

(c) Non-Solicitation. The Stockholder has read Section 6.7 of the Merger Agreement and understands the restrictions contained therein.

(d) *Inconsistent Agreements*. The Stockholder agrees that it shall not enter into any agreement or understanding or make any commitment with any Person that would violate any provision or agreement contained in this Agreement.

3. Additional Shares. Without limiting the provisions of the Merger Agreement, in the event (i) of any stock dividend, stock split, recapitalization, reclassification, combination or exchange of shares of capital stock of the Company on, of or affecting the Company Common Stock (and any and all securities issued or issuable in respect thereof) or (ii) the Stockholder becomes the record owner of any additional shares of capital stock of the Company or other Company securities entitling the holder thereof to vote or give consent with respect to the matters set forth in Section 2, then the terms of this Agreement shall apply to the shares of capital stock or other securities of the Company held by the Stockholder immediately following the effectiveness of the events described in clause (i) or the Stockholder becoming the record owner thereof, as described in clause (ii), as though they were Company Shares hereunder. The Stockholder hereby agrees to promptly notify the Merger Sub and the Parent of the number of any new shares of capital stock of the Company or other voting securities of the Company acquired by the Stockholder, if any, after the date hereof and prior to the Termination Time.

4. *Dividends*. The Stockholder shall retain record and beneficial ownership of all Company Shares and be entitled to receive all cash dividends paid by the Company with respect to the Company Shares during the term of this Agreement and until the Company Shares are cancelled in the Merger.

5. Restrictions on Transfer.

(a) From the date of this Agreement until the Effective Time, the Stockholder agrees not to (1) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, lend, or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any Company Shares, or (2) enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of the Company, whether any such transaction described in clauses (1) or (2) above is to be settled by delivery of Company Common Stock or such other securities, in cash or otherwise; *provided, however*, that from the date of this Agreement until the Effective Time, the Stockholder may transfer any number of Company Shares to members of his immediate family for tax and estate planning purposes or to a charitable foundation so long as the Stockholder retains all voting power with respect to such transferred Company Shares.

(b) Except as otherwise permitted by this Section 5(b), the Stockholder hereby agrees not to (1) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, lend, or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of Parent Common Stock received in exchange for Company Shares through the Merger (including any shares of capital stock of the Parent subsequently received in the event of a stock dividend, stock split, recapitalization, reclassification, combination or exchange of shares of capital stock of the Parent on, of or affecting the Parent Common Stock) (the "**Parent Shares**"), or (2) enter into any swap

or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of the Parent Shares, whether any such transaction described in clauses (1) or (2) above is to be settled by delivery of Parent Common Stock or such other securities, in cash or otherwise (the "**Transfer Restriction**"). Notwithstanding the Transfer Restriction, the Stockholder and his permitted transferees under subsection (ii) below may (i) collectively transfer up to 250,000 Parent Shares each fiscal quarter after the Effective Time (to the extent not used in a particular quarter, this allowance will be carried forward) pursuant to a 10b5-1 Trading Plan or otherwise, and (ii) transfer any number of Parent Shares to members of the Stockholder's immediate family for tax and estate planning purposes or to a charitable foundation, provided that such transferee(s) executes an agreement to be bound by this Section 5(b). The Transfer Restriction will terminate in all respects upon the first to occur of (1) the date that the Stockholder ceases to be a member of the Parent Board, (2) the date that the Stockholder has transferred all of his Parent Shares pursuant to subsections (i) or (ii) of this Section 5(b), or (3) the date that is three years from the Effective Date.

(c) The Stockholder agrees not to take any action that would make any representation or warranty of the Stockholder contained herein untrue or incorrect or have the effect of preventing or disabling the Stockholder from performing his obligations under this Agreement.

(d) The Stockholder hereby irrevocably waives any rights of appraisal or rights to dissent from the Merger or the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement that the Stockholder may have.

(e) The Stockholder agrees with, and covenants to, Parent and Merger Sub that the Stockholder shall not request that the Company register the transfer (book-entry or otherwise) of any certificate or uncertificated interest representing any of the Parent Shares, unless such transfer is made in compliance with this Agreement.

6. Representations and Warranties.

(a) *Organization and Due Authority*. Each Party hereby severally and not jointly represents and warrants to the other Parties that (i) if such Party is not an individual, such Party is duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization, (ii) if such Party is an individual, such Party has the capacity to execute and deliver this Agreement, and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, and (ii) such Party has all requisite power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, to perform its obligations hereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(b) *Binding Agreement*. Each Party hereby severally and not jointly represents and warrants to the other Parties that (i) the execution, delivery and performance by such Party of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of such Party and (ii) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by such Party and is a legal, valid and binding obligation of such Party, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights in general and by general principles of equity.

(c) *Noncontravention.* Each Party hereby severally and not jointly represents and warrants to the other Parties that neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement by such Party nor the consummation by such Party of the transactions contemplated hereby will (i) conflict with any provisions of such Party's Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws or similar organizational documents, if applicable, (ii) require any filing with, or permit, authorization, consent or approval of, any Governmental Entity, other than under HSR (as defined in the Merger Agreement and as contemplated thereby) (iii) result in a violation or breach of, or constitute (with or without due notice or lapse of time or both) a default (or give rise to any right of termination, amendment, cancellation or acceleration) under, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, guarantee, other evidence of indebtedness, lease, license, contract, agreement or other instrument or obligation to which such Party is a party or by which such Party or any of such Party's properties or assets may be bound or (iv) violate any Law applicable to it or any of its properties or assets.

(d) *Ownership of Company Shares*. The Stockholder hereby represents and warrants to Parent and Merger Sub that the Stockholder's Existing Shares are, and at the Effective Time the Company Shares will be, owned beneficially and of record by the Stockholder. The Existing Shares as set forth on Exhibit A hereto constitute all of the shares of capital stock of the Company owned of record or beneficially by the Stockholder. The Options as set forth on Exhibit A hereto constitute all of the options, warrants or other securities or instruments convertible or exchangeable into, or exercisable for, shares of capital stock of the Company owned of record or beneficially by the Stockholder. All of the Existing Shares are issued and outstanding. The Stockholder has sole voting power, sole power of disposition, sole power to issue instructions with respect to the matters set forth in Section 2 hereof, sole power of conversion, sole power to demand appraisal rights and sole power to agree to all of the matters set forth in this Agreement, with respect to all of the Existing Shares and will have sole voting power, sole power of disposition, sole power to agree to all of the matters set forth in this Agreement with respect to all of the Company Shares at the Effective Time, with no limitations, qualifications or restrictions on such rights, subject to applicable federal securities laws and the terms of this Agreement. The Stockholder has good and valid title to the Existing Shares and Options and at all times during the term hereof and at the Effective Time will have good and valid title to the Company Shares, free and clear of all Liens.

(e) *No Finder's Fees.* The Stockholder hereby represents and warrants to the Parent and Merger Sub that, except as disclosed in the Merger Agreement, no broker, finder or investment banker is entitled to any brokerage, finder's or other fee or commission in connection with the Merger based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of the Stockholder.

7. *Indemnification*. Whether or not the Merger and the related transactions are consummated, the Parent agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Stockholder from and against any liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, claims, costs, attorneys' fees, expenses and disbursements of any kind which may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against the Stockholder in any manner relating to or arising out of Stockholder's execution and performance of this Agreement.

8. General Provisions.

(a) *Specific Performance*. The Parties agree that a violation, breach or threatened breach by any other Party of any term of this Agreement would cause irreparable injury for which an adequate remedy at law is not available. Therefore, the Parties agree that each Party shall have the right of specific performance and, accordingly, shall be entitled to an injunction, restraining order or other form of equitable relief, in addition to any and all other rights and remedies at law or in equity, restraining any other Party from committing any breach or threatened breach of, or otherwise specifically to enforce, any provision of this Agreement and all such rights will be cumulative. The Parties further agree that any defense in any action for specific performance that a remedy at law would be adequate is waived.

(b) *Termination*. This Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier of (i)the termination of the Merger Agreement pursuant to its terms and (ii) the written agreement of the parties hereto to terminate this Agreement, and (iii) the Effective Time; *provided, however*, that the Transfer Restrictions contained in Section 5(b), the waiver of appraisal rights in Section 5(d) and the general provisions of Section 8 shall remain in effect for the period of the Transfer Restrictions in Section 5(b). The date and time at which this Agreement is terminated in accordance with this Section 8(b) is referred to herein as the "**Termination Time**." Notwithstanding the foregoing, no termination of this Agreement shall relieve any Party from liability for such Party's breach of any provision hereof prior to such termination.

(c) *Notices*. Any notices or other communications required or permitted under, or otherwise in connection with this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when delivered in person or upon confirmation of receipt when transmitted by facsimile transmission (but only if followed by transmittal by national overnight courier or hand for delivery on the next business day) or on

receipt after dispatch by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed, or on the next business day if transmitted by national overnight courier, in each case as follows:

If to Parent or Merger Sub, addressed to it at:

The Cooper Companies, Inc. 6140 Stoneridge Mall Road Suite 590 Pleasanton, CA 94588 Attn: Carol R. Kaufman Facsimile: (925) 460-3649

with a mandated copy to:

Latham & Watkins LLP 885 Third Avenue, Suite 1000 New York, NY 10022 Attn.: Samuel A. Fishman, Esq. Erica H. Steinberger, Esq. Facsimile: (212) 751-4864

If to the Stockholder, addressed to it at:

John D. Fruth c/o Ocular Sciences, Inc. 1855 Gateway Boulevard Suite 700 Concord, CA 94520 Facsimile: (925) 969-7140

with a mandated copy to:

Morgan, Lewis & Bockius, LLP One Market, Spear Street Tower San Francisco, CA 94105 Attn: William A. Myers, Esq. Facsimile: (415) 422-1001

(d) Interpretation. When a reference is made in this Agreement to Sections, such reference shall be to a Section of this Agreement unless otherwise indicated. Headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. Whenever the word "include," "includes" or "including" are used in this Agreement, they shall be deemed to be followed by the words "without limitation". This Agreement shall not be construed for or against any Party by reason of the authorship or alleged authorship of any provision hereof or by reason of the status of the respective Parties. For all purposes of this Agreement, words stated in the singular shall be held to include the plural and vice versa, and words of one gender shall be held to include each other gender, as the context may require or allow. The terms "hereof," "herein," and "herewith" and words of similar import shall, unless otherwise stated, be construed to refer to this Agreement as a whole (and not to any particular provision of this Agreement). The word "or" shall not be exclusive.

(e) *Entire Agreement*. This Agreement and the Merger Agreement constitute the entire agreement of the Parties and supersede all prior agreements and undertakings, both written and oral, among the Parties, or any of them, with respect to the subject matter hereof and are not intended to confer upon any other person any rights or remedies hereunder.

(f) Assignment; Successors and Assigns. None of this Agreement or any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder shall be assigned by any of the Parties hereto, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of the other Parties, and any attempt to make any such

assignment without such consent shall be null and void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Merger Sub may assign, in its sole discretion, any and all rights, interests and obligations under this Agreement to any wholly owned Parent Subsidiary without the consent of the Stockholder.

(g) Governing Law; Jurisdiction.

(i) This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the Laws of the State of Delaware applicable to contracts made and to be performed entirely within such State, without regard to the conflicts of law rules of such State, except to the extent that the DGCL mandatorily applies to the voting and proxy provisions hereof.

(ii) Each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits, for itself and its property, to the exclusive jurisdiction of any Delaware State court, or Federal court of the United States of America, sitting in Delaware, and any appellate court from any thereof, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the agreements delivered in connection herewith or the transactions contemplated hereby or for recognition or enforcement of any judgment relating thereto, and each of the parties hereby irrevocably and unconditionally (A) agrees not to commence any such action or proceeding except in such courts, (B) agrees that any claim in respect of any such action or proceeding may be heard and determined in such Delaware State court or, to the extent permitted by Law, in such Federal court, (C) waives, to the fullest extent it may legally and effectively do so, any objection which it may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue of any such action or proceeding in any such Delaware State or Federal court. Each of the parties hereto agrees that a final judgment in any such action or proceeding shall be conclusive and may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by Law. Each party to this Agreement irrevocably consents to service of process in the manner provided for notices in Section 9(c). Nothing in this Agreement will affect the right of any party to this Agreement to serve process in any other manner permitted by Law.

(iii) EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY CONTROVERSY WHICH MAY ARISE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IS LIKELY TO INVOLVE COMPLICATED AND DIFFICULT ISSUES, AND THEREFORE IT HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY OF THE AGREEMENTS DELIVERED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY. EACH PARTY CERTIFIES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT (A) NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE EITHER OF SUCH WAIVERS, (B) IT UNDERSTANDS AND HAS CONSIDERED THE IMPLICATIONS OF SUCH WAIVERS, (C) IT MAKES SUCH WAIVERS VOLUNTARILY, AND (D) IT HAS BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION 8(g)(ii).

(h) *Severability*. If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced by any rule of Law or public policy, all other conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect so long as the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any manner materially adverse to any party. Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in an acceptable manner to the end that transactions contemplated hereby are fulfilled to the extent possible.

(i) *Counterparts; Facsimile Signatures.* This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, and by the different Parties in separate counterparts, each of which when executed shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. This Agreement may be executed by fax with the same binding effect as original ink signatures.

(j) *Amendments, Waivers, Etc.* This Agreement may not be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified, except upon the execution and delivery of a written agreement by the Parties. By an instrument in writing, Parent and Merger Sub may waive compliance by the Stockholder with any provision of this Agreement, and the Stockholder may waive compliance by Parent or Merger Sub with any provision of this Agreement; *provided, however*, that any such waiver shall not operate as a waiver of, or estoppel with respect to, any other or subsequent failure or with respect to a Party that has not executed and delivered any such waiver. No failure to exercise and no delay in exercising any right, remedy, or power hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, or power hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, or power provided herein or by law or at equity.

(k) *Capacity*. For purposes of this Agreement and the representations, covenants, agreements and promises contained herein, the Stockholder is acting solely in his, her or its capacity as a Stockholder of, and not as a director, officer, employee, representative or agent of, the Company and nothing in this Agreement shall limit or restrict the Stockholder from (i) acting in his capacity as a director of the Company, to the extent applicable or (ii) voting in his sole discretion on any matter other than those matters referred to in Section 2(a).

(1) *Further Assurances*. From time to time prior to the Termination Time, at any other Party's request and without further consideration, each party hereto shall execute and deliver such additional documents and take all such further lawful action as may be necessary or desirable to consummate and make effective, in the most expeditious manner practicable, the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(m) *Confidentiality and Public Announcements.* The Stockholder recognizes that successful consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement may be dependent upon confidentiality with respect to the matters referred to herein. In this connection, pending public disclosure thereof, the Stockholder agrees not to disclose or discuss such matters with anyone not a party to this Agreement (other than its counsel, advisors and corporate parents) without the prior written consent of Parent, except for filings required pursuant to the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder or disclosures its counsel advises are necessary in order to fulfill its obligations imposed by law or the requirements of any securities exchange. At all times during the term of this Agreement, the Stockholder will consult with Parent before issuing or making any reports, statements or releases to the public, or making any filings required pursuant to the Exchange Act, with respect to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby and will use good faith efforts to agree on the text of public reports, statements, releases or filings.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first above written.

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.

By:	/s/ CAROL R. KAUFMAN
Name: Title:	Carol R. Kaufman Vice President of Legal Affairs, Secretary and Chief Administrative Officer
TCC ACQ	UISITION CORP.
By:	/s/ CAROL R. KAUFMAN
Name: Title:	Carol R. Kaufman Vice President and Secretary
	/s/ John D. Fruth

John D. Fruth

EXHIBIT A

NAME OF STOCKHOLDER	NUMBER OF EXISTING SHARES	SHARES AND OPTIONS
John D. Fruth	4,829,850	4,904,850
John D. Fruth	Percentage of Outstanding Shares: 19.2% ¹	Percentage of Outstanding Shares: 19.5% ²
¹ Percentage of outstanding Compan	y Shares (not including Options) as of July 26, 2004.	

2

Percentage of outstanding Company Shares (not including Options) as of July 26, 2004. Percentage of outstanding fully diluted Company Shares (including Options) as of July 26, 2004.

B-9

NUMBER OF EXISTING

ANNEX C OPINION OF J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES INC.

July 28, 2004

The Board of Directors The Cooper Companies, Inc. 6140 Stoneridge Mall Road, Suite 590 Pleasanton, CA 94588

Members of the Board of Directors:

You have requested our opinion as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, to The Cooper Companies, Inc. (the "Company") of the Merger Consideration (as defined below) to be paid by the Company in the proposed merger (the "Merger") of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with Ocular Sciences, Inc. (the "Merger Partner"). Pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 28, 2004 (the "Agreement"), among the Company, a subsidiary of the Company and the Merger Partner, the Merger Partner will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and each outstanding share of common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, of the Merger Partner (the "Merger Partner Common Stock"), other than shares of Merger Partner Common Stock held in treasury or owned by the Company and its affiliates, will be converted into the right to receive .3879 shares of the Company's common stock (the "Stock Consideration"), par value \$0.01 per share (together with the associated preferred stock purchase rights under the Rights Agreement dated as of October 29, 1997 between the Company and American Stock Transfer & Trust, the "Company Common Stock"), and \$22.00 in cash without interest (the "Cash Consideration," and together with the Stock Consideration, the "Merger Consideration").

In arriving at our opinion, we have (i) reviewed the Agreement; (ii) reviewed certain publicly available business and financial information concerning the Merger Partner and the Company and the industries in which they operate; (iii) compared the proposed financial terms of the Merger with the publicly available financial terms of certain transactions involving companies we deemed relevant and the consideration received for such companies; (iv) compared the financial and operating performance of the Merger Partner and the Company with publicly available information concerning certain other companies we deemed relevant and reviewed the current and historical market prices of the Merger Partner Common Stock and the Company Common Stock and certain publicly traded securities of such other companies; (v) reviewed certain internal financial analyses and forecasts prepared by the managements of the Merger Partner and the Company relating to their respective businesses, as well as the estimated amount and timing of the cost savings and related expenses and synergies expected to result from the Merger (the "Synergies"); and (vi) performed such other financial studies and analyses and considered such other information as we deemed appropriate for the purposes of this opinion.

In addition, we have held discussions with certain members of the management of the Merger Partner and the Company with respect to certain aspects of the Merger, and the past and current business operations of the Merger Partner and the Company, the financial condition and future prospects and operations of the Merger Partner and the Company, the effects of the Merger on the financial condition and future prospects of the Company, and certain other matters we believed necessary or appropriate to our inquiry.

In giving our opinion, we have relied upon and assumed, without independent verification, the accuracy and completeness of all information that was publicly available or was furnished to or discussed with us by the Merger Partner and the Company or otherwise reviewed by us, and have not assumed any responsibility or liability therefor. We have not conducted any valuation or appraisal of any assets or liabilities, nor have any such valuations or appraisals been provided to us. In relying on financial analyses and forecasts provided to us,

C-1

The Board of Directors The Cooper Companies, Inc. July 28, 2004 Page Two

including the Synergies, we have assumed that they have been reasonably prepared based on assumptions reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments by management as to the expected future results of operations and financial condition of the Merger Partner and the Company to which such analyses or forecasts relate. We have also assumed that the Merger will qualify as a tax-free reorganization for United States federal income tax purposes, and that the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Agreement will be consummated as described in the Agreement. We have relied as to all legal matters relevant to rendering our opinion upon the advice of our counsel. We have further assumed that all material governmental, regulatory or other consents and approvals necessary for the consummation of the Merger will be obtained without any adverse effect on the Merger Partner or the Company or on the contemplated benefits of the Merger.

Our opinion is necessarily based on economic, market and other conditions as in effect on, and the information made available to us as of, the date hereof. It should be understood that subsequent developments may affect this opinion and that we do not have any obligation to update, revise, or reaffirm this opinion. Our opinion is limited to the fairness, from a financial point of view, to the Company of the Merger Consideration to be paid in the proposed Merger and we express no opinion as to the underlying decision by the Company to engage in the Merger. We are expressing no opinion herein as to the price at which the Company Common Stock or the Merger Partner Common Stock will trade at any future time.

We have acted as financial advisor to the Company with respect to the proposed Merger and will receive a fee from the Company for our services. We will also receive an additional fee if the proposed Merger is consummated. In conjunction with the proposed Merger, we are also acting as a co-lead arranger with respect to debt to be incurred by the Company to finance the Cash Consideration, for which we will receive a fee. In the ordinary course of our businesses, we and our affiliates may actively trade the debt and equity securities of the Company or the Merger Partner for our own account or for the accounts of customers and, accordingly, we may at any time hold long or short positions in such securities.

On the basis of and subject to the foregoing, it is our opinion as of the date hereof that the Merger Consideration to be paid in the proposed Merger is fair, from a financial point of view, to the Company.

This letter is provided to the Board of Directors of the Company in connection with and for the purposes of its evaluation of the Merger. This opinion does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholder of the Company as to how such shareholder should vote with respect to the Merger or any other matter. This opinion may not be disclosed, referred to, or communicated (in whole or in part) to any third party for any purpose whatsoever except with our prior written approval. This opinion may be reproduced in full in any proxy or information statement mailed to shareholders of the Company but may not otherwise be disclosed publicly in any manner without our prior written approval.

Very truly yours,

/s/ J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES INC.

J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES INC.

C-2

ANNEX D OPINION OF MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INCORPORATED

MorganStanley

July 28, 2004

Board of Directors Ocular Sciences, Inc. 1855 Gateway Boulevard Suite 700 Concord, California 94520

Members of the Board:

We understand that Ocular Sciences, Inc. ("OSI" or the "Company"), The Cooper Companies Inc. ("Cooper") and TCC Acquisition Corp., a wholly owned subsidiary of Cooper ("Merger Sub"), propose to enter into an Agreement and Plan of Merger, substantially in the form of the draft dated July 26, 2004 (the "Merger Agreement"), which provides, among other things, for the merger ("Merger") of the Company with and into Merger Sub. Pursuant to the Merger, OSI will become a wholly owned subsidiary of Cooper and each issued and outstanding common share, par value \$0.001 per share (the "OSI Common Stock"), of OSI, other than shares held in treasury or held by Cooper, Merger Sub or any subsidiary of Cooper or Merger Sub or as to which dissenters' rights have been perfected, will be converted into the right to receive (i) 0.3879x of a share of common stock, par value \$0.10 per share (the "Cooper Common Stock"), of Cooper, and (ii) \$22.00 in cash (collectively, the "Consideration"). The terms and conditions of the Merger are more fully set forth in the Merger Agreement.

You have asked for our opinion as to whether the Consideration to be received by the holders of OSI Common Stock pursuant to the Merger Agreement is fair from a financial point of view to such holders.

For purposes of the opinion set forth herein, we have:

(i) reviewed certain publicly available financial statements and other business and financial information of Cooper and OSI, respectively;

(ii) reviewed certain internal financial statements and other financial and operating data concerning Cooper and OSI, prepared by the managements of Cooper and OSI, respectively;

(iii) discussed the past and current operations and financial condition and the prospects of Cooper and OSI with senior executives of Cooper and OSI, respectively;

(iv) discussed certain strategic, financial and operational benefits anticipated from the Merger with the managements of OSI and Cooper;

(v) reviewed the pro forma impact of the Merger on the combined company's financial performance, including earnings per share;

(vi) reviewed the financial terms of the proposed credit facility commitments to be entered into in connection with the Merger and their impact on the combined company's cash flows;

(vii) reviewed the reported prices and trading activity for Cooper Common Stock and OSI Common Stock;

D-1

(viii) compared the financial performance of Cooper and OSI and the prices and trading activity of Cooper Common Stock and OSI Common Stock with that of certain other comparable publicly-traded companies and their securities;

(ix) discussed the strategic rationale for the Merger with the managements of Cooper and OSI and certain alternatives to the Merger with the management of OSI;

(x) reviewed the financial terms, to the extent publicly available, of certain comparable acquisition transactions;

(xi) participated in discussions and negotiations among representatives of Cooper and OSI and their financial and legal advisors;

(xii) reviewed the Merger Agreement and certain related documents; and

(xiii) performed such other analyses and considered other such factors as we have deemed appropriate.

We have assumed and relied upon without independent verification the accuracy and completeness of the information reviewed by us for the purposes of this opinion. With respect to the internal financial statements, including certain estimates relating to the strategic, financial and operational benefits anticipated from the Merger and assessments regarding the prospects of Cooper and OSI, we have assumed that they were reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and judgments of the future financial performance of Cooper and OSI, respectively. In addition, we have assumed that the Merger will be consummated in accordance with the terms set forth in the Merger Agreement, including, among other things, the Merger will be treated as a tax-free reorganization pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. We have also assumed that in connection with the receipt of all the necessary regulatory approvals for the proposed Merger, no restrictions will be imposed or delays will result that would have a material adverse affect on the contemplated benefits expected to be derived in the proposed Merger.

We have relied upon, without independent verification, the assessment by the managements of Cooper and OSI of: (i) the strategic, financial and other benefits expected to result from the Merger; (ii) the timing and risks associated with the integration of Cooper and OSI; (iii) their ability to retain key employees of Cooper and OSI, respectively and (iv) the validity of, and risks associated with, Cooper's and OSI's existing and future intellectual property, products, services and business models. We have not made any independent valuation or appraisal of the assets or liabilities of Cooper and OSI, nor have we been furnished with any such appraisals. Our opinion is necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions as in effect on, and the information made available to us as of, the date hereof.

In arriving at our opinion, we did not solicit interest with respect to the acquisition, business combination or any other extraordinary transaction, involving OSI.

We have acted as financial advisor to the Board of Directors of OSI in connection with this transaction and will receive a fee for our services. In the ordinary course of our business we may actively trade the securities of Cooper and OSI for our own account and for the accounts of our customers and, accordingly, may at any time hold a long or short position in such securities. In the past Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated ("Morgan Stanley") and its affiliates have provided financial advisory services and financing services for OSI, and have received fees for these services.

It is understood that this letter is for the information of the Board of Directors of OSI and may not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent, except that a copy of this opinion may be included in its entirety in any filing made by OSI in respect of the transaction with the Securities and Exchange Commission. In addition, this opinion does not in any manner address the prices at which the OSI Common Stock will trade following the announcement or consummation of the Merger, and Morgan Stanley expresses no opinion or recommendation as to how the stockholders of OSI should vote at the stockholders' meetings to be held in connection with the Merger.

D-2

Based on and subject to the foregoing, we are of the opinion on the date hereof that the Consideration to be received by holders of OSI Common Stock pursuant to the Merger Agreement is fair from a financial point of view to such holders.

Very truly yours,

MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INCORPORATED

By: /s/ NICHOLAS DEJ OSBORNE

Nicholas deJ Osborne Managing Director

D-3

ANNEX E

SECTION 262 OF THE GENERAL CORPORATION LAW OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE

SECTION 262. Appraisal Rights

(a) Any stockholder of a corporation of this State who holds shares of stock on the date of the making of a demand pursuant to subsection (d) of this section with respect to such shares, who continuously holds such shares through the effective date of the merger or consolidation, who has otherwise complied with subsection (d) of this section and who has neither voted in favor of the merger or consolidation nor consented thereto in writing pursuant to Section 228 of this title shall be entitled to an appraisal by the Court of Chancery of the fair value of the stockholder's shares of stock under the circumstances described in subsections (b) and (c) of this section. As used in this section, the word "stockholder" means a holder of record of stock in a stock corporation and also a member of record of a nonstock corporation; the words "stock" and "share" mean and include what is ordinarily meant by those words and also membership or membership interest of a member of a nonstock corporation; and the words "depository receipt" mean a receipt or other instrument issued by a depository representing an interest in one or more shares, or fractions thereof, solely of stock of a corporation, which stock is deposited with the depository.

(b) Appraisal rights shall be available for the shares of any class or series of stock of a constituent corporation in a merger or consolidation to be effected pursuant to Section 251 (other than a merger effected pursuant to Section 251(g) of this title), Section 252, Section 254, Section 257, Section 258, Section 263 or Section 264 of this title:

(1) Provided, however, that no appraisal rights under this section shall be available for the shares of any class or series of stock, which stock, or depository receipts in respect thereof, at the record date fixed to determine the stockholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the meeting of stockholders to act upon the agreement of merger or consolidation, were either (i) listed on a national securities exchange or designated as a national market system security on an interdealer quotation system by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. or (ii) held of record by more than 2,000 holders; and further provided that no appraisal rights shall be available for any shares of stock of the constituent corporation surviving a merger if the merger did not require for its approval the vote of the stockholders of the surviving corporation as provided in subsection (f) of Section 251 of this title.

(2) Notwithstanding paragraph (1) of this subsection, appraisal rights under this section shall be available for the shares of any class or series of stock of a constituent corporation if the holders thereof are required by the terms of an agreement of merger or consolidation pursuant to Sections 251, 252, 254, 257, 258, 263 and 264 of this title to accept for such stock anything except:

a. Shares of stock of the corporation surviving or resulting from such merger or consolidation, or depository receipts in respect thereof;

b. Shares of stock of any other corporation, or depository receipts in respect thereof, which shares of stock (or depository receipts in respect thereof) or depository receipts at the effective date of the merger or consolidation will be either listed on a national securities exchange or designated as a national market system security on an interdealer quotation system by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. or held of record by more than 2,000 holders;

c. Cash in lieu of fractional shares or fractional depository receipts described in the foregoing subparagraphs a. and b. of this paragraph; or

d. Any combination of the shares of stock, depository receipts and cash in lieu of fractional shares or fractional depository receipts described in the foregoing subparagraphs a., b. and c. of this paragraph.

(3) In the event all of the stock of a subsidiary Delaware corporation party to a merger effected under Section 253 of this title is not owned by the parent corporation immediately prior to the merger, appraisal rights shall be available for the shares of the subsidiary Delaware corporation.

(c) Any corporation may provide in its certificate of incorporation that appraisal rights under this section shall be available for the shares of any class or series of its stock as a result of an amendment to its certificate of incorporation, any merger or consolidation in which the corporation is a constituent corporation or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the corporation. If the certificate of incorporation contains such a provision, the procedures of this section, including those set forth in subsections (d) and (e) of this section, shall apply as nearly as is practicable.

(d) Appraisal rights shall be perfected as follows:

(1) If a proposed merger or consolidation for which appraisal rights are provided under this section is to be submitted for approval at a meeting of stockholders, the corporation, not less than 20 days prior to the meeting, shall notify each of its stockholders who was such on the record date for such meeting with respect to shares for which appraisal rights are available pursuant to subsection (b) or (c) hereof that appraisal rights are available for any or all of the shares of the constituent corporations, and shall include in such notice a copy of this section. Each stockholder electing to demand the appraisal of such stockholder's shares shall deliver to the corporation, before the taking of the vote on the merger or consolidation, a written demand for appraisal of such stockholder's shares. Such demand will be sufficient if it reasonably informs the corporation of the identity of the stockholder and that the stockholder intends thereby to demand the appraisal of such stockholder's shares. A proxy or vote against the merger or consolidation shall not constitute such a demand. A stockholder electing to take such action must do so by a separate written demand as herein provided. Within 10 days after the effective date of such merger or consolidation, the surviving or resulting corporation shall notify each stockholder of each constituent corporation who has complied with this subsection and has not voted in favor of or consented to the merger or consolidation of the date that the merger or consolidation has become effective; or

(2) If the merger or consolidation was approved pursuant to Section 228 or Section 253 of this title, then either a constituent corporation before the effective date of the merger or consolidation or the surviving or resulting corporation within 10 days thereafter shall notify each of the holders of any class or series of stock of such constituent corporation who are entitled to appraisal rights of the approval of the merger or consolidation and that appraisal rights are available for any or all shares of such class or series of stock of such constituent corporation, and shall include in such notice a copy of this section. Such notice may, and, if given on or after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, shall, also notify such stockholders of the effective date of the merger or consolidation. Any stockholder entitled to appraisal rights may, within 20 days after the date of mailing of such notice, demand in writing from the surviving or resulting corporation the appraisal of such holder's shares. Such demand will be sufficient if it reasonably informs the corporation of the identity of the stockholder and that the stockholder intends thereby to demand the appraisal of such holder's shares. If such notice did not notify stockholders of the effective date of the merger or consolidation, either (i) each such constituent corporation shall send a second notice before the effective date of the merger or consolidation notifying each of the holders of any class or series of stock of such constituent corporation that are entitled to appraisal rights of the effective date of the merger or consolidation or (ii) the surviving or resulting corporation shall send such a second notice to all such holders on or within 10 days after such effective date; provided, however, that if such second notice is sent more than 20 days following the sending of the first notice, such second notice need only be sent to each stockholder who is entitled to appraisal rights and who has demanded appraisal of such holder's shares in accordance with this subsection. An affidavit of the secretary or assistant secretary or of the transfer agent of the corporation that is required to give either notice that such notice has been given shall, in the absence of fraud, be prima facie evidence of the facts stated therein. For purposes of determining the stockholders entitled to receive either notice, each constituent corporation may fix, in advance, a record date that shall be not more than 10 days prior to the date the notice is given, provided, that if the notice is given on or after the

effective date of the merger or consolidation, the record date shall be such effective date. If no record date is fixed and the notice is given prior to the effective date, the record date shall be the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the notice is given.

(e) Within 120 days after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, the surviving or resulting corporation or any stockholder who has complied with subsections (a) and (d) hereof and who is otherwise entitled to appraisal rights, may file a petition in the Court of Chancery demanding a determination of the value of the stock of all such stockholders. Notwithstanding the foregoing, at any time within 60 days after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, any stockholder shall have the right to withdraw such stockholder's demand for appraisal and to accept the terms offered upon the merger or consolidation. Within 120 days after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, any stockholder who has complied with the requirements of subsections (a) and (d) hereof, upon written request, shall be entitled to receive from the corporation surviving the merger or resulting from the consolidation a statement setting forth the aggregate number of shares not voted in favor of the merger or consolidation and with respect to which demands for appraisal have been received and the aggregate number of holders of such shares. Such written statement shall be mailed to the stockholder within 10 days after such stockholder's written request for such a statement is received by the surviving or resulting corporation or within 10 days after expiration of the period for delivery of demands for appraisal under subsection (d) hereof, whichever is later.

(f) Upon the filing of any such petition by a stockholder, service of a copy thereof shall be made upon the surviving or resulting corporation, which shall within 20 days after such service file in the office of the Register in Chancery in which the petition was filed a duly verified list containing the names and addresses of all stockholders who have demanded payment for their shares and with whom agreements as to the value of their shares have not been reached by the surviving or resulting corporation. If the petition shall be filed by the surviving or resulting corporation, the petition shall be accompanied by such a duly verified list. The Register in Chancery, if so ordered by the Court, shall give notice of the time and place fixed for the hearing of such petition by registered or certified mail to the surviving or resulting corporation and to the stockholders shown on the list at the addresses therein stated. Such notice shall also be given by 1 or more publications at least 1 week before the day of the hearing, in a newspaper of general circulation published in the City of Wilmington, Delaware or such publication as the Court deems advisable. The forms of the notices by mail and by publication shall be approved by the Court, and the costs thereof shall be borne by the surviving or resulting corporation.

(g) At the hearing on such petition, the Court shall determine the stockholders who have complied with this section and who have become entitled to appraisal rights. The Court may require the stockholders who have demanded an appraisal for their shares and who hold stock represented by certificates to submit their certificates of stock to the Register in Chancery for notation thereon of the pendency of the appraisal proceedings; and if any stockholder fails to comply with such direction, the Court may dismiss the proceedings as to such stockholder.

(h) After determining the stockholders entitled to an appraisal, the Court shall appraise the shares, determining their fair value exclusive of any element of value arising from the accomplishment or expectation of the merger or consolidation, together with a fair rate of interest, if any, to be paid upon the amount determined to be the fair value. In determining such fair value, the Court shall take into account all relevant factors. In determining the fair rate of interest, the Court may consider all relevant factors, including the rate of interest which the surviving or resulting corporation would have had to pay to borrow money during the pendency of the proceeding. Upon application by the surviving or resulting corporation or by any stockholder entitled to participate in the appraisal proceeding, the Court may, in its discretion, permit discovery or other pretrial proceedings and may proceed to trial upon the appraisal prior to the final determination of the stockholder entitled to an appraisal. Any stockholder whose name appears on the list filed by the surviving or resulting corporation pursuant to subsection (f) of this section and who has submitted such stockholder is not entitled to appraisal rights under this section.

(i) The Court shall direct the payment of the fair value of the shares, together with interest, if any, by the surviving or resulting corporation to the stockholders entitled thereto. Interest may be simple or compound, as the Court may direct. Payment shall be so made to each such stockholder, in the case of holders of uncertificated stock forthwith, and the case of holders of shares represented by certificates upon the surrender to the corporation of the certificates representing such stock. The Court's decree may be enforced as other decrees in the Court of Chancery may be enforced, whether such surviving or resulting corporation be a corporation of this State or of any state.

(j) The costs of the proceeding may be determined by the Court and taxed upon the parties as the Court deems equitable in the circumstances. Upon application of a stockholder, the Court may order all or a portion of the expenses incurred by any stockholder in connection with the appraisal proceeding, including, without limitation, reasonable attorney's fees and the fees and expenses of experts, to be charged pro rata against the value of all the shares entitled to an appraisal.

(k) From and after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, no stockholder who has demanded appraisal rights as provided in subsection (d) of this section shall be entitled to vote such stock for any purpose or to receive payment of dividends or other distributions on the stock (except dividends or other distributions payable to stockholders of record at a date which is prior to the effective date of the merger or consolidation); provided, however, that if no petition for an appraisal shall be filed within the time provided in subsection (e) of this section, or if such stockholder shall deliver to the surviving or resulting corporation a written withdrawal of such stockholder's demand for an appraisal and an acceptance of the merger or consolidation, either within 60 days after the effective date of the merger or consolidation as provided in subsection (e) of this section or thereafter with the written approval of the corporation, then the right of such stockholder to an appraisal shall cease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no appraisal proceeding in the Court of Chancery shall be dismissed as to any stockholder without the approval of the Court, and such approval may be conditioned upon such terms as the Court deems just.

(1) The shares of the surviving or resulting corporation to which the shares of such objecting stockholders would have been converted had they assented to the merger or consolidation shall have the status of authorized and unissued shares of the surviving or resulting corporation.

PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 20. Indemnification of Directors and Officers

The Cooper Companies, Inc. is a Delaware corporation. Subsection (b)(7) of Section 102 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the "Delaware General Corporation Law") enables a corporation in its original certificate of incorporation or an amendment thereto to eliminate or limit the personal liability of a director to the corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for violations of the director's fiduciary duty, except (1) for any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders, (2) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (3) pursuant to Section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (providing for liability of directors for unlawful payment of dividends or unlawful stock purchases or redemptions) or (4) for any transaction from which a director derived an improper personal benefit.

Article X of The Cooper Companies, Inc.'s Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, provides that a director shall not be liable to The Cooper Companies, Inc. or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of duty as a director, except under the circumstances listed in (1) through (4) above and further provides that if the Delaware General Corporation Law is amended to authorize corporate action further eliminating or limiting the personal liability of directors, the liability of a director of The Cooper Companies, Inc. shall be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law, as so amended.

Subsection (a) of Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law empowers a corporation to indemnify any director or officer, or former director or officer, who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the corporation), against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such action, suit or proceeding provided that such director or officer acted in good faith in a manner reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, provided further that such director or officer had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful.

Subsection (b) of Section 145 empowers a corporation to indemnify any director or officer, or former director or officer, who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that such person acted in any of the capacities set forth above, against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit provided that such director or officer acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the corporation, except that no indemnification may be made in respect to any claim, issue or matter as to which such director or officer shall have been adjudged to be liable to the corporation unless and only to the extent that the Court of Chancery or the court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all of the circumstances of the case, such director or officer is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the Court of Chancery or such other court shall deem proper.

Section 145 further provides that to the extent a director or officer of a corporation has been successful in the defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in subsections (a) and (b) or in the defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection therewith; that indemnification and advancement of expenses provided for, by, or granted pursuant to Section 145 shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which the indemnified party may be entitled; and empowers the corporation to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of a director or officer of the corporation against any liability asserted against him or incurred by him in any such capacity, or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify him against such liabilities under Section 145.

Paragraph (b) of Article X of The Cooper Companies, Inc.'s Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, provides that each person who was or is made a party to or is threatened to be made party to, or is otherwise involved in, any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer or employee of The Cooper Companies, Inc. (or was serving at the request of The Cooper Companies, Inc. as a director, officer, employee or agent for another entity) while serving in such capacity shall, except in certain lawsuits initiated by such persons, be indemnified and held harmless by The Cooper Companies, Inc., to the full extent authorized by the Delaware General Corporation Law, as in effect (or, to the extent authority for indemnification is broadened, as it may be amended) against all expense, liability or loss (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts to be paid in settlement) reasonably incurred by such person in connection therewith. Paragraph (b) further provides that rights conferred thereby shall be contract rights and shall include the right to be paid by The Cooper Companies, Inc. the expenses incurred in defending the proceedings specified above, in advance of their final disposition, provided that, if the Delaware General Corporation Law so requires, such payment shall only be made upon delivery to The Cooper Companies, Inc. by the indemnified under Paragraph (b) or otherwise. Paragraph (b) provides that The Cooper Companies, Inc. may, by action of its Board of Directors, provide indemnification to its agents with the same scope and effect as the foregoing indemnification of directors, officers and employees.

Paragraph (b) provides that persons indemnified thereunder may bring suit against The Cooper Companies, Inc. to recover unpaid amounts claimed thereunder, and that if such suit is successful, the expense of bringing such suit shall be reimbursed by The Cooper Companies, Inc.. Paragraph (b) further provides that while it is a defense to such a suit that the person claiming indemnification has not met the applicable standards of conduct making indemnification permissible under the Delaware General Corporation Law, the burden of proving the defense shall be on The Cooper Companies, Inc. and neither the failure of The Cooper Companies, Inc.'s Board of Directors to have made a determination that indemnification is proper, nor an actual determination by the Board of Directors that the claimant has not met the applicable standard of conduct, shall be a defense to the action or create a presumption that the claimant has not met the applicable standard of conduct.

Paragraph (b) provides that the right to indemnification and the payment of expenses incurred in defending a proceeding in advance of its final disposition shall not be exclusive of any other right which any person may have or acquire under any statute, provision of The Cooper Companies, Inc.'s Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws, or otherwise. Paragraph (b) also provides that The Cooper Companies, Inc. may maintain insurance, at its expense, to protect itself and any of its directors, officers, employees or agents against any expense, liability or loss, whether or not The Cooper Companies, Inc. would have the power to indemnify such person against such expense, liability or loss under the Delaware General Corporation Law.

Finally, Paragraph (b) provides that The Cooper Companies, Inc. may enter into indemnification contracts consistent with its provisions. However, the existence of a contract is not a precondition to indemnification under Paragraph (b).

Article VIII, Section 1 of the By-Laws of The Cooper Companies, Inc. provides:

"Except as provided in Section 3 of this Article VIII, the Corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise involved in any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, including any appeal therefrom (a "Proceeding") (other than a Proceeding by or in the right of the Corporation) by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer or employee of the Corporation or any predecessor corporation or entity, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another entity, against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such Proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Corporation, and, with respect to any criminal Proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. The termination of any Proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Corporation, and, with respect to any criminal Proceeding, that he had reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful."

Article VIII, Section 2 of the By-Laws of The Cooper Companies, Inc. provides:

"Except as provided in Section 3 of this Article VIII, the Corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise involved in any threatened, pending or completed Proceeding by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer or employee of the Corporation or any predecessor corporation or entity, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with the defense or settlement of such Proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Corporation, except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the Corporation unless and only to the extent that the Court of Chancery or the court in which such Proceeding was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the Court of Chancery or such other court shall deem proper."

The By-Laws also provide that The Cooper Companies, Inc. may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was its director, officer, employee or agent, or is or was serving at its request as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any asserted liability against him and incurred by him in any such capacity, whether or not The Cooper Companies, Inc. would have the power to indemnify him against such liability under the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, By-Laws or the Delaware General Corporation Law.

The Cooper Companies, Inc. maintains insurance covering itself and its officers and directors against certain liabilities incurred in their capacities as such.

Item 21. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Exhibits

Exhibit No.	Description
2.1	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 28, 2004, by and among The Cooper Companies, Inc., TCC Acquisition Corp. and Ocular Sciences, Inc. (1)
3.1	Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as partially amended. (2)
3.2	Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated September 21, 1995. (3)
3.3	Amended and Restated By-Laws dated December 16, 1999. (4)
3.4	Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation dated May 24, 2000. (5)
3.5	Fourth Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certification of Incorporation. (6)
4.1+	Form of stock certificate for the common stock, par value \$0.10 of The Cooper Companies, Inc.
4.2	Rights Agreement, dated as of October 29, 1997, between The Cooper Companies, Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company. (7)
4.3	First Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of September 25, 1998, between The Cooper Companies, Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company. (8)

Exhibit No.	Description
4.4	Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of the Cooper Companies, Inc. (9)
5.1*	Legal opinion of Latham & Watkins LLP.
8.1*	Tax opinion of Latham & Watkins LLP.
8.2*	Tax opinion of Fenwick & West LLP.
23.1*	Consent of Latham & Watkins (included in Exhibits 5.1* and 8.1*).
23.2*	Consent of Fenwick & West LLP (included in Exhibit 8.2*).
23.3+	Consent of KPMG LLP, independent auditors of The Cooper Companies, Inc.
23.4+	Consent of KPMG LLP, independent auditors of Ocular Sciences, Inc.
24.1	Powers of Attorney (included on page II-6).
99.1	Voting Agreement, dated as of July 28, 2004, by and among The Cooper Companies, Inc., TCC Acquisition Corp. and John D. Fruth. (10)
99.2+	Form of Affiliate Agreement to be entered into among The Cooper Companies, Inc., TCC Acquisition Corp. and certain affiliates of Ocular Sciences, Inc.
99.3+	Opinion of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. (11)
99.4+	Opinion of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated. (12)
99.5+	Form of Proxy of The Cooper Companies, Inc.
99.6+	Form of Proxy of Ocular Sciences, Inc.
99.7+	Consent of John D. Fruth to be named a director of The Cooper Companies, Inc. upon completion of the merger.
99.8+	Consent of Edgar J. Cummins to be named a director of The Cooper Companies, Inc. upon completion of the merger.
99.9+	Consent of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.
99.10+	Consent of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated.

* To be filed by amendment.

+ Filed herewith.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Cooper's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 29, 2004.

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) to Cooper's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-17330) and Exhibits 19(a) and 19(c) to Cooper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 1988.

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Cooper's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1995.

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Cooper's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1999.

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Cooper's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2000.

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Cooper's Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on April 7, 2003.

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Cooper's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 31, 1997.

(8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Cooper's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 28, 1998.

(9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Cooper's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 31, 1997.

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Cooper's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 29, 2004.

(11) Included as Annex C to the joint proxy statement/prospectus forming a part of this registration statement.

(12) Included as Annex D to the joint proxy statement/prospectus forming a part of this registration statement.

(b) Not applicable.

(c) Not applicable.

Item 22. Undertakings

(1) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes as follows: that prior to any public reoffering of the securities registered hereunder through use of a prospectus which is a part of this registration statement, by any person or party who is deemed to be an underwriter within the meaning of Rule 145(c), the issuer undertakes that such reoffering prospectus will contain the information called for by the applicable registration form with respect to reofferings by persons who may be deemed underwriters, in addition to the information called for by the other Items of the applicable form.

(2) The registrant undertakes that every prospectus (i) that is filed pursuant to paragraph (1) immediately preceding, or (ii) that purports to meet the requirements of section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Act"), and is used in connection with an offering of securities subject to Rule 415, will be filed as a part of an amendment to the registration statement and will not be used until such amendment is effective, and that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Act, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial *bona fide* offering thereof.

(3) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Act, each filing of the Registrant's annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement shall be deemed to be a new Registration Statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial *bona fide* offering thereof.

(4) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions hereof, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

(5) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to respond to requests for information that is incorporated by reference into the prospectus pursuant to Items 4, 10(b), 11 or 13 of this form, within one business day of receipt of such request, and to send the incorporated documents by first class mail or other equally prompt means. This includes information contained in documents filed subsequent to the effective date of the registration statement through the date of responding to the request.

(6) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information concerning a transaction, and the company being acquired involved therein, that was not the subject of and included in the registration statement when it became effective.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the city of Pleasanton, State of California, on August 20, 2004.

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.

/s/ A. THOMAS BENDER

Name: Title: A. Thomas Bender Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below does hereby constitute and appoint Carol R. Kaufman and Robert S. Weiss to be his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, acting alone, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign this registration statement and any and all amendments thereto (including without limitation any post-effective amendments thereto and any registration statement pursuant to Rule 462(b)), and to file each of the same, with all exhibits thereto and all other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and every act and thing necessary or desirable to be done, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, thereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agent, acting alone, or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration statement has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on August 20, 2004:

/s/ A. THOMAS BENDER	 Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) 	
A. Thomas Bender	Freshent and Giner Executive Officer (Frincipal Executive Officer)	
/s/ Robert S. Weiss	Executive Vice President,	
Robert S. Weiss	- Chief Financial Officer and Director (Principal Financial Officer)	
/s/ Rodney E. Folden	Corporate Controller	
Rodney E. Folden	- (Principal Accounting Officer)	
/s/ Allen E. Rubenstein, M.D.	Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors	
Allen E. Rubenstein, M.D.	-	
/s/ MICHAEL H. KALKSTEIN	Director	
Michael H. Kalkstein	-	
/s/ Moses Marx	Director	
Moses Marx	-	
/s/ DONALD PRESS	Director	
Donald Press	-	
/s/ Steven Rosenberg	Director	
Steven Rosenberg	-	
/s/ Stanley Zinberg, M.D.	Director	
Stanley Zinberg, M.D.	-	
Π	[-6	

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No.	Description
2.1	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 28, 2004, by and among The Cooper Companies, Inc., TCC Acquisition Corp. and Ocular Sciences, Inc. (1)
3.1	Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as partially amended. (2)
3.2	Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated September 21, 1995. (3)
3.3	Amended and Restated By-Laws dated December 16, 1999. (4)
3.4	Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation dated May 24, 2000. (5)
3.5	Fourth Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certification of Incorporation. (6)
4.1+	Form of stock certificate for the common stock, par value \$0.10 of The Cooper Companies, Inc.
4.2	Rights Agreement, dated as of October 29, 1997, between The Cooper Companies, Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company. (7)
4.3	First Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of September 25, 1998, between The Cooper Companies, Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company. (8)
4.4	Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of the Cooper Companies, Inc. (9)
5.1*	Legal opinion of Latham & Watkins LLP.
8.1*	Tax opinion of Latham & Watkins LLP.
8.2*	Tax opinion of Fenwick & West LLP.
23.1*	Consent of Latham & Watkins (included in Exhibits 5.1* and 8.1*).
23.2*	Consent of Fenwick & West LLP (included in Exhibit 8.2*).
23.3+	Consent of KPMG LLP, independent auditors of The Cooper Companies, Inc.
23.4+	Consent of KPMG LLP, independent auditors of Ocular Sciences, Inc.
24.1	Powers of Attorney (included on page II-6).
99.1	Voting Agreement, dated as of July 28, 2004, by and among The Cooper Companies, Inc., TCC Acquisition Corp. and John D. Fruth. (10)
99.2+	Form of Affiliate Agreement to be entered into among The Cooper Companies, Inc., TCC Acquisition Corp. and certain affiliates of Ocular Sciences, Inc.
99.3+	Opinion of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. (11)
99.4+	Opinion of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated. (12)
99.5+	Form of Proxy of The Cooper Companies, Inc.
99.6+	Form of Proxy of Ocular Sciences, Inc.
99.7+	Consent of John D. Fruth to be named a director of The Cooper Companies, Inc. upon completion of the merger.
99.8+	Consent of Edgar J. Cummins to be named a director of The Cooper Companies, Inc. upon completion of the merger.
99.9+	Consent of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.
99.10+	Consent of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated.

* To be filed by amendment.

Table of Contents

- + Filed herewith.
- (1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Cooper's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 29, 2004.
- (2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) to Cooper's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-17330) and Exhibits 19(a) and 19(c) to Cooper's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 1988.
- (3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Cooper's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1995.
- (4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Cooper's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1999.
- (5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Cooper's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2000.
- (6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Cooper's Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on April 7, 2003.
- (7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Cooper's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 31, 1997.
- (8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Cooper's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 28, 1998.
- (9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Cooper's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 31, 1997.
- (10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Cooper's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 29, 2004.
- (11) Included as Annex C to the joint proxy statement/prospectus forming a part of this registration statement.
- (12) Included as Annex D to the joint proxy statement/prospectus forming a part of this registration statement.

INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE

The COOPER Companies

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT

IS THE OWNER OF

FULLY PAID AND NON-ASSESSABLE SHARES OF THE COMMON STOCK, PAR VALUE \$.10 EACH, OF

The Cooper Companies, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as the "Company") transferable in person or by duly authorized attorney upon surrender of this certificate properly endorsed. This certificate and the shares represented hereby are issued and shall be held subject to all provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation and all amendments and supplements thereto of the Company to all of which the holders by acceptance hereof assents. This certificate is not valid unless countersigned by a Transfer Agent and registered by a Registrar.

Witness the facsimile seal of the Company and the facsimile signatures of its duly authorized officers.

Dated:

/s/ ROBERT S. WEISS CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER /s/ CAROL R. KAUFMAN VICE PRESIDENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS

COUNTERSIGNED AND REGISTERED:

AMERICAN STOCK TRANSFER & TRUST COMPANY (NEW YORK, N.Y.)

> TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Ву

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

COMMON

SEE REVERSE FOR CERTAIN DEFINITIONS

CUSIP 216648 40 2

THE COMPANY WILL FURNISH WITHOUT CHARGE TO EACH STOCKHOLDER WHO SO REQUESTS A STATEMENT OR SUMMARY OF THE POWERS, DESIGNATIONS, PREFERENCES AND RELATIVE, PARTICIPATING, OPTIONAL OR OTHER SPECIAL RIGHTS OF EACH CLASS OF STOCK OR SERIES THEREOF WHICH THE CORPORATION IS AUTHORIZED TO ISSUE AND OF THE QUALIFICATIONS, LIMITATIONS OR RESTRICTIONS OF SUCH PREFERENCES AND/OR RIGHTS. ANY SUCH REQUEST IS TO BE ADDRESSED TO THE TRANSFER AGENT NAMED ON THE FACE OF THIS CERTIFICATE.

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this certificate, shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM — as tenants in common	UNIF GIFT MIN ACT —	Custodian
TEN ENT — as tenants by the entireties	(Cust)	(Minor)
JT TEN — as joint tenants with right of	under Uniform Gifts to Minors	
survivorship and not as tenants	Act	
in common	(State)	

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list.

For value received, _______ hereby sell, assign and transfer unto

PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPEWRITE NAME AND ADDRESS INCLUDING POSTAL ZIP CODE OF ASSIGNEE

Shares of the capital stock represented by the within Certificate, and do hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint ____

Attorney to transfer the said stock on the books of the within-named Company with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated,_____

Signature(s) Guaranteed:

THE SIGNATURE(S) SHOULD BE GUARANTEED BY AN ELIGIBLE GUARANTOR INSTITUTION (BANKS, STOCKBROKERS, SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATIONS AND CREDIT UNIONS WITH MEMBERSHIP IN AN APPROVED SIGNATURE GUARANTEE MEDALLION PROGRAM). PURSUANT TO S.E.C. RULE 17Ad-15.

NOTICE: THE SIGNATURE TO THIS ASSIGNMENT MUST CORRESPOND WITH THE NAME AS WRITTEN UPON THE FACE OF THE CERTIFICATE IN EVERY PARTICULAR, WITHOUT ALTERATION OR ENLARGEMENT, OR ANY CHANGE WHATEVER.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CONSENT

The Board of Directors The Cooper Companies, Inc.:

We consent to the use of our reports dated December 10, 2003, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of The Cooper Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of October 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended October 31, 2003, and the related financial statement schedule incorporated herein by reference, and to the reference to our firm under the heading "Experts" in the joint proxy statement/prospectus. Our report refers to a change in accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.

/s/ KPMG LLP San Francisco, California August 19, 2004

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CONSENT

The Board of Directors Ocular Sciences, Inc.:

We consent to the use of our reports dated February 11, 2004, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Ocular Sciences, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003, and the related financial financial statement schedule, incorporated herein by reference and to the reference to our firm under the heading "Experts" in the joint proxy statement/prospectus.

Our reports dated February 11, 2004 contain an explanatory paragraph that refers to the Company's change in its method of accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets in 2002.

/s/ KPMG LLP San Francisco, California August 17, 2004

FORM OF AFFILIATE AGREEMENT

THIS AFFILIATE AGREEMENT ("Affiliate Agreement") is being executed and delivered as of ______, 2004 by the undersigned stockholder ("Stockholder") in favor of and for the benefit of The Cooper Companies, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Parent").

RECITALS

A. Stockholder is a stockholder of Ocular Sciences, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company").

B. Parent, TCC Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation and a direct wholly owned subsidiary of Parent ("Merger Sub") and the Company have entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of July 28, 2004 (the "Merger Agreement"), which provides (subject to the conditions set forth therein) for the merger of Merger Sub into the Company (the "Merger") at which time the separate corporate existence of the Company shall cease and Merger Sub shall continue as the surviving corporation.

C. The Merger Agreement contemplates that, upon consummation of the Merger, holders of (i) shares of the common stock of the Company (the "Company Common Stock") and (ii) unexpired and unexercised options to purchase shares of Company Common Stock with an exercise price per share less than the Merger Consideration Value (as defined in the Merger Agreement) (the "Company Options") will receive cash and shares of common stock of Parent (the "Parent Common Stock") in exchange for their shares of Company Common Stock and Company Options. It is accordingly contemplated that Stockholder will receive shares of Parent Common Stock in the Merger.

D. Stockholder understands that the Parent Common Stock being issued in the Merger will be issued pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-4, and that Stockholder may be deemed an "affiliate" of the Company as such term is defined for purposes of paragraphs (c) and (d) of Rule 145 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act").

AGREEMENT

Stockholder, intending to be legally bound, agrees as follows:

1. Representations and Warranties of Stockholder. Stockholder represents and warrants to Parent as follows:

(a) As of the date of this Agreement, Stockholder is the holder and "beneficial owner" (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) of the number of outstanding shares of Company Common Stock set forth beneath Stockholder's signature on the signature page hereof (the "Stockholder's Company Shares"), and Stockholder has good and valid title to the Stockholder's Company Shares, free and clear of any liens, pledges, security interests, adverse claims, equities, options, proxies, charges, encumbrances or restrictions of any nature that would adversely affect the exercise or fulfillment of the rights and

obligations of the parties under this Agreement, and has the sole right to vote and to dispose of the Stockholder's Company Shares.

(b) As of the date of this Agreement, Stockholder is the holder of Company Options set forth beneath Stockholder's signature on the signature page hereof (the "Stockholder's Company Options"), and Stockholder has good and valid title to the Stockholder's Company Options, free and clear of any liens, pledges, security interests, adverse claims, equities, options, proxies, charges, encumbrances or restrictions of any nature that would adversely affect the exercise or fulfillment of the rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement.

(c) As of the date of this Agreement, Stockholder does not own, of record or beneficially, directly or indirectly, any securities of the Company other than the Stockholder's Company Shares and Stockholder's Company Options.

(d) Stockholder has carefully read this Affiliate Agreement and, to the extent Stockholder felt necessary, has discussed with counsel the limitations imposed on Stockholder's ability to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of the shares of Parent Common Stock that Stockholder is to receive in the Merger (the "Parent Securities"). Stockholder fully understands the limitations this Affiliate Agreement places upon Stockholder's ability to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of securities of Parent.

2. Prohibitions Against Transfer. Stockholder agrees that Stockholder shall not effect any sale, transfer or other disposition of any Parent Securities unless: (a) such sale, transfer or other disposition is effected pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act; (b) such sale, transfer or other disposition is made in conformity with the requirements of Rule 145 under the Securities Act, as evidenced by a broker's letter and a representation letter executed by Stockholder (reasonably satisfactory in form and content to Parent) stating that such requirements have been met; (c) counsel reasonably satisfactory to Parent shall have advised Parent in a written opinion letter (reasonably satisfactory in form and content to Parent), upon which Parent may rely, that such sale, transfer or other disposition will be exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act; or (d) an authorized representative of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") shall have rendered written advice to Stockholder to the effect that the SEC would take no action, or that the staff of the SEC would not recommend that the SEC take action, with respect to such sale, transfer or other disposition, and a copy of such written advice and all other related communications with the SEC shall have been delivered to Parent.

3. Stop Transfer Instructions; Legend.

Stockholder acknowledges and agrees that (a) stop transfer instructions will be given to Parent's transfer agent with respect to the Parent Securities, and (b) each certificate representing any of such Parent Securities shall bear a legend identical or similar in effect to the following legend (together with any other legend or legends required by applicable state securities laws or otherwise):

"THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE WERE ISSUED IN A TRANSACTION TO WHICH RULE 145(d) OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 APPLIES AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED, ASSIGNED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SUCH RULE AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF AN AGREEMENT DATED AS OF ______, 2004, BETWEEN THE REGISTERED HOLDER HEREOF AND THE ISSUER, A COPY OF WHICH IS ON FILE AT THE PRINCIPAL OFFICES OF THE ISSUER."

The legend set forth above shall be removed (by delivery of a substitute certificate without such legend), and Parent shall so instruct its transfer agent, if Stockholder delivers to Parent (i) a fully executed representation letter constituting satisfactory evidence that the shares have been sold in compliance with Rule 145 promulgated under the Securities Act (in which case, the substitute certificate shall be issued in the name of the transferee), and (ii) an opinion of counsel, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Parent, to the effect that public sale of the shares by the holder thereof is no longer subject to Rule 145 promulgated under the Securities Act. At any time following the time at which Rule 145 under the Securities Act shall not impose any further restrictions on the transfer of the Parent Securities received by Stockholder in the Merger, Stockholder may deliver such Parent Securities to be reissued without the foregoing legend and shall countermand the stop transfer instructions.

4. Exempt Transfers. The restrictions of Section 2 shall not apply to any transfer of Parent Securities by gift, will or intestate succession by Stockholder to his or her spouse or lineal descendants or ancestors or any trust for the benefit of any of the foregoing (a "Permitted Transfer"); provided that in each of the foregoing cases the transferee agrees in writing to be subject to the terms of this Agreement to the same extent as if the transferee were the original Stockholder hereunder.

5. Independence of Obligations. The covenants and obligations of Stockholder set forth in this Affiliate Agreement shall be construed as independent of any other agreement or arrangement between Stockholder, on the one hand, and the Company or Parent, on the other. The existence of any claim or cause of action by Stockholder against the Company or Parent shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement of any of such covenants or obligations against Stockholder.

6. Specific Performance. Stockholder agrees that in the event of any breach or threatened breach by Stockholder of any covenant, obligation or other provision contained in this Affiliate Agreement, Parent shall be entitled (in addition to any other remedy that may be available to Parent) to: (a) a decree or order of specific performance or mandamus to enforce the observance and performance of such covenant, obligation or other provision; and (b) an injunction restraining such breach or threatened breach. Stockholder further agrees that neither Parent nor any other person or entity shall be required to obtain, furnish or post any bond or

similar instrument in connection with or as a condition to obtaining any remedy referred to in this Section 6, and Stockholder irrevocably waives any right he may have to require the obtaining, furnishing or posting of any such bond or similar instrument.

7. Other Agreements. Nothing in this Affiliate Agreement shall limit any of the rights or remedies of Parent under the Merger Agreement, or any of the rights or remedies of Parent or any of the obligations of Stockholder under any agreement between Stockholder and Parent or any certificate or instrument executed by Stockholder in favor of Parent; and nothing in the Merger Agreement or in any other agreement, certificate or instrument shall limit any of the rights or remedies of Parent or any of the obligations of Stockholder under this Affiliate Agreement.

8. Notices. Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be delivered to Stockholder or Parent under this Affiliate Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly delivered, given and received when delivered to the address or facsimile telephone number set forth beneath the name of such party below (or to such other address or facsimile telephone number as such party shall have specified in a written notice given to the other party):

if to Parent:

The Cooper Companies 6140 Stoneridge Mall Road, Suite 590 Pleasanton, CA 94588 Attn: Carol R. Kaufman, Secretary Fax: (925) 460-3662

if to Stockholder:

Attn: Fax: ()

9. Severability. Any term or provision of this Affiliate Agreement that is invalid or unenforceable in any situation in any jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining terms and provisions hereof or the validity or enforceability of the offending term or provision in any other situation or in any other jurisdiction. If the final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction declares that any term or provision hereof is invalid or unenforceable, the parties hereto agree that the court making such determination shall have the power to limit the term or provision, to delete specific words or phrases, or to replace any invalid or unenforceable term or provision with a term or provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes closest to expressing the intention of the invalid or unenforceable term or provision, and this Affiliate

Agreement shall be enforceable as so modified. In the event such court does not exercise the power granted to it in the prior sentence, the parties hereto agree to replace such invalid or unenforceable term or provision with a valid and enforceable term or provision that will achieve, to the extent possible, the economic, business and other purposes of such invalid or unenforceable term.

10. Applicable Law; Jurisdiction. THIS AFFILIATE AGREEMENT IS MADE UNDER, AND SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF DELAWARE APPLICABLE TO AGREEMENTS MADE AND TO BE PERFORMED SOLELY THEREIN, WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAW. In any action between or among any of the parties arising out of this Affiliate Agreement, (a) each of the parties irrevocably and unconditionally consents and submits to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the state and federal courts located in the County of Alameda, State of California; (b) if any such action is commenced in a state court, then, subject to applicable law, no party shall object to the removal of such action to any federal court located in the Northern District of California; (c) each of the parties irrevocably waives the right to trial by jury; and (d) each of the parties irrevocably consents to service of process by first class certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepared, to the address at which such party is to receive notice in accordance with Section 8.

11. Waiver; Termination. No failure on the part of Parent to exercise any power, right, privilege or remedy under this Affiliate Agreement, and no delay on the part of Parent in exercising any power, right, privilege or remedy under this Affiliate Agreement, shall operate as a waiver of such power, right, privilege or remedy; and no single or partial exercise of any such power, right, privilege or remedy shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or of any other power, right, privilege or remedy under this Affiliate Agreement, or any power, right, privilege or remedy under this Affiliate Agreement, unless the waiver of such claim, power, right, privilege or remedy is expressly set forth in a written instrument duly executed and delivered on behalf of Parent; and any such waiver shall not be applicable or have any effect except in the specific instance in which it is given. If the Merger Agreement is terminated, this Affiliate Agreement shall thereupon terminate.

12. Captions. The captions contained in this Affiliate Agreement are for convenience of reference only, shall not be deemed to be a part of this Affiliate Agreement and shall not be referred to in connection with the construction or interpretation of this Affiliate Agreement.

13. Further Assurances. Stockholder shall execute and/or cause to be delivered to Parent such instruments and other documents and shall take such other actions as Parent may reasonably request to effectuate the intent and purposes of this Affiliate Agreement.

14. Entire Agreement. This Affiliate Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of Parent and Stockholder relating to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all other prior agreements and understandings between Parent and Stockholder relating to the subject matter hereof.

15. Non-Exclusivity. The rights and remedies of Parent hereunder are not exclusive of or limited by any other rights or remedies which Parent may have, whether at law, in equity, by contract or otherwise, all of which shall be cumulative (and not alternative).

16. Amendments. This Affiliate Agreement may not be amended, modified, altered or supplemented other than by means of a written instrument duly executed and delivered on behalf of Parent and Stockholder.

17. Assignment. This Affiliate Agreement and all obligations hereunder are personal to the parties hereto and may not be transferred or delegated at any time.

18. Binding Nature. Subject to Section 16, this Affiliate Agreement will inure to the benefit of Parent and its successors and permitted assigns and will be binding upon Stockholder and Stockholder's representatives, executors, administrators, estate, heirs, successors and assigns.

19. Survival. Each of the representations, warranties, covenants and obligations contained in this Affiliate Agreement shall survive the consummation of the Merger.

Stockholder has executed this Affiliate Agreement on _____, 2004.

By: _____

Name:

Title:

NUMBER OF OUTSTANDING SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OF THE COMPANY HELD BY STOCKHOLDER:

NUMBER SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OF THE COMPANY SUBJECT TO OPTIONS HELD BY STOCKHOLDER:

PROXY THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. PROXY FOR SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS, , 2004 SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The undersigned stockholder of The Cooper Companies, Inc., a Delaware corporation, hereby appoints A. THOMAS BENDER, ROBERT S. WEISS and CAROL R. KAUFMAN, and each of them, proxies, with full power of substitution, to vote all of the shares of common stock of The Cooper Companies, Inc. which the undersigned is entitled to vote at the Special Meeting of Stockholders of The Cooper Companies, Inc. to be held at The Benjamin Hotel, 152 East 50th Street, New York, NY, on , 2004 at 10:00 a.m., local time, and at any adjournments or postponements thereof, as set forth on the reverse, and in their discretion upon any other business that may properly come before the meeting.

THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED IN THE MANNER DIRECTED HEREIN BY THE UNDERSIGNED STOCKHOLDER. IF NO DIRECTION IS MADE, THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED "FOR" ITEM 1.

(Continued and to be signed on the reverse side)

PLEASE DATE, SIGN AND MAIL YOUR PROXY CARD IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.

SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS OF THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.

, 2004

– PLEASE DETACH ALONG PERFORATED LINE AND MAIL IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED –

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE "FOR" ITEM 1 PLEASE SIGN, DATE AND RETURN PROMPTLY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE, PLEASE MARK YOUR VOTE IN

BLUE OR BLACK INK AS SHOWN HERE imes

1.	Approve the issuance of Cooper common stock pursuant to the Agreement and			
	Plan of Merger, dated as of July 28, 2004, by and among The Cooper	FOR	AGAINST	ABSTAIN
	Companies, Inc., TCC Acquisition Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of			
	Cooper, and Ocular Sciences, Inc.			

In their discretion, the proxies are authorized to vote upon and transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments or postponements of the meeting.

THIS PROXY WILL REVOKE ALL PRIOR PROXIES SIGNED BY YOU.

TO CHANGE THE ADDRESS ON YOUR ACCOUNT, PLEASE CHECK THE BOX AT RIGHT AND INDICATE YOUR NEW ADDRESS IN THE ADDRESS SPACE BELOW. PLEASE NOTE THAT CHANGES TO THE REGISTERED NAME(S) ON THE ACCOUNT MAY NOT BE SUBMITTED VIA THIS METHOD.			
SIGNATURE OF STOCKHOLDER	_	DATE	
SIGNATURE OF STOCKHOLDER		DATE	

NOTE: Please sign exactly as your name or names appear on this Proxy. When shares are held jointly, each holder should sign. When signing as executor, administrator, attorney, trustee or guardian, please give full title as such. If the signer is a corporation, please sign full corporate name by duly authorized officer, giving full title as such. If signer is a partnership, please sign in partnership name by authorized person.

FORM OF PROXY OF OCULAR

OCULAR SCIENCES, INC. PROXY FOR SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS , 2004

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The undersigned hereby appoints Stephen J. Fanning and Steven M. Neil, or either of them, as proxies, each with full power of substitution, and hereby authorizes them to represent and to vote, as designated below, all shares of Common Stock, \$0.001 par value, of Ocular Sciences, Inc. (the "Company"), held of record by the undersigned on , 2004, at the Special Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to be held at the Hilton Concord, 1970 Diamond Boulevard, Concord, California, on , 2004, at 10:00 a.m. local time, and at any adjournments or postponements thereof.

(Continued and to be Signed on the Reverse Side)

SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS OCULAR SCIENCES, INC.

, 2004

PLEASE DATE, SIGN AND MAIL YOUR PROXY CARD IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.

COMPANY NUMBER ACCOUNT NUMBER

PLEASE DETACH AND MAIL IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR PROPOSAL 1. PLEASE SIGN, DATE AND RETURN PROMPTLY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE, PLEASE MARK YOUR VOTE IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS SHOWN HERE

1.	Approve and adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 28, 2004, by and among The Cooper Companies, Inc., TCC Acquisition, Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cooper, and Ocular Sciences, Inc., and approve the merger of Ocular with and into TCC Acquisition, with TCC Acquisition surviving the merger as a wholly- owned subsidiary of Cooper.	FOR	AGAINST	ABSTAIN
	ANSACT SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS MAY PROPERLY COME BEFOR STPONEMENTS OF THE SPECIAL MEETING.	E THE SPECIAL ME	EETING OR ANY ADJOURNM	IENTS OR
	S PROXY WILL BE VOTED AS DIRECTED ABOVE. WHEN NO CHOIC RTH ABOVE.	CE IS INDICATED, T	HIS PROXY WILL BE VOTEI	D FOR PROPOSAL 1 SET
PRC	ETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE SPECIAL MEETING IN OMPTLY MAIL THIS PROXY IN THE ENCLOSED RETURN ENVELOPI ETING.	,	,	,
addı	change the address on your account, please check the box at right and indicate ress space above. Please note that changes to the registered name(s) on the ac- this method.	5		
SIG	NATURE OF STOCKHOLDER		DATE	
SIG	NATURE OF STOCKHOLDER		DATE	

Note: Please sign exactly as name or name(s) appear on this Proxy. When shares are held jointly each holder should sign. When signing as executor, administrator, attorney, trustee or guardian, please give full title as such. If the signer is a corporation, please sign full corporate name by duly authorized officer, giving full title as such. If signer is a partnership, please sign in partnership name by authorized person.

CONSENT OF PERSON NAMED AS ABOUT TO BECOME A DIRECTOR

I hereby consent to my being named in the Registration Statement on Form S-4 of The Cooper Companies, Inc. (the "Company") and all amendments thereto, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, as a person who will become a director of the Company upon consummation of the transactions contemplated therein.

August 20, 2004

/s/ John D. Fruth

John D. Fruth

CONSENT OF PERSON NAMED AS ABOUT TO BECOME A DIRECTOR

I hereby consent to my being named in the Registration Statement on Form S-4 of The Cooper Companies, Inc. (the "Company") and all amendments thereto, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, as a person who will become a director of the Company upon consummation of the transactions contemplated therein.

August 20, 2004

/s/ EDGAR J. CUMMINS

Edgar J. Cummins

CONSENT OF J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES INC.

We hereby consent to (i) the use of our opinion letter dated July 28, 2004 to the Board of Directors of The Cooper Companies, Inc. (the "Company") included in Annex C to the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus, which forms part of the Registration Statement on Form S-4 relating to the proposed merger of a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and Ocular Sciences, Inc., and (ii) the references to such opinion in such Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus and Registration Statement. In giving such consent, we do not admit that we come within the category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission thereunder, nor do we hereby admit that we are experts with respect to any part of such Registration Statement within the meaning of the term "experts" as used in the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the rules and regulations thereunder.

J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES INC.

/s/ J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES

August 20, 2004

CONSENT OF MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INCORPORATED

Board of Directors Ocular Sciences, Inc. 1855 Gateway Boulevard Suite 700 Concord, California 94520

Consent of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated

We hereby consent to the use in the Registration Statement of The Cooper Companies, Inc. on Form S-4 and in the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus of The Cooper Companies, Inc. and Ocular Sciences, Inc., which is part of the Registration Statement, of our opinion dated July 28, 2004, appearing as Annex D to such Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus, and to the description of such opinion and to the references to our name contained therein under the headings "Summary - Opinions of Financial Advisors", "The Merger - Background of the Merger", "The Merger - Reasons for the Merger - Ocular", and "The Merger - Opinion of Financial Advisor - Ocular." In giving the foregoing consent, we do not admit that we come within the category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), or the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, nor do we admit that we are experts with respect to any part of such Registration Statement within the meaning of the term "experts" as used in the Securities Act or the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INCORPORATED

By: /s/ Kent Couling

Kent Couling Vice President